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Philadelphia Gas Works' Base Rate Filing
52 Pa. Code § 53.52

§ 53.52. Applicability; public utilities other than canal, turnpike, tunnel, bridge and wharf
companies.

(a) Whenever a public utility, other than a canal, turnpike, tunnel, bridge or wharf company files
a tariff, revision or supplement effecting changes in the terms and conditions of service rendered
or to be rendered, it shall submit to the Commission, with the tariff, revision or supplement,
statements showing all of the following:

(1)  The specific reasons for each change.

RESPONSE: PGW is seeking this rate increase to fund its post-retirement benefit
obligation. Please see the testimony of PGW witnesses Bogdonavage, Bisgaier, Kikla and
Hershey for additional information. PGW is proposing an increase in Residential and
Commercial delivery charges and a decrease in Commercial, Philadelphia Housing Authority
(Rate PHA and General Service) and Municipal delivery charges. Please see the testimony of
PGW witnesses Dybalski and Gorman for an explanation of the delivery charge
increases/decreases in each rate class.

(2)  The total number of customers served by the utility.

RESPONSE: Please see the schedules that are attached in the response to § 53.52(b)(3).

(3) A calculation of the number of customers, by tariff subdivision, whose bills will
be affected by the change.

RESPONSE: Please see the schedules that are attached in the response to § 53.52(b)(3).

“) The effect of the change on the utility's customers.

RESPONSE: Please see the schedules that are attached in the responses to § 53.52(b)(3)
and § 53.52(b)(4). o

(5)  The direct or indirect effect of the proposed change on the utility's revenue and
expenses.

RESPONSE: Please see the direct testimony of Joseph Bogdonavage (PGW St. 2) and
the accompanying Exhibits JRB-1 and JRB-2A/2B.
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(6)  The effect of the change on the service rendered by the utility.

RESPONSE: The changes to rates will not have any effect on the service currently
rendered by PGW.

(7)  Alist of factors considered by the utility in its determination to make the change.
The list shall include a comprehensive statement about why these factors were chosen and the
relative importance of each. This subsection does not apply to a portion of a tariff change
seeking a general rate increase as defined in 66 Pa. C.S. § 1308 (relating to voluntary changes in
rates).

RESPONSE: Not applicable.

(8)  Studies undertaken by the utility in order to draft its proposed change. This
paragraph does not apply to a portion of a tariff change seeking a general rate increase as defined
in 66 Pa. C.S. § 1308.

RESPONSE: Not applicable.

(9)  Customer polls take and other documents which indicate customer acceptance and
desire for the proposed change. If the poll or other documents reveal discernible public
opposition, an explanation of why the change is in the public interest shall be provided.

RESPONSE: No customer polls or other documentation regarding customer acceptance
or desire for the proposed change exists.

(10) Plans the utility has for introducing or implementing the changes with respect to
its ratepayers.

RESPONSE: The Company will notify its customers of the proposed increase by means
of a billing insert in compliance with the Commissions regulations as codified at 52 Pa.Code §
53.45.

(11) FCC, FERC or Commission orders or rulings applicable to the filing.
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RESPONSE: There are not any FERC or Commission rulings directly applicable to this
change.
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§ 53.52. Applicability; public utilities other than canal, turnpike, tunnel, bridge and wharf
companies.

(b) Whenever a public utility other than a canal, turnpike, tunnel, bridge or wharf company files
a tariff, revision or supplement which will increase or decrease the bills to its customers, it shall
submit in addition to the requirements of subsection (a), to the Commission, with the tariff,
revision or supplement, statements showing the following:

(1) The specific reasons for each increase or decrease.

RESPONSE: PGW is seeking this rate increase to fund its post-retirement benefit obligation.
Please see the testimony of PGW witnesses Bogdonavage, Bisgaier, Kikla and Hershey for
additional information. PGW is proposing an increase in Residential and Commercial delivery
charges and a decrease in Commercial, Philadelphia Housing Authority (Rate PHA and
General Service) and Municipal delivery charges. Please see the testimony of PGW witnesses
Dybalski and Gorman for an explanation of the delivery charge increases/decreases in each rate
class.

(2) The operating income statement of the utility for a 12-month period, the end of which
may not be more than 120 days prior to the filing. Water and wastewater utilities with annual
revenues under $100,000 and municipal corporations subject to Commission jurisdiction may
provide operating income statements for a 12-month period, the end of which may not be more
than 180 days prior to the filing.

RESPONSE: Please see attached.

(3) A calculation of the number of customers, by tariff subdivision, whose bills will be
increased.

RESPONSE: Please see attached.

(4) A calculation of the total increases, in dollars, by tariff subdivision, projected to an annual
basis.

RESPONSE: Please see attached.
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(5) A calculation of the number of customers, by tariff subdivision, whose bills will be
decreased.

RESPONSE: See answer to 53.52(b)(3).

(6) A calculation of the total decreases, in dollars, by tariff subdivision, projected to an annual
basis.

RESPONSE: See answer to 53.52(b)(3).




Line 2008
No.  Actual
1 $ 78,887
2 19,215
3 735457
4 8,607
5 {1,931)
6 ~ 540,035
7 9,592
8 ~ 849,627
9 511,938
10 38
11 T 511,976
12 337,651
13 14,436
14 37126
15 17,319
16 8,441
17 37,000
18 12,308
19 7,006
20 2,628
21 44,001
22 34,226
23 (10,331)
24 (7,180)
25 14,258
26 25834
27 5,677
28 .
29 .
30 _ 242,748
31 94,905
32 42,868
33 __ (3,344)
34 39,524
35 794,246
36 55381
37 __ 15732
38— 71,113
39 58,075
40 12,269
41 338
42~ 68,006
4 107

§3.52 (b)(2)

UNAUDITED
PGW
STATEMENT OF INCOME
TWELVE MONTHS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2009 AND 2008 WITH COMPARISONS
(Thousands of Doliars)
increase/(Docrease)
2009 Actual 2008 vs Budget
Actual Amount ﬁ
reven
Non-heating $ 67,296 $ 84,369 $ (17,074) (20)
Gas transport sorvice 24,913 27,510 (2,597) (9)
Heating 820,142 969,765 (149,623) (15)
Appilance & Other Revenues 9,311 9,029 282 3
Unbiiled gas adjustment 1,893 1,580 3,473 -
Total gas revenues 916,768 1,092,253 (172,485) (16)
Other operating revenues 9,673 12,268 2,595 21
Totail operating rovenues 929,441 1,104,521 (175,080) (16)
Natural gas 545,859 732,322 (186,463) (25)
Other raw materlal 13 —_— 5 {18) L
SUB-TOTAL FUEL 545,848 732,327 (186,481) (25)
CONTRIBUTION MARGIN 383,595 372,194 11,401 3
Gas Processing 16,779 16,265 514 3
Fleid Services 37,727 38,375 {648) 2)
Distribution 21,059 17,982 3,077 17
Collection 8,723 9,450 (727) (8)
Appropriation for uncoliectible reserve 42,000 44,011 (2,011) (5)
Customer Services 12,897 13,510 (613) 5)
Account Management 7,528 7,548 (23) -
Marketing 3,436 4,064 (628) (15)
Administrative & General 38,3680 48,011 (9,651) (20)
Health insurance 37,061 36,551 510 1
Capitalized Fringe Benefits (9,284) (10,592) 1,308 (12)
Capitalized Admin, Charges (6,973) (7.473) 500 (n
Pensions 16,425 14,419 1,006 7
Other Post-Empioyment Benefits 25,952 25,558 394 2
Taxes 6,588 8,799 (211) 3)
BTi Cost (Benefits) 4,655 (1,670) 6,325 -
Cost Savings e ___f2158) 2,156 -
Tota! operating expenses __ 261,930 260,652 1,278 -
Operating income before depreciation 421,665 111,542 10,123 9
Depreciation 42,200 42,408 (208) 0)
Less depreciation distributed thru clearing accounts __ (a419) (5,159) 740 {14)
Net depreciation 37,781 37,249 532 1
Total operating expenses 845,557 1,030,228 (184,671) {18)
Opeorating income 83,884 74,293 9,591 13
interest and other income 12,240 11,526 714 6
income before interest 96,124 85,819 10,305 12
intorest
Long term debt 63,602 54,968 8,634 16
Other 15,558 13,119 2,439 19
Allowance for funds used during construction (247) (873) 826 (72)
Net interest expense 78,913 67,214 11,699 17
Net income $ 17,211 $ 18,605 $ {1,394
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Residential Heating

Unit Costs
Surcharges
Delivery Charge
GCR Factor
Customer Charge

Annual BilVEffect on Annual Bill
Effect on Average Moathly Bill

Commercial Heating

Unit Costs
Surcharges
Delivery Charge
GCR Factor
Customer Charge

Annual BilVEffect on Aunual Bill
Effect on Average Monthly Bill

Industria! Heating

Unit Costs
Surcharges
Delivery Charge
GCR Factor
Customer Charge

Annual Bil/Effect on Annual Bill
Effect on Average Monthly Bill

PHA_Healing

Unit Costs
Surcharges
Delivery Charge
GCR Factor
Customer Charge

Annual Bil/Effect on Annual Bill
Effect on Average Monthly Bill

PHA/GS Heating

Unit Costs
Surcharges
Delivery Charge
GCR Factor
Customer Charge

Annual BilVEffect on Annual Bill
Effect on Average Monthly Bill

Municipal_Heating

Unit Costs
Surcharges
Delivery Charge
GCR Factor
Customer Charge

Annual BilVEffect on Annual Bill
Effect on Average Monthly Bill

Rate Increase

Typical Monthly Bill

4412 Degree Days

Annual Current
Usage _ Unit
920 Mcf $ 2.0987 Surcharges
920 Mcf § 6.1840 Delivery Charge
920 Mcf § 7.3011 GCR Factor
12 Months § 12.00 Customer Charge
s 1,577.71
s 18
Annual Current
Usage  Unit Rates
3930 Mcf § 2.0987 Surcharges
3930 M $ 5.2449 Delivery Charge
3930 Mcf $ 7.3011 GCR Factor
12 Months $ 18.00 Customer Charge
s 5971.37
Annual Current
Usage Unit Rates
8850 Mcf § 2.0987 Surcharges
8850 Mcf § 5.2465 Delivery Charge
8850 Mcf $ 7.3011 GCR Factor
12 Months $ 50.00 Customer Charge
$  13,561.98
Annual Current
Usage _ Unit Rates
T120  Mcf § 2.0987 Surcharges
TI120 Mcef 5.1889 Delivery Charge
7120 Mcf § 7.30L1 GCR Factor
12 Months  $ 18.00 Customer Charge
$__10,603.15
Annual Current
Usage _ Unit Rates
1070 Mcf § 2.0987 Surcharges
1070 Mcf § 5.2817 Delivery Charge
1070 Mcf § 7.3011 GCR Factor
12 Months $ 12,0000 Customer Charge
s 1,714.92
Annual Current
Usage ~ Unit Rates
14200 Mef § 2.0987 Surcharges
14200 Mcf $ 3.8178 Delivery Charge
1,4200 Mcf § 73011 GCR Factor
12 Months § 18.00 Customer Charge
S__18984.99

Rate Change Change In
Update. Aunus! Bill
s 2.0987
$ 7.2977
H 7.3011
s 12.00
S 1017 s 10246
s 140.01 s 8.54
Rate Change Change In
Update. Annus! Bill
$ 2.0987
s 5.0287
s 7.3011
N 18.00
s 886.40 $ (8497
s___om
Rate Change Change In
Update Annual Bil}
$ 2.0987
$ 6.4144
$ 7.3011
$ 50.00
$__14SSST S 103359
s 8613
Rate Change Change In
Update Annug] Bill
s 2.0987
s 5.0990
s 7.3011
$ 18.00
§ 10,539.15 s (6401
S (5:33)
Rate Change Change In
Update Annual Bil
3 2.0987
$ 5.1784
s 73011
b 12.00
s 170387 s (11.05)
S 0.92
Rate Change Change In
te Apnual Bill
b 2.0987
$ 3.4344
$ 7.3011
M 18.00
S __ 18,440.56 H (544.43)
s 48.37

§3.62(b)(4)

Change
In Rate

1.1137

PN Nn

65%

Change
InRate

©02162)

AANW

~1.4%

Change
In Rate

1.1679

PR R

76%

Change
In Rate

(0.0899)

w

-0.6%

Change
InRate

0.1 (;33)

e

-

-0.6%

Change
InRate

(0.31;34)

MAHAn

2.9%



Philadelphia Gas Works' Base Rate Filing
52 Pa. Code § 53.52

§ 53.52. Applicability; public utilities other than canal, turnpike, tunnel, bridge and wharf
companies.

(c) If a public utility files a tariff, revision or supplement which it is calculated will increase the
bills of a customer or a group of customers by an amount, when projected to an annual basis,
exceeding 3% of the operating revenues of the utility—subsection (b)(4) divided by the
operating revenues of the utility for a 12-month period as defined in subsection (b)(2)—or which
it is calculated will increase the bills of 5% or more of the number of customers served by the
utility—subsection (b)(3) divided by subsection (a)(2)—it shall submit to the Commission with
the tariff, revision or supplement, in addition to the statements required by subsections (a) and
(b), all of the following information:

(1) A statement showing the utility’s calculation of the rate of return or operating ratio (if the
utility qualifies to use an operating ratio under § 53.54 (relating to small water and wastewater
utililities)) earned in the 12-month period referred to in subsection (b)(2), and the anticipated
rate of return or operating ratio to be earned when the tariff, revision or supplement becomes
effective. The rate base used in this calculation shall be supported by summaries of original
cost for the rate of return calculation. When an operating ratio is used in this calculation, it
shall be supported by studies of margin above operation and maintenance expense plus
depreciation as referred to in § 53.54(b)(2)(B).

RESPONSE: Not applicable.

(2) A detailed balance sheet of the utility as of the close of the period referred to in
subsection (b)(2).

RESPONSE.: Please see attached.

(3) A summary, by detailed plant accounts, of the book value of the property of the utility at
the date of the balance sheet required by paragraph (2).

RESPONSE: Please see attached.

(4) A statement showing the amount of the depreciation reserve, at the date of the balance
sheet required by paragraph (2), applicable to the property, summarized as required by
paragraph (3).

RESPONSE: Please see attached.
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52 Pa. Code § 53.52

(5) A statement of operating income, setting forth the operating revenues and expenses by
detailed accounts for the 12-month period ending on the date of the balance sheet required by

paragraph (2).
RESPONSE: Please see attached.

(6) A brief description of a major change in the operating or financial condition of the utility
occurring between the date of the balance sheet required by paragraph (2) and the date of
transmittal of the tariff, revision or supplement. As used in this paragraph, a major change is
one which materially alters the operating or financial condition of the utility from that reflected

in paragraphs (1)—(5).

RESPONSE: There has not been any major change in the operating or financial condition of
the utility.




53.52 (c)(2)

PGW
BALANCE SHEETS AUGUST 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Thousands of Dollars)
ASSETS
Line
No. 2009 2008
Utility Plant - At Original Cost
1 In service $ 1,754,297 1,685,593
2 Under construction 30,953 46 969
3 Total 1,785,250 1,732,562
4 l.ess accumulated depreciation (708,783) (670,467}
5 Utility plant - net 1,076,467 1,062,095
6 Sinking fund - revenue bonds 110,227 106,198
7  Capitat improvement funds 62,714 111,207
8 Restricted investment (City of Philadelphla) - -
9 Restricted investment Workers' Compensation 2,593 2,383
Current Assets
10  Cash and temporary investments 13,750 49,338
Accounts receivable
11 Customers , 220,132 222,880
12  Others 2,122 8,714
13 Accrued gas revenues 6,251 8,145
14  Accumulated provisions for uncollectible accounts (123,009) (140,435)
15 Accounts receivable - net 105,496 99,304
16 Materials and supplies 125,023 187,539
17  Other current assets and deferred debits 4,895 5,626
18 Total Current Assets 249,164 341,807
19 Unamortized bond issuance cost 27,516 38,738
20 Unamortized loss-reacquired dabt 79,945 47,902
21 Other Assets 9,233 20,475
22 Deferred Environmental 14,232 12,650

23 Total Assets $ 1,632,001 $ 1743455




53.52 (c)(2)

PGW
BALANCE SHEETS AUGUST 31, 2009 AND 2008
{Thousands of Dollars)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Line
2009 2008 No.
City equity $ 243619 $ 226,408 1
Long term debt:
City of Philadelphia bonds
Issued Original unt Cument portion
1989 132,520 - 5,064 5,064 2
1990 50,421 - - - 3
1994 183,880 - - - 4
1998 287,185 12,245 81,365 93,610 5
1999 176,280 2,655 22,630 25,285 6
2001 120,225 2,700 5815 8,515 7
2002 125,000 2,670 89,915 92,585 8
2003 186,705 7,550 132,675 140,225 9
2004 207,820 13,460 187,010 200,470 10
2006 313,390 - - 280,454 1
2007 245,350 3,170 239,135 242,305 12
2009 1,595 311,690 0 13
TECA - 11th “C" - 16,818 15,314 14
TECA - 12th “A" - - - 15
Subordinate Lease Obligations
1997 23,000 - - - 16
Total Issued 46,045 1,092,117 1,103,827 17
Unamortized debt discount/premium 2,130 22,371 23,336 18
Total Long Term Bond Debt 48,175 1,114,488 1,127,163 19
Notes payable (City of Phila.) - - 20
Total Long Term Debt 1,114,488 1,127,163 21
Current Liabilities
Notes payable - 90,000 22
Accounts payable 46,205 67,508 23
Current portion of long term debt 48,175 76,030 24
Customers' deposits 4,224 7,325 25
Other current liabilities and deferred credits 16,203 32,581 26
Accrued accounts:
Interest, taxes and wages 15,948 15,821 27
Distribution to the City 3,000 3,000 28
Total Current Liabilities 133,755 292,265 28
Other Liabilities 140,229 97,619 30
Total Equity and Liabilities $ 1,632,091 $ 1,743,455 a1




$S0'ZEV'E0S’E - (osL'eL2'2) oSt'sr 690°0£9°0S 295'920'55¥'h
_S22'se6'5914 - (52v'1.88) - 912'e06'ZL 226'¢86°851
168°100°¢ 168'L00°E
z8L'o8y'sL $£5'261 8¥C'62E°S)
£L5'18Y £45'1eY
SEE'E0¥'L SEE'SOP'L
LOZ'SIS L0Z'SLS
¥ze'e08'st (S2v'186) 615'2¢} 022'259'L
L0Z'68L'2L 182°022°}1) ¥16'895°19
969'98.'9¥ oI8'21¥'} 028°89¢"SY
2002008 9L2L'e
0ZL'E9L'S1Z') - (ssz'zeT's) 0516 S02'189°28 0Z5'vSL°8LL'L
950'¥S¥'¥ civ'ott SP'LIEY
825°€LE 82561
112°0/0'y 6 (Sr9'ow) E'LLLY
1EE'Y18') 68¢'se zre'ssL't
208'€19'06 PP £68'36¢'S6
895'292'28 0rZ'899's 82Z'¥65°05
108'1£8°25¢ (B2 296°101'bT 869'089°1£G
08€'298'v1 086208y}
S69'¥SZ’1 S69'¥SC’t
268'108°¢8Y (ss2z'e62's) 2€6°1SS'EL SiZ'evo' 1Ly
726'289'2 v16'289'C
116'00% L16°004
6Z1'06V'L6 - - 6Z1'0cv'L6
$09'8¥L 1) yoo'syL))
9EL'sBL'Y 8EE'86L'Y
v vLi'eLz'es
epL'TSH'EE 3 %4 A}
8r2'959'8 8r2'050'8
662662 662'6£T
£26'¥85°¢E £26'p8S'CE
009°08¢"L 009'05¢"L
008°22¢ 008°22¢
620°€06°0E - 880y }1#6°258°0¢8
66L°451'9) 880'GH 169°211°9)
29 2oL
68p'8 68r's
oci'es 0z}l
LS'per') LYS'vTr't
yOL'622 ¥01'622
62t '6¥y 621 '6bp
$58'291'11 ¥58°291°1)
SB8'ZGH't S88'2SHl
60/LE/8 80/1E/8
ZONVIVE ONIONZ $3SSVI03Y SANININLLIY SININLSNIaY SNoLiaav 29NVIVE ONIONT
6002 ‘L€ 1SNONV 40 SY
FOIAYIS NI LINVd ALNILLN
(eXo) zs'es SHYOM SVO VIHd13AVIHd

010} 10} S{ej0 |, WNOIOY

jugjd jIDUIY (RI0]

- 'dinb3 snoauejieasin
*dinb3 suopesjununwo)
‘dinb3 pajessd( Jomod

‘dinb3 ebeseg 1 doys ‘sjoot
‘dinb3 sas0lg

*dinb3 uonepodsuesy

"dinb3 ' aumung 8O
Jusweacidu] § saimonig

- siybry pue pue puety

96¢
68
26¢
v6e
€6€
26¢
16€
06¢
68¢

ueld uoRNqRSIg (w0

a81Q - 'dinb3 Jauio
Joeinbay B “esan Ansnpuy
iesu| Joteinbay 8snoy
sioenBay asnoH
suoneyeisu; Jo1N

si9jeN

SBOIAIeS

uopels sojeinbey g 'seey
“dinb3 uoyels JossaxdwoD
suie

JusweAoud) g samponng
- SI6Ry pue pue puet

i8¢
S8e
40
€8¢
<2
I8¢
ose
73
714
9.¢
S.¢
vie

jueid ebesols fej0}

Joyg - "dinb3 JeyiQ ON 89¢
Jojeinbay 3 Buunseapy ONY 198
*dinb3 Jossaudwod ON 99¢
*dinb3 uoezyodeA ONG S9¢
*dinb3 uonoejenbri ONY vog
*dinb3 uopesyundg ON £9¢
S19pIOH SED Toe
waweAcdwy g sampng 19
- s1yBry pue pue pue 09¢
jue|d UORONPOId 110)
‘poud - ‘dinb3 Jeyio oze
‘dinb3 Bu se BIE
dinb3 Bujuyay |enpisay 8le
*dinb3 uopesyung L1g
$ED Wnsjoned peyenb) e
‘dinb3 Jamod Jeui0 20¢
‘dinb3 yueig o089 90¢
Wsweacudwy B SaINjoS S0E
- sjuyby pue pue pue) ¥0e
ANV1d ALIULN 3009 and

OL0
oLoL
0104
0L0
oLoL
oi04
olo1
0101
olol

oLoL
0LoL
0103
0101
0104
oLolL
ool
ook
0104
0i04
0101
0101

ool
otol
oLol
oLol
oot
0L0L
oL0L
o] 1]
0l0L

0101
010}
0101
olok
0104
0i0L
0104
oLot
oLol



259°svT's8L'L - (s90'152'cL) (ece'sL) ¥8¢°.56°S21 9.2'795°ZEL'L
88.°268'0F (sec’LL6'0L) 011°196'vS €10'696'9F
698'982'¥5L'L locs'erz'd) (6e8'81) $.2'966'0L £02°c65°589°}
818'198'052 {880°89) $02'99€°0Z T0.'995'0¢2
190°958'co L20°L6T'Y 066'v95'65
oes'seg’t 629'0V1 182'6L¥')L
0ZZ'006'y 81£'622 206'0L9'F
04805 028'0¢
98b°205°'L 852'829 822'6.8
122'0¥2 1zz'0¥e
$65'192'C1 S2L'28Y 698'8LLLL
09%°'685'64 265'e62'2 826'G65°21
082'08¢'€Z 655'01S 122'608'22
06L'6EZ'VEL (r29'89) 016'26L'v1 YE¥0L5°6LL
2£1'692°L 062'0L¥ Lv8'Zse'L
€05 £0S
812'Z8L'S slLzel'e
€98'sL'y €o8'SkL'Y
eIy §50'98 690'980'¥
9£9'092° 969'00L°'L
96.'859'84 1 (y29'89) 529'G62'vL SY8'LEP YOI
rA zL
95Z'92Y'9¢ 628°81L°}L 226°208'sE
82£'200'9 92¢£'200'9
889°12V'L ¥86'vhs $0L'9L2'}
cOTYPL'Y 2L5TUT 1€9°166°C
1SP'0S0's 1S¥'050'}
by'Lev'ze zIo'ssy 668'7Y6'12
bLL'TH 91hrA}
Log'evl 08yt
18V'¥2T tal'stz gcY'svs
LLL2ZYE'9L 98S y£8°8S) L62'E8L'9
626'66L'S #£8'8G1 S60'4¥9'S
064 'E2Y'T 061'€2¥'C
265'641'8 98S 900’6419

60/1518 80/1E/8

JONVIVE SNIONS S3SSVIOTY SINIWIHILIY SIN3WLISNIaV SNOLLIgav JONYIVE ONIONI
600Z ‘1€ LSNONV 40 SY
FOIAY3S NI INV1d ALITLLN
(e)o) zs°¢s SHIYOM SVO ViHd13aViHd

ueld [eiouey [Bj0)

- ‘dinb3} snosuejieosiy
‘dnb3g suopeduNULIO)
“dinb3 pejesad( Jomod

'dinb3 efeses %3 doyg 'sjoo)
"dinbg saiog

*dinb3 uopeyiodsuely

*dinb3 »p ainywung 9aY50
juswsAodul) B seINOnNng

jueld vopnNqSig 0L

“Js1q - “dinb3 Jeyi0

Helsu] Jojenbey esnoH
suojiejeisu| JoeN

SI9PW

S80IAIBS

uogels Jojenboy B 'seajy
suley

JBWeAosdU) g SBNPNIS

ey ebeiols [ejo)

Joig - 'dinb3 J1etno ON1
Joieinbay g Buunsesy ON1
“dinb3 Jossasdwod ON
*dinb3 uonezyodeA ON1
*dinb3 uoporenbr] ON1
*dinb3 uonesyund ON1
SJOPIOH se)

Juaweacdw| ' saIMONNg

juejd uopanpold (ol

‘pasd - “dinb3 a0
“dinb3 jueid Jopog
jusweaoudw) g saINONIS

ANYId ALTHLN

ANVId ALNILLA TTVAOL

SIV10L diMO aav

g6t
16€
96¢
y6e
€6¢
<6E
168
06¢

188
pee
8e
134
08€
8¢
9l¢
SiE

g¥8R8888

0ce
90t
S0E

3002 2nd

SV10L 13SSV aaxid

080} 40§ ${R}0] JUNOOIY

0801
0801
0904
0901
0901
0801
0901
0904

0901
0304
0904
090t
0904
0901
0801
0901

0901
0901
0801
0901
0901
0801
0901
0901

0901
0804
0901

v
13ssv



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
DEPRECIATION BY PUC CODE
YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31, 2009

53.52 (c)(4)

ACCUMULATED YTD
PUC CATEGORY cost DEPRECIATION | DEPREGIATION
304 Land and Land Rights 1,452,885.00 - -
305 Structures & Improvement 19,287,446.54 10,349,606.06 536,832.18
306 Boiler Plant Equip. 2,872,318.73 1,655,563.37 106,889.36
307 Other Power Equip. 229,104.00 161,569.10 3,753.09
311 Liquefied Petroleum Gas 1,424,547.00 1,278,406.97 -
317 Purification Equip. 13,120.00 11,774.06 -
318 Residual Refining Equip 8,489.00 7,618.14 -
319 Gas Mixing Equip. 162.00 102.05 2.23
320 Other Equip. - Prod. 21,957,668.24 11,935,260.86 669,485.79
360 Land and Land Rights 327,799.59 - -
361 Structures & Improvement 8,574,796.97 4,763,478.29 185,684.44
362 Gas Holders 33,728,730.33 28,886,815.90 792,827.26
363 LNG Purification Equip. 251,469.62 218,528.49 495.34
364 LNG Liquefaction Equip. 31,083,659.53 11,767,459.98 858,326.03
365 LNG Vaporization Equip. 13,502,593.09 9,831,564.84 327,696.27
366 LNG Compressor Equip. 16,416,377.67 7,152,978.26 298,663.60
367 LNG Measuring & Regulator 6,220,025.10 3,223,989.37 168,510.63
368 LNG Other Equip. - Stor 17,750,932.83 6,932,091.55 423,163.38
374 Land and Land Rights 100,977.00 - -
375 Structures & Improvement 2,682,986.00 2,359,356.26 27,509.17
376 Mains 601,960,689.34 205,077,013.67 9,675,210.23
377 Compressor Station Equip. 1,254,695.00 1,214,156.00 2,260.92
378 Meas. & Regulator Station 16,623,015.91 9,770,091.09 333,572.94
380 Services 556,953,024.28 229,046,600.22 14,382,020.03
381 Meters 57,008,331.93 27,427,934.66 1,599,602.84
382 Meter Installations 99,796,025.08 30,556,428.01 2,372,057.58
383 House Regulators 1,814,331.34 999,626.81 34,090.31
384 House Regulator Install 4,671,213.49 3,282,159.73 96,433.23
385 Industry Mesa. & Regulator 313,528.00 164,199.88 8,433.46
387 Other Equip. - Distr. 6,223,194.16 3,275,683.70 202,455.12
389 Land and Land Rights 3,712,767.00 - -
390 Structures & Improvement 70,166,975.27 26,503,960.56 1,364,228.52
391 Office Fumniture & Equip. 92,678,661.76 33,616,283.00 2,873,240.44
392 Transportation Equip. 28,069,917.70 19,702,494.01 1,778,444 .87
393 Stores Equip. 755,422.00 466,000.26 20,268.03
394 Tools, Shop & Garage Equip. 8,910,823.70 4,281,996.99 311,291.89
396 Power Operated Equip. 482,442.79 409,923.84 9,525.05
397 Communications Equip. 20,387,001.72 9,527,190.18 876,426.32
398 Miscellaneous Equip. 4,627,820.29 2,924,804.69 151,105.96
Grand Total 1,754,296,869.00 708,782,710.85 40,490,506.51
Cost of Removal 1,709,904.00
TOTAL 42,200,410.51




P HIA
STATEMENT OF OPERATING INCOME

JWELVE MONTHS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2009

OPERATING REVENUES
SALES OF GAS
480.0 Residential Sales
481.0 Commercial & Industrial Sales
482.0 Public Authority Sales
483.0 Sales for Resale
489.3 Gas Transportation Service Sales
495.0 Other Gas Revenues
Total Gas Revenues
APPLIANCE REVENUE
903.0 Customer Records & Collection
879.0 Customer Installations
880.0 Other Expenses
OTHER OPERATING
487.0 Forfeited Discounts
488.0 Miscellaneous Service Revenue

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING & MAINTENANCE EXPENSES

700.0- 708.0
710.0- 7420
800.0 - 813.0
840.0- 843.9
850.0 - 870.0
871.0-894.0
901.0 - 905.0
907.0-910.0
920.0-931.0

Steam Production

Manufactured Gas Production

Other Gas Supply

Other Storage

Transmission

Distribution

Customer Accounts

Customer Service

Administrative & General
Total O&M Expenses

OTHER EXPENSES

403.0
408.1

OTHER INCOME
417.0
418.0
419.0
4210
426.3
426.5

INTEREST
427.0
428.0
428.1
429.0
431.0
432.0

Depreciation Expenses
Taxes Other than Income Taxes
Total Depreciation and Taxes

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

Other Non Operating income
Non Operating Rental income
Interest & Dividend income
Miscellaneous Non Operating Income
Reserved Penalties
Other Deductions

Total Other Income

interest on Long Term Debt

Amortization of Debt Discount & Expense

Amortization of Loss on Required Debt

Amortization of Premium on Debt

Other Interest Expenses

Allowance for Borrowed Funds Used During Construction
Total Interest

NET INCOME

Auaust 31, 2009

668,932,805
184,098,260
24,777,854

6,866

24,913,047

7,737,131

$ 910,465,963

2,234,418

7,077,487
(1,089)

$ 9,310,816

9,506,252
157,564
$ 9,663,816

—L

(1,269,362)
(2,225,648)
(547,473,756)
(9.738,860)
(1,600,680)
(60,086,534)
(71,120,037)
(6,176,125)
101,496,283

$ (801,187,284)

(37,781,591)
(6.588,227)
s (44,369,818)

§ (645557102

37,058
64,173
5,513,186
6,626,038

$ 12,240,455

(63,601,770)
(3,678,757)
(9,603,053)
2,576,579
(4,853,244)
247,437
3 (78,912,808)

$ 17,211,140




Philadelphia Gas Works' Base Rate Filing
52 Pa. Code § 53.52

§ 53.52. Applicability; public utilities other than canal, turnpike, tunnel, bridge and wharf
companies.

((4)) If a utility renders more than one time of public service, such as electric and gas,
information required by §§ 53.51 — 53.53 (relating to information furnished with the filing of rate
changes), except subsection (c)(2), relates solely to the kind of service to which the tariff or tariff
supplement is applicable. In subsection (c)(2), the book value of the property used in furnishing
each type of pubic service, as well as the depreciation reserve applicable to the property, shall be
shown separately.

RESPONSE: Not applicable.




Philadelphia Gas Works® Base Rate Filing

IIl. RATE OF RETURN

A. ALL UTILITIES

IL.A.1. Provide capitalization and capitalization ratios for the last five-year period
and projected through the next two years. (with short-term debt and without short-term
debt.) (Company, Parent and System (consolidated)).

I.A.1.a. Provide year-end interest coverages before and after taxes for the
last three years and at latest date. (Indenture and SEC Bases.) (Company, Parent
and System (consolidated)).

I1.A.1.b. Provide year-end preferred stock dividend coverages for last
three years and at latest date (Charter and SEC bases).

RESPONSE: Not applicable.



Philadelphia Gas Works’ Base Rate Filing

II. RATE OF RETURN

II.A.2. Provide latest quarterly financial report (Company and Parent).
RESPONSE:

PGW’s unaudited financial report for the twelve months ended August 31,
2009 is attached.



Safe. Reliable. Service,

FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2009

UNAUDITED



UNAUDITED

PGW
STATEMENT OF INCOME
TWELVE MONTHS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2009 AND 2008 WITH COMPARISONS
(Thousands of Dollars)
Increase/(Decrease)
Line 2008 2009 Actual 2009 vs Budget
No.  Actual Actual Budget Amount _‘i
Operating revenues
1 § 78,687 Non-heating $ 67,295 $ 84,369 $ (17,074) (20)
2 19,215 Gas transport service 24,913 27,510 (2,597) 9
3 735,457 Heating 820,142 969,765 (149,623) (15)
4 8,607 Appiiance & Other Revenues 9,311 9,029 282 3
5 (1,931) Unbiiled gas adjustment {1,893) 1,580 (3,473) -
[ 840,035 Total gas revenues 919,768 1,092,253 (172,485) (16)
7 9,592 Other operating revenues 9,673 12,268 {2,595) (21)
8 849,627 Total operating revenues 929,441 1,104,521 (175,080) {16)
Qperating expenses
9 511,938 Natural gas 545,859 732,322 (186,483) (25)
10 38 Other raw material {13) 5 (18) -
11 511,976 SUB-TOTAL FUEL 545,846 732,327 {186,481) (25)
12 337,651 CONTRIBUTION MARGIN 383,595 372,194 11,401 3
13 14,436 Gas Processing 16,779 16,265 514 3
14 37,126 Fleld Services 37,727 38,3715 (648) (2)
15 17,319 Distribution 21,059 17,982 3,077 17
16 8,441 Collection 8,723 9,450 (727) (8)
17 37,000 Appropriation for uncoilectible reserve 42,000 44,011 (2,011) {5)
18 12,305 Customer Services 12,897 13,510 (613) {5)
19 7,006 Account Management ‘ 7,625 7,548 (23) -
20 2,628 Marketing 3,436 4,064 (628) (15)
21 44,001 Administrative & General 38,360 48,011 {9,651) (20}
22 34,226 Heaith insurance 37,061 36,551 510 1
23 (10,331) Capitalized Fringe Benefits (9,284) (10,592) 1,308 (12)
24 (7,180) Capitalized Admin. Charges {6,973) (7,473) 500 (4]
25 14,258 Penslons 15,425 14,418 1,008 7
26 25,834 Other Post-Employment Benefits 25,952 25,558 394 2
27 5677 Taxes 8,588 8,799 (211) (3)
28 - BTi Cost (Benefits) 4,655 {1,670) 6,325 -
29 - Cost Savings - {2,156) 2,156 -
130 _ 242,746 Total operating expenses 261,930 280,652 1,278 -
M 94,905 Operating Income before depreclation 121,665 111,542 10,123 9
32 42,868 Depreciation 42,200 42,408 {208) (0)
33 (3,344)  Less depreciation distributed thru clearing accounts 4,419) 5,159) 740 (14)
34 39,524 Net depreciation 37,781 37,249 532 1
35 794,248 Total operating expenses 845,657 1,030,228 (184,671) {18)
36 55,381 Operating income 83,884 74,293 9,591 13
37 15,732 interest and other income 12,240 11,526 714 [}
38 71,113 Income before interest 96,124 85,819 10,305 12
interest
39 56,075 Long term debt 63,602 54,968 8,634 16
40 12,269 Other 15,558 13,119 2,439 19
4 (338) Allowance for funds used during construction (247) (873) 626 (72)
42 68,006 Net interest expense 78,913 67,214 11,699 17

43 § 3‘107 Net Income i 17,211 i 18,605 1,394



PGW
BALANCE SHEETS AUGUST 31, 2009 AND 2008
(Thousands of Dollars)

ASSETS
Line
No. 2009 2008
Utility Plant - At Original Cost
1 In service $ 1,754,297 1,685,593
2 Under construction 30,953 46,969
3 Total 1,785,250 1,732,562
4 Less accumulated depreciation (708,783) (670.467)
5 Utility plant - net 1,076,467 1,062,095
6 Sinking fund - revenue bonds 110,227 106,198
7  Capital improvement funds 62,714 111,207
8 Restricted investment (City of Philadelphia) - .
9 Restricted investment Workers' Compensation 2,593 2,383
Current Assets
10  Cash and temporary investments 13,750 49,338
Accounts receivable
11 Customers 220,132 222,880
12 Others 2,122 8,714
13 Accrued gas revenues 6,251 8,145
14 Accumulated provisions for uncollectible accounts (123,009) (140,435)
15 Accounts receivable - net 105,496 99,304
16 Materials and supplies 125,023 187,539
17  Other current assets and deferred debits 4,895 5,628
18 Total Current Assets 249,164 341,807
19 Unamortized bond issuance cost 27,516 38,738
20 Unamortized loss-reacquired debt 79,945 47,902
21 Other Assets 9,233 20,475
22 Deferred Environmental 14,232 12,650
23 Total Assets $ 1,632,091 $ 1,743,455




PGW

BALANCE SHEETS AUGUST 31, 2009 AND 2008

(Thousands of Dollars)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Line
2009 2008 No.
City equity $ 243,619 $ 226,408 1
Long term debt:
City of Philadelphia bonds
_lssued Original amount Current portion
1989 132,520 - 5,064 5,064 2
1990 50,421 - - - 3
1994 183,880 - - - 4
1998 287,185 12,245 81,365 93,610 5
1999 176,280 2,655 22,630 25,285 6
2001 120,225 2,700 5,815 8,515 7
2002 125,000 2,670 89,915 92,585 8
2003 186,705 7,550 132,675 140,225 9
2004 207,820 13,460 187,010 200,470 10
2006 313,390 - - 280,454 11
2007 245,350 3,170 239,135 242,305 12
2009 1,595 311,690 0 13
TECA - 11th "C" - 16,818 15,314 14
TECA - 12th"A" - - - 15
Subordinate Lease Obligations
1997 23,000 - - - 16
Total Issued 46,045 1,092,117 1,103,827 17
Unamortized debt discount/premium 2,130 22,371 23,336 18
Total Long Term Bond Debt 48,175 1,114,488 1,127,163 19
Notes payable (City of Phila.) - - 20
Total Long Term Debt 1,114,488 1,127,163 21
Current Liabilities
Notes payable - 90,000 22
Accounts payable 46,205 67,508 23
Current portion of long term debt 48,175 76,030 24
Customers' deposits 4,224 7,325 25
Other current liabilities and deferred credits 16,203 32,581 26
Accrued accounts:
Interest, taxes and wages 15,948 15,821 27
Distribution to the City 3,000 3,000 28
Total Current Liabilities 133,755 292,265 29
Other Liabllities 140,229 97,619 30
Total Equity and Liabllities $ 1,632,091 $ 1,743,455 31




Philadelphia Gas Works’ Base Rate Filing

IL. RATE OF RETURN

II.A.3. Provide latest Stockholder’s Report (Company and Parent).
RESPONSE:

PGW does not issue a Stockholder’s Report. Attached is Philadelphia Gas
Works’ audited 2008 financial report.



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Basic Financial Statements and Supplementary Information
August 31, 2008 and 2007
(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)
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1601 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2430

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Controller of the City of Philadelphia and
Chairman and Members of the
Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company), a
component unit of the City of Philadelphia, as of August 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related statements of
revenues and expenses, cash flows, and changes in fund equity, as of and for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Philadelphia Gas Works as of August 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its
financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

The required supplementary information of management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 to 12 and the
schedules of pension funding progress, other postemployment benefits funding progress, and other
postemployment benefit employer contributions on pages 52 to 54 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. This supplementary information is the responsibility of the Company’s management. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit such information and express no opinion on it.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplementary information included on pages 55 to 58 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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As discussed in note 1(n), the Company adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement (GASB) No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as of September 1,
2006.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

The narrative overview and analysis of the financial statements of Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company or
PGW) for the years ended August31, 2008 and 2007 have been prepared by PGW’s management. The
information presented here is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with additional information contained
in PGW’s financial statements.

Financial Highlights

The fiscal year (FY) 2008 reflected a 16.9% warmer than normal winter. The FY 2008 period was 0.7%
warmer than the prior year and firm gas sales decreased by 2.4 Billion cubic feet (Bcf). In addition, the
Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA), which was in effect from October 2007 through May 2008,
resulted in heating customers receiving charges totaling $12.2 million as a result of the temperatures
experienced during the period. FY 2007 reflected a 16.6% warmer than normal winter. The FY 2007
period was 1.2% warmer than the prior year; however, firm gas sales increased by 2.0 Bcf. In addition, the
WNA, which was in effect from October 2006 through May 2007, resulted in heating customers receiving
charges totaling $6.5 million as a result of the temperatures experienced during the period.

PGW achieved a collection rate of 95.5% in the current period, 95.8% in FY 2007 and 96.6% in FY 2006.
The collection rate of 95.5% is calculated by dividing the total gas receipts collected in FY 2008 by the
total gas billings that were applied to PGW customers’ accounts from September 1 through August 31. The
same methodology was utilized in FY 2007 and FY 2006, respectively.

The Company adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 45 (GASB 45), Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, as of September 1, 2006 and had a zero net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
obligation at transition. PGW adopted the provisions of GASB 45 a year earlier than required by
GASB because the Company is a component unit of the City of Philadelphia (the City) for financial
reporting purposes and the Company’s FY 2007 financial statements will be consolidated into the City’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The difference between the FY 2008 Annual
Required Contribution (ARC) of $44.1 million and the expenses paid by the Company of $18.3 million
resulted in a liability of $25.8 million which has been recorded in other liabilities and deferred credits and
expensed in FY 2008. The difference between the FY 2007 ARC of $45.2 million and the expenses paid by
the Company of $18.8 million resulted in a liability of $26.4 million which was recorded in other liabilities
and deferred credits and expensed in FY 2007.

GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations
(GASB 49), is effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning September 1, 2008; however, the
Company has chosen to implement the provisions of GASB 49 a year earlier than required by
GASB because the Company is a component unit of the City for financial reporting purposes and the
Company’s FY 2008 financial statements will be consolidated into the City’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This statement establishes a framework for the recognition and
measurement of pollution remediation liabilities. A pollution remediation obligation addresses the current
or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by participation in pollution remediation activities.
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‘PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Prior to the implementation of GASB 49, the Company recognized liabilities related to its voluntary
participation in remediation activities under Pennsylvania Act2, Land Recycling and Environmental
Remediation Standards Act of 1995, which established the land recycling program, and its mandatory
participation in activities under Pennsylvania Act 32, Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act of 1989,
which established a comprehensive program to prevent leaks and spills from underground and above
ground tanks in accordance with existing U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP)
related to the accrual of liabilities.

The Company revised its methodology for estimating its pollution remediation obligations to conform with
GASB 49 in the current year, which resulted in an additional $8.3 million liability which is reflected in
other liabilities and deferred credits at August 31, 2008. GASB 49 requires pollution remediation liabilities
to be measured at the beginning of the first period presented in the financial statements. The Company has
not restated prior periods and instead recognized the effect of GASB 49 implementation in the current year,
because the increase in the liability related to the implementation of GASB 49 is not material.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP for regulated entities, the Company has also recognized the long-term
portion of its environmental remediation liability as a regulatory asset because based on available evidence
it is probable that the previously incurred costs will be recovered through rates.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction and overview of PGW’s basic financial
statements. PGW’s financial statements are comprised of:

Financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about PGW’s overall financial
condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

The notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data presented in PGW’s financial statements. The notes can be found immediately following the basic financial
statements.

The financial statements report information about PGW as a whole using accounting methods similar to those
used by private sector business. The four statements presented are:

The statement of revenues and expenses presents revenue and expenses and their effects on the change in equity
during the fiscal year. These changes in equity are recorded as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The balance sheet includes all of PGW’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as
equity. Over time, increases or decreases in fund equity are indicators of whether PGW’s financial position is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of cash flows provides relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of an
enterprise during a period and the impact on PGW’s financial position.

4 (Continued)



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis ~
August 31, 2008 and 2007

The statement of changes in‘ Jund equity provides a rollforward of the fund equity balance of PGW based upon
the results from the statement of revenues and expenses.

Condensed Statements of Revenues and Expenses

(Thousands of dollars)
Years ended August 31
2008 2007 2006
Total gas revenues $ 831,428 840,105 929,961
Other revenues 18,199 19,246 24,007
Total operating revenues 849,627 859,351 953,968
Total operating expenses 794,246 819,748 880,040
Operating income 55,381 39,603 73,928
Interest and other income © 15,732 13,073 8,518
Total interest expense (68,006) (68,780) (65,687)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenses $ 3,107 (16,104) 16,759

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues in FY 2008 were $849.6 million, a decrease of $9.8 million or 1.1% from the FY 2007 level.
The decrease in FY 2008 was due to a milder winter. Operating revenues in FY 2007 were $859.4 million, a
decrease of $94.6 million or 9.9% from the FY 2006 level. The decrease in FY 2007 was principally due to lower
fuel costs which are a component of operating revenues through the gas cost rate (GCR). Please see the
discussion of the cost of fuel in the Operating Expenses section below.

Total sales volumes, including gas transportation deliveries, in FY 2008 increased by 2.5 Bef to 66.3 Bef or 3.9%
from FY 2007 sales volumes of 63.8 Bcf. In FY 2007 total sales volumes increased by 4.4 Bef to 63.8 Bef or
7.4% from FY 2006 sales volumes of 59.4 Bef. Firm gas sales of 45.5 Bef were 2.4 Bef or 5.0% lower than
FY 2007 firm gas sales of 47.9 Bcf were 1.7 Bef or 3.7% higher than FY 2007. Interruptible customer sales
decreased by 0.9 Bef compared to FY 2007 and increased by 0.3 Bef compared to FY 2006. Gas transportation
sales in FY 2008 increased by 5.9 Bef to 19.0 Bef from the 13.1 Bef level experienced in FY 2007. In FY 2007,
the volume increased by 2.4 Bef to 13.1 Bef from the 10.7 Bef level experienced in FY 2006.

The number of customers served by PGW at the end of FY 2008 decreased by 0.2% from the previous year to
approximately 505,000 customers. The number of customers served by PGW at the end of FY 2007 and FY 2006
were approximately 506,000 and 486,000, respectively. Commercial accounts were approximately 25,000,
reflecting no change from the previous two fiscal years. Industrial accounts decreased by 11.1% from the prior
year’s level to 800. Industrial accounts were 900 and 1,000 customers in FY 2007 and FY 2006, respectively.

5 (Continued)



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis /
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Residential customers decreased to 479,000 customers, a decrease of 1,000 from the prior year. The number of
residential customers in FY 2007 increased to approximately 480,000 customers, an increase of 20,000 over the
FY 2006 level.

Operating Expenses

Total operating and maintenance expenses, including fuel costs, in FY 2008 were $794.2 million, a decrease of
$25.5 million or 3.1% from FY 2007. Total expenses decreased by $60.3 million or 6.9% from FY 2007
compared to FY 2006. The decrease for FY 2008 reflects substantially lower natural gas utilization and an
increase in refunds received from pipeline suppliers. The decrease for FY 2007 reflects substantially higher
natural gas prices from FY 2006.

Cost of Fuel — The cost of natural gas utilized decreased by $27.3 million or 5.1% to $512.0 million in FY 2008
compared with $539.3 million in FY 2007. The average commodity price per Thousand cubic feet (Mcf)
increased by $0.25 or $13.5 million, while the volume of gas utilized decreased by 4.6 Bcf, 7.9% or
$37.6 million. In addition, pipeline supplier refunds in FY 2008 increased by $10.0 million while demand
charges increased by $6.8 million, compared to FY 2007.

The cost of natural gas utilized decreased by $85.8 million or 13.7% to $539.3 million in FY 2007 compared
with $625.1 million in FY 2006. The average commodity price per Mcf decreased by nearly $2.02 or
$117.2 million, while the volume of gas utilized increased by 3.0 Bcf, 5.4% or $30.6 million, in FY 2007 despite
a 1.2% decrease in degree days from FY 2006. In addition, pipeline supplier refunds in FY 2007 decreased by
$0.2 million while demand charges increased by $0.7 million, compared to FY 2006.

Variations in the cost of purchased gas are passed through to customers under the GCR provision of PGW’s rate
schedules. Over-recoveries or under-recoveries of purchased gas costs are subtracted from or added to gas
revenues and are included in current assets or current liabilities, thereby eliminating the effect that recovery of
gas costs would otherwise have on net income.

The average natural gas commodity prices for utilized gas for FY 2008, FY 2007, and FY 2006 were $8.48,
$8.23, and $10.25 per Mcf, respectively.

Other Operating Expenses — Expenditures for street operations, infrastructure improvements, and plant
operations in FY 2008 were $68.9 million, down from the FY 2007 total of $69.5 million as a result of lower
labor costs and up from the FY 2006 total of $66.1 million as a result of an increase in the value of gas used from
the time customers request shutoff to the occupancy of the premise by a subsequent customer. This cost was
partially reduced by lower operating expenses due to warmer weather conditions. In addition, the cost for
customer services, collection and account management, marketing, and the administrative area increased by
$4.9 million or 5.7% in FY 2008 primarily due to costs related to the business transformation initiative and a
decrease in the gas used by the utility. This category decreased by $4.1 million or 4.5% in FY 2007, which was
offset somewhat by higher premiums for active and retired employee health insurance coverage. Pension costs
decreased by $1.0 million and $2.3 million in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively, based on the most recent
actuarial valuation of the pension plan.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts — The provision for uncollectible accounts in FY 2008 totaled
$37.0 million, a decrease of $3.0 million or 7.5% lower than FY 2007, which totaled $40.0 million, a decrease of
$0.1 million or 0.3% compared to FY 2006 based on the most recent accounts receivable collectibility
evaluation. The accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts at August 31, 2008 reflects a balance of
$140.4 million, compared to the $150.2 million balance in FY 2007 and $168.9 million in FY 2006. PGW is
committed to continuing its collection efforts in an attempt to reduce outstanding delinquent account balances
and to provide assistance to those customers who qualify for low-income grants and payment programs to help
those customers maintain their gas service.

Depreciation Expense — Depreciation expense increased by $3.1 million in FY 2008 compared with FY 2007.
Depreciation expense increased by $1.7 million in FY 2007 compared with FY 2006. The effective composite
depreciation rates for FY 2008, FY 2007 and FY 2006 were 2.4%, 2.3% and 2.3%, respectively. Cost of removal
is charged to expense as incurred.

Interest and Other Income — Interest and other income was $2.7 million greater than FY 2007 as the result of
increased earnings on higher restricted fund balances. Interest and other income in FY 2007 was $4.6 million
greater than FY 2006 as the result of increased earnings rates on higher restricted fund balances.

Interest Expense — Total interest expense decreased by $0.8 million or 1.1% in FY 2008 compared with FY 2007
and increased by $3.1 million or 4.7% in FY 2007 compared with FY 2006. Interest on long-term debt was
$3.9 million higher than the FY 2007 level as a result of the full year effect of the FY 2007 issuance of revenue
bonds in May 2007. Other interest costs decreased by $4.8 million or 28.0% in FY 2008 principally due to the
reduction in the borrowing cost of the commercial paper program. Other interest costs increased by $2.2 million
or 14.6% in FY 2007 and increased by $4.0 million or 36.4% in FY 2006 reflecting additional costs associated
with PGW’s commercial paper program and the amortization of the loss on reacquired debt.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenses — In FY 2008, the Company’s excess of revenues over
expenses was $28.9 million prior to recording the expense of $25.8 million related to OPEB. As a result, the
Company ended with an excess of revenues over expenses of $3.1 million. The Company had an excess of
revenues over expenses of $10.3 million in FY 2007 prior to recording the expense of $26.4 million related to

OPEB and $16.8 million in FY 2006.

Condensed Balance Sheets

(Thousands of dollars)
August 31
Assets 2008 %‘uﬂ_‘7 2006
Utility plant, net $ 1,062,095 1,040,373 1,007,648
Restricted investment funds 219,788 277,139 135,625
Current assets:
Accounts receivable (net of
accumulated provision for
uncollectible accounts of $140,435,
$150,231, and $168,889 for 2008,
2007, and 2006, respectively) 99,304 88,618 74,360
Other current assets and deferred
debits, cash and cash equivalents, gas
inventories, materials, and supplies 242,503 205,083 181,394
Total current assets 341,807 293,701 255,754
Other assets and deferred debits 105,975 103,727 106,983
Total assets $ 1,729,665 1,714,940 1,506,010
Fund Equity and Liabilities
Fund equity $ 226,408 223,301 239,405
Total long-term debt 1,127,163 1,201,792 1,076,131
Current liabilities:
Note payable 90,000 51,600 55,000
Current portion of long-term debt 76,030 86,995 39,591
Other current liabilities and deferred
credits 126,235 103,276 73,854
Total current liabilities 292,265 241,871 168,445
Other liabilities and deferred credits ’ 83,829 47,976 22,029
Total fund equity and
liabilities $ 1,729,665 1,714,940 1,506,010
8 (Continued)



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis -
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Assets

Utility Plant - Utility plant, net of depreciation, totaled $1,062.1 million in FY 2008, an increase of $21.7 million
or 2.1% compared with the FY 2007 balance of $1,040.4 million. The FY 2007 balance of $1,040.4 million,
increased by $32.8 million or 3.3% compared with the FY 2006 balance of $1,007.6 million. Capital
expenditures for construction of distribution facilities, purchase of equipment, information technology
enhancements, and other general improvements were $61.2 million in FY 2008 compared to $69.1 million in
FY 2007 and $60.7 million in FY 2006. PGW funded capital expenditures through drawdowns from the Capital
Improvement Fund in the amounts of $60.9 million, $60.7 million and $63.1 million in FY 2008, FY 2007 and
FY 2006, respectively. The major capital expenditures are associated with PGW’s gas supply infrastructure,
namely, gas mains and customer service lines.

Restricted Investment Funds — Restricted investment funds decreased by $57.4 million in FY 2008 primarily due
to the drawdown from its Capital Improvement Fund offset by interest income. Interest income on these funds, to
the extent not drawn, is reflected as an increase and approximated $2.7 million in FY 2008 and $6.8 million in
FY 2007. A drawdown from the Sinking Fund’s capitalized interest account in the amount of $0.1 million was
utilized to offset the debt service payment in FY 2007. In FY 2006, this amount was $6.0 million.

Accounts Receivable — In FY 2008 accounts receivable (net) of $99.3 million increased by $10.7 million, or
12.1% from FY 2007 due to firm transportation suppliers’ billings and an increase in participation in the
Customer Responsibility Program (CRP). Accounts receivable (net) increased by $14.3 million, or 19.2% in
FY 2007 compared to FY 2006. The accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts, totaling $140.4 million
decreased by $9.8 million in FY 2008 and totaled $150.2 million in FY 2007 and $168.9 million in FY 2006.

Other Current Assets and Deferred Debits, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Gas Inventories, Materials, and
Supplies — In FY 2008 cash and cash equivalents were $49.3 million, a decrease of $2.4 million from FY 2007,
and totaled $51.7 million in FY 2006. Gas storage increased by $41.4 million or 29.9%. The increase in gas
inventory reflects an increase in the gas cost per Mcf plus an increase in the amount of storage at year-end.
Materials and supplies of $187.5 million, which principally include gas inventory, maintenance spare parts, and
material, increased by $39.7 million and were $147.8 million in FY 2007 and $149.4 million in FY 2006. Other
current assets and deferred debits totaled $5.6 million in FY 2008, up $0.1 million from FY 2007. In FY 2007
other current assets and deferred debits totaled $5.6 million, down $19.6 million from FY 2006, primarily due to
the recovery of under-recovered GCR amounts from the prior year.

Other Assets and Deferred Debits — In FY 2008 other assets and deferred debits including unamortized bond
issuance costs, unamortized loss on reacquired debt, and a deferred regulatory asset for environmental expenses
totaled $106.0 million, an increase of $2.3 million from FY 2007, mainly due to an increase in the workers’
compensation injuries and damages reserve. In FY 2007 the total was $103.7 million and reflected an increase of
$3.3 million from FY 2006. The major portion of this change was related to the bond issuance costs on the
$313.4 million of debt issued in FY 2006, offset partially by deferred environmental costs.

9 (Continued)



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Liabilities

Long-Term Debt — Long-term debt, including the current portion and unamortized discount and premium, totaled
$1,203.2 million in FY 2008, $85.6 million less than the previous year as a result of the Company paying off the
City Loan and normal debt principal payments. This represents 84.2% of total capitalization in FY 2008.
Long-term debt, including the current portion and unamortized discount, premium, and note payable — City Loan
totaled $1,288.8 million in FY 2007, $173.1 million greater than the previous year as a result of principal
payments on outstanding debt and the issuance of the Seventh Series and Nineteenth Series revenue bonds during
FY 2007. This represents 85.2% of total capitalization in FY 2007 The total long-term debt for FY 2006 totaled
$1,115.7 million, which represented 82.3% of total capitalization.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio and Ratings — PGW has a mandatory debt service coverage ratio of 1.50 times debt
service on the 1975 Ordinance Bonds and the 1998 Ordinance Bonds, respectively. In FY 2008, the debt service
coverage was at 4.28 times debt service on the outstanding 1975 Ordinance Bonds and 1.88 times debt service on
the Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds compared to debt service coverage ratios of 3.70 and 2.00 times, respectively,
in FY 2007 and 3.36 and 1.94 times, respectively, in FY 2006. PGW’s current bond ratings are “Baa2” from
Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s), “BBB-" from Standard and Poor’s Ratings Service (S&P), and “BBB-”"
from Fitch Ratings.

Short-Term Debt — Due to the highly seasonal nature of PGW’s business, short-term debt is utilized to meet
working capital requirements. PGW, pursuant to the provisions of the City of Philadelphia Note Ordinance, may
sell short-term notes in a principal amount, which together with interest, may not exceed $200.0 million
outstanding at any one time as compared to $150.0 million in FY 2006. The letter of credit supporting PGW’s
commercial paper program fixed the maximum level of outstanding notes plus interest at $150.0 million in
FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively. These notes are intended to provide additional working capital and are
supported by an irrevocable letter of credit and a security interest in PGW’s revenues. The notes outstanding at
August 31, 2008 had a weighted average interest rate of 1.63% and a remaining weighted average time to
maturity of 61 days. The principal amounts outstanding at August 31, 2008 and 2007 were $90.0 million and
$51.6 million, respectively. In addition, the City provided PGW with a $45.0 million, 0.0% interest loan in FY
2001. In FY 2007, PGW paid $2.0 million of the loan leaving an outstanding balance of $43.0 million. In
FY 2008, PGW paid $20.5 million and $22.5 million in December 2007 and August 2008, respectively to
completely repay the remaining balance of the loan. ‘

Liquidity/Cash Flow — At December 18, 2008, $2.0 million was available from the Commercial Paper Program.
Additionally, PGW had $111.7 million available in its Capital Improvement Fund to be utilized for construction
expenditures. These funding sources may be utilized during the fall and early winter period to provide liquidity
until billings from the winter heating season are collected. The cash balance at December 18, 2008 was
$65.5 million.

Accounts Payable — In FY 2008 accounts payable increased $6.9 million or 11.4% compared with FY 2007
primarily due to an increase in natural gas payables. In FY 2007 accounts payable increased $3.1 million or 7.8%
compared with FY 2006 reflecting a $3.3 million increase in accounts payables associated with natural gas
partially offset by a $0.2 million decrease in trade payables.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits — In FY 2008 other liabilities and deferred credits totaling $83.8 million
increased $35.8 million compared to FY 2007. In FY 2007 other liabilities and deferred credits totaling
$48.0 million increased $26.0 million compared to FY 2006. The increase in FY 2008 is the effect of recording
the change in the liability for OPEB in the amount of $25.8 million, an increase in the injuries and damages
reserve and an increase in the environmental remediation liability. The increase in FY 2007 is the effect of
recording the liability for OPEB in the amount of $26.4 million.

Other Financial Factors

The City has made a major commitment to PGW by granting back its annual $18.0 million payment, in each of
the last three fiscal years, thereby improving PGW’s overall liquidity position. PGW must continue to focus its
efforts on becoming a competitive utility in the deregulated marketplace. PGW remains committed to achieving
its tradition of providing high-quality service to customers, while continuing as a valuable enterprise of the City.

The Company’s total OPEB actuarial accrued liability as of August 31, 2008 was $591.6 million if the Company
continued to provide for its OPEB obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Company’s actuarial accrued
liability would be reduced to $382.7 million if the Company adopted a policy of funding its ARC. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of 30 years. The actuarial valuation
utilized a discount rate of 8.25% for purposes of developing the liabilities and ARC to demonstrate the effect of
funding the Plan. This rate is based on the investment return expected on investments segregated in a funded
trust.

The annual OPEB cost was $52.3 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008 and is projected to increase
to $70.2 million per year over the ensuing 20-year period on a pay-as-you-go basis. The annual OPEB cost was
$45.2 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2007.

On December 22, 2006, PGW filed for a $100.0 million base rate increase with the Public Utility Commission
(PUC). On September 28, 2007, the PUC approved a rate increase of $25.0 million. PGW appealed this decision
to Commonwealth Court on or about October 18, 2007 and this matter is still pending in the courts. The
$25.0 million rate increase was implemented in November 2007.

In November 2008, the Company filed for an extraordinary or emergency base rate increase of approximately
$60.0 million or 5.2% and simultaneously requested an $85.0 million or 7.4% decrease in the GCR for a net
2.2% overall rate decrease of approximately $25.0 million. The proposed base rate increase will serve several
purposes. First, the increase will cover the additional financing costs that the Company anticipates it will incur in
the next few months. Second, the increase will improve the Company’s financial position so as to enhance its
ability to access the financial markets and maintain its bond rating. Third, the increase will provide additional
liquidity and financial flexibility in this tight credit market. On December 18, 2008, the PUC issued its decision
approving a base rate increase of $60.0 million or 5.2% and a decrease in the GCR of $107.0 million for a net
decrease in rates of $47.0 million or 4.2%. These rates are effective as of January 1, 2009.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

The Company had $90.0 million of commercial paper that was outstanding at August 31, 2008. Subsequent to
year-end, all outstanding commercial paper matured, and additional commercial paper was issued. As of
December 18, 2008, $148.0 million of commercial paper was outstanding which matures on February 12,
February 13 and March 12, 2009.

As of December 18, 2008, $271.4 million of the Sixth Series Bonds are held by the providers of the Standby
Bond Purchase Agreement as bank bonds. The providers of the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement continue, on
a weekly basis, to remarket the bonds in accordance with the bond authorization. The Standby Bond Purchase
Agreement expires on January 26, 2009. If the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement is not renewed, and no
substitute liquidity facility is provided, any bank bonds held at that time will be amortized in ten payments
payable the first business day of July and the first business day of December for the next five years. The
Company has therefore recorded as current debt at August 31, 2008 one tenth of the outstanding Sixth
Series Bonds as of August 31, including $1.9 million due to mature in 2009 under the original amortization
schedule and an additional $29.3 million for a total of $31.2 million.

The fair value of the interest rate swap as of December 18, 2008 was negative $72.6 million. This means that the
Company would have to pay this amount to terminate the swap. Per the swap agreement, the refunding or
defeasance of the Sixth Series Bonds, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of both the
counterparty and the insurer, may constitute an event of termination unless certain conditions are met. There is a
termination risk related to the interest rate swap agreement if PGW’s bond rating falls below Baa2 or BBB
(Moody’s/S&P). Because the City’s swap payments are insured by Financial Security Assurance Inc. (FSA) as
long as FSA is rated at or above A2 or A (Moody’s/S&P) the termination event based on the City’s rating is
stayed. Neither the Company’s credit rating nor FSA’s credit rating has declined below the levels required in the
agreement as of December 18, 2008.

Contacting the Company’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens of Philadelphia, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of PGW’s finances and to demonstrate PGW’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions pertaining to this report or need additional financial information, please contact Philadelphia Gas
Works, 800 W. Montgomery Avenue, Philadelphia, PA, 19122 or on the Web at www.pgworks.com.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Balance Sheets

August 31, 2008 and 2007
(Thousands of dollars)
~ Assets 2008 2007
Utility plant, at original cost:
In service $ 1,685,593 1,633,300
Under construction 46,969 48,013
Total 1,732,562 1,681,313
Less accumulated depreciation 670,467 640,940
Utility plant, net 1,062,095 1,040,373
Restricted investment funds:
Sinking fund, revenue bonds 106,198 102,438
Capital improvement fund 111,207 172,134
City of Philadelphia — 643
Workers’ compensation escrow fund 2,383 1,924
Total restricted investment funds 219,788 277,139
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 49,338 51,698
Accounts receivable (net of provision for uncollectible accounts
of $140,435 and $150,231 for 2008 and 2007, respectively) 99,304 88,618
Gas inventories, materials, and supplies 187,539 147,770
Other current assets and deferred debits 5,626 5,615
Total current assets 341,807 293,701
Unamortized bond issuance costs 38,738 42,086
Unamortized losses on reacquired debt 47,902 53,359
Other assets and deferred debits 19,335 8,282
Total assets $ 1,729,665 1,714,940

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Balance Sheets

August 31, 2008 and 2007
{Thousands of dollars)
Fund Equity and Liabilities 2008 2007
Fund equity:
Deficiency of capital assets, net of related debt $ (4,466) (5,690)
Restricted 108,581 105,005
Unrestricted 122,293 123,986
Total fund equity 226,408 223,301
Long-term debt:
Revenue bonds 1,127,163 1,201,792
Total long-term debt 1,127,163 1,201,792
Current liabilities:
Note payable 90,000 51,600
Current portion of revenue bonds 76,030 43,995
Note payable — City Loan — 43,000
Accounts payable 67,508 60,615
Customer deposits 7,325 9,049
Other current liabilities and deferred credits 32,581 15,524
Accrued accounts:
Interest, taxes, and wages 15,821 15,088
Distribution to the City 3,000 3,000
Total current liabilities 292,265 241,871
Other liabilities and deferred credits 83,829 47,976
Total fund equity and liabilities $ 1,729,665 1,714,940

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Statements of Revenues and Expenses
Years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007

(Thousands of dollars)

Operating revenues:
Gas revenues:
Nonheating
Gas transport service
Heating

Total gas revenues

Appliance and other revenues
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Natural gas
Gas processing
Field services
Distribution
Collection and account management
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Customer services
Marketing
Administrative and general
Pensions
Other postemployment benefits
Taxes

Total operating expenses before depreciation

Depreciation
Less depreciation expense included in operating expenses above

Total depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Interest and other income
Income before interest expense

Interest expense:
Long-term debt
Other

Allowance for funds used during construction
Total interest expense

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenses

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2008 2007
78,687 90,798
19,215 12,949

733,526 736,358
831,428 840,105
8,607 9,398
9,592 9,848
849,627 859,351
511,976 539,300
14,436 16,240
37,126 36,100
17,319 17,119
15,447 15,221
37,000 40,000
12,305 11,783
2,628 2,418
60,716 56,319
14,258 15,217
25,834 26,421
5,677 6,730
754,722 783,368
42,868 39,708
3,344 3,328
39,524 36,380
794,246 819,748
55,381 39,603
15,732 13,073
71,113 52,676
56,075 52,146
12,269 17,042
(338) {408)
68,006 68,780
3,107 (16,104)




PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007
(Thousands of dollars)
2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities: :
Receipts from customers $ 834,000 863,658
Payments to suppliers (659,969) (631,475)
Payments to employees (105,596) (106,018)
Claims paid (2,691) (2,958)
Other receipts 24,500 28,800
Net cash provided by operating activities 90,244 152,007
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Interest 3,548 4,766
Interest payments on notes payable (4,099) (8,098)
Net repayments of notes payable 38,400 (3,400)
Loan from City of Philadelphia (43,000) (2,000)
Restricted, City Loan deposit 643 (643)
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia (18,000) (18,000)
Grant back of distribution from the City of Philadelphia 18,000 18,000
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (4,508) (9,375)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt issued — 245,350
Redemption of long-term debt — - (45,450)
Long-term debt issuance costs — (5,652)
Long-term debt premium, discount, and issuance losses — (4,133)
Purchases of capital assets (61,244) (69,105)
Principal paid on long-term debt (41,830) (38,045)
Interest paid on long-term debt (54,076) (46,913)
Capital improvement fund deposits — (193,170)
Drawdowns on capital improvement fund 60,926 60,672
Interest income on capital improvement fund 8,089 4,497
Interest income on sinking fund 3,460 1,996
Sinking fund (deposits) (3,759) (8,086)
Other investment income 338 408
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (88,096) (97,631)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,360) 45,001
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 51,698 6,697
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 49338 51,698

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 55,381 39,603
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 39,812 36,732

Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, net (11,215) 3,387
Inventories (39,769) 1,668
Accounts payable 6,892 3,133
Other liabilities and deferred credits - 50,879 31,366
Other assets and deferred debits (11,736) 36,118
Net cash provided by eperating activities $ 90,244 152,007

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS

(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)
Statements of Changes in Fund Equity
Years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007

(Thousands of dollars)

Fund equity balance, beginning of the year

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenses
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia

Grant back of distribution from the City of Philadelphia

Fund equity balance, end of the year

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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2008 2007
223,301 239,405
3,107 (16,104)
(18,000) (18,000)
18,000 18,000
226,408 223,301
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Statemehts
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting methods employed by the Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company) are in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) and are in accordance with City of
Philadelphia (the City) reporting requirements.

As described in note 2, the Company, is a component unit of the City, and consequently follows
accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as they
apply to proprietary fund-type activities. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting, the Company does not apply accounting standards promulgated by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989. FASB Statement No. 71, Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation, is applicable to the Company. Under FASB Statement No. 71,
certain assets or liabilities may be created by actions of regulatory bodies.

The principal accounting policies within this framework are described as follows:

(@) Regulation

Prior to July 1, 2000, the Company was under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Philadelphia Gas
Commission (PGC). The PGC had the authority to set the Company’s rates and tariffs. The PGC also
approved the Company’s annual Operating Budget and reviewed the Company’s Capital Budget
prior to approval by the City Council of the City (City Council).

Effective July 1, 2000, and pursuant to the passage of the Pennsylvania Natural Gas Choice and
Competition Act (the Act), the Company came under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Pennsylvania
Public Utility Commission (PUC). Under the PUC’s jurisdiction, the Company filed a restructuring
plan on July 1, 2002, which among other things, provided for an unbundled tariff permitting
customer choice of the commodity supplier by September 1, 2003. Under the Act, the PUC is
required to follow the “same ratemaking methodology and requirements” that were previously
applicable to the PGC when determining the Company’s revenue requirements and approving overall
rates and charges. The PGC continues to approve the Company’s Operating Budget and review its
Capital Budget. The Company’s Capital Budget must be approved by City Council.

The Company, as of September 1, 2003, is operating under its Restructuring Compliance Tariff. The
Restructuring Compliance Tariff Rates are designed to maintain revenue neutrality and the Tariff
Rules and Regulations are designed to comport with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code.

(b) Operating Budget

On May 29, 2008, the Company filed its fiscal year (FY) 2009 Operating Budget. The PGC
conducted informal discovery concerning this budget in July and August 2008 and public hearings in
September 2008. The PGC authorized interim spending authority of $88,140,000 for the period
September 1, 2008 through December 31, 2008, pursuant to a Motion, dated September 23, 2008. A
final Order approving interim spending was approved by the Commission at its September 23, 2008
meeting. Briefs were filed on October 15, 2008, a Recommended Decision was received on
October 27, 2008 and a final budget approval was granted by the Commission on December 2, 2008.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Stateménts
August 31, 2008 and 2007

On July 13, 2007, the Company filed its FY 2008 Operating Budget. The PGC conducted hearings
concerning this budget in August 2007 and approved the Company’s proposed operating revenues
and expenses with net adjustments of $4,197,000.

Capital Budget

On April 21, 2008, the Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation (PFMC) Board approved the
Company’s Request to file an amendment to the FY 2008 budget in the amount of $2,300,000 for
funding to support the Risk-Based Collections and Field operations projects. These projects are
critical efforts in support of the Company’s Business Transformation effort. The Commission, after
review and evaluation, approved a recommendation to City Council supporting the Company’s
amendment on July 2, 2008. City Council approved the Commission’s recommendation on
October 23, 2008 and the Mayor signed the ordinance on November 5, 2008.

On January 2, 2008 the Company filed a proposed FY 2009 Capital Budget in the amount of
$73,436,000. After review and evaluation, the PGC on April 30, 2008 approved a recommendation
to City Council for a budget of $71,956,000. The Gas Commission’s recommendation was approved
by City Council on June 19, 2008 and the ordinance signed by the Mayor on July 2, 2008.

On September 27, 2007 the Company filed with the PGC a proposal to amend the approved FY 2008
Capital Budget for two new lines items totaling $1,433,000. These line items were Supplemental
Funding — Consolidate Fire Protection System — Richmond Plant for $1,171,000 and Disaster
Recovery for Richmond and Passyunk Plants for $262,000. On October 23, 2007 the Company filed
a proposal to further amend the budget by adding another new line item. Partial Reauthorization —
Customer Service Data Warehouse for $169,000. Concurrently, the Company proposed a reduction
of $1,523,000 in FY 2008 budget authorization to compensate for the additional funding requested.
The Commission, after review and evaluation, recommended that City Council approve an amended
budget for FY 2008 in the amount of $70,727,000. Subsequently, City Council approved the PGC’s
recommendation on March 6, 2008, with the Mayor signing the budget ordinance on March 12,
2008.

On January 2, 2007, the Company filed with the PGC its FY 2008 Capital Budget requesting
spending authority in the amount of $118,243,000. This budget request was amended by the
Company to reflect the deferral of two projects, Construction of Phase II Liquefied Natural Gas
(LNG) Replacement and Implementation of Billing Collection Customer Service (BCCS) for a
reduction of $47,300,000. The PGC conducted hearings concerning this budget in February 2007.
Briefs were filed on March 13, 2007. The Hearing Examiner issued a Recommended Decision on
March 27, 2007 for consideration by the Commissioners further reducing the budget by $295,000.
The PGC’s Resolution and Order recommending approval of the FY 2008 Capital Budget to City
Council was passed on April 25, 2007. This recommendation of $70,648,000 was approved by City
Council on June 15, 2007. The Mayor .of the City signed the Ordinance approving the FY 2008
Capital Budget on September 20, 2007.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Base Rates

In November 2008, the Company filed for an extraordinary or emergency base rate increase of
approximately $60,000,000 or 5.2% and simultaneously requested an $85,000,000 or 7.4% decrease
in the GCR for a net 2.2% overall rate decrease of approximately $25,000,000. The base rate
increase will serve several purposes. First, the increase will cover the additional financing costs that
the Company anticipates it will incur in the next few months. Second, the increase will improve the
Company’s financial position so as to enhance its ability to access the financial markets and maintain
its bond rating. Third, the increase will provide additional liquidity and financial flexibility in this
tight credit market. On December 18, 2008, the PUC issued its decision approving a base rate
increase of $60,000,000 or 5.2% and a decrease in the GCR of $107,000,000 for a net decrease in
rates of $47,000,000, or 4.2%. These rates are effective as of January 1, 2009.

On December 22, 2006, the Company filed for a $100,000,000 base rate increase with the PUC. The
funds provided by this increase in base rates were to be used to pay increased operating and
maintenance costs, establish an adequate level of working capital, repay the $45,000,000 City loan,
reduce the outstanding level of short-term commercial paper, provide a source of internal funds for
capital expenditures, meet bond covenant requirements in each fiscal year, and provide funds for
long-term debt reduction. On September 28, 2007, the PUC approved a rate increase of $25,000,000
which was effective in November 2007. The Company appealed this decision to Commonwealth
Court on or about October 18, 2007 and this matter is pending in the courts.

The previous increase in base rates of $36,000,000 was approved by the PUC on April 12, 2002.

Weather Normalization Adjustment Clause

The Weather Normalization Adjustment Clause (WNA) was approved by PUC Order dated
August 8, 2002. The purpose of the WNA is to neutralize the impact of weather on the Company’s
revenues. This allows the Company to achieve the recovery of appropriate costs as authorized by the
PUC. The WNA results in neither a rate increase nor a rate decrease, but acts as a billing adjustment.
The main benefits of the WNA are the stabilization of cash flow and the reduction of the need for
short-term borrowing from year to year. The WNA is applied to customer invoices rendered during
the period of October 1 through May 31 of each year for each billing cycle. The WNA will continue
in place unless the PUC issues an order directing that it be discontinued. The Company cannot
predict when the PUC will complete its review of the WNA, and the review was not completed as of
August 31, 2008. The adjustments for the years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 were an increase in
billings of $12,238,000 and $6,498,000, respectively.

Gas Cost Rate

The Company’s single greatest operating expense is the cost of natural gas. The rate charged to the
Company’s customers to recover these costs is called the gas cost rate (GCR) factor. The GCR
reflects the increases or decreases in natural gas costs and the cost of other raw materials. This GCR
mechanism provides the flexibility to rapidly reflect current conditions without the time delay
inherent in full base rate alteration. The intent is to achieve an annual balance between the costs
incurred for fuel and their pass through to customers.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Statements

August 31, 2008 and 2007

At the end of the fiscal year, costs recovered through the GCR are compared to the actual cost of fuel
and other specific costs. Customers are then credited or charged for over-recovery or under-recovery
of costs. The GCR may be adjusted quarterly or in the subsequent fiscal year to reflect the
under-recovery or over-recovery. Changes in the GCR impact the reported amounts of gas revenues
and operating expenses, but do not affect operating income or net income. The Company at
August 31, 2008 deferred approximately $15,494,000 for GCR under-recovery.

GCR effective dates and rates

GCR rate
Effective date per Mcf* Change
September 1, 2008 $ 12.6527 (0.3709)
June 1, 2008 13.0236 2.3010
March 1, 2008 10.7226 0.1447
December 1, 2007 10.5779 04671
September 1, 2007 10.1108 (0.6143)
June 1, 2007 10.7251 0.2913
March 1, 2007 10.4338 (0.4781)
December 1, 2006 10.9119 -~ (0.3439)
September 1, 2006 11.2558 (1.3074)
Prior 12.5632 —

* Mcf - Thousand cubic feet

Utility Plant

Utility plant is stated at original cost. The cost of additions, replacements, and betterments of units of
property are capitalized and included in the utility plant accounts. The cost of property sold or retired
is removed from the utility plant accounts and charged to accumulated depreciation. Normal repairs,
maintenance, the cost of minor property items, and expenses associated with retirements are charged
to operating expenses as incurred.

In a previous rate order, the PGC disallowed the accrual of the net negative salvage component in
depreciation. Cost of removal in the amounts of $2,847,000 and $2,542,000 was charged to expense
as incurred in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively, and is included in depreciation expense in the
statements of revenues and expenses. Depreciation is calculated on an asset-by-asset basis on the
estimated useful lives of plant and equipment on a straight-line method. The composite rate for FY
2008 and FY 2007 was 2.4% and 2.3%, respectively. The composite rates are supported by a
depreciation study of utility plant as of August 31, 2004. The effective composite depreciation rates,
as a percentage of cost, for FY 2008 were as follows:

Production plant 0.14% — 4.39%
Transmission, distribution, and storage ~ 0.18% —4.07%
General plant 1.62% — 9.97%

The next depreciation study is scheduled to be completed in FY 2010.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Statements

August 31, 2008 and 2007

Allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) is an estimate of the cost of funds used for
construction purposes. The AFUDC, as calculated on borrowed funds, reduces interest expense. The
AFUDC rate applied to construction work in progress was 4.96% in FY 2008 and FY 2007,

respectively.

The following is a summary of utility plant activity for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively (thousands of dollars):

Land

Distribution and collection
systems

Buildings and equipment

Total utility plant,
at historical cost

Under construction
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Distribution and
collection systems
Buildings and equipment

Utility plant, net

August 31, 2008

Beginning Additions Retirements Ending

balance and transfers and transfers balance
$ 5,267 328 — 5,595
1,221,067 52,803 (2,474) 1,271,396
406,966 9,792 (8,156) 408,602
1,633,300 62,923 (10,630) 1,685,593
48,013 61,879 (62,923) 46,969
(556,620) (28,609)* 2,768 (582,461)
(84,320) (11,412)* 7,726 (88,006)
$ 1,040,373 84,781 (63,059) 1,062,095

and FY 2007, respectively, and is not included in accumulated depreciation.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2008 and 2007

August 31, 2007
Beginning Additions Retirements Ending
balance and transfers  and transfers balance
Land $ 5,267 — — 5,267
Distribution and collection
systems 1,161,705 61,537 (2,175) 1,221,067
Buildings and equipment 388,697 25,500 (7,231) 406,966
Total utility plant,
at historical cost 1,555,669 87,037 (9,406) 1,633,300
Under construction 65,122 70,055 (87,164) 48,013
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Distribution and
collection systems (532,763) (26,261)* 2,404 (556,620)
Buildings and equipment (80,380) (10,905)* 6,965 (84,320)
Utility plant, net $ 1,007,648 119,926 (87,201) 1,040,373
* Cost of removal in the amounts of $2,847 and $2,542 was charged to expense as incurred in FY 2008

and FY 2007, respectively, and is not included in accumulated depreciation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company is primarily a natural gas distribution company. Operating revenues include revenues
from the sale of natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial heating and nonheating
customers. The Company also provides natural gas transportation service. Appliance and other
revenues primarily consist of revenue from the Company’s parts and labor repair program. Revenue
from this program is recognized on a monthly basis for the life of the individual parts and labor
plans. Additional revenue is generated from collection fees and reconnection charges. Other
operating revenues primarily consist of finance charges assessed on delinquent accounts.

Operating expenses include the cost of natural gas and the related costs incurred through the
processing, distribution, and delivery of natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial heating
and nonheating customers.

Revenue includes amounts related to gas that has been used by customers but has not yet been billed.
Revenues are recognized as gas is distributed. Estimated revenues from gas distributed and unbilled,
less estimated uncollectible amounts, are accrued and included in operating revenues.

Customers (Unaudited)

The Company’s service territory encompasses the City. Of the Company’s approximately 505,000
customers at August 31, 2008, nearly 95.0% were residential. Of the Company’s approximately
506,000 customers at August 31, 2007, nearly 94.3% were residential.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2008 and 2007

The Company offers a discounted payment plan for current receivables with a possible forgiveness
of arrearages in three years. The total number of customers with discounted payment plans as of
August 31, 2008 and 2007 was approximately 77,000 and 78,000, respectively.

The Senior Citizen Discount also provides customers with a discounted payment plan. The total
number of customers receiving the discount as of August 31, 2008 and 2007 was approximately
40,000 and 44,000, respectively.

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts

The Company estimates its accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts based on a financial
analysis and a collectibility study performed at the fiscal year-end. The methodology used in
performing the collectibility study has been reviewed with the PGC. For FY 2008 and FY 2007,
management has provided an accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts in excess of the
collectibility study results based on its analysis of historical aging data. The actual results of the
Company’s collection efforts could differ significantly from the Company’s estimate.

Due to the seasonal nature of the business, the Company carries credit balances in accounts
receivable primarily as a result of prepayment by budget customers. Credit balances of $19,014,000
and $17,166,000 for FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively, have been reclassified to accounts payable
at year end.

Gas Inventories, Materials, and Supplies

Gas inventories, materials, and supplies, consisting primarily of fuel stock, gases stored to meet peak
demand requirements, and spare parts, are stated at average cost at August 31, 2008 and 2007, as
follows (thousands of dollars):

2008 2007
Gas inventory $ 179,751 138,388
Material and supplies 7,788 9,382
Total $ 187,539 147,770

Bond Issuance Costs, Debt Discount, and Premium

Discounts or premiums and bond issuance costs arising from the sale of revenue bonds are amortized
using the interest method over the term of the related bond issue.

Losses on Reacquired Debt

Losses on reacquired debt are deferred and amortized, using the interest method, to interest expense
over the shorter of the life of the refunding bond issue or the remaining original amortization period.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Stateménts
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Pensions and Postemployment Benefits

The Company sponsors a public employee retirement system (PERS), a single-employer
defined-benefit plan, to provide pension benefits for all of its employees. The pension plan
(the Pension Plan) is noncontributory, covering all employees and providing for retirement payments
for vested employees at age 65 or earlier under various options, which includes a disability pension
provision, a preretirement spouse or domestic partner’s death benefit, a reduced pension for early
retirement, various reduced pension payments for the election of a survivor option, and a provision
for retirement after 30 years of service without penalty for reduced age. In accordance with
Resolutions of the PGC, Ordinances of City Council, and as prescribed by the City’s Director of
Finance, the Pension Plan is being funded with contributions by the Company to the Sinking Fund
Commission of the City. Management believes that the Pension Plan is in compliance with all
applicable laws.

The Company sponsors a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan and provides
postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefits to approximately 1,920 and 1,935
participating retirees and their beneficiaries and dependents for FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively,
in accordance with their retirce medical program. The Company also provides such benefits to
approximately 1,699 and 1,720 active employees and their dependents for FY 2008 and FY 2007,
respectively, by charging the annual insurance premiums to expense.

GASB Statement No. 45 (GASB 45), Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, becomes effective for the Company’s fiscal year
beginning September 1, 2007. This Statement requires the Company to account for and report the
value of its future other postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligations currently rather than on a
pay-as-you-go basis. The Company adopted the provisions of GASB 45 as of September 1, 2006.
The Company had a zero net OPEB obligation at transition. As discussed in note 11, the difference
between the FY 2008 annual OPEB expense of $44,114,000 and the expenses paid by the Company
of $18,280,000 resulted in an increase in the liability of $25,834,000 which has been recorded in
other liabilities and deferred credits and expensed in FY 2008.

Additionally, the Company adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures,
which more closely aligns the financial reporting requirements for pensions with those of OPEB, as
of September 1, 2006. ‘

Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash equivalents, all nonrestricted highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

Reserve for Injuries and Damages

The Company is principally insured through insurance carriers; however, the Company is required to
cover settlement of claims, which are excluded under the provisions of such insurance policies. An
estimated liability has been established, in accordance with PGC regulations, for settlements to be
paid by the Company in the next fiscal year.
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Estimated losses from claims for occurrences not covered by insurance, which will not be paid in the
next fiscal year, have been accrued and deferred. Such liabilities have been established based upon
Company history and consultation with counsel. Such expenses are expected to be recovered through
future rates. Charges against the reserve are made as claims are settled.

Segment Information

All of the Company’s assets and operations are employed in‘only one segment, local transportation
and distribution of natural gas in the City.

Estimates

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, management uses estimates.
The Company has disclosed in the financial statements all estimates where it is reasonably possible
that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the
financial statements.

Pollution Remediation

GASB Statement No.49 (GASB49), Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution
Remediation Obligations, is effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning September 1, 2008,
however, the Company has chosen to implement the provisions of GASB 49 a year earlier than-
required by GASB because the Company is a component unit of the City for financial reporting
requirements and the FY 2008 financial statements will be consolidated into the City’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This statement establishes a framework for the
recognition and measurement of pollution remediation liabilities. A pollution remediation obligation
addresses the current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by participation in
pollution remediation activities.

Prior to the implementation of GASB 49, the Company recognized liabilities related to its voluntary
participation in remediation activities under Pennsylvania Act 2, Land Recycling and Environmental
Remediation Standards Act of 1995 (Act 2), which established the “land recycling program, and
related to its mandatory participation in activities under Pennsylvania Act 32, Storage Tank and Spill
Prevention Act of 1989 (Act 32), which established a comprehensive program to prevent leaks and
spills from underground and above ground tanks in accordance with'existing U.S. GAAP related to
the accrual of liabilities.

Under Act 2, the Notice of Intent to Remediate (NIR) process was conducted by the Company in
October of 2004 and a total of four Public Involvement Plan meetings were conducted at multiple
City Recreation Centers throughout Philadelphia during February and March of 2005. In March of
2005 (after the public meetings were conducted), the Company submitted a series of five Remedial
Investigation Reports (RIRs) to the Act 2 for review. In July 2005, the Act 2 program approved all
five RIRs submitted in March 2005.

In accordance with GASB 49, the Company revised its methodology for estimating its pollution
remediation obligations to the effective cash flow method, in which measurement is based on the
outlays expected to be incurred as a sum of probability-weighted amounts in a range of possible
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estimated amounts. The Company’s liability is based on a combination of internal and external cost
estimates for the specific remediation activities agreed to as part of Act 2 and Act 32 remediation
efforts, adjusted as additional information becomes available.

Estimated site liabilities are determined based upon existing remediation laws and technologies,
specific site consultants’ engineering studies, or by extrapolating experience with environmental
issues at comparable sites. Estimates may change substantially as additional information becomes
available regarding the level of contamination at specific sites, available remediation methods, price
changes, changes in technology, or changes in applicable regulations.

The implementation of GASB 49 resulted in an additional $8,300,000 liability which is reflected in
other liabilities and deferred credits at August 31, 2008. Although GASB 49 requires pollution
remediation liabilities to be measured at the beginning of the first period presented in the financial
statements, because the increase in the liability related to the implementation of GASB 49 is not
material, the Company has not restated prior periods and instead recognized the effect of GASB 49
implementation in the current year.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP for regulated entities, the Company has also recognized the
long-term portion of its environmental remediation liability as a regulatory asset because based on
available evidence it is probable that the previously incurred costs will be recovered through rates.

(t)  Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

Ownership and Management and Related-Party Transactions and Balances

The Company is a component unit of the City. As of January 1, 1973, under the terms of a two-year
agreement automatically extended for successive two-year periods unless canceled upon 90 days’ notice by
the City, the Company is being managed by the PFMC. The agreement, as amended, provides for
reimbursement to PFMC of actual costs incurred in managing the Company, not to exceed a total of the
prior fiscal year’s maximum amount adjusted to reflect the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index
for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) All Items Index, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, United States Department
of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, as most recently published and available to the Director of Finance of
the City on March 1 of each such fiscal year. In FY 2008, the applicable maximum amount was calculated
to be $1,011,000. In FY 2007, the applicable maximum amount was calculated to be $976,000. The
agreement requires the Company to make annual payments of $18,000,000 to the City. In FY 2008 and FY
2007, the Company made the annual payment of $18,000,000 to the City. The City then granted the
$18,000,000 back to the Company in both years.

The Company engages in various other transactions with the City. The Company provides gas service to
the City. Operating revenues include $13,914,000 and $17,245,000 in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively,
relating to sales to the City. Water and sewer services and licenses are purchased from the City. Such
purchases totaled $616,000 and $615,000 in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively. Net amounts receivable
from the City were $375,000 and $240,000 at August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Certain activities of the PGC are paid for by the Company. Such payments totaled $788,000 and $684,000
in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

(@

(®)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of bank deposits, money market accounts, and
repurchase agreements. Bank balances of such deposits and accounts at August 31, 2008 and 2007
were $52,504,000 and $54,892,000, respectively. Book balances of such deposits and accounts at
August 31, 2008 and 2007 were $49,338,000 and $51,698,000, respectively. Federal depository
insurance on these balances at August 31, 2008 and 2007 was $158,000 and $222,000, respectively.
The remaining balances are not insured.

For the Company’s cash equivalents, the Company’s cash balances fluctuate significantly during the
year. Excess cash balances are usually invested in money market accounts and repurchase
agreements.

The highest balance of money market accounts during the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008 and
2007 were $135,200,000 and $157,200,000, respectively. Money market accounts with a carrying
amount (at fair value) of $51,200,000 and $53,702,000 at August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectlvely,
are included in the balances presented above.

The highest balance of repurchase agreements during the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008 was
$62,600,000. There were no repurchase agreements outstanding at August 31, 2008 and 2007.

Restricted Investment Funds

The investments in the Company’s Sinking Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Workers’
Compensation Escrow Fund, and City Loan Escrow Account consist primarily of a Guaranteed
Investment Contract (GIC), U.S. Treasury and government agency obligations, corporate obligations,
and money market accounts. These investments are maintained by the City or in the Company’s
name by its agent. The balance of the Capital Improvement Fund at August 31, 2008 and 2007 was
$111,207,000 and $172,134,000, respectively. The unexpended Capital Improvement Fund proceeds
are restricted to the purchase of utility plant. In FY 2008 and FY 2007, the Company utilized the
Capital Improvement Fund to provide liquidity for the additions to utility plant.

Investments are recorded at fair value except for certain money market funds recorded at amortized
cost. The adjustment to market value for the Capital Improvement Fund resulted in a loss of $71,500
at August 31, 2008. The adjustment to market value for the Capital Improvement Fund resulted in a
gain of $8,000 at August 31, 2007. The adjustment to market value for the Sinking Fund resulted in
gains of $242,000 and $214,000 at August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Pursuant to the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry Bureau of Workers” Compensation
Self-Insurance policy, the Company has to establish and maintain a restricted trust account. As of
August 31, 2008 and 2007, the trust account balances were $2,383,000 and $1,924,000, respectively.
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Capital Improvement
Fund (thousands of dollars):

August 31, 2008
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
U.S. government agencies
and instrumentalities:
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation
medium term notes $ 32,244 0.4608 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage gold
partner certificate 491 1.6694 N/A
Federal National
Mortgage Association
global benchmark notes 7,129 0.2794 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal National
Mortgage Association
medium term notes 1,248 1.8506 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Banks 9405 0.8250 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 50,517
Corporate obligations:
Goldman Sachs Group senior
unsubordinate 968 0.7083 Aa-/AA3 Moody’s/S&P
Prioca Global 997 0.2917 Aa/AA3 Moody’s/S&P
Socicte Generale National
Association commercial paper 4,950 1.6694 N/A/A-1+ S&P
HSBC Finance Corporation )
commercial paper 985 0.2403 Pl/A-1+ Moody’s/S&P
American Express commercial ,
paper 985 0.2403 Pl/A-1+ Moody’s/S&P
Banco Santander PR San Juan
certificate of deposit 98 0.0280 FDIC Insured
Bank of Florida certificate of
deposit 99 0.1043 FDIC Insured
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August 31, 2008
Weighted -
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
Bridgewater Savings Bank
certificate of deposit 98 -0.0208 FDIC Insured
Countrywide Bank certificate
of deposit 99 0.0180 FDIC Insured
Eurobank Hato Rey
certificate of deposit 99 0.0205 FDIC Insured
First Suburban National Bank
certificate of deposit 98 0.1876 FDIC Insured
Ironstone Bank certificate of
deposit 98 0.1298 FDIC Insured
Mutual Bank certificate of deposit 99 0.0745 FDIC Insured
Ravenswood Bank certificate
of deposit 97 0.1835 FDIC Insured
Total corporate ;
obligations 9,770
Total fair value of
investments 60,287
Cash and cash equivalents:
Citigroup Funding Inc.
commercial paper 4,966 0.1474 N/A/A-1+ S&P
UBS Finance Delaware LLC
commercial paper 2,988 0.0595 N/A/A-1+ S&P
Total cash and cash
equivalents 7954
Money market:
Morgan Stanley Prime Portfolio
Institutional Class Funds 21,772 N/A N/A
First American Government
Obligations Fund Class Z. 13,884 N/A N/A
First American Prime Obligations
Class Z 6,847 N/A N/A
Total money market 42,503
Accrued interest 463
Total fair value of
investments,
including
cash deposits 111,207
Portfolio weighted modified duration 0.5898
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August 31, 2007
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
U.S. government agencies and
instrumentalities:
Federal Home Loan Banks
discount note $ 2,369 0.1917 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal National Mortgage
Association note 3,293 0.4194 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S.
government
agencies and
instrumentalities 5,662
Corporate obligations:
American Express commercial
paper 492 0.2861 Pi/Al Moody’s/S&P
General Electric commercial
paper 1,004 0.2889 PlL/Al Moody’s/S&P
HSBC Finance commercial
paper 1,003 0.2972 P1/Al Moody’s/S&P
JP Morgan Chase & Co
Global Sr Holding Co note 992 0.4194 Aa2/AA- Moody’s/S&P
Goldman Sachs Group global
note 994 0.3750 Aa3/AA- Moody’s/S&P
Total corporate
obligations 4,485
Total fair value of
investments 10,147
Money market:
First American Prime
Obligations Fund Class Z 161,965 N/A N/A
Total money market 161,965
Accrued interest 22
Total fair value of
investments,
including
cash deposits $ 172,134
Portfolio weighted modified
duration 0.3304
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Sinking Fund (thousands
of dollars): '

August 3 1, 2008
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
Guaranteed investment contracts $__ 48,129 12.5000 * *
U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes 16,806 2.5158 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S. government
obligations 16,806
U.S. government agencies and
instrumentalities:
Federal Home Loan Mortgage . :
Corporation medium term notes 10,176 20177 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal National Mortgage
Association medium term notes 5,152 2.1446 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Banks 16,514 1.9511 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S. government agencies
and instrumentalitiés 31,842
Corporate obligations:
Wells Fargo note 2,688 0.5861 Aal/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Associates Corp National Association 2,610 0.1694 Aa3/AA- Moody’s/S&P
Procter & Gamble Company 1,293 0.2917 Aa3/AA- Moody’s/S&P
Total corporate obligations 6,591
Total fair value of investments 103,368
Cash and cash equivalents:
U.S. Treasury bills 1,860 00111 - Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,860
Money market: N/A N/A
Fidelity Institutional
Government Portfolio Class II 970
Total money market 970
Total fair value of investments,
including cash deposits 3 106,198
Portfolio weighted modified duration 1.9002

* The credit rating of this investment is unrated.
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August 31, 2007
Weighted
average
Fair maturity - Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
Guaranteed investment contracts $__ 49,504 13.5000 * *
U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes 7,294 1.6153 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S. government
obligations 7,294
U.S. government agencies
and instrumentalities:
Federal National Mortgage
Corporation debentures 6,973 2.0417 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Farm Credit Bank bonds 4,680 13717 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation bonds 10,396 1.9650 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation
debentures 8,810 1.8329 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal National Mortgage
Association notes 5,861 2.3328 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation notes 6,358 1.3568 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 43,078
Corporate obligations:
Procter & Gamble note 1,265 1.2917 Aa3/AA- Moody’s/S&P
U.S. Bank National Association 1,105 0.8750 Aa2/AA Moody’s/S&P
Total corporate
obligations 2,370
Total fair value
of investments 102,246
Money market:
Fidelity Institutional
Government Portfolio Class I 192 N/A N/A
Total money market 192
Total fair value of
investments, including
cash deposits $ 102,438
Portfolio weighted modified duration 1.7806

* The credit rating of this investment is unrated.
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Workers’ Compensation

Fund (thousands of dollars):

August 31, 2008
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
Money market:
First American Treasury
Obligations Fund 2,383 NA N/A N/A
Total money market 2,383
Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits 2,383
August 31, 2007
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
Money market:
First American Treasury
Obligations Fund 1,924 N/A N/A N/A
Total money market 1,924
Total fair value of
investments,
including cash
deposits 1,924
Interest Rate Risk

It is the policy of the City to diversify its investment portfolios. Portfolio diversification is employed
as a way to control interest rate risk. Investments shall be diversified as to maturities, and as to kind
of investment to eliminate the risk of loss; which might result from over concentration of assets in a
specific maturity, in a specific kind of a security, or from a specific issuer.
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Credit Risk

The City has adopted an investment policy relating to the investments of the Company. Per the
investment policy, the Company’s allowable investments are: (1)bonds or notes of the
U.S. government; (2) U.S. Treasury obligations, including STRIPs; receipts indicating an undivided
interest in such U.S. Treasury obligations; and stripped coupons held under book-entry with the New
York Federal Reserve Bank; (3) U.S. agency obligations rated Aaa’/AAA by Moody’s Investor
Services or Standard & Poor’s; (4) collateralized certificates of deposit; (5) bankers acceptances,
Eurodollars deposits, and Euro certificates of deposit that are collateralized; (6 ) commercial paper
rated M1G1 or Al+ by Moody’s Investor Services and Standard & Poor’s, respectively; (7) general
obligation bonds of corporations rated AA or better by Moody’s Investor Services or Standard &
Poor’s, with a maturity of two years or less (except the Sinking Fund); (8) collateralized mortgage
obligations and pass-through securities rated AA or better by Moody’s Investor Services or Standard
& Poor’s or collateralized with securities that meet the Company’s own investment criteria, with a
maturity of two years or less (except the Sinking Fund); (9) money market mutual funds, as defined
by the Securities and Exchange Commission; (10) repurchase agreements collateralized either

.through actual delivery of eligible collateral or through segregation of collateral by a depository that

is holding the counterparty’s securities, provided such collateral meets the Company’s own
investment criteria; and (11) obligations of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
(the Commonwealth) or any municipality or other political subdivision of the Commonwealth,
registered or otherwise as to principal and interest, with a maturity of two years or less (except the
Sinking Fund).

Authorized investments for Sinking Fund Portfolios are dictated by the First Class City Revenue
Bond Act. This also includes any investment vehicle permitted for any Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania state agency.

Custodial Credit Risk

The Company has selected custodian banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System to hold
its investments. Delivery of the applicable investment documents (e.g., contracts, securities, and
safekeeping receipts) to the Company’s custodian is required for all investments. For secured
transactions, such as repurchase agreements, either the title to or a perfected security interest in the
securities, along with any necessary transfer documents, must be transferred to the custodian. Such
transactions will always use delivery versus payment procedures.

Concentration of Credit Risk

More than 5.0% of the Company’s investments are in the First American Government Obligations
Fund Class Z, U.S. Treasury notes, Morgan Stanley Prime Portfolio Institutional Class Fund, Federal
Home Loan Banks, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation medium term notes and the GIC with
Financial Security Assurance Inc. (FSA) Capital Markets Services, LLC. These investments
represent 6.32% and 7.65%, 9.91%, 11.79%, 19.30% and 21.90%, respectively, of the Company’s
total investments.
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Deferred Costs

In compliance with orders issued by the PGC, the cost of projects that produce benefits over an extended
period is deferred. Such costs are being amortized to expense over a period matching their useful lives,
which range from two to ten years. There is no return on the asset being charged to the customers. During
FY 2008, there were costs of $157,000 incurred for rate case expenses and $437,000 incurred for the
PUC’s management audit that will be amortized over a four-year period and a seven-year period,
respectively. The unamortized costs included in other assets and deferred debits were $607,000 and
$324,000 as of August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The unamortized costs included in other current
assets and deferred debits were $210,000 and $397,000 as of August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP for regulated entities, the Company has recognized the long-term portion
of its environmental remediation liability as a regulatory asset because based on available evidence it is
probable that the previously incurred costs will be recovered through rates. As a result of settlements
during FY 2008 by the Company’s insurance carriers associated with environmental remediation costs, the
Company received $1,100,000. Environmental remediation costs of approximately $652,000 in FY 2008
were offset by these insurance settlements, and the remainder was deferred. The Company estimates
additional expenditures to be approximately $21,600,000 as discussed in note 12.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the Plan) created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all Company employees with six months of
service, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The Company provides an annual
10.0% matching contribution up to $500 that immediately vests to the employee. The Company
contributed $361,000 and $365,000 for the years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Notes Payable

Pursuant to the provisions of certain ordinances and resolutions of the City, the Company may sell
short-term notes in a principal amount that, together with interest, may not exceed $200,000,000
outstanding at any one time. These notes are intended to provide additional working capital. They are
supported by an irrevocable letter of credit and a subordinated security interest in the Company’s revenues.

A new Series E of the tax-exempt commercial paper program was instituted on January 18, 2006,
concurrently with the expiration of Series D. Under the new credit agreement, the commitment amount was
increased from $100,000,000 to $150,000,000. The credit agreement was further amended and restated as
of May 22, 2007 to reflect a new term and rate structure. The expiration of the credit agreement was
extended to May 29, 2010.

The notes outstanding at August 31, 2008 had a weighted average interest rate of 1.63% and remaining
weighted average time to maturity of 61 days. The principal amount outstanding at August 31, 2008 and
2007 was $90,000,000 and $51,600,000, respectively.
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Commercial paper activity for the years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows (thousands of
dollars): '

Year ended August 31, 2008

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Deletions balance
Commercial paper $ 51,600 87,900 49,500 90,000
Year ended August 31, 2007
Beginning Ending
balance Additions Deletions balance
Commercial paper $ 55,000 94,900 98,300 51,600

See note 8(e) for detail of the Note Payable — City Loan.

GCR Tariff Reconciliation

During the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Company’s actual gas costs were
below its billed gas costs by approximately $30,503,000, $24,904,000, and $8,466,000, respectively.

Natural Gas Pipeline Supplier Refund

The Company received refunds including interest in FY 2008 in the amount of $10,660,000 related to
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)/Pipeline Rate Cases. This amount was utilized as a
reduction in the cost of gas for reconciliation purposes in the calculation of the GCR for FY 2008.

The Company received refunds including interest in FY 2007 in the amount of $648,000 related to
FERC/Pipeline Rate Cases. This amount was utilized as a reduction in the cost of gas for reconciliation
purposes in the calculation of the GCR for FY 2007.

Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities

The following summary of long-term debt consists primarily of bonds issued by the City under agreements
whereby the Company must reimburse the City for the principal and interest payments required by the
bond ordinances for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 (thousands of dollars):

August 31, 2008 August 31, 2007

Current Current

portion Long-term Total portion Long-term Total
Revenue bonds $ 73,941 1,103,828 1,177,769 41,830 1,176,368 1,218,198
Unamortized discount (482) (4,469) 4,951) (5t 4,951) (5,462)
Unamortized premium 2,571 27,804 30,375 2,676 30,375 33,051

Total revenue bonds 76,030 1,127,163 1,203,193 43,995 1,201,792 1,245,787

Note Payable — City Loan — — — 43,000 — 43,000

Total $ 76,030 1,127,163 1,203,193 86,995 1,201,792 1,288,787
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The following is a summary of activity related to revenue bonds and other liabilities and deferred credits
and the respective balances for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 (thousands of dollars):

Year ended August 31, 2008

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Reductions balance
Revenue bonds $ 1,218,198 — (40,429) 1,177,769
Other liabilities and deferred
credits:
Forward rate agreement $ 8,431 — (624) 7,807
Claims and judgments 3,111 2,966 — 6,077
Environmental clean-up 10,013 7,677 —_ 17,690
Other postemployment
benefits 26,421 25,834 — 52,255
Total other
liabilities and
deferred credits $ 47,976 36,477 (624) 83,829
Year ended August 31, 2007
Beginning Ending
balance Additions Reductions balance
Revenue bonds $ 1,055,038 246,655 (83,495) 1,218,198
Other liabilities and deferred
credits:
Forward rate agreement $ 9,056 — (625) 8,431
Claims and judgments 3,899 — (788) 3,111
Environmental clean-up 9,074 939 - 10,013
Other postemployment
benefits —_ 26,421 — 26,421
Total other |
liabilities and
deferred credits $ 22,029 27,360 (1,413) 47,976

Liability amounts due within one year ate reflected in the other current liabilities and deferred credits line
of the balance sheet.
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Principal maturities and scheduled interest payments for revenue bonds are as follows (thousands of

dollars):
Revenue bonds
Net swap
Principal Interest amount Total
Fiscal year ending August 31:
2009* $ 44,625 53,233 5,717) 92,141
2010 46,365 50,965 (5,682) 91,648
2011 46,977 48,677 (5,648) 90,006
2012%* 41,787 46,915 (5,611) 83,091
2013 45,055 45,269 (5,573) 84,751
2014 - 2018 229865 192,562 (25,374) 397,053
2019 - 2023 242,520 137,093 (19,042) 360,571
2024 — 2028 244 915 81,657 9,787) 316,785
2029 - 2033 140,565 35,093 (976) 174,682
2034 - 2038 95,095 8,175 — 103,270
Total $ 1,177,769 699,639 (83,410) 1,793,998

* %k

(@)

This does not include $29,317,000 of Sixth Series Bonds that is included in current liabilities due to
the scheduled expiration of the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement as described in note 15. This
amount is included in the years in which principal matures according to the original maturity
schedule.

Future debt service is calculated using rates in effect at August 31, 2008 for variable rate bonds. The
net swap payment amounts were calculated by subtracting the future variable rate interest payments
subject to swap agreements from the synthetic fixed-rate amount intended to be achieved by the
swap amount.

Tax Exempt Capital Accumulator (TECA) accretions for the 11 “C” Seriesin the amount of
$4,643,000 are not included in the principal amount in FY 2012.

Bond Issuances
2007 Ordinances

On March 21, 2007, the Mayor signed two bills into law authorizing the City to issue revenue bonds.
The first bill signed by the Mayor constituted the Nineteenth Supplemental Ordinance to the General
Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1975 (the 1975 General Ordinance). This ordinance
authorizes the City to issue revenue bonds for the following purposes: (a) the current refunding of a
portion of the outstanding City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Fifteenth
Series (1975 Refunded Bonds); (b) paying the costs of issuing the Nineteenth Series Bonds; and
(c) paying any other Project Costs (as defined in the Act).
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The second bill signed by the Mayor constituted the Eight Supplemental Ordinance to the General
Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1998 (the 1998 General Ordinance). This ordinance
authorizes the City to issue revenue bonds for the following purposes: (a) providing funding for the
capital projects included in the capital program of the Company as from time to time included in the
capital budgets of the Company, as approved by City Council; (b) advance refunding of the 1998
Refunded Bonds, which were issued under the 1998 General Ordinance; (c) paying the costs of
issuing the Seventh Series Bonds and the required deposits to the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund
Reserve; and (d) paying any other Project Costs (as defined in the Act).

1998 Ordinance Seventh Series Bonds

On May 15, 2007, the Company issued $230,900,000 of Seventh Series Bonds for the purpose of
providing funds for the financing of the capital projects included in the capital program of the
Company, and for the purpose of redeeming and refunding, on a current basis, a portion of the
outstanding Second Series B, Third Series and Fourth Series Bonds. The refunded par amounts of the
Second Series B, Third Series and Fourth Series Bonds were: $7,500,000, $3,145,000, and
$20,005,000, respectively. The Seventh Series Bonds contained new money debt issued in the
amount of $200,000,000. This new debt was issued under the 1998 Ordinance. The interest rate on
the $137,720,000 of Serial Bonds ranged from 4.0% to 5.0%. The interest rate on the $93,180,000 of
Term Bonds was 5.0%. The bonds, consisting of Serial Bonds and Term Bonds, have maturity dates
through 2037.

1975 Ordinance Nineteenth Series Bonds

On May 15, 2007, the Company issued $14,450,000 of Nineteenth Series Bonds for the purpose of
redeeming and refunding, on a current basis, the outstanding Fifteenth Series Bonds previously
issued under the 1975 Ordinance. This new debt was issued under the 1975 Ordinance. The interest
rate on the Serial Bonds was 5.0%. The bonds, consisting of Serial Bonds, have maturity dates
through 2023.

2006 Ordinances

On December 22, 2005, the Mayor signed an ordinance into law authorizing the City to issue
revenue bonds for the purpose of (a) refunding all or a portion of the following Series of Gas Works
Revenue Bonds (the 1998 General Ordinance): First Series B, Second Series A, Third Series, Fourth
Series, and Fifth Series; (b) paying the costs of issuing the bonds and making any required deposits
to the Sinking Fund Reserve; and (c) paying any other Project Costs, which may include, without
limitation, the repayment to any fund of the City or to accounts of the Company of amounts
advanced for Project Costs.

1998 Ordinance Sixth Series Bonds

On January 26, 2006, the Company issued $313,390,000 of Sixth Series Bonds, maturing at various
dates through 2031, for the purpose of redeeming and refunding, on a current basis, all of the First
Series B and a portion of the outstanding Second Series A, Third Series, and Fourth Series City of
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, Gas Works Revenue Bonds previously issued under the 1998 Ordinance.
The refunded par amounts of the First Series B, Second Series A, Third Series, and Fourth
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Series Bonds were: $103,550,000, $79,355,000, $99,915,000, and $2,295,000, respectively. As of
August 31, 2007, there were no Fifth Series Bonds refunded. The $313,390,000 of Serial Bonds have
a variable rate set through a weekly reset mode and are paid monthly and are secured with a Standby
Bond Purchase Agreement, which expires January 26, 2009. As discussed in note 15, substantially
all of the Sixth Series Bonds are held by banks under the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement at
December 18, 2008.

The Bonds were issued on a parity with other Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds issued under the 1998
General Ordinance, but are subordinated in right of payment and security to all bonds issued and
outstanding under the General Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1975, approved on May 30,
1975, Bill No. 1871, as amended and supplemented from time to time (the 1975 General Ordinance
and together with the 1998 General Ordinance). The Bonds were also issued on parity with the
Obligations of the City to make periodic payments due under a Qualified Swap being entered into
between the City and the counterparty in connection with the issuance of the bonds.

Debt Coverage and Sinking Fund Requirements

Under the terms of both general ordinances, the City is required to maintain rates to allow the
Company to satisfy 1975 and 1998 revenue bond debt coverage ratio requirements. The Company
has satisfied the debt coverage requirements in FY 2008 and FY 2007.

Also provided by both general ordinances is the establishment of a sinking fund into which deposits
are made sufficient to meet all principal and interest requirements of the bonds as they become due.
Both general ordinances also provide that sinking fund reserves be maintained as part of the Sinking
Fund, which have previously been funded from the proceeds of each series of bonds in an amount
equal to the maximum annual debt service requirement on the bonds of each respective General
Ordinance in any fiscal year.

Monies in the Sinking Fund reserves are to be applied to the payment of debt service if, for any
reason, other monies in the Sinking Fund should be insufficient.

The revenue bonds are, and will be, equally and ratably collateralized by a security interest in all of
the Company’s project revenues, as defined in the general ordinances, and monies in the Sinking
Fund. ‘

Portions of certain revenue bonds were issued as zero-coupon securities. Interest on these securities
is accrued and compounded on the payment dates of the current interest bonds within the issue. The
accrued interest is reported as long-term debt.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

Objective - In January 2006, the City entered into a swap to synthetically refund all or a portion of
several series of outstanding bonds. The swap structure was used as a means to increase the City’s
savings, when compared with fixed-rate bonds at the time of issuance. The intention of the swap was
to create a synthetic fixed rate structure.
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Terms — The swap, executed with the counterparty, commenced on January 26, 2006 and will mature
on August 1, 2031. Under the swap, the City pays a fixed rate of 3.6745% and receives a variable
rate computed as the lesser of (i) the actual bond rate and (ii) the SIFMA Municipal Swap Index until
September 1, 2011 on which date the variable interest rate received will switch to 70% of one month
LIBOR until maturity. The rates are based on an amortizing notional schedule (with an initial
notional amount of $313,390,000). As of August 31, 2008, rates were as follows:

Terms Rates
Interest Rate Swap
Fixed payment to counterparty under Swap Fixed 3.6745%
Variable payment from counterparty under Swap SIFMA (1.8400)
Net interest rate swap payments 1.8345
Variable rate bond coupon payments Weekly resets 2.0400
Synthetic interest rate on bonds 3.8745

As of August 31, 2008, the swap had a notional amount of $311,615,000 and the associated variable
rate bond had a $311,615,000 principal amount. The bonds and the related swap agreement mature
on August 1, 2031.

Fair value — As of August 31, 2008, the swap had a negative fair value of $14,285,000. This means
that the Company would have to pay this amount to terminate the swap. Subsequently, the negative
fair value has increased as discussed in note 15.

Risks - As of August 31, 2008, the City is not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative
fair value. Should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap become positive, the City
would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the swap’s fair value. The swap includes an
additional termination event based on credit ratings. The swap may be terminated if the ratings of the
counterparty falls below A3 or A- (Moody’s/S&P), unless the counterparty has: (i) assigned or
transferred the swap to a party acceptable to the City; (ii) provided a credit support provider
acceptable to the City whose obligations are pursuant to a credit support document acceptable to the
City; or (iii) executed a credit support annex, in form and substance acceptable to the City, providing
for the collateralization by the counterparty of its obligations under the swap.

A termination event may also occur if the rating on the Company’s Bonds falls below Baa2 or BBB
(Moody’s/S&P). However, because the City’s swap payments are insured by FSA, as long as FSA is
rated at or above A2 or A (Moody’s/S&P), the termination event based on the City’s ratings is
stayed. As of December 18, 2008, neither the Company’s nor FSA’s credit ratings have fallen below
these levels.

The City is subject to traditional basis risk should the relationship between SIFMA and the bonds
change; if SIFMA resets at a rate below the variable rate bond coupon payments, the synthetic
interest rate on the bonds will increase. In addition, after September 1, 2011, the City would be
exposed to (i) basis risk, as reflected by the relationship between the rate payable on the bonds and
70% of one month LIBOR received on the swap, and (ii) tax risk, a form of basis risk, where the City
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is exposed to a potential additional interest cost in the event that changes in the federal tax system or
in marginal tax rates cause the rate paid on the outstanding bonds to be greater than the 70% of one
month LIBOR received on the swap.

Forward Rate Agreement and Guaranteed Investment Contracts

On August 23, 2002, the City entered into GICs in connection with a portion of its 1975 and 1998
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserves for the Company. At settlement, approximately 65.0% of the
Sinking Fund Reserves, from the two ordinances, totaling $61,396,000 were invested in the GICs. In
exchange for this investment, the Company received an up-front payment of $21,800,000 in lieu of
receiving interest payments over the life of the GICs. The life of the Forward Rate Agreement is 18%
years, with 12'; years remaining at August 31, 2008.

The GICs are recorded at fair value in the Sinking Fund and had fair values of $48,129,000 and
$49,504,000 at August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company also paid $1,650,000 to terminate an existing Forward Rate Agreement as part of this
transaction. Of the remaining net proceeds of $20,150,000, $8,596,000 was allocated to the 1975
Sinking Fund Reserve and $11,554,000 was allocated to the 1998 Sinking Fund Reserve. For debt
service coverage purposes, the $20,150,000 was considered “project revenues” in FY 2002. For
financial statement purposes, the $8,596,000 was recorded as revenue in FY 2002 in the category of
interest and other income. This amount is nonrefundable and was granted to the Company by the
City.

Under the 1998 Ordinance, the Company is entitled to the eamings on the portion of the Sinking
Fund allocated to bonds issued under the 1998 Ordinance. Therefore, the $11,554,000 received under
the 1998 ordinance was deferred and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the
agreement. The unamortized balance of the proceeds was $7,807,000 and $8,431,000 at August 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Note Payable — City Loan

On November 15, 2000, the Mayor signed an ordinance authorizing the City to advance in whole or
in part, up to $45,000,000 to the Company, to provide liquidity in the winter of 2000-2001. The loan
from the City carried no interest. The loan repayment period was extended to August 2008.

The loan from the City was subordinate to the Company’s other repayment obligations on its revenue
bonds and commercial paper program. The outstanding balance of the City loan was $43,000,000 at
August 31, 2007. The remaining balance of the City loan was remitted to the City in payments of
$20,500,000 and $22,500,000 in December 2007 and August 2008, respectively.

43 (Continued)



®

(10

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Defeased Debt

Defeased debt of the Company (bonds issued by the Company payable from the proceeds of irrevocably
pledged assets) at August 31, 2008 was as follows:

Latest date Bonds

maturing to Interest rate outstanding___
7th Series 3/15/13 6.00% $ 10,675,000
12th Series B 5/15/20 7.00 47,910,000
2nd Series 7/1/29 5.00 84,640,000
3rd Series 8/1/31 5.50 99,445,000
4th Series 8/1/32 5.25 20,005,000

The Company issued $230,900,000 of Seventh Series Bonds during FY 2007. The proceeds of
$30,900,000 from the sale were utilized to refund a portion of the Second Series B, Third Series, and
Fourth Series Bonds, in the amounts of $7,500,000, $3,145,000, and $20,005,000, respectively. The
refunding of this existing debt resulted in an accounting loss of $2,218,000. This loss is being deferred and
amortized as interest expense over the life of the new bonds. The refunding generated a present value
savings of $2,146,000.

The investments held by the trustee and the defeased bonds are not recognized on the Company’s balance
sheets in accordance with the terms of the Indentures of Defeasance. The investments pledged for the
redemption of the defeased debt have maturities and interest payments scheduled to coincide with the
trustee cash requirements for debt service.

The assets pledged, primarily noncallable U.S. government securities, had a market value of $278,271,000
at August 31, 2008, bearing interest on face value from 4.30% to 5.89%.

Pension Costs

(@} Plan Description

The Company sponsors a public employee retirement system . (PERS), a single-employer
defined-benefit plan, to provide pension benefits for all of its employees, whose annual covered
payroll (which was substantially equal to total payroll) was $105,596,000 and $106,018,000 at
August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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At September 1, 2007, the beginning of the plan year of the last actuarial valuation, the Pension Plan
membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits and terminated
employees entitled to benefits, but

not yet receiving them $ 2,151
Current employees:

Vested 1,395

Nonvested 270

Total current employees 1,665

Total membership $ 3,816

The Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Retirement
benefits vest after five years of credited service. Employees who retire at or after age 65 are entitled
to receive an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly, in an amount equal to the greater of:

o 1.25% of the first $6,600 of Final Average Earnings plus 1.75% of the excess of Final Average
Earnings over $6,600, times years of credited service, with a maximum of 60% of the highest
annual earnings during the last 10 years of credited service, or

. 2% of total earnings received during the period of credited service plus 22.5% of the first
$1,200 annual amount, applicable only to participants who were employees on or prior to
March 24, 1967.

Final Average Earnings are the employee’s average pay, over the highest five years of the last
ten years of credited service. Employees with 15 years of credited service may retire at or after
age 55 and receive a reduced retirement benefit. Employees with 30 years of service may retire
without penalty for reduced age.

Covered employees are not required to contribute to the Pension Plan. The Company is required by
statute to contribute the amounts necessary to fund the Pension Plan. Benefit and contribution
provisions are established by City ordinance and may be amended only as allowed by City
ordinance.

The City issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Pension Plan. The report may be obtained by writing to the
Director of Finance of the City.
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Annual Pension Cost, Contributions Required, and Contributions Made

Amortization
of the
Normal underfunded
cost balance Contributions
Fiscal year:

2008 $ 8,085,000 6,173,000 14,258,000
2007 7,693,000 7,524,000 15,217,000
2006 7,617,000 9,946,000 17,563,000

Withdrawals from pension assets of $18,564,000 and $16,776,000 in FY 2008 and FY 2007,
respectively, were utilized to meet beneficiary payment obligations.

The Company’s annual pension cost is equal to its annual required contribution (ARC). The ARCs
were determined based on an actuarial study, or updates thereto, using the projected unit credit
method. Significant actuarial assumptions used for the above valuation include a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets of 8.25% per year compounded annually; projected salary
increases of 3.0% of the salary at the beginning of the next three years, then 4.25% of the salary at
the beginning of the fourth and subsequent year; and retirements that are assumed to occur prior to
age 62, at a rate of 10.0% at ages 55 to 61 and 100% at age 62. The assumptions did not include
postretirement benefit increases. These actuarial assumptions are consistent with the prior fiscal year.

The actuarial asset value is equal to the value of the fund assets as reported by the City with no
adjustments. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 10 years.

The Pension Plan funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to
accumulate assets to pay benefits when due. Level percentages of payroll employer contribution
rates are determined using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial funding method. The Pension Plan had
an actuarial value of assets of $416,183,000 and an actuarial accrued liability of $482,380,000
resulting in a funded ratio of 86.28% based on a biennial actuarial valuation of the pension fund as of
September 1, 2007. The resulting unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $66,197,000 was 62.69% of
covered payroll of $105,596,000.

Historical Trend Information (Unaudited)

Historical trend information reflecting funding progress and contributions made by the Company is
presented in the supplemental schedule of pension funding progress (unaudited).
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(11) Other Postemployment Benefits

(@)

(b)

Plan Description

The Company sponsors a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan and provides
postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefits to approximately 1,920 and 1,935
participating retirees and their beneficiaries and dependents for FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively,
in accordance with their retiree medical program. The Company also provides such benefits to
approximately 1,699 and 1,720 active employees and their dependents for FY 2008 and FY 2007,
respectively, by charging the annual insurance premiums to expense. The annual covered payroll
(which was substantially equal to total payroll) was $105,596,000 and $106,018,000 at August 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company pays 100.0% of premiums for basic medical, hospitalization, and prescription drugs
incurred by retirees and their dependents. The Company also pays a portion of the premium for life
insurance for each eligible retiree. Currently, the Company provides for the cost of healthcare and
life insurance benefits for retirees and their beneficiaries on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Total expense incurred for healthcare amounted to $34,226,000 and $36,111,000 in FY 2008 and
FY 2007, respectively, of which approximately 48.1% and 52.0%, respectively, represents payments
on behalf of retired employees and their dependents. Employees and retirees contributed $1,477,000
and $1,470,000 in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively, towards their healthcare. These contributions
represent the additional cost of healthcare plans chosen by employees and retirees above the basic
plan offered by the Company. Total premiums for group life insurance were $2,103,000 and
$2,080,000 in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively. The amount attributed to retirees was
approximately 71.0% and 76.3% in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively. The contribution
requirements of nonunion plan members are established by management and may be amended. The
contribution requirements for union plan members are subject to collective bargaining.

The Plan does not issue a stand-alone report and therefore the Company has included the schedule of
employer contributions as a supplemental schedule (unaudited).

Actuarial Valuation and Assumptions

The Company engaged an actuarial consulting firm to provide an actuarial valuation of the
Company’s OPEB obligations as of August 31, 2007. The actuarial valuations involve estimates of
the value of reported amounts and the assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision, as actual results are compared to
past expectations, and new estimates are made about the future. The calculations were based on the
types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the time of the valuation.

The projected unit cost method was utilized in the valuation to develop the actuarial accrued liability
and normal cost. Under the projected unit cost method, the present value of benefits is allocated
uniformly over the employee’s expected working lifetime. The actuarial accrued liability is that
portion of the present value of projected benefits, which has been accrued during the employee’s
working lifetime from hire to valuation date. The normal cost represents the amount charged for
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services earned during the current reporting period. The normal cost is calculated by dividing the
present value of projected benefits for an employee by the total service.

The valuation was prepared utilizing certain assumptions, including the following:

L Economic assumptions — the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates

The report utilized a 5.0% discount rate for purposes of developing the liabilities and ARC on
the basis that the Plan would not be funded. This rate is based on the investment return
expected on the Company’s general investments, because the Company has not funded the

Plan for FY 2008. ’
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
Medical Prescription Dental

Year:
1 10.0% 10.0% 4.5%
2 9.0 9.0 4.5
3 8.0 8.0 4.5
4 7.0 7.0 4.5
5 6.0 6.0 4.5
6 5.0 5.0 » 4.5
7 4.5 4.5 4.5
8 and beyond 4.5 4.5 4.5

. Benefit assumptions — the initial per capita cost rates for medical coverage, and the face

amount of Company-paid life insurance

U Demographic assumptions — including the probabilities of retiring, dying, terminating (without
a benefit), becoming disabled, recovery from disability, election (participation rates), and
coverage levels '

Annual Postemployment Benefit Cost, Contributions Required, and Contributions Made

The ARC for FY 2008 is estimated to be $44,114,000 which is also the annual OPEB cost. The
amount paid by the Company for retiree benefits in FY 2008 was $18,280,000, consisting of
$16,788,000 of healthcare expenses and $1,492,000 of life insurance expenses. The difference
between the ARC and the expenses paid resulted in an increase in the OPEB liability of $25,834,000.
This amount has been recorded in other liabilities and deferred credits and has been expensed in
FY 2008.

As of August 31, 2008, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $591,599,000, all of which
was unfunded and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was
560.3%. Historical trend information reflecting funding progress and contributions made by the
Company is presented in the Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits Funding Progress
(unaudited).
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(d)  Other Coverage Information

Also, the Company has entered into several one-year contracts to provide healthcare for both active
and retired employees that are experience rated, and premiums are adjusted annually; in addition, the
Company has in place approximately $161,320,000 of group life insurance coverage for both active
and retired employees, which is retrospectively rated on a monthly basis. The Company also has in
place approximately $120,807,000 of accidental death and dismemberment insurance coverage for
active employees.

Pollution Remediation

Total pollution remediation obligations at August 31, 2008 are $21,600,000, which reflect the
implementation of GASB 49 as described in note 1(t). The Company’s prior year liability was $13,349,000
as measured prior to the implementation of the effective cash flow method under GASB 49.

Risk Management

The Company is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. While self insured for many risks,
the Company purchases insurance coverage where appropriate. The Company’s real and personal property
is insured against the risk of loss or damage in the amount of $250,000,000, subject to a $500,000 per
accident deductible at the Richmond and Passyunk Plants and a $100,000 deductible per accident at all
other locations. There are separate sublimits for flood and earth movement at select locations. The
Company’s Property Insurance includes coverage for damage incurred from a terrorist attack. In addition,
the Company maintains boiler and machinery, blanket crime, and other forms of property insurance.

The Company maintained $210,000,000 in liability (including terrorism) coverage, insuring against the
risk of damage or injury to the public with a per occurrence self insured retention of $500,000; however,
effective September 1, 2007, the self insured retention was increased to $1,000,000.

The Company maintains statutory limits for Workers’ Compensation (including terrorism) with a $500,000
per occurrence self insured retention.

The Company maintains a $10,000,000 Public Officials Liability (Dlrectors and Officers Liability) policy
with a $500,000 retention.

Claims and settlement activity for occurrences excluded under the provisions of insurance policies for
injuries and damages are as follows (thousands of dollars):

Current year Current
Beginning of  claims and Claims End of year liability
year reserve  adjustments settled reserve amount
Fiscal year ended August 31: '
2008 3 8,468 7,757 (2,691) 13,534 7,456
2007 8,059 3,367 (2,958) 8,468 5,357
2006 8,510 2,808 (3,259) 8,059 4,159
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Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments for major construction and maintenance contracts were approximately $8,727,000 as of
August 31, 2008.

The Company is committed under various noncancelable operating lease agreements to pay minimum
annual rentals as follows (thousands of dollars):

Fiscal year ending August 31:

2009 $ 440
2010 79
2011 42
2012 6

Rent expense for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to $910,000 and $932,000,
respectively.

The Company, in the normal course of conducting business, has entered into long-term contracts for the
supply of natural gas, firm transportation, and long-term firm gas storage service. The Company’s
cumulative obligations for demand charges for all of these services are approximately $5,100,000 per
month.

The Company has entered into seasonal contracts with suppliers providing the Company the ability to fix
the price of the purchase of natural gas during the period from November 1, 2008 through March 31, 2009.

The Company’s FY 2009 Capital Budget was approved by City Council in the amount of $71,956,000.
Within this approval, funding is provided to continue the implementation of an 18-mile Cast Iron Main
Replacement Program. Main replacement cost for this program in FY 2009 is expected to be $15,606,000.
The total six-year cost of the Cast Iron Mam Replacement Program is forecasted to be approximately
$99,256,000.

The FY 2009 Capital Budget also includes $2,486,000 for the purchase of replacement Automatic Meter
Reading (AMR) units. The total six-year cost of this program to replace AMR units is approximately
$7,889,000.

Subsequent Events
(@) Commercial Paper

As discussed in note 6, $90,000,000 of commercial paper was outstanding at August 31, 2008.
Subsequent to year-end, all outstanding commercial paper matured, and additional commercial paper
was issued. As of December 18, 2008, $148,000,000 of commercial paper was outstanding which
matures on February 12, February 13 and March 12, 2009.

50 (Continued)



()

(9]

(d)

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Emergency Rate Relief

As discussed in note 1(d), in November 2008 the Company filed for an extraordinary or emergency
base rate increase of approximately $60,000,000 or 5.2% and simultaneously requested an
$85,000,000 or 7.4% decrease in the GCR for a net 2.2% overall rate decrease of $25,000,0000. On
December 18, 2008, the PUC issued its decision approving a base rate increase of $60,000,000 or
5.2% and a decrease in the GCR of $107,000,000 for a net decrease in rates of $47,000,000 or 4.2%.
These rates are effective as of January 1, 2009.

Sixth Series Bonds

As discussed in note 8(b), as of December 18, 2008, $271,370,000 of the Sixth Series Bonds are held
by the providers of the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement as bank bonds. The providers of the
Standby Bond Purchase Agreement continue, on a weekly basis, to remarket the bonds in accordance
with the bond authorization. The Standby Bond Purchase Agreement expires on January 26, 2009. If
the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement is not renewed, and no substitute liquidity facility is
provided, any bank bonds held at that time will be amortized in ten payments payable the first
business day of July and the first business day of December for the next five years. The Company
has therefore recorded as current debt at August 31, 2008 one tenth of the outstanding Sixth
Series Bonds as of August 31, including $1,900,000 due to mature in 2009 under the original
amortization schedule and an additional $29,300,000 for a total of $31,200,000.

Swap — Sixth Series Bonds

As discussed in note 8(c), the City entered into a swap related to the Sixth Series Bonds. The fair
value of the interest rate swap as of December 18, 2008 was negative $72,600,000. This means that
the Company would have to pay this amount to terminate the swap. Per the swap agreement, the
refunding or defeasance of the Sixth Series Bonds, in whole or in part, without the prior written
consent of both the counterparty and the insurer, may constitute an event of termination unless
certain conditions are met.

Additionally, note 8 identifies a termination risk related to the interest rate swap agreement if
the Company’s bond rating falls below Baa2 or BBB (Moody’s/S&P). Because the City’s swap
payments are insured by FSA as long as FSA is rated at or above A2 or A (Moody’s/S&P)
the termination event based on the City’s rating is stayed. Neither the Company’s credit rating
nor FSA’s credit rating has declined below the levels required in the agreement as of
December 18, 2008.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Pension Funding Progress

(Thousands of dollars)
(b) (b)ya)
(a) Actuarial Unfunded UAAL (OAAL)
Actuarial accrued (overfunded) (a/b) as a percent
Actuarial valuation value of liability AAL Funded Covered of covered
date assets (AAL) (UAAL [OAAL) ratio payroll payroll

September 1, 2003* $356,000 $427,006 $71,006 83.37% $101,200 70.16%
September 1, 2004** 366,783 436,255 69,472 84.08 102,500 67.78
September 1, 2005+ 383,517 450,866 67,349 85.06 102,544 65.68
September 1, 2006++ 411,886 474,250 62,364 86.85 106,018 58.82
September 1, 2007+++ 416,183 482,380 66,197 86.28 105,596 62.69

* The required supplementary information is based on a biennial actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1, -
2003 through August 31, 2004.

** The required supplementary information is based on a biennial actuarial valuation of the pension fund as updated for the plan year
September 1, 2004 through August 31, 2005.

+ The required supplementary information is based on a biennial actuarial valuation of the pension find for the plan year September 1,
2005 through August 31, 2006.

+4 The required supplementary information is based on a biennial actuarial valuation of the pension fund as updated for the plan year
September 1, 2006 through August 31, 2007.

++ The required supplementary information is based on a biennial actuarial valuation of the pension fund for the plan year September 1,
2007 through August 31, 2008.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits Funding Progress

{Thousands of dollars)
(b) (b)-(a)
(a) Actuarial Unfunded UAAL (OAAL)

Actuarial accrued (overfunded) (a/b) as a percent

Actuarial valuation ~value of liability AAL Funded Covered of covered

date assets (AAL) (UAAL [OAAL)) ratio payroil payroll

August 31, 2007 — $573,734 $573,734 — $106,018 541.17%

August 31,2008 — 591,599 591,599 — 105,596 560.25

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits Employer Contributions

(Thousands of dollars)
Annual
required Percentage
Year-end contribution contributed
August 31, 2007 $ 45,237 41.60%
44,114 41.44

August 31, 2008

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Supplemental Statements of Net Assets (City Format)

Assets:

Cash on deposit and on hold
Equity in pooled cash and investments
Equity in treasurer’s account
Investments

Internal balances

Amounts held by fiscal agent
Notes receivable

Taxes receivable

Accounts receivable — net
Interest and dividends receivable
Due from other governments
Restricted assets

Inventories

Unamortized loss and discount
Other assets

Property, plant, and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Liabilities:

Notes payable

Vouchers and accounts payable

Salaries and wages payable

Accrued expenses

Funds held in escrow

Due to other governments

Deferred revenue

Current portion of long-term obligations
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations
Unamortized gain and premium

Total liabilities

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt service
Community development projects
Behavioral health programs
Intergovernmental financing
Emergency phone system
Rate stabilization
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.

August 31, 2008 and 2007
(Thousands of dollars)

2008 2007
$ 49,332 51,692
6 6

— 43

99,304 88,570
219,788 277,139
187,539 147,770
52,852 58,818
63,699 55,982
1,732,562 1,681,313
(670,467) (640,940)

$ . 1,734,615 1,720,398
$ 90,000 94,600
67,508 60,615

3,430 2,797
107,484 67,425
31,641 20,411
73,942 41,830
1,103,827 1,176,368
30,375 33,051

$ 1,508,207 1,497,097
$ (4,466) (5,690)
108,581 105,005
122,293 123,986

$ 226,408 223,301
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Supplemental Statements of Activities (City Format)
Years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007

(Thousands of dollars)
August 31, 2008
Operating Capital
Charges for grants and grants and
Expenses services contributions contributions Total

Gas services $ (740,819) 840,035 25,324* — 124,540
Interest on debt (56,075) — — — (56,075)
Unallocated depreciation (39,524) —_ — — (39,524)
Other postemployment

benefits (25,834) — — — (25,834)

Total $ (862,252) 840,035 25,324* — 3,107
* Includes $15,732 of interest and other income and $9,592 of other operating revenues.
August 31, 2007
Operating Capital
Charges for grants and grants and
Expenses services contributions contributions Total

Gas services $ (773,581) . 849,503 22,921* — 98,843
Interest on debt (52,146) — — — (52,146)
Unallocated depreciation (36,380) — — — (36,380)
Other postemployment

benefits (26,421) — — — (26,421)

Total $ (888,528) 849,503 22,921* — (16,104)

* Includes $13,073 of interest and other income and $9,848 of other operating revenues.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Supplemental Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets (City Format)
Years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007
(Thousands of dollars)

2008 2007

Operating revenues: ,
Charges for goods and services $ 831,428 840,105
Sales of land and improvements — -
Rentals and concessions

Miscellaneous operating revenues 18,199 19,246
Total operating revenues 849,627 859,351
Operating expenses:
Personal services 73,351 74,054
Purchase of services 75,640 76,299
Material and supplies 6,216 4,290
Employee benefits 41,488 41,863
Indemnities and taxes — —
Depreciation and amortization 42,868 39,708
Cost of goods sold 511,976 539,300
Other — —
Total operating expenses : 751,539 775,514
Operating income 98,088 83,837
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Operating grants —_ _
Passenger facility charges — —
Other income 1,834 1,262
Interest income 13,897 11,811
Debt service — interest (56,075) (52,146)
Other expenses (54,637) (60,868)
Total nonoperating expenses (94,981) (99,941)
Income (loss) before transfers 3,107 (16,104)
Transfer in 18,000 18,000
Transfer out . (18,000) (18,000)
Capital contributions — i
Change in net assets 3,107 (16,104)
Net assets — beginning of year 223,301 239,405
Net assets — end of year $ 226,408 223,301

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Supplemental Schedule of Interfund Transfers
Year ended August 31, 2008

(Thousands of dollars)
Due to the City, September 1, 2007 - $ 3,000
Accrued distributions 18,000
Payments to the City (18,000)
Due to the City, August 31, 2008 h) 3,000

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Philadelphia Gas Works’ Base Rate Filing

II. RATE OF RETURN

II.A.4. Provide latest Prospectus (Company and Parent).

RESPONSE:
The latest bond prospectus dated August 13, 2009 is attached.

Book 1:
$58,285,000
CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA
GAS WORKS REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
EIGHTH SERIES A
(1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE)

Book 2:
$255,000,000
CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA
GAS WORKS REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
EIGHTH SERIES
(1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE)
CONSISTING OF:

$105,000,000 $50,000,000
GAS WORKS REVENUE GAS WORKS REVENUE
REFUNDING BONDS REFUNDING BONDS
EIGHTH SERIES B EIGHTH SERIES C
(1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE); (1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE);

$50,000,000 $50,000,000
GAS WORKS REVENUE GAS WORKS REVENUE
REFUNDING BONDS REFUNDING BONDS
EIGHTH SERIES D EIGHTH SERIES E
(1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE); (1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE)



New Issue (See “RATINGS” herein)
Book-Entry Only

In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, under existing statutes, requlations, rulings, and court decisions, assuming that the City
complies with covenants relating to certain requivements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, interest on the Bonds will not
be includible in the gross income of the holders thereof for federal income tax purposes, is exempt from individual and corporate federal
alternative minimum tax (“AMT”), and is not includible in adjusted current earnings for purposes of corporate AMT. Under the laws
of the Commonawealth of Pennsylvania, as enacted and construed on the date hereof, interest on the Bonds is exempt from Pennsylvania
personal income tax and the Bonds are exempt from Pennsylvania personal property taxes. See “TAX MATTERS” herein.

$58,285,000
CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA
GAS WORKS REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
EIGHTH SERIES A
(1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE)

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: August 1, as shown on the inside cover page

The City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds, Eighth Series A (1998 General Ordinance) in the original aggregate
principal amount of $58,285,000 (the “Eighth Series A Bonds” or the “Bonds™) are issued pursuant to the Act, the 1998 General Ordinance, the
Ninth Supplemental Ordinance and the Bond Authorization (as such terms are defined herein). The Bonds are issuable as fully registered bonds in
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, and will mature in the aggregate principal amounts and bear interest at the rates set forth on
the inside cover hereof. The Bonds, when issued, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as registered owner and nominee of The Depository
Trust Company (“DTC”), which will act as securities depository for the Bonds. Purchases of the beneficial ownership interests in the Bonds will be
made in book-entry only form. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds during the period in which
Cede & Co. is the owner of the Bonds, as nominee of DTC. References herein to the bondholders, Holders and registered owners shall mean Cede &
Co., as aforesaid, and shall not mean the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. See “DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS — Book-Entry Only System.”

The principal of the Bonds is payable at the corporate trust office of U.S. Bank National Association, as Fiscal Agent and Sinking Fund Depository
for the Bonds (the “Fiscal Agent”), in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, at the times and in the amounts set forth herein. Interest on the Bonds is payable
semiannually on: (i) each August 1 and February 1, commencing February 1, 2010 by check mailed by the Fiscal Agent to the persons in whose names
the Bonds are registered on the fifteenth day of the month preceding such interest payment date. So long as DTC or its nominee, Cede & Co., is the
registered owner of the Bonds, principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable directly to Cede & Co. for redistribution to Participants and in turn
to Beneficial Owners as described herein. For so long as any purchaser is the Beneficial Owner of Bonds, such purchaser must maintain an account
with a broker or dealer who is, or acts through, a Participant to receive payment of the principal of and interest on such Bonds.

The Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.

THE BONDS DO NOT PLEDGE THE CREDIT OR TAXING POWER OF THE CITY OF PHILADELPHIA (“CITY”) OR CREATE ANY DEBT
OR CHARGE AGAINST THE TAX OR GENERAL REVENUES OF THE CITY OR CREATE A LIEN AGAINST ANY CITY PROPERTY OTHER THAN
CERTAIN REVENUES AND FUNDS OF THE PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS (“PGW” OR “GAS WORKS”) REFERRED TO HEREIN.

THE BONDS SHALL BE ISSUED ON A PARITY WITH OTHER SENIOR 1998 ORDINANCE BONDS ISSUED UNDER THE 1998 GENERAL
ORDINANCE BUT SHALL BE SUBORDINATED IN RIGHT OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY TO ALL BONDS ISSUED AND OUTSTANDING UNDER
THE 1975 GENERAL ORDINANCE (AS DEFINED HEREIN), AS DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

The proceeds of the Bonds, together with other available monies and proceeds of the Variable Rate Bonds (as hereinafter defined), are being
used for the purpose of providing funds for any or all of the following purposes: (i) the current refunding of all of the outstanding City of Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, Gas Works Revenue Bonds (1998 General Ordinance) Sixth Series (the “Refunded Bonds™); (ii) paying the costs of terminating a portion
of the Swap Agreement (as such term is defined herein) for the Refunded Bonds; and (iii) paying the costs of issuing the Bonds and the Variable Rate
Bonds and any required deposits to the Sinking Fund Reserve established under the 1998 General Ordinance (collectively, the “2009 Project”).

On the date of issuance of the Bonds (the “Issue Date™), the City expects to issue four additional series of parity Gas Works Revenue Bonds
(1998 General Ordinance): its Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds Eighth Series B (1998 General Ordinance) (the “Eighth Series B Bonds”), its Gas
Works Revenue Refunding Bonds Eighth Series C (1998 General Ordinance) (the “Eighth Series C Bonds”), its Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds
Eighth Series D (1998 General Ordinance) (the “Eighth Series D Bonds”) and its Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds Eighth Series E (1998 General
Ordinance) (the “Eighth Series E Bonds” together with the Eighth Series B Bonds, the Eighth Series C Bonds and the Eighth Series D Bonds, the
“Variable Rate Bonds”), the proceeds of which, together with other available monies and the proceeds of the Eighth Series A Bonds, will be applied to
fund the 2009 Project. Upon the issuance of the Bonds and the Variable Rate Bonds, the Refunded Bonds will no longer be Outstanding. The issuance
and delivery of the Bonds is conditioned on the issuance and delivery of the Variable Rate Bonds on the Issue Date.

The Variable Rate Bonds will be offered pursuant to a separate Official Statement and will be sold, on the same date as the Bonds,
by the City pursuant to separate bond purchase agreements. This Official Statement only provides information with respect to the
Eighth Series A Bonds.

THE COVER PAGE CONTAINS CERTAIN INFORMATION FOR QUICK REFERENCE ONLY. IT IS NOT A SUMMARY OF THIS
ISSUE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MUST READ THE ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT TO OBTAIN INFORMATION ESSENTIAL TO
MAKING AN INFORMED INVESTMENT DECISION.

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued and accepted by the Underwriters, subject to the prior sale, withdrawal, or modification of the
offer without notice, and subject to the approval as to the legality of the issuance of the Bonds by Blank Rome LLP and Andre C. Dasent, P.C.,
Co-Bond Counsel, both of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Saul Ewing LLP and Kelly,
Monaco and Naples, LLP both of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, Co-Counsel to the Underwriters. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the City
of Philadelphia by the City of Philadelphia Law Department. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for Philadelphia Gas Works by the Office of
General Counsel of the Philadelphia Gas Works and by Eckert Seamans Cherin and Mellott, LLC of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. It is anticipated that the
Bonds will be available for delivery through the facilities of DTC in New York, New York on or about August 20, 2009.

GOLDMAN, SACHS & CO.
BARCLAYS CAPITAL LOOP CAPITAL MERRILL LYNCH & CO.
Ramirez & Co., Inc. Siebert Brandford Shank & Co., LLC Wells Fargo Securities

Dated: August 13, 2009



MATURITY SCHEDULE

$58,285,000
City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds
Eighth Series A
(1998 General Ordinance)
Consisting of:

Due
(August 1) Amount Interest Rate Yield CUSIP No.*

2010 $ 1,595,000 4.00% 2.85% 717823 2V9
2011 1,635,000 4.00 3.27 717823 2W7
2012 1,705,000 5.00 3.65 717823 2X5
2013 5,315,000 5.00 4.13 717823 2Y3
2014 10,130,000 5.00 4.63 717823 2Z0
2015 13,770,000 5.00 4.88 717823 3A4
2016 12,295,000 5.00 5.10 717823 3B2
2017 11,840,000 525 5.28 717823 3C0

Registered trademark of American Bankers Association. CUSIP numbers are provided by Standard & Poor’s, CUSIP Service Bureau, a division of the
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. The CUSIP numbers listed above are being provided solely for the convenience of Bondholders only at the time of issuance of
the Bonds and the City does not make any representation with respect to such numbers or undertake any responsibility for their accuracy now or at any time in
the future. The CUSIP number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the issuance of the Bonds as a result of various subsequent actions
including. but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part of such maturity or as a result of the procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other
similar enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities of the Bonds.
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IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS AT A
LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH
STABILIZING, [F COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.

THE ORDER AND PLACEMENT OF MATERIALS IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, INCLUDING
THE APPENDICES, ARE NOT TO BE DEEMED TO BE A DETERMINATION OF RELEVANCE,
MATERIALITY OR IMPORTANCE, AND THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, INCLUDING THE APPENDICES,
MUST BE CONSIDERED IN ITS ENTIRETY. THE OFFERING OF THE BONDS IS MADE ONLY BY
MEANS OF THIS ENTIRE OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the City, PGW or the Underwriters to
give any information or to make any representations, other than those contained in this Official Statement and, if
given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any
of the foregoing. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor
shall there be any sale of the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to make such offer,
solicitation or sale. The information set forth herein has been obtained from PGW and other sources which are
believed to be reliable, but, as to information from other sources, is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness
by PGW. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the
delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of PGW or with respect to other matters set forth herein since
the date hereof or the date as of which particular information is given, if earlier.

The Underwriters have provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement. The
Underwriters have reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with and as part of their
responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this
transaction, but the Underwriters do not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. The
information and the opinions expressed herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this
Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has
been no change in the operations of the Philadelphia Gas Works or the City of Philadelphia since the date hereof, or
as to the information under "PGW BUDGET, RATES AND FINANCES - Fiscal Years 2007 and 2008 Operating
Budgets," since August 31, 2008.

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds. All
summaries of statutes and documents are made subject 1o the complete text of such statutes and documents,
respectively, and do not purport to be complete statements of any or all of such provisions.

This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the Eighth Series A Bonds referred to
herein and may not be reproduced or be used, as a whole or in part, for any other purpose.

The Bonds have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance upon
an exemption contained therein, and have not been registered or qualified under the securities laws of any
state.

THE BONDS HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES
COMMISSION OR REGULATORY AUTHORITY.

"on "on

If and when included in this Official Statement, the words "expects," "forecasts,” "projects,” "outlook,"
"intends," "anticipates," "estimates,” "assumes,” and analogous expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements and any such statements inherently are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those that have been projected. Such risks and uncertainties that could affect
the revenues and obligations of PGW include, among others, changes in economic conditions, mandates from
regulatory authorities, lack of approval, in whole or in part, of requests by PGW from regulatory authorities and
conditions and circumstances, many of which are beyond the control of PGW. Such forward-looking statements
speak only as of the date of this Official Statement. The City disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release
publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement contained herein or to reflect any changes in



PGW's expressions with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such
statement is based.

This Official Statement speaks only as of the date printed on the cover page hereof. The information
contained herein is subject to change. The Official Statement will be made available through the Electronic
Municipal Market Access System ("EMMA"), which, effective July 1, 2009, is the sole Nationally Recognized
Municipal Securities Information Repository.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

$58,285,000
CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA
GAS WORKS REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS
EIGHTH SERIES A
(1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE)

INTRODUCTION
General

This Official Statement, including the cover page, inside front cover page, table of contents, tables and
appendices, sets forth information with respect to the issuance by the City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (the "City")
of $58,285,000 aggregate principal amount of its Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds, Eighth Series A (1998
General Ordinance) (the "Eighth Series A Bonds" or the "Bonds"). The Bonds are being issued as Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds, as defined in this Official Statement, pursuant to (i) the First Class City Revenue Bond Act of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Act No. 234, approved October 18, 1972, P.L. 955 (the "Act"), (ii) the General
Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1998, approved on May 30, 1998, Bill No. 980232, as amended and
supplemented from time to time and, in particular, as supplemented by the Ninth Supplemental Ordinance, approved
June 3, 2009, Bill No. 090322 (the “Ninth Supplemental Ordinance”) (collectively, the "1998 General Ordinance")
and (iii) the Bond Authorization adopted by the Bond Committee of the City (consisting of the Mayor, City Solicitor
and City Controlier and acting by a majority thereof) on August 13, 2009 (the “Bond Authorization”).

The Bonds shall be issued on a parity with other Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds issued under the 1998
General Ordinance but shall be subordinated in right of payment and security to all bonds issued and outstanding
under the General Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1975, approved on May 30, 1975, Bill No. 1871, as
amended and supplemented from time to time (the "1975 General Ordinance" and, together with the 1998 General
Ordinance, the "General Ordinances"), as described herein. The Bonds shall also be issued on a parity with the
obligation of the City to make periodic payments (but not termination payments) due under any Qualified Swaps (as
defined in the 1998 General Ordinance) including the Qualified Swap in the notional amount of $311,615,000 (the
"Swap Agreement") between the City and JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association entered into in connection
with $313,390,000 City of Philadelphia Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Sixth Series (1998 General Ordinance),
provided, however, the Qualified Swap Provider shall have no lien on and security interest in the Sinking Fund or
the Sinking Fund Reserve. In connection and concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds, a portion of the Swap
Agreement related to the Sixth Series Bonds will be terminated. Upon the issuance of the Eighth Series B Bonds,
Eighth Series C Bonds, Eighth Series D Bonds and Eighth Series E Bonds (herein defined), portions of the Swap
Agreement in notional amounts equal to the principal amounts of the Eighth Series B Bonds, the Eighth Series C
Bonds, the Eighth Series D Bonds and Eighth Series E Bonds, respectively, will be related to the Eighth Series B
Bonds, Eighth Series C Bonds, Eighth Series D Bonds and Eighth Series E Bonds, as more fully described below
under "INTRODUCTION - Interest Rate Swap Agreement." Upon the issuance of the Eighth Series A Bonds,
Eighth Series B Bonds, Eighth Series C Bonds, Eighth Series D Bonds and Eighth Series E Bonds, the Swap
Agreement will remain outstanding with $105,000,000 notional amount related to the Eighth Series B Bonds,
$50,000,000 notional amount related to the Eighth Series C Bonds, $50,000,000 notional amount related to the
Eighth Series D Bonds and $50,000,000 notional amount related to the Eighth Series E Bonds.

The pledge of Gas Works Revenues (as defined in the 1998 General Ordinance) to secure the Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds issued under the 1998 General Ordinance (including the Bonds) is at all times subject and
subordinate to the pledge of Project Revenues (as defined in the 1975 General Ordinance) under the 1975 General
Ordinance securing the 1975 Ordinance Bonds.

The City’s fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30 of the following calendar year. The term
"Fiscal Year" when followed by a year and used in connection with the City refers to the fiscal year of the City
. ending June 30 of that year. For example, "Fiscal Year 2009" when used in connection with the City refers to the



fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. The fiscal year of the Philadelphia Gas Works ("PGW" or the "Gas Works")
begins on September 1 and ends on August 31 of the following calendar year. The term "Fiscal Year" when
followed by a year and used in connection with the Gas Works refers to the fiscal year of the Gas Works ending
August 31 of that year. For example, "Fiscal Year 2009" when used in connection with PGW refers to the fiscal
year ending August 31, 2009. Certain capitalized terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined
are defined in APPENDIX D - "Summaries of the Act and Legislation Authorizing the Issuance of the Bonds."

This introduction is a brief description of certain matters described in this Official Statement and is
qualified by reference to the entire Official Statement. Prospective purchasers of any of the Bonds should read this
Official Statement, including the cover page, inside front cover page, table of contents, tables and appendices, in its
entirety. The information contained herein is subject to change. All estimates and assumptions of financial and
other information are based on information currently available, are believed to be reasonable and are not to be
construed as assurances of actual outcomes.

If and when included in this Official Statement, the words "expects," “forecasts,” "projects,” "outlook,"
“intends," "anticipates," "estimates,” "assumes," and analogous expressions are intended to identify forward-looking
statements and any such statements inherently are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those that have been projected. Such risks and uncertainties that could affect
the revenues and obligations of PGW include, among others, changes in economic conditions, mandates from
regulatory authorities, lack of approval, in whole or in part, of requests by PGW from regulatory authorities and
conditions and circumstances, many of which are beyond the control of PGW. Such forward-looking statements
speak only as of the date of this Official Statement. The City disclaims any obligation or undertaking to release
publicly any updates or revisions to any forward-looking statement coniained herein or to reflect any changes in
PGW’s expressions with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or circumstances on which any such
statement is based.

The Philadelphia Gas Works

The Gas Works presently consists of real and personal property owned by the City and used for the
acquisition, manufacture, storage, processing and distribution of natural gas within the City, and all property, books
and records employed and maintained in connection with the operation, maintenance and administration thereof.
See "PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS" herein.

PGW serves the entire 129 square mile area contained within the boundaries of the City and is the
distributor and principal supplier of natural gas in the City. PGW has no distribution mains and provides no service
to customers outside the City limits. As of March 31, 2009, PGW served approximately 518,000 customers.

The Philadelphia Home Rule Charter provides for a Gas Commission (the "Gas Commission”) to be
constituted and appointed in accordance with the provisions of contracts between the City and the operator of PGW
as may from time to time be in effect, or, in the absence of a contract, as may be provided by ordinance. For details
of the Gas Commission’s various responsibilities and oversight of the operations of PGW, see "CITY
GOVERNMENTAL OVERSIGHT — Gas Commission” herein.

Since January 1, 1973, PGW has been managed by the Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation
("PFMC"), a not-for-profit corporation, pursuant to an agreement between the City and PFMC dated December 29,
1972, as amended, authorized by ordinances of City Council (the "Management Agreement”).  See
"PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Management Agreement."

Rates and charges of PGW are fixed by the Public Utility Commission of the Commonwealth (the "PUC").
The PUC has acknowledged that it is obligated to establish rates that permit PGW to meet all of its bond ordinance
covenants in the General Ordinances. See "PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS - Effects of the Natural Gas Choice
and Competition Act" and "PGW BUDGET, RATES AND FINANCES" herein for a further discussion of PGW’s
budget process and recent rate proceedings.



PGW’s Basic Financial Statements and Supplementary Information as of and for the years ended
August 31, 2008 and 2007 (with Independent Auditor's Report thereon) are presented in APPENDIX A. For certain
information regarding the government of and fiscal affairs of the City, see APPENDIX C - "Certain Information
Concerning the City of Philadelphia.”

Prior Issues of Gas Works Revenue Bonds

Since 1975, the City has issued nineteen (19) separate series of Gas Works Revenue Bonds -and one
Revenue Bond Anticipation Note (collectively, together with any bonds issued under the 1975 General Ordinance to
refund any such bonds, the "1975 Ordinance Bonds™), all pursuant to the Act and the 1975 General Ordinance. As
of March 31, 2009, $263,053,000 aggregate principal amount of 1975 Ordinance Bonds remained outstanding. The
1975 Ordinance Bonds were all issued on a parity basis and share equally and ratably in the pledge of revenues
provided for in the 1975 General Ordinance. In the 1975 General Ordinance, the City has, for the security and
payment of all 1975 Ordinance Bonds issued under the 1975 General Ordinance, granted a security interest in all
rents, rates and charges imposed or charged by the City upon the owners or occupants of properties connected to,
and upon all users of, gas distributed by the Gas Works and all other revenues derived therefrom (the "Project
Revenues," as such term is defined in the 1975 General Ordinance), and all accounts, contract rights and general
intangibles related thereto and all proceeds of the foregoing. The 1975 Ordinance Bonds are secured solely by
monies derived, directly or indirectly, from PGW’s Project Revenues as provided in the Act and the 1975 General
Ordinance, as amended and supplemented. 1975 Ordinance Bonds of all series issued or to be issued are issued on a
parity basis and share equally and ratably in the pledge or Project Revenues provided for in the 1975 General
Ordinance.

Pursuant to the 1998 General Ordinance, all 1998 Ordinance Bonds (as defined below) are subordinated in
right of payment and security to the 1975 Ordinance Bonds. 1998 Ordinance Bonds may be issued as Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds ("Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds") or Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds ("Subordinate 1998
Ordinance Bonds"). Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds are all issued on a parity basis and share equally and ratably in
the pledge of revenues provided for in the 1998 General Ordinance. Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds subordinated in
right of payment and security to the 1975 Ordinance Bonds, but are prior in right of payment and security to
Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds are all issued on a parity basis and share
equally and ratably in the pledge of revenues provided for in the 1998 General Ordinance, subject to the prior right
of payment and security of the 1975 Ordinance Bonds and the Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and to payments due to
issuers of Credit Facilities related to Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds. In the 1998 General Ordinance, the City has
pledged for the security and payment of all bonds issued under the 1998 General Ordinance a lien on and security
interest in all Gas Works Revenues (as defined in the 1998 General Ordinance) all accounts, contract rights and
general intangibles representing the Gas Works Revenues and all funds and accounts established under the 1998
General Ordinance. Such lien is subject to the prior pledge and lien on the Project Revenues created by the 1975
General Ordinance for the benefit of the 1975 Ordinance Bonds. Gas Works Revenues and Project Revenues are
treated by PGW as the same revenues and include grants from the City, properly authorized, including, if applicable
and if so authorized, any grant back to PGW of any portion of PGW’s Base Payment to the City. See "SOURCES
OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE BONDS — Priority in Application of Revenues."

Since 1998, the City has issued seven (7) separate series of Gas Works Revenue Bonds (collectively,
together with any bonds heretofore or hereafter issued under the 1998 General Ordinance including the Bonds, the
"1998 Ordinance Bounds") pursuant to the Act and the 1998 General Ordinance. As of March 31, 2009,
$902,420,000 aggregate principal amount of Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and $10,115,000 aggregate principal
amount of Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds were outstanding under the 1998 General Ordinance. In the 1998
General Ordinance, the City covenanted that it would not issue any additional bonds under the 1975 General
Ordinance except to refund outstanding 1975 Ordinance Bonds.

Authorization to Issue the Bonds

The Bonds are being issued as Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds pursuant to the Act, the 1998 General
Ordinance, the Ninth Supplemental Ordinance and the Bond Authorization.



The Bonds

The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery, and will bear interest from such date. Interest on the Bonds
will be payable on each August 1 and February 1, commencing February 1, 2010. The Bonds will be issued as fully
registered bonds in the aggregate principal amount set forth on the inside cover page hereof in denominations of
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The principal of the Bonds will be payable at the corporate trust office of
U.S. Bank National Association (the "Fiscal Agent") in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Interest on the Bonds will be
paid by check mailed by the Fiscal Agent to the person in whose names the Bonds are registered on the fifteenth day
of the month preceding such interest payment date; except in the case of any default by the City in payment of
interest due, interest shall be payable to the persons in whose names the Bonds are registered on a special record
date as determined by the Fiscal Agent. See "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS" herein. Registered Owners of at
least $1,000,000 aggregate principal amount of the Bonds may elect to receive interest payments by wire transfer if
so requested in a written notice provided to the Fiscal Agent not fess than ten (10) days prior to the relevant interest
payment date.

Initially the Bonds will be available in book-entry form only. See "DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS —
Book-Entry Only System" herein.

The Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.
Purpose of the Bonds

The proceeds of the Bonds, together with other available monies and the proceeds of the Variable Bonds
(as hereinafter defined), are being used for the purpose of providing funds for any or all of the following purposes:
(i) the current refunding of all of the outstanding City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, Gas Works Revenue Bonds
(1998 General Ordinance) Sixth Series (the "Refunded Bonds"); (ii) paying the costs of terminating a portion of the
Swap Agreement for the Refunded Bonds; and (iii) paying the costs of issuing the Bonds and the Variable Rate
Bonds and any required deposits to the Sinking Fund Reserve established under the 1998 General Ordinance
(collectively, the "2009 Project").

The proceeds of the Bonds which remain available for the payments of the costs of redemption of the
Refunded Bonds after payment of financing costs and the required deposit into the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund
Reserve will be used on the date of the issuance of the Bonds to redeem a portion of the Outstanding Refunded
Bonds.

Upon the issuance of the Eighth Series A Bonds, Eighth Series B Bonds, Eighth Series C Bonds, Eighth
Series D Bonds and the Eighth Series E Bonds, the Refunded Bonds will no longer be Outstanding.

Additional Expected PGW Financing

On the date of issuance of the Bonds (the "Issue Date"), the City expects to issue four additional series of
parity Gas Works Revenue Bonds (1998 General Ordinance): its Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds Eighth
Series B (1998 General Ordinance) (the "Eighth Series B Bonds"), its Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds Eighth
Series C (1998 General Ordinance) (the "Eighth Series C Bonds"), its Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds Eighth
Series D (1998 General Ordinance) (the "Eighth Series D Bonds") and its Gas Works Revenue Refunding Bonds
Eighth Series E (1998 General Ordinance) (the "Eighth Series E Bonds" together with the Eighth Series B Bonds,
the Eighth Series C Bonds and the Eighth Series D Bonds, are collectively referred to herein as the "Variable Rate
Bonds"). Proceeds of the Variable Rate Bonds, together with other available monies and the proceeds of the Eighth
Series A Bonds, will applied on the Issue Date to the current refunding of the Refunded Bonds, paying the costs of
terminating a portion of the Swap Agreement for the Refunded Bonds and paying the costs of issuing the Variabie
Rate Bonds and the Eighth Series A Bonds and any required deposits to the Sinking Fund Reserve established under
the 1998 General Ordinance. The issuance and delivery of the Bonds is conditioned on the issuance and delivery of
the Variable Rate Bonds on the Issue Date.



The Eighth Series B Bonds, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $105,000,000 will be
secured by an irrevocable, direct pay letter of credit, issued for the benefit of the Eighth Series B Bonds, subject to
certain terms and conditions, by Wachovia Bank, National Association.

The Eighth Series C Bonds, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000 will be
secured by an irrevocable, direct pay letter of credit, issued for the benefit of the Eighth Series C Bonds, subject to
certain terms and conditions, by The Bank of Nova Scotia, acting through its New York Agency.

The Eighth Series D Bonds, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000 will be
secured by an irrevocable, direct pay letter of credit, issued for the benefit of the Eighth Series D Bonds, subject to
certain terms and conditions, by The Bank of America, N.A.

The Eighth Series E Bonds, issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000 will be
secured by an irrevocable, direct pay letter of credit, issued for the benefit of the Eighth Series E Bonds, subject to
certain terms and conditions, by JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association.

The Variable Rate Bonds will be offered pursuant to a separate Official Statement and will be sold
by the City, on the same date as the Bonds, pursuant to separate bond purchase agreements. This Official
Statement provides information only with respect to the Eighth Series A Bonds.

Security for the Bonds

The Bonds are secured solely and payable solely from the Gas Works Revenues as provided in the Act, the
1998 General Ordinance and the Ninth Supplemental Ordinance. Such pledge of Gas Works Revenues is subject
and subordinate to the prior pledge of Project Revenues granted by the 1975 General Ordinance. Neither the general
credit nor the taxing power of the City is pledged to any such payment.

The City has pledged and granted a security interest on a parity basis in all Gas Works Revenues and the
proceeds thereof for security and payment of all 1998 Ordinance Bonds, including the Bonds, and for security and
payment of all periodic payments (but not termination payments) due from the City under any Qualified Agreement
(except that the Swap Provider shall have no right or claim at any time to amounts on deposit in the Sinking Fund or
the Sinking Fund Reserve). The City has covenanted in the Ninth Supplemental Ordinance that, so long as any of
the Bonds shall remain Outstanding, all pledged Gas Works Revenues shall be deposited and held in and disbursed
from one or more unsegregated accounts of PGW. Pursuant to the 1998 General Ordinance, all monies deposited in
the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund (including the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve), are subject to a security
interest in favor of all Holders of 1998 Ordinance Bonds until such monies are properly disbursed. See "SOURCES
OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE BONDS— Pledge of Revenues and Funds" and "REMEDIES OF
BONDHOLDERS" herein. The pledge of the Gas Works Revenues to secure the Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds
issued under the 1998 General Ordinance (including the Bonds) is at all times subject and subordinate to the pledge
of Project Revenues under the 1975 General Ordinance securing the 1975 Ordinance Bonds.

In the 1998 General Ordinance, the City covenants to impose, charge and collect in each Fiscal Year, rates
and charges which, together with all other Gas Works Revenues to be received in such Fiscal Year, shall be
sufficient to meet, among other things, debt service coverage requirements as specified in the 1998 General
Ordinance (the "1998 Ordinance Rate Covenant”). See "SOURCES OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE
BONDS - Rate Covenant and Rate Requirements” and APPENDIX D — "Summaries of the Act and Legislation
Authorizing the Issuance of the Bonds" herein.

The 1998 General Ordinance permits the issuance of additional bonds which may be Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds or Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. See "ADDITIONAL BONDS — Additional 1998
Ordinance Bonds" herein.

The 1998 General Ordinance establishes the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve which is established in
the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund as a separate account which is held for the benefit of owners of all bonds issued



under the 1998 General Ordinance. See " SOURCES OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE BONDS —
Sinking Fund Reserve" herein.

The 1998 General Ordinance permits the City to enter into a Qualified Swap or Exchange Agreement with
respect to a series of bonds or a portion thereof. The Ninth Supplemental Ordinance authorizes Qualified Swap and
Exchange Agreements with respect to the Eighth Series B Bonds, the Eighth Series C Bonds, the Eighth Series D
Bonds and the Eighth Series E Bonds.. Payments, other than termination payments, due to the issuer of a Qualified
Swap related to Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds are payable on a parity with debt service on Senior 1998 Ordinance
Bonds, except that the Qualified Swap shall have no right or claim at any time to amounts on deposit in the 1998
Ordinance Sinking Fund or the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve. On January 20, 2006, the City entered into
the Swap ‘Agreement in connection with the Sixth Series Bonds. Upon issuance of the Bonds a portion of the Swap
Agreement related to the Sixth Series Bonds will be terminated. See "INTRODUCTION — Interest Rate Swap
Agreement” herein. There are currently no other Qualified Swaps or Exchange Agreements to which the City is a
party under the 1998 General Ordinance.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

The City entered into the Swap Agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (the "Swap
Provider") in connection and concurrently with the issuance of the Sixth Series Bonds. Upon issuance of the Bonds,
a portion of the Swap Agreement related to the Sixth Series Bonds will be terminated. Upon the issuance of the
Variable Rate Bonds, a portion of the Swap Agreement in notional amounts equal to the principal amounts of the
Eighth Series B Bonds, the Eighth Series C Bonds, the Eighth Series D Bonds and the Eighth Series E Bonds,
respectively, will be related to portions of the Variable Rate Bonds as follows: $105,000,000 notional amount
related to the Eighth Series B Bonds, $50,000,000 notional amount related to the Eighth Series C Bonds,
$50,000,000 notional amount related to the Eighth Series D Bonds and $50,000,000 notional amount related to the
Eighth Series E Bonds. The Swap Agreement will provide, in general, that the City will pay to the Swap Provider
semiannually on each February 1 and August 1 a fixed rate payment of 3.6745% on an amended notional amount
equal to $255,000,000, amortizing in accordance with the principal amortization schedules of the Eighth Series B
Bonds, the Eighth Series C Bonds, the Eighth Series D Bonds and the Eighth Series E Bonds, as set forth in the
Swap Agreement, and that the Swap Provider will pay to the City on the first day of each calendar month a floating
rate payment equal to the lesser of the interest rate on the Eighth Series B Bonds, the Eighth Series C Bonds, the
Eighth Series D Bonds and the Eighth Series E Bonds, and the Securities Industry and Financial Markets
Association (the "Swap Index"), on the notional amount from time to time outstanding, to and including August 1,
2011, and thereafter a floating rate payment equal to 70% of one-month LIBOR, on the notional amount from time
to time outstanding. The amendment of the Swap Agreement will not alter the City’s obligation to pay the principal
of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds.

The Swap Agreement constitutes a Qualified Swap under the 1998 General Ordinance. The City’s
payment obligations under the Swap Agreement are payable solely from Gas Works Revenues. The City’s
scheduled periodic payments due under the Swap Agreement are payable on a parity with the Senior 1998
Ordinance Bonds (except that the Swap Provider shall have no right or claim at any time to amounts on deposit in
the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund or the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve). PGW calculates required sinking
fund deposits for purposes of compliance with the 1998 General Ordinance Rate Covenant without regard to the
effect of the Swap Agreement. See " SOURCES OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE BONDS - Pledge of
Revenues and Funds" herein.

Under certain circumstances (including certain events of default with respect to the City or the Swap
Provider), the Swap Agreement could terminate in whole or in part prior to its stated termination date. Following
any such early termination of the Swap Agreement, either the City or the Swap Provider, as applicable, may owe a
termination payment to the other, depending upon market conditions. If at the time of an early termination of the
Swap Agreement long-term interest rates are significantly lower than they were when the Swap Agreement was
executed and delivered, the City could owe a substantial termination payment to the Swap Provider. Any
termination payments owed by the City will be subordinate to the City’s obligation to make all payments due and
owing on Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds (including the Bonds) and periodic payments due under the Swap
Agreement.



The City’s payments under the Swap Agreement, including any termination payment due in connection
with a termination at the direction of Financial Security Assurance, Inc., the insurer of the Swap Agreement, but
excluding all other termination payments, under the Swap Agreement is guaranteed by Financial Security Assurance
Inc. under a Swap Insurance Policy. Financial Security Assurance Inc. has certain rights under the Swap
Agreement, including rights to consent to the designation of an Early Termination Date upon the occurrence of
certain events and the right to designate an Early Termination Date with respect to the City if an event of default
under the Swap Agreement occurs with respect to the City as a defaulting party.

Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report

To establish that Project Revenues and Gas Works Revenues will be sufficient to amortize all bonds
outstanding under the 1975 General Ordinance and the 1998 General Ordinance, the Act and the General Ordinances
require a finding to be made in the supplemental ordinance authorizing the issuance of a series of bonds that the
pledged Project Revenues or Gas Works Revenues (as the case may be) will be sufficient to comply with the
corresponding rate covenant and to pay all costs, expenses and payments required to be paid from Project Revenues
or Gas Works Revenues (as the case may be) in the order of priority set forth in the respective General Ordinance
and to pay any prior or parity charges on such pledged Project Revenues or Gas Works Revenues (as the case may
be) and the principal and interest on such series of bonds. The finding is to be based on a report of the chief fiscal
officer of the City filed with City Council and supported by appropriate schedules and summaries. As provided by
the Act, the report of the chief fiscal officer of the City may be based on a report of an independent engineer
employed by the City to evaluate PGW. Black & Veatch Corporation ("Black & Veatch"), a consulting company
independent of the City and PGW, was retained to evaluate PGW. Black & Veatch submitted a report dated May 4,
2009, which is appended hereto as APPENDIX B (the "Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report” or the "2009
Report”). In its report, Black & Veatch has opined and concluded, based upon its investigation, that:

. PGW is a competently managed and operated gas distribution utility. PGW and its facilities are
organized, operated and maintained at a level equal to, or in excess of, regulatory requirements
and generally accepted industry practices. The System is in good operating condition.

. Based upon Black & Veatch's evaluation of financial projections, and certain assumptions with
respect to the System that Black & Veatch believes to be reasonable, and on the basis of actual and
estimated future annual financial operations of the System (including the projects to be established
with the proceeds of the Bonds), the System will yield Project Revenues (which are pledged under
the 1975 General Ordinance and the 1998 General Ordinance) over the amortization periods of the
bonds issued under the 1975 General Ordinance and the 1998 General Ordinance which will be
sufficient to (a) meet all expenses of operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the
System, (b) meet all reserve or special funds required to be established under the 1975 General
Ordinance and the 1998 General Ordinance, (c) meet the principal of and interest on all bonds
(including the Future Bonds (as such term is defined in APPENDIX B hereof)) issued under such
Ordinances, as the same shall become due and payable, and (d) provide such surplus requirements
as are contained in the respective rate covenants of the 1975 General Ordinance and the 1993
General Ordinance. The Project Revenues forming the basis of Black & Veatch's opinion comply
with the requirements of the definition of Project Revenues contained in Section 2 of the Act.

] The Project Revenues and Gas Works Revenues which are pledged as security for the bonds
issued under the 1975 General Ordinance and the 1998 General Ordinance, respectively, are
currently, and are projected to be, sufficient to comply with the Rate Covenants set forth in
Section 4.03(b) of the 1975 General Ordinance and Section 4.03(b) of the 1998 General
Ordinance.

. The capital improvements proposed during the projection period, September 1, 2009 through
August 31, 2014, should, along with continued good operation and maintenance practices, enable
PGW to maintain its system in good operating condition. Review of present management
practices indicates that good operation and maintenance is likely to continue.



. Contracted PGW gas supplies plus: (a) spot market purchases, (b) anticipated additional
contracted supplies plus supplemental gas capacities, as well as (c) the pipeline transport capacity
to move these supplies to PGW, are adequate to meet PGW’s projected demand on a day of
maximum demand, in an hour of maximum demand, and during a year of maximum demand.

Independent Consultant’s Assumptions with Respect to City Payments

PGW makes an annual base payment of $18 million to the City. The City agreed to forego the $18 million
annual payment in Fiscal Year 2004. For Fiscal Years 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008 and 2009, the City made a grant to
PGW equal to the annual payment received from PGW in such fiscal years, and the City’s Eighteenth Five-Year
Plan contemplates that in each of the Fiscal Years 2010 through 2014, the City will make a grant to PGW equal to
the annual payment received from PGW in such Fiscal Years.

Continuing Disclosure

The City will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the "Continuing Disclosure Agreement”) with
Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C. with respect to the Bonds. See "CONTINUING DISCLOSURE" herein and
the form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement attached hereto as APPENDIX E.

Miscellaneous

Any quotation from, and summaries and explanations of, the Constitution and laws of the Commonwealth
and ordinances of the City contained herein do not purport to be complete and are qualified in their entirety by
reference to the official compilations thereof, and all references to the Bonds are qualified in their entirety by
reference to the definitive forms of the Bonds. All capitalized terms used herein, unless otherwise defined herein,
shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Act and the General Ordinances. See "APPENDIX D" herein.
Copies of the Act, the General Ordinances and the Supplemental Ordinances are available from the Office of the
Director of Finance, 13th Floor, Municipal Services Building, 1401 John F. Kennedy Boulevard, Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania 19102.

PLAN OF FINANCE AND ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
Plan of Finance

The proceeds of the Bonds, together with other available monies and proceeds of the Variable Rate Bonds,
are being used for the purpose of providing funds for any or all of the following purposes: (i) the current refunding
of all of the Refunded Bonds; (ii) paying the costs of terminating a portion of the Swap Agreement for the Refunded
Bonds; and (iii) paying the costs of issuing the Bonds and the Variable Rate Bonds and any required deposits to the
Sinking Fund Reserve established under the 1998 General Ordinance.

A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used on the Issue Date to redeem a portion of the Refunded
Bonds.



Estimated Sources and Uses of Funds
The sources and uses of funds are estimated to be as follows:

Estimated Sources:

Principal Amount of the Bonds $58,285,000.00

Net original issue premium of the Bonds 422,616.90

Equity contribution from PGW 5,616,826.95

Proceeds of the Variable Rate Bonds 255.000.000.00
Total Seurces $319,324,443.85

Estimated Uses:

Redemption of the Refunded Bonds $312,231,826.95

Termination of a portion of the Swap

Agreement 3,791,000.00

Costs of Issuance’ 3.301.616.90
Jotal Uses $319.324,443.85

"Includes the fees and expenses of various counsel and the Fiscal Agent, consultant’s fees, fees of
accountants, fees of financial advisor, swap advisor fees, bank fees and letter of credit fees related to the Variable
Rate Bonds, rating agency fees, printing and publication costs, contingency, Underwriters’ discount, and other
expenses related to the issuance of the Bonds.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS
General

The Bonds will be dated the date of delivery and will bear interest from such date payable on each
August 1 and February 1, commencing February 1, 2010. The Bonds will be issued as fully registered bonds in the
aggregate principal amounts set forth on the inside front cover page hereof. The Bonds will be issued in
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. The Bonds, when issued, will be registered in the name of
Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company ("DTC"), one bond for each maturity of the Bonds.
Purchases of beneficial interests in the Bonds will be made in book entry only form (without certificates) in the
denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

The principal of, and premium, if any, on the Bonds will be payable at the principal corporate trust office of
the Fiscal Agent in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Interest on the Bonds, when due, will be paid by checks, mailed by
the Fiscal Agent to the persons in whose names the Bonds are registered on the fifteenth day of the month preceding
each interest payment date. So long as the Bonds are in book entry form, the principal of and interest on such Bonds
are payable by check mailed to or by wire transfer of funds to Cede & Co., as nominee for DTC as registered owner
thereof for redistribution by DTC to the Direct Participants (as defined herein) and in turn to Indirect Participants (as
defined herein) or Beneficial Owners (as defined herein) as described under "Book Entry Only System" below.
Registered Owners of at least $1,000,000 aggregate principal amount of a series of Bonds may elect to receive
interest payments by wire transfer, provided that notice is provided to the Fiscal Agent not less than ten (10) days
prior to the relevant interest payment date. In the event of any default by the City in the payment of interest due on
any interest payment date, such defaulted interest shall be payable to the persons in whose names such Bonds are
registered at the close of business on a special record date which shall be established, with notification to
Bondholders as provided in the 1998 General Ordinance.



Book-Entry Only System

The information in this section has been provided by DTC and is not to be deemed to be a
representation of the City, PGW or the Underwriters.

DTC, New York, New York, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as
fully-registered Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as
may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered certificate will be issued for each
maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New
York Banking Law, a "banking organization" within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the
Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code,
and a "clearing agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues,
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over 100 countries) that DTC’s
participants ("Direct Participants") deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized
book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical
movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and
dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation ("DTCC"). DTCC is the holding company for DTC,
National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered
clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also
available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and
clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly
or indirectly ("Indirect Participants”). The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities
and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of the Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will
receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond
("Beneficial Owner") is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners
will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to
receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings,
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of
ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect
Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing
their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Bonds is
discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such
other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts
such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and Indirect Participants will
remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.
Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to them of notices of
significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the
Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the
Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial
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Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be
provided directly to them.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Bonds
unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC
mails an Omnibus Proxy to an issuer as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede &
Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Bonds are credited on the record
date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such
other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct
Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or the Fiscal
Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by
Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case
with Bonds held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in "street name,"” and will be the
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the City or the Fiscal Agent, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on the
Bonds to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is the
responsibility of City or the Fiscal Agent, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of
Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the City or the Fiscal Agent. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor depository
is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from
DTC, and the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

THE CITY, PGW AND THE FISCAL AGENT CANNOT AND DO NOT GIVE ANY ASSURANCES
THAT DTC, THE DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR THE INDIRECT PARTICIPANTS WILL DISTRIBUTE TO
THE BENEFICIAL OWNERS OF THE BONDS (1) PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL OR INTEREST ON THE
BONDS, (2) CONFIRMATION OF BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN THE BONDS, OR (3) NOTICES
SENT TO DTC OR CEDE & CO., ITS NOMINEE, AS THE REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS, OR
THAT THEY WILL DO SO ON A TIMELY BASIS, OR THAT DTC, DIRECT PARTICIPANTS OR INDIRECT
PARTICIPANTS WILL SERVE AND ACT IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT.
THE CURRENT "RULES" APPLICABLE TO DTC ARE ON FILE WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION, AND THE CURRENT "PROCEDURES" OF DTC TO BE FOLLOWED IN DEALING WITH
DIRECT PARTICIPANTS ARE ON FILE WITH DTC.

NEITHER THE CITY, PGW NOR THE FISCAL AGENT SHALL HAVE ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR
OBLIGATION TO ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANT, INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OR ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER
OR ANY OTHER PERSON NOT SHOWN ON THE REGISTRATION BOOKS OF THE FISCAL AGENT AS
BEING A BONDHOLDER WITH RESPECT TO (1) THE BONDS; (2) THE ACCURACY OF ANY RECORDS
MAINTAINED BY DTC OR ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT; (3) THE
PAYMENT BY DTC OR ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY AMOUNT
DUE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER IN RESPECT OF THE PRINCIPAL OR INTEREST ON THE BONDS;
(4) THE DELIVERY BY DTC OR ANY DIRECT PARTICIPANT OR INDIRECT PARTICIPANT OF ANY
NOTICE TO ANY BENEFICIAL OWNER WHICH IS REQUIRED OR PERMITTED UNDER THE TERMS OF
THE 1998 GENERAL ORDINANCE TO BE GIVEN TO BONDHOLDERS; OR (5} ANY CONSENT GIVEN OR
OTHER ACTION TAKEN BY DTC AS REGISTERED OWNER OF THE BONDS.

The City may determine to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be prepared and delivered as described in the
Ninth Supplemental Ordinance.
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So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds as nominee of DTC, references herein to the
Holders, holders, owners or registered owners of such Bonds shall mean Cede & Co. and shall not mean the
Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.

In the event that the Book-Entry-Only System is discontinued and the Beneficial Owners become registered
owners of the Bonds, the following provisions applicable to registered owners would apply: (i) Bonds may be
exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity and series in other authorized
denominations, upon surrender thereof at the designated corporate trust office of the Fiscal Agent; (ii) the transfer of
any Bonds may be registered on the books maintained by the Fiscal Agent for such purpose only upon the surrender
thereof to the Fiscal Agent together with a duly executed assignment in form satisfactory to the City and the Fiscal
Agent; and (iii) for every exchange or registration of transfer of Bonds, the Fiscal Agent may impose a charge
sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange
or registration of transfer of the Bonds.

Optional Redemption
The Bonds are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity.
Transfer of Bonds

Bonds are transferable and exchangeable by the Registered Owners thereof at the designated corporate trust
office of the Fiscal Agent in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania in the manner and subject to the limitations contained in the
and 1998 General Ordinance and the Ninth Supplemental Ordinance. The Fiscal Agent shall not be required to issue
or to register the transfer of or exchange any Bonds during the period five (5) days prior to any interest payment date
for such Bonds.

SOURCES OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE BONDS
Pledge of Revenues and Funds

The Bonds are being issued as Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and are secured solely by and payable solely
from Gas Works Revenues and the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund, including the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund
Reserve therein, as provided in the Act, the 1998 General Ordinance and the Ninth Supplemental Ordinance. Gas
Works Revenues include all operating and non-operating revenues of the Gas Works derived from its activities and
assets involved in the supply, manufacture, storage and distribution of gas, including ail rents, rates and charges
imposed or charged by the City upon the owners or occupants of properties connected to, and upon all users of, gas
distributed by the Gas Works and all other revenues derived therefrom and all other income derived by the City from
the Gas Works. Revenues derived from activities unrelated to the supply, manufacture, storage and distribution of
gas or assets related thereto shall not be included in Gas Works Revenues, provided that the Gas Works receives fair
payment for the use of gas related assets and personnel of the Gas Works used in such activities, which payments
shall be included in Gas Works Revenues. At such time as there are no 1975 Ordinance Bonds outstanding, Gas
Works Revenues shall not include any portions of the Gas Works’ rents, rates and charges, if any, which are
securitized and sold pursuant to the 1998 General Ordinance.

The Act subjects all monies deposited in the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund, including the 1998 Ordinance
Sinking Fund Reserve, to a security interest for the 1998 Ordinance Bonds until such monies are properly disbursed
and provides that no bonds issued under the Act shall pledge the credit or taxing power of the City or create any debt
or charge against the tax or general revenues of the City or create any lien against any property of the City other than
Gas Works Revenues and monies deposited in the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund.

The pledge of the Gas Works Revenues to secure the Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds issued under the
1998 General Ordinance (including the Bonds) is at all times subject and subordinate to the pledge of Project
Revenues under the 1975 General Ordinance securing the 1975 Ordinance Bonds. Gas Works Revenues and
Project Revenues are treated by PGW as the same revenues and include grants from the City, properly authorized,
including, if applicable and if so authorized, any grant back to PGW of any portion of PGW’s Base Payment to the
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City. See "SECURITY - Priority in Application of Revenues." As of March 31, 2009, $263,053,000 aggregate
principal amount of 1975 Ordinance Bonds remained outstanding under the 1975 General Ordinance, $902,420,000
aggregate principal amount of Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and $10,115,000 of Subordinate 1998 Ordinance
Bonds were outstanding under the 1998 General Ordinance.

PGW has sold the right to receive the earnings through the year 2019 on approximately $53.6 million of
deposits (of total deposits of slightly more than $98.0 million) in the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve and the
1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve pursuant to two separate investment agreements among FSA Capital Markets
Services LLC, the Fiscal Agent and the City (the "Guaranteed Investment Contracts") dated August 23, 2002.
PGW’s proceeds from the Guaranteed Investment Contracts of approximately $20.1 million were treated as Project
Revenues under the 1975 General Ordinance and Gas Works Revenues under the 1998 General Ordinance in the
year received. The portion of such earnings on the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve and the 1998 Ordinance
Sinking Fund Reserve which has been sold pursuant to the Guaranteed Investment Contracts no longer belongs to
PGW and therefore does not constitute Project Revenues or Gas Works Revenues and are not subject to the lien and
security interest of the 1975 General Ordinance or the 1998 General Ordinance.

Covenant Against Commingling with Other City Funds

The City has covenanted in the Ordinance and the Ninth Supplemental Ordinance that so long as any of the
respective Eighth Series Bonds remain outstanding, all pledged Gas Works Revenues shall be deposited and held in
and disbursed from, one or more unsegregated accounts of PGW. which shall be separate from and not commingled
with the consolidated cash account of the City or any other account of the City not held exclusively for PGW
purposes. See "REMEDIES OF BONDHOLDERS."

The proceeds of the Bonds which remain available for-payment of the costs of refunding of the Refunded
Bonds, after payment of the Termination Payment, financing costs and the required payment into the 1998
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve, will be used on the Issue Date to redeem a portion of the Refunded Bonds.

The effectiveness of the separation of proceeds of the Bonds and revenues from other City accounts may be
limited under certain circumstances, including a bankruptcy filing by the City. See "SOURCES OF PAYMENT
AND SECURITY FOR THE BONDS" and "REMEDIES OF BONDHOLDERS" herein. Pursuant to the 1998
General Ordinance, all monies deposited in the Sinking Fund established under the 1998 General Ordinance
(including the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve), are subject to a security interest in favor of all Holders of the
Bonds until such monies are properly disbursed. See "SECURITY — Pledge of Revenues and Funds" herein.

Priority in Application of Revenues

Project Revenues - 1975 Ordinance Bonds

The 1975 General Ordinance creates a lien on and pledge of all Project Revenues of PGW for the benefit of
the Holders of 1975 Ordinance Bonds and creates a priority in application of Project Revenues in each Fiscal Year
as follows:

First, to Net Operating Expenses (i.e. Operating Expenses exclusive of City Charges);
Second, to required payments into the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund to pay the principal of, and interest

on, all 1975 Ordinance Bonds and, if required, to accumulate funds in, or to restore any deficiency in, the 1975
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve;
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Third, to the payment of any general obligation bonds which have been adjudged to be self-liquidating on
the basis of expected revenues from PGW;'

‘ Fourth, to the payment of interest and sinking fund charges of other general obligation debt incurred for
PGW' and

Fifth, to the payment of City Charges,’ including any Base Payment due to the City?

City Charges are the proportionate charges for services performed for the Gas Works by all officers,
departments, boards or commissions of the City which are contained in the computation of Operating Expenses of
the Gas Works including without limitation, the expenses of the Gas Commission and also means the base payments
to the City contained in the agreement between the City and the manager of the Gas Works and all other payments
made to the City from Project Revenues. During PGW’s Fiscal Years 2004-2008, City Charges exclusive of the
$18,000,000 Base Payment and of rate hearing charges have averaged approximately $1,451,000 per year.

The 1975 General Ordinance provides that all interest and income earned on monies held in the 1975
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve may, to the extent not required to comply with the requirements of the 1975
General Ordinance relating to the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve, and to the extent not sold pursuant to the
Guaranteed Investment Contracts referred to under "SOURCES OF PAYMENT AND SECURITY FOR THE
BONDS - Pledge of Revenues and Funds" above, be transferred to the operating funds of PGW to be applied as
Project Revenues in accordance with the terms of the 1975 General Ordinance. To the extent that in any Fiscal Year
a balance remains in the Project Revenues (after application under the 1975 General Ordinance as modified by the
1998 General Ordinance and the 2005 Note Ordinance), such balance, upon approval of the Gas Commission, may
be paid to the City, provided that in a given Fiscal Year such balance does not exceed the amount of the 1975
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve earnings transferred to the operating funds of PGW during the same Fiscal Year.

Gas Works Revenues — 1998 Ordinance Bonds

The 1998 General Ordinance creates a lien on and security interest in all Gas Works Revenues for the
benefit of the Holders of the Bonds and creates a priority in application of Gas Works Revenues in each Fiscal Year
as follows:

First, to Net Operating Expenses (i.e. Operating Expenses exclusive of City Charges) then payable;

Second, to debt service on the 1975 Ordinance Bonds issued under the 1975 General Ordinance and
amounts required to be paid into the Sinking Fund Reserve under the 1975 General Ordinance;

Third, to debt service on Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds, payments (other than termination payments) due to
the issuers of Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements related to Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and payments
due in respect of obligations of the Gas Works to The Philadelphia Municipal Authority existing on the date of
adoption of the 1998 General Ordinance (such obligations to The Philadelphia Municipal Authority being referred to
herein as the "Prior Obligations");

Fourth, to payments due to issuers of Credit Facilities related to Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds;

No general obligation debt of the City described in items Third and Fourth above is currently outstanding.

(¥}

City Charges include charges for services performed for PGW by various City departments, including the
expenses of the Gas Commission. During PGW’s Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008, City Charges
(exclusive of the $18,000,000 Base Payment and of rate hearing charges) have averaged approximately
$1,451,000 per year. ‘

The City’s Eighteenth Five-Year Plan contemplates that in each of the Fiscal Years 2010 through 2014, the
City will make a grant to PGW equal to the annual payment received from PGW in such Fiscal Years.
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Fifth, to debt service on Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds and payments due in respect of obligations of
PGW on a parity with Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds (including notes issued under the City’s General
Inventory and Receivables Financing Act and the Note Ordinance, as supplemented, or any similar ordinance, and
amounts payable to the provider of a Credit Facility in respect of such notes) and payments (other than termination
payments) due to the issuers of Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements related to Subordinate 1998 Ordinance
Bonds;

Sixth, to payments due to issuers of Credit Facilities related to Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds;

Seventh, to required payments of the Rebate Amount to the United States;

Eighth, to replenishment of any deficiency in the Sinking Fund Reserve;

Ninth, to payment of general obligation bonds of the City adjudged to be self-liquidating from Gas Works
Revenues';

Tenth, to debt service on other general obligation bonds issued for the Gas Works' and

Eleventh, to City Charges® and any other proper purpose of the Gas Works (including any termination
payments to issuers of Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements), except Unrelated Expenses.

Operating Expenses

Operating Expenses are defined in the 1975 General Ordinance and the 1998 General Ordinance as ali costs
and expenses of the Gas Works necessary and appropriate to operate and maintain the Gas Works in good operable
condition during each Fiscal Year, and include, without limitation, the manager’s fee, salaries and wages, purchases
of service by contract, costs of materials, supplies and expendable equipment, maintenance costs, costs of any
property or the replacement thereof or for any work or project, related to the Gas Works, which does not have a
probable useful life of at least five years, pension and welfare plan and workmen’s compensation requirements,
provision for claims, refunds and uncollectible receivables and for City Charges, all in accordance with generally
accepted municipal accounting principles consistently applied, but shall exclude depreciation and interest and
sinking fund charges. The 1998 General Ordinance, however, exciudes Unrelated Expenses (consisting of those
expenses which are unrelated to the supply, manufacture, storage and distribution of gas or assets related thereto)
from the definition of Operating Expenses.

Rate Covenant and Rate Requirements

19735 Ordinance Bonds

The 1975 General Ordinance contains the 1975 Ordinance Rate Covenant requiring that, so long as 1975
Ordinance Bonds are outstanding, at a minimum, the City impose, charge and collect in each Fiscal Year, such gas
rates and charges as shall, together with all other Project Revenues to be received in such Fiscal Year, equal not less
than the greater of (a) the sum of all Net Operating Expenses payable during such Fiscal Year plus (i) 150% of the
debt service requirements for such year on all outstanding 1975 Ordinance Bonds and (ii) the amount, if any,
required to be paid into the 1975 Sinking Fund Reserve during such year, or (b) the sum of all Net Operating
Expenses payable during such Fiscal Year plus (i) the debt service requirements for such year on all outstanding
1975 Ordinance Bonds and all outstanding City general obligation bonds issued for improvements to PGW and
(i) all amounts, if any, required during such year to be paid into the 1975 Sinking Fund Reserve. For a further

! No general obligation debt of the City described in items Ninth and Tenth above is currently outstanding.

b

City Charges include charges for services performed for PGW by various City departments, including the
expenses of the Gas Commission. During PGW’s Fiscal Years 2004 through 2008, City Charges
(exclusive of the $18,000,000 Base Payment and of rate hearing charges) have averaged approximately
$1.451,000 per year.
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discussion of the 1975 Rate Covenant and other rate requirements applicable to PGW, see "PGW BUDGET,
RATES AND FINANCES — Debt Service Coverage Ratio."

1998 Ordinance Bonds

The 1998 General Ordinance contains a covenant that requires the City, for so long as the 1998 Ordinance
Bonds are outstanding, at a minimum, to impose, charge and collect in each Fiscal Year of the Gas Works such gas
rates and charges as shall, together with all other Gas Works Revenues to be received in such Fiscal Year, equal not
less than the greater of (a) or (b) below:

(a) The sum of:
(i) all Net Operating Expenses payable during such Fiscal Year;

(ii) all principal of and interest on 1975 Ordinance Bonds issued and outstanding
under the 1975 General Ordinance payable during such Fiscal Year and amounts required to be paid into the Sinking
Fund Reserve under the 1975 General Ordinance during such Fiscal Year;

(iii) 150% of the amount required to pay Sinking Fund deposits required during such
Fiscal Year in respect of all Outstanding Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and 100% of the amounts payable in respect
of the Prior Obligations during such Fiscal Year;

(iv) the amount required to pay Sinking Fund deposits required during such Fiscal
Year in respect of all Qutstanding Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds and other obligations of the Gas Works on a
parity with Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds payable during such Fiscal Year;

v) the amount, if any, required to be paid into the Sinking Fund Reserve during
such Fiscal Year;

(vi) the Rebate Amount required to be paid to the United States during such Fiscal
Year; and

(vii) the amounts required to be paid to the issuers of Credit Facilities and the
providers of Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements during such Fiscal Year; or

(b) The sum of:
(i) all Net Operating Expenses payable during such Fiscal Year;

(ii) all principal of and interest on 1975 Ordinance Bonds issued and outstanding
under the 1975 General Ordinance payable during such Fiscal Year and amounts required to be paid into the Sinking
Fund Reserve under the 1975 General Ordinance during such Fiscal Year;

(iii) all Sinking Fund deposits required during such Fiscal Year in respect of all
Outstanding 1998 Ordinance Bonds and all amounts payable in respect of obligations of the Gas Works which are
on a parity with any of the 1998 Ordinance Bonds and in respect of general obligation bonds issued for
improvements to the Gas Works and all amounts, if any, required during such Fiscal Year to be paid into the Sinking
Fund Reserve;

(iv) the Rebate Amount required to be paid to the United States during such Fiscal
Year; and

v) the amounts required to be paid to the issuers of Credit Facilities and the
providers of Qualified Swaps and Exchange Agreements during such Fiscal Year.
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In calculating PGW’s compliance with the rate covenant with respect to 1998 Ordinance Bonds set forth
above, required sinking fund deposits are calculated without regard to the effect of any Qualified Swap. For a
further discussion of the Rate Covenant and other rate requirements applicable to PGW, see "PGW BUDGET,
RATES AND FINANCES — Debt Service Coverage Ratio."

Sinking Fund

1973 Ordinance Sinking Fund

Pursuant to the Act, the 1975 General Ordinance establishes the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund for the
benefit and security of the Holders of all 1975 Ordinance Bonds to be held separate and apart from all other
accounts of the City and directs the Director of Finance to deposit therein from the pledged revenues in each Fiscal
Year such amounts as will, together with interest and profits earned and to be earned on investments held therein, be
sufficient to accumulate, on or before each interest and principal payment date of the 1975 Ordinance Bonds, the
amounts required to pay the principal of and interest on the 1975 Ordinance Bonds then becoming due and payable.
It is the current practice of the City to make deposits into the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund on or immediately prior
to the date on which debt service payments are due. To the extent monies are on deposit in the 1975 Ordinance
Sinking Fund which are not currently required for the payment of debt service, such monies shall be invested at the
direction and under the management of the Director of Finance. The 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund is a consolidated
fund for the equal and proportionate benefit of the Holders of all 1975 Ordinance Bonds from time to time
outstanding under the 1975 General Ordinance and may be invested and reinvested on a consolidated basis. Interest
and profit from any such investment shall be added to the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund and credited in reduction of
or to satisfy required deposits into the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund. The 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund, including
the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve established therein, is established solely for the benefit and security of
the Holders of 1975 Ordinance Bonds. Neither Holders of 1998 Ordinance Bonds, including the Bonds, nor a
Qualified Swap Provider of Qualified Swaps, shall have any claim to amounts in the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund.

1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund

Pursuant to the Act, the 1998 General Ordinance establishes the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund for the
benefit and security of the Holders of all 1998 Ordinance Bonds to be held in the name of the City separate and apart
from all other accounts of the City and directs the Director of Finance to deposit therein from the Gas Works
Revenues in each Fiscal Year such amounts as will, together with interest and profits earned and to be earned on
investments held therein, be sufficient to accumulate (exclusive of the amount in the Sinking Fund Reserve), on or
before each interest and principal payment date of the 1998 Ordinance Bonds, the amounts required to pay the
principal of and interest on the 1998 Ordinance Bonds then becoming due and payable. It is the current practice of
the City to make deposits into the Sinking Fund on or immediately prior to the date on which debt service payments
are due. To the extent monies are on deposit in the Sinking Fund which are not currently required for the payment
of debt service, such monies shall be invested at the direction and under the management of the Director of Finance
of the City. The 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund is a consolidated fund for equal and proportionate benefit of the
Holders of all 1998 Ordinance Bonds from time to time Outstanding under the 1998 General Ordinance and may be
invested and reinvested on a consolidated basis. The principal of and interest and profits (and losses, if any) realized
on investments in the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund shall be allocated pro rata among the series of 1998 Ordinance
Bonds or the specific 1998 Ordinance Bonds in respect of which such investments were made without distinction or
priority. Payments shall be made from the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund in the order of priority set forth in the
1998 General Ordinance, except that monies (and the investments thereof) specifically deposited for the payment of
any particular installment of principal, interest (including capitalized interest) or premium in respect of particular
1998 Ordinance Bonds shall be held and applied exclusively to the payment of such particular principal, interest or
premium. The 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund, including the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve established
therein, is established solely for the benefit of the Holders of 1998 Ordinance Bonds, including the Bonds. Neither
Holders of 1975 Ordinance Bonds nor a Qualified Swap Provider of a Qualified Swap shall have any claim to
amounts in the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund.
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Sinking Fund Reserve

19735 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve

The 1975 General Ordinance establishes the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve as part of the 1975
Ordinance Sinking Fund. The City is required to deposit in the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve from the
proceeds of sale of each series of 1975 Ordinance Bonds an amount equal to the maximum amount required in any
Fiscal Year to pay the principal of and interest on the 1975 Ordinance Bonds of such series coming due and payable
in that Fiscal Year unless the supplemental ordinance authorizing the series of 1975 Ordinance Bonds authorizes the
accumulation from Project Revenues of a reserve of such amount over a period of not more than six Fiscal Years
after the issuance and delivery of the 1975 Ordinance Bonds. The money and investments (valued at market) in the
1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve must be held and maintained, at all times, in an amount equal to the
maximum principal and interest requirements of all outstanding 1975 Ordinance Bonds in any subsequent Fiscal
Year. The City verifies the value of amounts in the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve on a periodic basis. As
of March 31, 2009, the value of the funds and investments on deposit in the 1975 Sinking Fund Reserve was
required to be at least $32.3 million, and the amount in the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve met this
requirement.

If, at any time and for any reason, the monies in the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund (other than the 1975
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve) are insufficient to pay, as and when due, debt service on any 1975 Ordinance
Bonds, the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Depositary is required to pay over to the Fiscal Agent, from the 1975
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve, the amount of the deficiency. The 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund and 1975
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve are managed by, and invested and reinvested under the direction of, the Director of
Finance of the City. The 1975 General Ordinance provides that interest and income earned on monies held in the
1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve may be transferred and paid by the Director of Finance to the operating funds
of PGW and applied as Project Revenues in the manner described under "SOURCES OF PAYMENT AND
SECURITY FOR THE BONDS— Priority in Application of Revenues." The 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund
Reserve is established solely for the benefit and security of the Holders of 1975 Ordinance Bonds. Neither holders
of 1998 Ordinance Bonds, including the Holders of the Bonds, nor a Qualified Swap Provider, shall have any claim
to amounts in the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve.

1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve

The 1998 General Ordinance establishes the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve as part of the 1998
Ordinance Sinking Fund. The City is required to deposit to the credit of the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve
from the proceeds of sale of each series of bonds issued under the 1998 General Ordinance and/or Gas Works
Revenues an amount which, together with other amounts in the Sinking Fund Reserve, equal the maximum amount
required in any Fiscal Year to pay principal of and interest on the 1998 Ordinance Bonds of such series coming due
and payable in that Fiscal Year. In lieu of a deposit to the credit of the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve or in
substitution for amounts in the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve, the City may provide one or more letters of
credit or other Credit Facilities in the same aggregate amount, issued by a provider or providers whose. credit
facilities are such that bonds secured by such credit facilities are rated in one of the three (3) highest rating
categories by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., Fitch Ratings or Standard & Poor’s Ratings Service, a Division of
The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., all in the manner described under "The 1998 General Ordinance — Sinking
Fund and Sinking Fund Reserve" in APPENDIX D. Upon the issuance of the Bonds, the City shall deposit an
amount of cash into the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve and/or purchase one or more surety bonds, or letters
of credit such that the aggregate of such cash and/or surety bonds or letters of credit shall be equal to the Sinking
Fund Reserve Requirement for the OQutstanding Bonds under the 1998 Ordinance.

If, at any time and for any reason, the monies in the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund (other than the 1998
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve) are insufficient to pay, as and when due, debt service on any bond or bonds
secured by the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve, the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Depositary is required to
pay over to the Fiscal Agent, from the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve, the amount of the deficiency. If by
reason of such withdrawal (including draws on any Credit Facilities held to satisfy the Sinking Fund Reserve
Requirement) or for any other reason there shall be a deficiency in the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve, the
City has covenanted to restore such deficiency (either by a deposit of funds or the reinstatement of the cash limits of
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the Credit Facilities) within twelve (12) months. The 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve shall be valued by the
Sinking Fund Depositary promptly after any withdrawal from the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve or any
other event indicating a possible deficiency in the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve and on August 31 of each
Fiscal Year of PGW. As of March 31, 2009, the value of the funds and investments on deposit in the 1998
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve was required to be at least $67.2 million and the amount in the 1998 Ordinance
Sinking Fund Reserve met this requirement. The 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund and 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund
Reserve are managed by, and invested and reinvested under the direction of, the Director of Finance of the City.
The 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve is established solely for the benefit and security of the Holders of 1998
Ordinance Bonds, including the Bonds. Neither Holders of 1975 Ordinance Bonds nor Qualified Swap Providers
shall have any claim on amounts in the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserve.

ADDITIONAL BONDS
Additional 1975 Ordinance Bonds

The 1975 General Ordinance permits the issuance of additional 1975 Ordinance Bonds on a parity with
other currently outstanding 1975 Ordinance Bonds. The 1998 General Ordinance limits the issuance of additional
1975 Ordinance Bonds, providing that they may only be issued to refund prior 1975 Ordinance Bonds. In order to
issue 1975 Ordinance Bonds to refund prior 1975 Ordinance Bonds, among other requirements, it is necessary that a
financial report of the chief fiscal officer of the City be provided which determines that, over the amortization period
of the additional 1975 Ordinance Bonds, estimated Project Revenues will be sufficient to meet the 1975 Ordinance
Rate Covenant.

Additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds

The 1998 General Ordinance permits the issuance of additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds which may be either
Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds, on a parity with outstanding Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds, including the Bonds, or
Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. All 1998 Ordinance Bonds issued under the 1998 General Ordinance are
subordinated to the 1975 Ordinance Bonds. In order to issue additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds, among other
requirements, it is necessary that a financial report of the chief fiscal officer of the City be provided which
determines that, over the amortization period of the additional 1998 Ordinance Bonds, estimated Gas Works
Revenues will be sufficient to meet the 1998 Ordinance Rate Covenant.

Bond Anticipation Notes

The Act authorizes the City to issue revenue bond anticipation notes as well as Gas Works Revenue Bonds.
Section 16 of the Act provides that the City may issue its revenue bond anticipation notes which shall be payable by
exchange for, or out of the proceeds of the sale of, a designated series of revenue bonds referred to in the bond
anticipation notes. The reference to the revenue bonds shall specify a maximum rate of interest to be borne by said
bonds and may provide that said bonds shall be offered for sale, but if no proposals shall be received, the sole
remedy of the Holders of the revenue bond anticipation notes shall be either to accept the bonds at the specified
maximum interest rate, or to extend the maturity of the revenue bond anticipation notes for one or more specified
additional periods of not less than six months during which additional offers of the bonds may be made. At the
present time, there are no bond anticipation notes outstanding and the City has no present intention to issue revenue
bond anticipation notes.

OTHER OUTSTANDING DEBT OBLIGATIONS
Short-Term Borrowings
Gas Works Notes. The City is authorized to issue, from time to time, bonds or notes (collectively, the "Gas
Works Notes") pursuant to The City of Philadelphia Municipal Utility Inventory and Receivables Financing Act of
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (the "Inventory and Receivables Financing Act") and the General Inventory and

Receivables Gas Works Revenue Note Ordinance of 2005 (Bill No. 051138, approved December 22, 2005), as
amended by an Ordinance (Bill No. 070047, duly adopted by City Council on March 1, 2007, and signed by the
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Mayor on March 15, 2007) (the "Amendment”) (collectively, the "Note Ordinance") in amounts, as approved by the
Mayor, the City Controller and the City Solicitor or any two of them (the "Committee"), in a principal amount not to
exceed, in the aggregate, $200,000,000 at any one time outstanding. Such amount can, in the future, be increased or
decreased by action of City Council. The proceeds of the Gas Works Notes may be used to finance or refund the
costs of acquisition or funding of Inventory or Receivables (as such terms are defined in the Note Ordinance) of
PGW or to refund Gas Works Notes. The Gas Works Notes are junior in priority of payment to the 1975 Ordinance
Bonds and the Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds and are on a parity with Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds and
payments due in respect of obligations on a parity with Subordinate 1998 Ordinance Bonds. The Note Ordinance
provides that the final maturity date of Gas Works Notes shall be no later than the earlier of 270 days after their
respective dates of issuance, 13 months from the date of initial issuance of any installment of any Gas Works Note
under the Note Ordinance or August 31, 2010. As of June 30, 2009, there were no outstanding Gas Works Notes
issued under the City’s commercial paper program for PGW. Payment of the principal of and interest on all Gas
Works Notes outstanding is secured by a letter of credit issued by JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association,
which expires on May 29, 2010. See APPENDIX B - "Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report — Projected
Revenue Requirements" and "- Adequacy of Projected Revenues to Meet Projected Revenue Requirements Under
Ordinance Requirements."

The Note Ordinance requires establishment of a sinking fund for the benefit and security of the Holders of
each series of the Gas Works Notes. The City covenants to deposit to the credit of the sinking fund for the Gas
Works Notes from Gas Works Revenues such amounts as will, together with interest and profits earned and to be
earned on investments held therein, be sufficient to pay, on or before each payment date of the Gas Works Notes, the
amount required, after taking into account amounts paid from refunding Gas Works Notes and credit support
instruments, to pay the Gas Works Notes then becoming due and payable.

Interfund Borrowing, It is PGW’s practice to make interfund loans from various consolidated accounts of
PGW for payment, as necessary, of PGW obligations, including debt service on bonds issued under the General
Ordinances. PGW anticipates that it will reimburse such accounts as revenues are received by the end of each Fiscal
Year during which such withdrawals were made.

City Loan

On November 27, 2000, the City and PGW, acting through PFMC, entered into a Loan Agreement pursuant
to which the City agreed, subject to certain terms and conditions, to loan $45,000,000 to PGW (the "City Loan").
The City Loan did not bear interest. Proceeds of the City Loan were deposited to the credit of a segregated account
held by PGW and earnings on such account were transferred to the City. The City Loan was unsecured and was
subordinated in priority of payment to the 1975 Ordinance Bonds, the Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds, the
Subordinated Bonds and the Gas Works Notes. On August 29, 2008 PGW satisfied the City Loan in full and the
City Loan is no longer outstanding.

20



1

JuswonIdy demg sy uo paseq 1saIdy
SpUog SILIdS YIXIS JO 1N

8IS v6re6L T ITFCHOSOPLy ECvSpO 1Ll dC 00000005 CVSpoOlItidc 00000005 <CVSPOISISC OODO000US <CLEICLL0GS O000D0SOl S PLCG6CLI O00SBC 85 Ct650v 136 OPFelo6Ltc  IwoL
00°005°€$8°C1 005°€58°C1 8€07
00'05T's$8°T1 0ST'$¢8°Tt LEOT
00°0ST'LS8TL 0STLS8'TL 9€07
00'SLEITI ey SLETTI'E¥ $E0T
00°0SL'€08°1T 0SL'€08'1T yEOT
00'ST1°008°1C STI'008°1T £€0T
00'05Z°L61°0€ 0sZ'Lol'0¢ TE0T
9L'89LL6V'8E 9L'EVI'66T'S 99'689°LS 000°0LS'T. 99'689°'LS 000°0LS'T  99°689°'LS 000°0LS'T  SL'FLOITI 000°S67'¢ $79'861°0¢ 10
96 €15 ¥8Y8E 96'€97°78T'8 09FLUETT 000°01S°T  09VLIETI 000°01S‘T  09'bLIEIL 000°01S°T  9T'OVL'LET 000'sLI‘E 052'20Z'0¢ 0£0T
09'TYL'E89°9Y 09°CHTESS Y1 01'98€°TIT 000°'00LT  O1'98€TIT 000'00L'T  OI'98€TIT 000°00L°T  OE'¥BO'9VY 000°0L9'S 005°0£8°T€ 6007
81'098°€58°19 81'$€L°101°0€ IV 000°06%°S  9U9IT'VIY 000°06+°S  9L9LIVIY 000'06¥'S  0L'98€°698 000078 11 STI'TSL'1E 820
98°0€8'¥79'19 98'SOL'8S6'6  8S'8LS'LO9 000'S9T'S  8S'8LS'LO9 000°S97'S  8S'8LS'LO9 000°69T's  TVOL6'SLT'T  000°590°11 STL'999°1€ L70T
90'99¢°182°59 90'911°6£6'LT 80'087°08L 000°00L'Y  80'08C°08L 000°00L'y  80'08T08L 000'00L'F  TB'SLI'BEY'L 000°098°6 0SL'TLS'EE  00S'69L'E 9207
86'11S'115'S9 86'9E9°LEYLT 96 EILYHG 000'SLY'Y  96EIL'VPG 000'SLY'Y  96'EIL'PYG 000'SLY'y  OT'S6V'E86°1 000's6¢°6 SLEPIL'EE  000'6§T'Y $20C
90 1LITSETL 90'968°SLL'9T  OL'SOT'L6O'T 000051y OL'SOT'L60'1 00005’y OL'SOT'L60'L  000°0S1'y  96'8LT'VOET  -000°0EL'S STOVOYVE  OSLILITT ¥ToT
8T HT0'T6S €L 8TYIOVOL'OT  9TSISEVT'L 000°066'€  9TSIS'EHT'1 000°066'€  9T'BIS'EHL'T  000°066'€  0S'69S°TI9T  000°06€'S SLYSI'VE  STI'EEL'TI £20C
09 THO'LEE VL 09'€S6'TL6'ST  8V'8SG'6LE'T 000'S0L'S  8F'8S6'6LE'T 000°S0L'E  8V'8S6'6LE'T  000°SOL'S  O1'SLO'868'T  000'0LL'L STI'S68'vE  €96'81S°E1 20T
TI6E1°69L°SL TUOL6'ETI'ST  8€'979'S0S'Y 000'0TH'E  8€'979°50S°1 000°0Z¥°€  8E'9T9'SOS'T  000°0TH'S  86'060°TIT'E  000'SSI'L 888'8£9'S¢ 1829001 1202
YT 18T6ST'LL YTTI'6EE VT TIELE1TIL 000051 TUELEITYT 000'0ST'€  TUELE'ITIT  000°0SI'E  SRTYE'SOF'E  000°079'9 1€7'88¢'9  88S°1£5°91 0z0T
LLPESLSLSL TLVEY'99S'ET  06'6VL'LTLL 000°S68°C  06'6¥L'LTL'L 000°S68'T  06'6FL'LTL'T  000'S68'C  TO'SRE'BTIE  000°0LO'9 IE0'ITI'LE  698'690'81 6107
$0'819°€5T°08 PO TPIT6L'TT  TY'OV6'VTIS'T 000'SY9'T  THOP6'YT8'l 000°S¥9'T  THOV6'YIR'L 000'S¥9°C  BLGIETER'E  000°0Ss‘S 690°€98'LE  BEV'865°61 8107
00'STLLLT'E8 00SLS'IVS'ET  000ST'LE]'T 000°S€E 00'0ST'LE8°T 000°S€E 00°0ST'LES'T  000'SEE 00'STT8SS'E  000°S0L 00009129 000'0¥8°11  STO'119'8¢  STI'STI'IT L10T
00'8E1°016'8 00'STE106'CT 00'0ST'LE]T 00'0ST°LES'T 00'0ST'LES'T 00'STT'988°E 00'0S£'9€Z°1 000'S6T'TT  SLL'SSE'6E  8E0'€S9'TT 9107
00789'8+L°68 00'ST8Y90'ST  00°0ST'LES'L 00°05T'LE]'T 000ST'LE8°T 00'52T'868°C 000S8°%T6'L  000'0LL'El  b6S'TTV'LE  €9T'19TLL $10T
00'P6L°€T0°16 00$TETE6°IT  000ST'LES'T 000ST'LES'T 00'0ST'LE]'T 00'STT8S8E 000S€ T1EF'T  000°0E1°01  I88'6E1°0F  885°TS6'8T $10T
00 TE1°3EE 16 00'5L078€°LT 00'0ST'LES'T 000ST'L€8°1 000ST'LEB'T 00'STT'8SY'E 00°001°L69°T  000'STE'S  SLT'SEV'Er  18L0TS'0€ €10T
00'L19°€06°€6 00'STELSYET 00'0ST'LE]'T 00°05Z°L£8°1 00'05Z°LE8'T 00'STT'8S8°E 000SETBL'T  000'SOL'T  8YH'9S6'Ly  VI8'601°TE 710z
00'€L1'FET'96 00°STLTS8EN 00°0ST°LES'T 000ST'LEST 00°0SZ°LE8] 00'STC'8S8'E 00°0SL°LY8'T  000'SE9'T  $69°069°1S  €6L°069°0¢F 1oz
1¥'81S°16T'L6 I ££€°8TTEN £0P8TOVL I £0'P8TOPLL £0°P8TOPL'T 9965 PS9'E 98'VB8'LSL'T  000'S6S'1  §89'T96'ES  00S'001'0E 0102
f ANANS MANS 1€
ARS8 3G spuog spuog spuog spuog spuog q ma ysndny
IEJOL PAUIqUIO)  DNAIIS Jqa( Shuog 7 SIS Sbuog q sang Shuog ) D sag Spuog d g sag spuog v V SoLg Supsixy Bunsixy Swpuy
©oL | LIS Yy saLs pydig Wy SaLa8 YA Yy S35 YPySig Byl SIS WYty wysr ELO) Y
P31y 35339u] redpaug JLEYCIT redpung Jsaaug edpunyg FI=Y et 5] fedpuug 533Uy edidunag jeasyy
SHTEMPIO SaLog PYsTH spuog Spaog
8661 ¥ SLoI Spuog SIAEUPI0 8661 HuEwpIip  NUEAPIQ
8661 SI6T

SNOLLVDI'TI4O T1V 304 ATNATHDS ADIAYES Ld3a



REMEDIES OF BONDHOLDERS

Remedies under the Act and the 1975 General Ordinance available to Holders of the 1975 Ordinance
Bonds and remedies under the Act and the 1998 General Ordinance available to Holders of 1998 Ordinance Bonds,
including Holders of the Bonds, and to any trustee for Bondholders appointed by the Holders of 25% in principal
amount of any series of bonds in default, are described in the summaries contained in APPENDIX D hereto. In
addition to the remedies described therein, Bondholders or a trustee therefor are entitled under the Pennsylvania
Uniform Commercial Code to all remedies of secured parties in respect of the Project Revenues or Gas Works
Revenues (as the case may, be) and the funds on deposit in the respective Sinking Funds; including the respective
Sinking Fund Reserves. The remedies of the Holders of 1998 Ordinance Bonds are subject to the prior lien of the
Holders of 1975 Ordinance Bonds on Project Revenues. So long as DTC or its nominee is the Registered Owner,
the remedies of Beneficial Owners are exercisable by means of written instructions given by them, as transmitted
through the respective Participants, to DTC.

Limitation on Remedies of Bondholders

The ultimate enforcement of Bondholders® rights upon any default by the City in the performance of its
obligations under the Act, the 1975 General Ordinance, the 1998 General Ordinance, the Ninth Supplemental
Ordinance, the Bond Authorization and the Bonds will depend upon the application of remedies provided in the Act,
the 1998 General Ordinance, the applicable Supplemental Ordinance and other applicable laws. Litigation may be
necessary to obtain relief in accordance with these remedies. Such litigation may be protracted and costly.
Remedies such as mandamus, specific performance or injunctive relief are equitable remedies that are subject to the
discretion of the courts.

The following references to the United States Bankruptcy Code (the "Bankruptcy Code") and certain
provisions of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act (hereinafter defined) should not be construed as implying that
the City has any expectation or plan to seek to invoke the provisions of such statutes or that if the City were to seek
to invoke such provisions, that the consent of the Governor of Pennsylvania (the "Governor") would be obtained.
Further, such references are not intended to imply that even if the City were to file for protection under the
Bankruptcy Code, any proposed restructuring would include a dilution of the sources of payment of and security for
the Bonds. The statutory provisions of the Bankruptcy Code pertaining to the City have not been subject to
extensive interpretation by the courts and there can be no assurance that the following discussion accurately reflects
the interpretation that a court might make.

Enforcement of Bondholders® rights may be limited by, and is subject to, the provisions of the Bankruptcy
Code, as now or hereafter enacted, or to other laws or legal or equitable principles which may affect the enforcement
of creditors’ rights. The Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority Act for Cities of the First Class (53 P.S.
§ 12720.101 et seq.) (the "Intergovernmental Cooperation Act"), enacted in 1991, prohibits the City from filing a
petition for relief under the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. 901, et seq. ("Chapter 9"), as long as the authority created
thereunder has outstanding any bonds issued pursuant to the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act. If no such bonds
are outstanding, the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act requires written approval by the Governor of the City’s
petition and plan following a hearing, prior to a filing under Chapter 9 by the City. There are currently bonds
outstanding that were issued under the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, which bonds are scheduled to mature at
various dates to and including the year 2023, subject to redemption prior to maturity. See "Background — The
Pennsylvania Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority” in APPENDIX C. If the City were to obtain authorization
from the Governor to file a petition under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code and in fact filed such a petition, the
enforcement of Bondholders’ rights and remedies might be limited.

The filing of a petition under Chapter 9 operates as an automatic stay of the commencement or continuation
of any judicial or other proceeding against the debtor or its property. However, a petition filed under Chapter 9 does
not operate as a stay of application of pledged special revenues to the payment of indebtedness secured by such
revenues. Special revenues include receipts derived from the ownership or operation of systems that are used to
provide utility services and the proceeds of borrowings to finance such systems and would include the pledged
Project Revenues or Gas Works Revenues (as the case may be). The Bankruptcy Code further provides that special
revenues acquired by the debtor after commencement of a Chapter 9 case shall remain subject to any lien resulting
from any security agreement entered into by the debtor before the commencement. However, the lien on special
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revenues derived from a system will be subject to the payment of the necessary operating expenses of that system.
Therefore, Gas Works Revenues acquired by the City before and after the filing of a Chapter 9 petition will remain
subject to the lien of the 1998 General Ordinance and the Ninth Supplemental Ordinance in favor of Holders of the
Bonds, but will be subject to the payment of PGW’s necessary operating expenses as determined by the City (and
subject and subordinate to the pledge of Project Revenues under the 1975 General Ordinance for the security and
payment of the 1975 Ordinance Bonds). These operating expense payments could be inconsistent with the
requirement in the 1975 General Ordinance with respect to the 1975 Ordinance Bonds, that, under certain
circumstances, at least 50% of the Project Revenues be deposited in the 1975 Ordinance Sinking Fund on a daily
basis. If the pledged Project Revenues or Gas Works Revenues cannot support both the applicable debt service
requirements and operating expenses of PGW, it is possible that payments to Holders of the Bonds may be reduced.
The Bankruptcy Code also provides that a transfer of property of a debtor to or for the benefit of a bondholder, on
account of such bond, may not be avoided as a preferential transfer.

Unless a debtor consents or the plan proposed under Chapter 9 provides, the bankruptcy court may not
interfere with any of the property or revenues of a Chapter 9 debtor or with such debtor’s use or enjoyment of any
income producing property. Accordingly, if the City should decide to use the proceeds of the Bonds or the Project
Revenues or the Gas Works Revenues (as the case may be) pledged for the benefit of the Bondholders other than to
benefit the Gas Works, it is unclear whether a bankruptey court would have the power to interfere with that decision.
Even if a bankruptcy court had such power, the court, in the exercise of its equitable powers, could refuse to require
the City to use the proceeds of the Bonds and the Project Revenues or the Gas Works Revenues (as the case may be)
to pay Holders of the Bonds, could permit a subordination of the liens to new bonds if the former were found more
than "adequately protected” or could avail itself of a broad range of equitable remedies.

Under the Bankruptcy Code, a debtor may file a plan for the adjustment of its debts which may include
provisions modifying or altering the rights of creditors generally, or any class of them, secured or unsecured. The
plan, when confirmed by the court, binds all creditors who had notice or knowledge of the case and discharges all
claims against the debtor provided for in the plan, unless excepted from discharge by the plan. No plan may be
confirmed unless certain conditions are met, among which are that the plan is in the best interests of creditors, is
feasible and has been accepted by each class of claims impaired thereunder. Each class of claims has accepted the
plan if the votes of at least two-thirds in dollar amount and more than one-half in number of the allowed claims of
the class that are voted are cast in favor of the plan. Even if the plan is not so accepted, it may be confirmed if the
court finds that the plan is fair and equitable and certain other tests are met. Thus, under the provisions of the
Bankruptcy Code, a plan of adjustment could be imposed on the Bondholders that would give them less than their
anticipated rate of interest on the Bonds or possibly even less than a full return of their principal and/or extend the
time for payment of principal of or interest on the Bonds.

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
General

PGW consists of real and personal property owned by the City and used for the acquisition, manufacture,
storage, processing and distribution of natural gas in the City, and all property, books and records employed and
maintained in connection with the operation, maintenance and administration of PGW. Included among such assets,
in addition to an extensive distribution system, are facilities for the liquefaction, storage and vaporization of natural
gas to supplement the natural gas supply from pipeline transmission companies and facilities for storage. Such
facilities inciude two liquefied natural gas ("LNG") plants.

Of total billed gas revenues for the twelve month period ended August 31, 2008, approximately 72% were
derived from residential customers, approximately 25% were derived from commercial and industrial customers and
approximately 3% were derived from municipal and housing authority customers.

For an explanation of revenues and expenses, see "PGW BUDGET, RATES AND FINANCES,"
"MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
CONDITION" and APPENDIX B. See also the table entitled "Historical Revenues and Debt Service Coverage"
below for future debt service payments.
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PGW Service Area, Gas Sales, and Accounts Receivable

PGW, the nation’s largest municipally-owned gas utility, purchases, sells and distributes gas within the
limits of the City. The City’s boundaries enclose an urbanized area of 129 square miles in southeastern
Pennsylvania along the Delaware River. Within these boundaries, PGW maintains a distribution system with
approximately 3,024 miles of gas mains and approximately 466,814 service lines serving slightly more than a half
million customers. The mix of sales to PGW’s customers, net of transportation sales, during each of the five Fiscal
Years ended August 31, is shown in the following table:

PERCENT OF GAS SALES FOR THE

YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31*%
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Residential 71.0 70.3 70.9 71.7 74.3
Commercial and Industrial 259 26.9 25.7 25.0 22.9
Municipal and Housing Authority 3.1 28 34 33 2.8
TOTAL 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0

*This information was obtained from PGW’s historical records.
Five Year Summary of Gas Sales

Total gas sales for PGW are comprised of sales to firm and interruptible customers. Firm customers
receive gas service under various schedules which anticipate no interruptions in the delivery of natural gas. Firm
service is sold to residential, commercial, and industrial customers, the Philadelphia Housing Authority and the City
depending on the type of service required and represented 96.2% of total gas sales by volume in Fiscal Year 2008.
Interruptible sales service is offered to customers under schedules or contracts which anticipate and permit
interruptions on short notice, generally in peak-load periods. Interruptible gas service is sold to high volume
commercial and industrial customers and represented 3.8% of total gas sales in Fiscal Year 2008.

Gas Sales in Fiscal Year 2008 totaled 47.3 Bef a reduction of 3.3 Bef from the 2007 period. Temperatures
during the 2008 heating season were warmer than normal and consistent with the prior year resulting in 3,746 degree
days a decrease of 27 degree days or 0.7% less than experienced during the previous fiscal year. Sales to firm
customers of 45.5 Bef were 2.4 Bef lower than in Fiscal Year 2007. Associated interruptible revenues decreased by
15.1% to $26,679,000 reflecting a decrease of 0.9 Bcf in sales.

Gas Sales in Fiscal Year 2007 totaled 50.6 Bef an increase of 1.9 Bef from the 2006 period. Temperatures
during the 2007 heating season were warmer than normal and slightly warmer than the prior year resulting in 3,773
degree days a decrease of 46 degree days or 1.2 % less than experienced the previous fiscal year. Sales to firm
customers of 47.9 Bef were 1.7 Bef higher than in fiscal year 2006. Associated interruptible revenues decreased by
6.2% to $31,439,000 reflecting a slight increase of 0.3 Bef in sales.

Gas Sales in Fiscal Year 2006 totaled 48.7 Bcf, a reduction of 9.6 Bef from the 2005 period. Temperatures
during the 2006 heating season were warmer than normal and significantly warmer than the prior year resulting in
3,819 degree days, a decrease of 508 degree days or 11.7% less than experienced the previous fiscal year. Sales to
firm customers of 46.2 Bcf were 7.6 Bef less than in Fiscal Year 2005. Associated interruptible revenues decreased
by 25.1% to $33,509,000 reflecting a 2.1 Bef or 46.2% decrease in sales.

Gas Sales in Fiscal Year 2005 totaled 58.3 Bcf, a reduction of 2.0 Bef from the 2004 period. Temperatures
during the 2005 beating season were warmer than normal but slightly colder than the prior year resulting in 4,327
degree days, an increase of 40 degree days or 1% greater than experienced in the previous fiscal period. Sales to
firm customers of 53.8 Bcf were 2.4 Bef less than in the Fiscal Year 2004. Associated interruptible revenues rose by
38.0% or $12,274,000 to $44,678,000 million reflecting a 0.4 Bef or 9.9% increase in sales.
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Gas Sales in Fiscal Year 2004 totaled 60.3 Bcf, a decline of 7.8 Bef-from the 2003 period. Temperatures
during the 2004 heating season were warmer than normal and significantly warmer than the previous year resulting
in 4,287 degree days, a reduction of 507 degree days or 10.6% less than experienced in the prior fiscal period. Sales
to firm customers of 56.2 Bcf were 5.8 Bef less than in the Fiscal Year 2003. Associated interruptible revenues
decreased by 17.7% or $6,986,000 to $32,404,000 reflecting a 2.0 Bef or 32.7% decline in sales.

Natural Gas

In Fiscal Year 2008 natural gas costs decreased by $27,358,000 or 5.1% from the prior year to a level of
$511,938,000 million. Natural Gas utilization requirements declined by 4.6 Bcf reflecting a migration of gas sales
customers towards transportation gas. The reduced natural gas utilized volume resulted in a $37,641,000 decrease
compared to the 2007 Fiscal Year. Natural gas prices increased slightly, resulting in an increase of $13,502,000,
2.7% or 25 cents per Mcf. Pipeline demand charges increased $6,793,000 compared to Fiscal Year 2007. Pipeline
refunds increased $10,012,000 in Fiscal Year 2008 compared to Fiscal Year 2007 as a result of a large one time
pipeline settlement.

In Fiscal Year 2007 natural gas costs decreased by $85,781,000 or 13.7% from the prior year to a level of
$539,296,000. Natural gas utilization requirements rose by 3.0 Bef despite a heating season very similar to the prior
fiscal year. The additional utilized volume resulted in a $30,573,000 increase compared to the 2006 Fiscal Year.
Natural gas prices fell resulting in decrease of $117,227,000, 19.7% or $2.02 per Mcf. Pipeline demand charges
increased $700,000 while natural gas refunds received from pipeline supplier settlements decreased $200,000.

In Fiscal Year 2006 natural gas costs increased dramatically by $115,375,000 or 22.6% from the prior year
to a level of $625,076,000. Gas utilization requirements declined by 9.9 Bef reflecting a significantly warmer 2006
heating season, resulting in a $66,072,000 decrease compared to the 2005 Fiscal Year. A significant rise in the cost
of natural gas totaling $195,578,000, 53.0% or $3.55 per Mcf more than offset the reduced volume of gas utilized.
Pipeline demand charges decreased by $13,866,000. Pipeline refunds increased by $200,000 from Fiscal Year 2005.

In Fiscal Year 20035, natural gas costs increased dramaticaily by $58,833,000 or 13.0% from the prior year
to a level of $509,701,000. Sendout requirements declined by 3.6 Bef reflecting continued customer conservation.
The heating season was slightly colder than the Fiscal Year 2004 period, resulting in a $20,211,000 decrease when
compared to the 2004 Fiscal Year. Also, continued escalating prices for natural gas totaling $73,347,000 per Mcf
more than offset the lower volume of gas utilized for sendout. Pipeline demand charges increased by $6,150,000,
while the level of natural gas refunds received from pipeline supplier settlements rose by $453,000 compared to the
Fiscal Year 2004 period.

In Fiscal Year 2004, natural gas costs rose by $23,436,000 or 5.5% from the previous year to a level of
$450,868,000. Sendout requirements declined by 7.4 Bef, reflecting a warmer heating season compared to the much
colder Fiscal Year 2003 winter period, resulting in a $35,813,000 decrease compared to the 2003 Fiscal Year. In
addition, a significant rise in the cost of natural gas totaling $51,777,524, 15.7% or 75.5 cents per Mcf more than
offset the reduced volume of gas utilized for sendout, while pipeline demand charges rose by $1,915,000. The level
of natural gas refunds received from pipeline supplier settlements declined to $136,000, $5,555,000 less than the
prior year.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable (net) of $99,304,000 increased by $10,686,000 or nearly 12.1% from August 31, 2007
to August 31, 2008, mainly due to firm transportation suppliers’ billings and an increase in participation in the
Customer Responsibility Program (CRP). The accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts totaling
$140,435,000 decreased by $9,796,000 and should be satisfactory to cover uncollectible amounts in the estimated
accounts receivable balance at August 31, 2008.
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, RESERVE FOR BAD DEBT EXPENSE; NET WRITE-OFF EXPENSES,
DELINQUENT CUSTOMERS AND REVENUE STATISTICS
(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Billed Gas Revenues During the $786.406 $846,729 $899,174 $868,586 $842,287
Year
Accounts Receivable 323,340 295.114 243,249 238,849 239,739
Reserve for Bad Debt (230,216) (207,480) (168.889) (150,231) (140,435)
Net Accounts Receivable at 8/31 $93,124 $87.634 $74,360 $88,618 $99,304
Reserve for Bad Debt as a 71.2% 70.3% 69.4% 62.9% 58.6%
Percentage of Accounts Receivable
Net Write-Offs $69,332 $93.160 $78.732 $58.658 $46,796
Receivable as a Percentage of Billed 41.1% 34.9% 27.1% 27.5% 28.5%
Gas Revenues
Bad Debt Expense: $71,000 $70,424 $40,132 $40,000 $37,000
As a Percentage of Billed Gas 9.0% 8.3% 4.5% 4.6% 4.4%
Revenues
As a Percentage of Accounts 22.0% 23.9% 16.5% 16.7% 15.4%
Receivable
Delinquent Customers at 8/31 167.576 165,479 162,202 149,721 147,010

PGW’s most volatile and problematic expense item, outside of natural gas costs is bad debt expense and
associated customer accounts receivable balances Over the past five years, PGW has collected approximately 95%
of annual customer billings. PGW’s bad debt expense over the past five years has ranged from $37,000,000 in
Fiscal Year 2008 to $71,000,000 in Fiscal Year 2004.

The substantial decreases over the five year period in bad debt expense were primarily due to the increased
collection rate and timely write-off of accounts receivable balances. Enhancements and implementation of Act 201
changes to the billing system have given PGW full functionality to effectively manage its delinquent customer base.

PGW implemented a Collection Renewal Initiative ("CRI") in early Fiscal Year 2004. The CRI effort
covers Customer Service operations involved in the collection of delinquent accounts receivable. The renewal effort
is in response to increasing accounts receivable caused by higher natural gas prices during the winter heating
seasons. Over the past two fiscal periods, PGW has increased its collection rate to 95.5 % in 2008 and 95.8% in
2007, respectively. With these collection initiatives in place, PGW believes that the worst of the billing related
problems are in the past.

Management Agreement

PFMC has operated PGW pursuant to the Management Agreement since January 1, 1973. Under the
Management Agreement, various aspects of PFMC’s management of PGW are subject to review and approval by
the Gas Commission and, where authorization of City Council is required, recommendation of the City’s Director of
Finance and/or the Gas Commission. The Gas Commission has various responsibilities for the oversight of the
operations of PGW; the City’s Director of Finance oversees certain financial practices of PGW; and the City’s Law
Department is the designated legal advisor to the Gas Commission and PGW. The Law Department has assigned
the representation of PGW to the Office of General Counsel of PGW. See "CITY GOVERNMENTAL
OVERSIGHT — Gas Commission” and "PGW BUDGET, RATES AND FINANCES" for discussions of the Gas
Commission.
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The term of the Management Agreement commenced on January 1, 1973 for a period of two years. In the
absence of notice of cancellation, the term is automatically extended for additional two year periods. The term is
subject to cancellation by the City at any time, or upon the expiration of the two-year period, upon ninety days
notice. No cancellation will be effective unless and until approved by resolution or ordinance of City Council.

Management

Under the Management Agreement, PFMC is responsible for providing executive management of PGW.
The Management Agreement states that PFMC shall provide a chief executive officer, chief operating officer, chief
financial officer and other personnel as deemed appropriate by PFMC. Certain PEMC personnel provided to PGW,
including the chief executive officer, chief operating officer and the chief financial officer, are subject to the
approval of the Gas Commission. PFMC’ s officers also serve as officers of PGW.

The following are brief biographical descriptions of the current PFMC/PGW Senior Officers:

Thomas E. Knudsen, President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Knudsen joined PGW as Interim Chief
Financial Officer in March 2000. He served in that capacity until July 2001 when he was appointed Interim
President and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Knudsen was appointed to his present position by PFMC in June 2002.
Prior to joining PGW, Mr. Knudsen was the founding partner of The Woodside Group, a management consulting
firm located in Stamford, Connecticut specializing in utility economics and regulation. For over 25 years, Mr.
Knudsen advised industrial, commercial and residential customers and groups, as well as regulatory commissions,
regarding appropriate utility operations, budgeting, pricing and rate design issues. Mr. Knudsen's involvement with
PGW dates from 1986, having served as a consultant to the Public Advocate in all rate and budget proceedings of
PGW before the Gas Commission from 1986 until 2000. His prior experience includes management consulting with
Touche Ross & Co. (now Deloitte & Touche), as Assistant to the Finance Administrator of the City of New York
and the United States Navy Supply Corp. Mr. Knudsen received his Masters of Business Administration degree in
Finance from Columbia University in 1968 and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from Northwestern
University in 1964. He also serves on the Energy Association of Pennsylvania's Board of Directors and has recently
been reappointed to the American Gas Association's Board of Directors.

Craig E. White, Executive Vice President and Acting Chief Operating Officer. Mr. White was appointed
Acting Chief Operating Officer in July 2001. He is responsible for Field Operations, Customer Service, Sales and
Marketing, Corporate Preparedness, Information Services, and Gas Management issues. His previous positions at
PGW include: Senior Vice President, Marketing and Supply Services; Vice President, Marketing and New Business
Development; Manager, Gas Planning & Federal Regulatory Affairs; Administrator, Federal Regulatory Affairs;
Federal Regulatory Specialist; Planning Analyst; Demand Analyst; and Accounting Specialist. Mr. White received
his Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration from Kutztown University in Kutztown, Pennsylvania,
and Master of Business Administration degree in Financial Management from Drexel University. Mr. White has
been a member of PGW's management team since January 1980. He also serves on the following: American Public
Gas Association's Board, the American Gas Association’s Leadership Council and the Energy Association of
Pennsylvania's Executive Gas Board.

Joseph R. Bogdonavage, Senior Vice President — Finance. Mr. Bogdonavage was appointed Senior Vice
President, Finance in November 2000. His responsibilities include the oversight of PGW's Operating & Capital
Budget, Accounting & Reporting, and Treasury functions. Mr. Bogdonavage has over 36 years of diverse
experience in the finance area of PGW. He previously held the positions of Director, Budget & Financial
Forecasting; Manager, Budget & Financial Forecasting; Supervisor, Budget & Financial Forecasting; Accounting
Assistant Supervisor; and Budget Analyst. Mr. Bogdonavage is a member of the American Gas Association's
Financial and Administrative Committee and the Energy Association of Pennsylvania's Finance Committee. Mr.
Bogdonavage received his Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting in 1972 from Temple University.

Randall J. Gyory, Senior Vice President — Operations & Customer Affairs. Mr. Gyory was appointed
Senior Vice President of Operations and Customer Affairs in August 2007. His responsibilities include overseeing

the Distribution and Field Services Operations, Call Center Operations, Credit and Collections, Regulatory
Compliance, Account Management, Bill Processing, Universal Service Programs, Customer Service Center
Operations, Billing System operations and support. Prior to his current position, Mr. Gyory served as Vice President
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of Customer Affairs. He also managed PGW's Program Management Office and led a team of functional and
business analysts in correcting and improving the billing system software issues associated with the transition from
their legacy billing system to a client server system. In his twenty-nine years of experience at PGW, Mr. Gyory has
spent the majority of his career in the Distribution Department where he held several positions in Maintenance,
Construction and Engineering. Mr. Gyory received a Bachelor of Science degree in civil engineering from the
University of Pittsburgh.

Thomas L. Kuczynski. Senior Vice President — Office of Business Transformation & Information Services.
Mr. Kuczynski was appointed Senior Vice President of Business Transformation and Information Services in
August 2007. Mr. Kuczynski rejoined PGW in February 2004 as Vice President - Information Services & CIO. He
has over 30 years of experience in Information Technology including 18 years of prior experience at PGW. In his
present position, Mr. Kuczynski is responsible for all aspects of the Office of Business Transformation and
Information Services. He previously held the position of Director of Technology Strategic Planning for PG&E's
National Energy Group ("NEG"). In this role, he was responsible for new technology research and development,
strategy and architecture, business continuity planning, disaster recovery and security. Prior to joining NEG, Mr.
Kuczynski spent one year at Delmarva Power where he provided IT Strategic Planning Services to the Energy
Supply Group. Before Delmarva, Mr. Kuczynski spent 18 years at PGW where he led development efforts for
PGW's customer information system, credit and collection, automated meter reading and distribution leak tracking.
In 1993 Mr. Kuczynski was recognized by the American Gas Association with the Distribution Achievement Award
for his efforts in designing and building PGW's first mobile field service system. Mr. Kuczynski is a graduate of La
Salle College in Philadelphia, and the Executive MBA program at University of Maryland University College.

Abby L. Pozefsky, Esq., Senior Vice President — Administration and General Counsel. Ms. Pozefsky was
appointed Senior Vice President and General Counsel in July 1998, and Senior Vice President, Administration and
General Counsel in 2005. She manages the Human Resources, Organizational Development, Risk Management,
Technical Compliance and Legal Departments. Ms. Pozefsky previously held the position of Chief Deputy City
Solicitor of Regulatory Affairs for the City of Philadelphia Law Department, where she was also General Counsel
for the Philadelphia Water Department and Airport. Having been licensed in four states, Ms. Pozefsky practiced law
with a private law firm, a community legal services organization, and a state attorney general’s office, and has
taught on a university level. Ms. Pozefsky received her Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of
Pennsylvania cum laude and a Juris Doctor degree from New York University Law School.

Cristina Coltro. Vice President — Customer Affairs. Ms. Coltro was appointed Vice President of Customer
Affairs in 2007. Her responsibilities include overseeing the Call Center Operations, Credit and Collections,
Regulatory Compliance, Commercial Resource Center, Account Management, Bill Processing, and Customer
Service Center Operations. Prior to her current position, Ms. Coltro served as the Director of Regulatory
Compliance, responsible for the Universal Services programs, Customer Review Unit, Dispute Resolution Unit,
Program Management Office and Training Department. Ms. Coltro received her Bachelor of Science degree in
Economics from Hunter College, New York, and a Master of Science degree in Energy and Environmental
Management and Policy from the University of Pennsylvania. She also serves on the Utility Emergency Service
funds (UESF) Board of Directors, and is 2 member of the Energy Association of Pennsylvania and the American
Gas Association Customer Services committees.

Raquel N. Guzman, Esq., Vice President — Legal and Associate General Counsel. Ms. Guzman was
appointed Vice President - Legal in August 2005 and Associate General Counsel in 2003. She, together with the

General Counsel and Assistant General Counsel, is responsible for PGW's Legal Department. Prior to joining
PGW's legal staff, Ms. Guzman was a Deputy City Solicitor for Regulatory Affairs for the City of Philadelphia and
also practiced at a major Philadelphia law firm in its real estate department. She holds a Juris Doctor degree from the
University of Pennsylvania Law School and an undergraduate degree from Harvard College.

Michael W. Handwerk, Vice President — Technical Compliance. Mr. Handwerk was appointed Vice
President of Technical Compliance in September 2005. In this capacity, he is responsible for services to Operations
involving regulatory compliance, chemical laboratory analyses and environmental related activities, as well as
development and implementation of operational changes and best practices. Mr. Handwerk's previous position was
Director, Operations Compliance & Technical Services. He has been with PGW since 1979. Mr. Handwerk is a
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member of the American Gas Association’s Operations Safety Regulatory Action Committee (OSRAC) and the
American Public Gas Association’s Operations Committee. He is also a member of the Energy Association of
Pennsylvania’s Gas Transmission and Distribution Committee, and the American Chemical Society. Mr. Handwerk
has a B.S. degree in Chemistry from Elizabethtown College, a B.A. degree in Corporate Management from Ursinus
College, and a M.B.A. in Financial Management from Saint Joseph's University.

Steven P. Hershey, Vice President — Regulatory & External Affairs. Mr. Hershey joined PGW as Vice
President, Community Initiatives in January 2004 and was appointed Vice President — Regulatory & External

Affairs in January 2006. In his current position, Mr. Hershey’s primary responsibility is working with the President
and CEO and senior management regarding certain regulatory and stakeholder matters and developing initiatives to
enhance PGW’s regulatory and legislative goals as well as improving PGW’s relationship with various stakeholders,
including customers. Prior to joining PGW, Mr. Hershey was a partner in the law firm of Eckert, Seamans, Cherin &
Mellott, LLC of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. He represented clients in matters involving energy,
telecommunications, and utility policy, implementation of competition, rate setting, conservation, customer service
and economics. Prior to becoming a partner at Eckert, Seamans, Cherin & Mellott, LL.C, Mr. Hershey was a
Supervising Attorney for Community Legal Services of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. While at CLS, Mr. Hershey
served as Lead Attorney for the Public Advocate, representing the interests of residential customers of Philadelphia
utilities from 1985 to 1998. Mr. Hershey’s involvement with PGW dates back to approximately 1977 when he began
representing PGW’s residential customers. Mr. Hershey has more than 30 years of experience in the utility and
energy field, including the practice of law. Mr. Hershey holds a B.A. degree from Hamilton College and a Juris
Doctor degree from Georgetown University Law Center.

Paul A. Mondimore, Vice President — Field Operations. Mr. Mondimore was appointed Vice President,
Field Operations in October 2002. He is responsible for PGW's Distribution and Field Services Departments. He
previously held many positions at PGW in the Distribution Department since commencing employment in June
1981 including: Director, Distribution Department; Project Manager, Mobile Dispatch Project; General Supervisor;
and Supervisor. Mr. Mondimore received his Bachelor of Science degree in Civil Engineering from Drexel
University. He has been a member of the American Gas Association, AGA Best Practices Group and the Energy
Association of Pennsylvania.

Douglas A. Moser, Vice President — Gas Management. Mr. Moser was appointed Vice President, Gas
Management in October 2002. He is responsible for PGW’s Gas Processing; Gas Supply, Transportation &
Control; Gas Planning, Rates & Federal Regulatory; and Engineering & Facilities Departments. Since commencing
employment in September 1979 at PGW, he has held the following positions: Senior Project Manager in the
Strategic Planning Department; Manager, Gas Control and Manager, Gas Acquisition in the Gas Supply
Department; and Engineering Assistant, Production Engineer, Supervisor, Gas Conditioning, and Operations
Engineer in the Gas Processing Department. Mr. Moser received his Bachelor of Science degree in Chemical
Engineering from Pennsylvania State University and his Master in Business Administration degree from Widener
University.

Jo Ann Muniz, Vice President — Supply Chain. Ms. Muniz was appointed Vice President of Supply Chain
in August 2007. She is responsible for PGW's Fleet Operations, Procurement and Materials Management
Departments. Since commencing employment in July 1980 as an Engineering Assistant in Gas Supply, she has held
many positions at PGW including: Fleet Engineer in Fleet Operations; Staff Engineer in the Engineering
Department; and Internships in Field Services and Customer Affairs; Co-Project Manager of the Work Management
and Mobile Project Team; Project Manager of Customer Service Training and Process Development; Director,
Procurement and Contract Services and Director, Fleet Operations and Materials Management. She most recently
held the position of Director, Support Services. She serves as Chair of the Energy Association of Pennsylvania’s
Materials and Procurement Management Committee. She holds a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from Temple
University and a M.S. in Electrical Engincering from Pennsylvania State University.

William C. Muntzer, Vice President — Human Resources. Mr. Muntzer was appointed Vice President,
Human Resources in August 2008. Mr. Muntzer oversees the administration function of Human Resources and
Labor Relations. He has approximately 27 years experience of utility management in Philadelphia, Pennsyivania.
Areas of responsibility include project management, local, state and federal regulatory work, advocacy, information
technology, planning, rate design, marketing and utility operations. Mr. Muntzer also has experience in the
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manufacturing sector: responsibilities included inventory control, planning, production scheduling and shipping.
Recent accomplishments include several major utility initiatives including the implementation of the Pennsylvania
Gas Choice Initiative, replacement of a city wide dispatching system for over 400 field employees, the
refurbishment of a large meter testing facility, and oversight of a Management Audit conducted on behalf of the
Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission. Mr. Muntzer earned his undergraduate and graduate degrees at LaSalle
University's Business School.

Joseph A. Smith, Vice President — Marketing & Sales. Mr. Smith was appointed Vice President, Marketing
& Sales in May 2005. Mr. Smith oversees the operations of Major Accounts, Sales and Customer Support and
Business Development/Technical Services. He previously held the position of Director, Major Accounts; Manager,
Major Accounts as well as other positions within the Marketing Department. In addition, he has held several
positions in PGW's Field Operations Department. Mr. Smith received his Bachelors Degree in Business
Administration in 2004. Mr. Smith has served as the President of the Association of Energy Engineers (AEE), in
which he now serves as a Board member. He is currently a member of the American Public Gas Association's
Marketing Committee and the American Society of Heating, Refrigeration and Air Conditioning Engineers
(ASHRAE).

John P. Straub, Vice President — Corporate Preparedness. Mr. Straub was appointed Vice President of
Corporate Preparedness (formerly known as Labor, Safety and Preparedness) in April 2003. He is responsible for
matters including Safety, Security, Policies & Procedures, Business Continuity & Disaster Planning, and
Occupational Health & Safety. Mr. Straub previously held the position of Vice President — Human Resources
Department. Before coming to PGW in January 1999, Mr. Straub headed the Special Litigation Group for the City
of Philadelphia's Law Department where he was responsible for the management and supervision of all employment
law related matters and litigation involving the City of Philadelphia. Mr. Straub also previously worked as an
Assistant District Attorney for the Philadelphia District Attorney's office. He holds a Juris Doctor degree from
Temple University School of Law and is a graduate of Villanova University.

Lorraine S. Webb. Vice President - Organizational Development. Ms. Webb was appointed Vice President
of Organizational Development in May 2005. She is responsible for Staffing, Performance Management, Succession

Planning, EEO, Affirmative Action, Training and Development and the Leadership Development program. Ms.
Webb previously held the position of Director of Strategic Planning and prior to that Director of Human Resources
for PGW. Before joining PGW, Ms. Webb held various positions in the field of human resources. Previous positions
included Manager of Human Resources, Affirmative Action Officer for Ciba Geigy (now Novartis), as well as
Senior Career Transition Counselor for the Ayers Group of New York. Ms. Webb holds a B.A. degree from State
University of New York-Binghamton. She is a member of SHRM.

Eloise N. Young, Vice President — Information Services & Chief Information Officer. Ms. Young was
appointed Chief Information Officer of the Philadelphia Gas Works in August 2007. As CIO, Ms. Young is
responsible for delivering information technology capabilities to PGW. Prior to this appointment, Ms. Young
served in a number of positions in PGW's Information Services Department including Director of Technical Strategy
and Support, Manager of Systems Services, System Administrator in both the Unix and CICS environments, DBA,
and applications developer. Ms. Young received a Bachelor of Science degree in Information Technology from the
University of Phoenix in 2003.

Joseph F. Golden, Jr., Controller. Mr. Golden was appointed Controller in March 2001. He is responsible
for the treasury and accounting functions at PGW. Prior titles held by Mr. Golden at PGW include: Treasurer;
Manager - Treasury Department; Senior Staff Accountant; and Staff Accountant. Mr. Golden started his career with
PGW in August of 1986. Mr. Golden has prior work experience in public accounting, treasury accounting and cash
management, and manufacturing. Mr. Golden holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from Villanova
University, a Master of Business Administration degree from Drexel University, and a Juris Doctor degree, cum
laude, from Temple University School of Law.

Management and Governance of the Gas Works

Thomas E. Knudsen was appointed as President and Chief Executive Officer in 2002. PGW’s permanent
management organization is outlined in the Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report attached hereto as
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APPENDIX B. Governance includes (i) ownership of PGW property and establishment of legislation for the
functioning of PGW by the City; (ii) approval by City Council of capital budgets and certain gas supply contracts for
PGW; (iii) review and approval by the Gas Commission of personnel provided by PFMC and operating budgets, and
recommendation by the Gas Commission to City Council of certain gas supply contracts, real estate matters and
capital budgets; and (iv) provisions of executive management functions and directions for operation of PGW
facilities by PFMC. PGW personnel are responsible for the day to day management of the construction, operation
and maintenance of the gas system.. Any changes in governance of PGW must be made pursuant to ordinances
adopted by City Council.

Labor Relations

As of March 2009, PGW employed 1,718 people. Presently, approximately 71% of PGW’s employees are
represented by the Gas Works Employees’ Union Local 686 ("Local 686™). Local 686 transferred affiliation from
the Service Employees International Union ("SEIU") to the Utility Workers Union of America ("UWUA") in 2003.
On October 17, 2006, a new two-year Collective Bargaining Agreement was ratified by the Gas Works Employees'
Union, Local 686 and the UWUA. The two-year extension went into effect on May 19, 2008 and will be valid
through May 15, 2010. The Collective Bargaining Agreement includes an incremental wage increase of 3.5% in
May 2009.

Facilities

Gas Facilities. The principal PGW gas facilities include plants for the liquefaction, storage and/or
vaporization of natural gas in the Richmond and Passyunk sections of the City. Located at these plants are two LNG
facilities, a deactivated propane/air facility and two gas holders, one of which has been removed from service.

Gate Stations. Natural gas is received through nine city gate stations from two pipeline transmission
companies, Spectra Energy ("Spectra") and Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation. The facilities at each of
the city gate stations perform two basic functions, metering the flow of gas and controlling the pressure delivered to
PGW’s distribution system. Dispatchers at the gas control center, located at PGW’s operating offices at 1800 N. g%
Street, Philadelphia, monitor and control gas flow and pressure from the nine city gate stations to the high pressure
distribution system. The gas control dispatchers also provide direction to the LNG production plant operators
concerning startup, shutdown and gas flow output from the LNG facilities. Operations are facilitated through the
use of a computer system which includes a backup unit and an auxiliary power supply.

Propane/Air Facility. The propane/air facility exists at the Passyunk location only. This facility has been
idle since 1994 due to PGW removing this capacity from service. Its use is not anticipated in the current six-year
gas supply projection.

Gas Holder Storage Facilities. The Richmond Plant has a low pressure gas holder. The Passyunk Plant
holder has been removed from service. The Richmond holder has an operating capacity of 1,000 Mcf. It was
installed in the manufactured gas era and is in working order. It is used to enhance operational flexibility of the
Richmond LNG Plant.

LNG Facilities. There are two LNG facilities, the Richmond Plant and the Passyunk Plant. The smaller
LNG storage and vaporization facility at the Passyunk Plant receives its liquefied gas supply from the larger
Richmond Plant via cryogenic trailer trucks. The Passyunk LNG facility consists of one LNG storage tank of
3,066,000 gallons gross capacity (i.e., the equivalent of 253,300 thousand cubic feet ("Mcf"} of natural gas) and two
LNG vaporizers, each having a capacity of 45,000 Mcf per day resulting in 45,000 Mcf per day planned capacity
and 45,000 Mcf per day reserve.

The Richmond LNG plant is one of the largest liquefaction facilities in the United States and also includes
storage and vaporization facilities. A new liquefaction facility was completed and tested in March 2005, which
replaced the original modified liquefaction facility which was subsequently moth balled. The new facility utilizes an
open expander loop technology. It has a daily liquefaction capacity of 16,000 to 18,000 Mcf per day. This
technology utilizes energy from the high transmission delivery pressure of the interstate pipeline system throughput
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to run the expander/compressors, significantly reducing fuel requirements. In addition, these facilities have the
capability to liquefy natural gas year round providing greater operational flexibility. Further, this technology utilizes
significantly fewer components than the older modified cascade facility and should result in lower operation and
maintenance costs. The maximum capacity of the liquefaction facilities of 18,000 Mcf per day will not be available
at all times during the summer months because the demand on the PGW system is not sufficient to create the
throughput necessary to run at this capacity.

The vaporization and storage facilities at the Richmond Plant are not affected by the new liquefaction
facilities. The two storage tanks at the Richmond Plant have a combined gross capacity of 48,970,000 gallons of
LNG (4,045,800 Mcf). Regasification of the liquid natural gas is accomplished with six vaporizers having a total
output of 411,000 Mcf per day plus 100,000 Mcf per day in reserve. The Richmond Plant also has facilities to
receive LNG from and deliver LNG to cryogenic trailer trucks.

Distribution Facilities. The principal gas distribution facilities consist of approximately 3,024 miles of
main, 466,814 service lines, 208 regulator stations, approximately 563,287 meters (of which approximately 519,890
are active) and miscellaneous valves, instruments and other appurtenances. PGW operates five different operating
pressure systems; each system is connected to the others by control regulators. The high-pressure systems operate at
approximately 110, 60 and 35 pounds per square inch gauge (psig); the intermediate pressure system operates at 5
psig; the low-pressure system operates between 6 and 9 inches of water column (approximately 0.25 pounds per
square inch). The majority of customers are served from the low-pressure system.

Approximately 53% (by length) of the gas mains are cast iron, 33% are steel, 4% are ductile iron, and 10%
are plastic. Of the steel mains, approximately 49% are wrapped, coated, and cathodically protected. Approximately
35% of the service lines are steel (of which 13% are protected) and 64% are plastic.

Other Facilities. PGW has its executive and operating offices located at 800 West Montgomery Avenue,
which is a 150,000 square foot office building constructed in 1988. The former general office building, located at
1800 N. 9th Street, houses administrative operations in addition to distribution and field service dispatch centers, gas
control dispatching, a customer information center, operating stations, a post office, duplicating center, radio repair
shop, training facilities, parking facilities, teleccommunication and warehousing, as well as information systems
center and a metal fabrication shop. Additional facilities include six district offices, the Tioga station for
Distribution crews, two LNG plants, and three operating stations for field service crews. There are also five other
warchousing facilities, a meter shop, and an automotive maintenance and repair facility. The automotive
maintenance and repair facility is responsible for the upkeep of PGW’s fleet of approximately 694 vehicles 100
portable compressors and 42 trailers. PGW also maintains three minor automobile repair facilities, bulk fuel
dispensing equipment, and materials and supplies.

Environmental Matters

PGW’s operations and facilities are subject to federal, state and local environmental requirements,
including the need to obtain certain permits and approvals. Because these requirements are subject to change,
additional or different requirements may be imposed upon PGW in the future. No assurances can be given that
PGW would be able to fully comply with any such change or requirement, or that compliance with such
requirements would not materially increase PGW’s capital or operating costs, or have a material adverse effect on
Gas Works Revenues.

Like many providers of utility services throughout the northeastern United States, PGW has been in
operation for more than 168 years, and many of its facilities were built decades ago. As a result of preliminary
internal environmental evaluations of its facilities, PGW believes that several PGW facilities, which had been used
in gas manufacturing, contain contaminants from those operations or from other sources. Additionaily, certain
equipment and fixtures that PGW removed from service years ago may no longer comply with current
environmental requirements. In order to address these issues, PGW and the City voluntarily approached the
Pennsylvania Department of Environmental Protection ("PADEP") and proposed to resolve these issues under
PADEP’s Land Recycling and Environmental Remediation Standards (Act 2).
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PGW has determined the extent to which it is necessary to remediate environmental conditions impacting
its facilities through environmental site assessment studies that were conducted by an environmental consulting firm
(the "Firm") on relevant properties in 2002, 2003 and 2004. In 2004, PGW received a set of five remedial
investigation reports by the Firm that were based upon the findings of the environmental site assessment studies.
Based on the reports developed by the Firm, PGW submitted Notice of Intent to Remediation ("NIR") Forms with
copies of the five Firm reports to the PADEP for review at the end of 2004. In early 2005, PGW conducted a series
of public meetings to inform the public of PGW’s upcoming remediation projects, and also to address any specific
concerns raised by local residents regarding PGW’s future remediation plans.

PGW has developed a project schedule and budget to address and conduct any necessary remedial work for
impacted PGW properties over the next five years. PGW expects that this will provide PGW with allocated
resources in a manner calculated to avoid any material adverse effect on PGW or on PGW’s revenues.
Nevertheless, until the Project schedule work plans are finalized with the PADEDP, it is not possible to determine
with quantifiable certainty what the costs of several remediation projects will be. Preliminary indications are that
PGW expenditures are estimated to be $10,828,000 over the next six years. These estimates, which were calculated
in accordance with GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation
Obligations, may be subject to substantial revision. PGW has recorded a total environmental remediation liability of
$24,043,000 through FY 2040 at the end of fiscal year 2008 for these and all known estimated future environmental
costs in accordance with GASB 49. The majority of these expenses are expected to be covered by amounts
generated from settlements of PGW's environmental insurance policies.

Gas Supply and Federal Regulation

In 1992, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ("FERC") issued Order 636 which restructured the
interstate pipeline industry to provide non-discriminatory, open-access to all transporters. All interstate pipelines
regulated by the FERC were required to exit the gas supply business as a result of Order 636. The interstate
pipelines were historically permitted by the FERC to pass through, on a dollar-for-dollar basis, all of their gas
supply costs to the pipelines’ customers. Therefore, the revenues of the pipelines pledged to their bonds remained
unchanged by Order 636 simply because of the historical pass-through nature of the pipelines’ gas supply costs.

In the restructured, unbundled marketplace resulting from Order 636, PGW had to contract individually for
its gas supply, storage and transportation requirements on the pipelines. PGW now has in place firm year round and
seasonal contracts for natural gas supply for its firm requirements. Further, PGW has contracted for natural gas
storage services with four different pipelines operating storage facilities. This permits, among other things, the
injection of summer supply and its storage and subsequent withdrawal to meet higher winter demands of its firm
heating customers. Finally, PGW has contracted for firm transportation service with the two directly connected
pipelines, as well as with the necessary upstream pipelines feeding these pipelines, to deliver all volumes purchased,
together with those volumes withdrawn from storage.

The two interstate pipelines delivering natural gas to PGW have limited delivery capacity and cannot meet
PGW’s peak-day or winter season requirements. Therefore, PGW owns and operates supplemental LNG facilities to
meet incremental demand in excess of flowing gas and underground storage supplies. PGW’s supplies of natural
gas and LNG are adequate to meet its projected demand under either normal or design (colder than normal)
conditions in the future.

Competition

PGW is subject to the Natural Gas Choice and Competition Act No. 1999-21, PL. 122, 66 Pa. CS.
Section 2201 et seq. (the "Gas Choice Act"). Pursuant to the Gas Choice Act, customers have the option of choice
among natural gas suppliers on and after September 1, 2003. See the section below titled "EFFECTS OF
NATURAL GAS CHOICE AND COMPETITION ACT" for a full discussion of the Gas Choice Act’s impact on
competition. PGW competes to supply natural gas to interruptible customers who are capable of switching to
alternative fuels, including fuel oil, steam, propane and electricity. PGW also competes to supply natural gas to
transportation customers who might seek to buy gas from a competitive natural gas supplier and use PGW’s
distribution system for transportation of that gas. PGW has negotiated contracts with such customers. In addition,
PGW’s rate schedules offer gas transportation service, on both a firm and interruptible basis, to potential customers.
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PGW also has Boiler and Power Plant Services ("BPS") and Load Balancing Service ("LBS") interruptible sales
rates that permit discounts to compete with alternative fuels, provided that the rate per Mcf is not less than 110% of
the monthly weighted average gas costs for gas sold under these rate schedules.

Insurance

PGW is exposed to various risks of loss related to: torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. While self-insured for many risks, PGW
purchases insurance coverage where appropriate. PGW’s real and personal property is insured against the risk of
loss or damage in the amount of $250,000,000, subject to a $500,000 per accident deductible at the Richmond and
Passyunk Plants and a $100,000 deductible per accident at all other locations. PGW’s property insurance includes
coverage for damages incurred from a terrorist attack. In addition, PGW maintains boiler and machinery, blanket
crime, and other forms of property insurance.

PGW maintains $210,000,000 in liability (including terrorism) coverage insuring against the risk of
damage or injury to the public with a $1,000,000 deductible per occurrence.

PGW is a qualified self insured employer in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for workers’
compensation. In addition, PGW maintains excess workers’ compensation liability coverage up to $35,000,000 with
a $500,000 per occurrence retention. Above that is another layer of coverage for statutory limits which means that
regardless of the size of the loss, the policy will pay whatever PGW must pay. The excess liability coverage
described above applies after the $500,000 retention is exhausted. PGW is also qualified to self-insure its
automobile liability in the Commonwealth.

PGW maintains Public Officials (Directors and Officers) liability coverage with a $10,000,000 annual
aggregate limit and a $500,000 retention.

Pension Plan and Other Postemployment Benefits

Pension Plan. PGW maintains a noncontributory pension plan (the "Pension Plan") covering all eligible
employees, which provides certain retirement benefits at age 65, or earlier in certain situations, and certain death and
disability benefits. The Pension Plan currently has an unfunded actuarial accrued liability. In recent years,
payments to beneficiaries under the Pension Plan have exceeded PGW’s annual required pension contribution. The
annual required contribution is determined using the most recent actuarial study of the Pension Plan. Based on the
actuarial valuation completed in April, 2008, the Pension Plan had an estimated unfunded actuarial accrued liability
of $64.8 million at the end of Fiscal Year 2008. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is presently being
amortized over 20 years. In Fiscal Year 2008, PGW’s annual required contribution to the Pension Plan was $14.2
million, such contribution consisted of $8.0 million of normal cost and $6.2 million representing partial amortization
of the unfunded balance of the Pension Plan assets. PGW’s annual required contribution for Fiscal Year 2009 is
projected to be and budgeted at $14.4 million (consisting of $8.1 million of normal cost and $6.3 million
representing partial amortization of the unfunded balance of Pension Plan assets). See APPENDIX A — "Notes to
Financial Statements (10) Pension Costs.”

Other Postemployment Benefits. PGW provides certain post-employment health care and life insurance
benefits to approximately 1,920 and 1,935 participating retirees and their beneficiaries and dependents, respectively.
PGW pays up to 100% of premiums for medical, hospital and prescription drug coverage for retirees and their
participating dependents. PGW also pays a portion of the premiums for life insurance for each eligible retiree.
Currently, PGW provides for the cost of health care and life insurance benefits for retirees and their beneficiaries
and dependents on a pay-as-you-go basis. In Fiscal Year 2008, expenditures for such purposes were approximately
$18.3 million and are projected to be approximately $20.9 million in Fiscal Year 2009.

PGW adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45 (GASB 45),
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions, as of
September 1, 2006 and had a zero net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) obligation at transition. PGW
adopted the provisions of GASB 45 a year earlier than required by GASB because PGW is a component unit of the
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City of Philadelphia for financial reporting purposes, and its fiscal year 2007 financial statements were consolidated
into the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The difference between the fiscal year
2008 annual required contribution (ARC) of $44.1 million and the expenses paid by the company of $18.3 million
resulted in an additional liability of $25.8 million, bringing the cumulative OPEB liability at the end of fiscal year
2008 to $52.2 million, which is recorded in other liabilities and deferred credits.

PGW engaged actuarial consultants to provide an actuarial valuation of PGW’s other postemployment
benefits ("OPEB") obligations for current retirees and active employees as of August 31, 2007. The report, issued in
September 2007, estimated that PGW’s total OPEB actuarial accrued liability as of August 31, 2008 was
$591,599,000 (assuming a 5% discount rate) if PGW continued to provide for its OPEB obligations on a
pay-as-you-go basis. The report further estimated that PGW’s actuarial accrued liability would be reduced to
$380,000,000 (assuming an 8.25% discount rate) if PGW adopted a policy of funding its Annual Required
Contribution ("ARC"). Based on these estimates, PGW’s annual OPEB cost for the then current and estimated
future retirees (taking into consideration projected increases in health care costs) was projected to increase from
$46,291,000 in 2008 (inclusive of the $22,350,000 actually paid) to $70,210,000 per annum over the ensuing
approximate 18-year period on a pay-as-you-go basis and from $39,000,000 (inclusive of the $22,350,000 actually
paid) in 2008 to $49,767,000 per annum over the ensuing approximate 18-year period if PGW adopted a policy of
funding its ARC based on a 20-year amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Litigation

In the ordinary course of their business operations, PGW and/or PFMC are from time to time sued or
threatened with litigation. Most frequently such litigation alleges property damage or personal injury to third
parties. However, other forms of litigation also arise from time to time. PGW is aware of no litigation pending or
threatened in which a final adverse determination, singly or in the aggregate, would have a material adverse effect
on PGW's operations or financial condition. PGW believes it has set aside sufficient reserves to meet liabilities
arising out of litigation to the extent not covered by insurance. See "PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS — Litigation
Relating to the Gas Choice Act” below.

Effects of the Natural Gas Choice and Competition Act

In June 1999, the Legislature enacted and the Governor signed the Gas Choice Act, which amended the
Public Utility Code by providing for the implementation of choice of suppliers of natural gas for all retail customers
of gas distribution companies. The Gas Choice Act requires each natural gas utility under Pennsylvania Public
Utility Commission ("PUC") jurisdiction (including PGW) to "unbundle” and establish separate charges for natural
gas supply services and natural gas distribution services. It provided that each natural gas distribution utility will
file a restructuring proceeding with the PUC and, in the context of that proceeding, the utility’s tariff has been
revised to reflect the unbundling referred to above and to implement customer choice. In addition, the Gas Choice
Act provided that PGW be subject to regulation by the PUC effective July 1, 2000, and directed that PGW file for
restructuring of the rates. PGW filed for restructuring on July 1, 2002, Most issues related to restructuring
proceeding were resolved by September 1, 2003, and PGW customers have had the option of choice among natural
gas suppliers effective September 1, 2003 as explained above in the section titled "PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
— Competition.” PGW will continue to be the supplier of last resort for retail customers who do not choose another
gas supplier in most instances, unless, upon petition of PGW, the PUC approves an alternative supplier of last resort
or, after July 1, 2004, the PUC approves a petition from a party to serve in that capacity for certain groups of
customers. As of May 1, 2009, no party has petitioned the PUC to serve as an alternative supplier of last resort.

Notwithstanding the initiation of customer choice in gas suppliers, PGW’s gas distribution business
remains a regulated monopoly. After the initiation of gas choice, customers may purchase gas from other natural
gas suppliers or choose to continue to buy natural gas from PGW. Whomever consumers choose as their supplier,
all customers continue to receive their gas through PGW’s distribution system of mains and pipes to homes and
businesses, and continue to pay a distribution charge to PGW for that service. PGW continues to provide gas to its
customers that elect PGW as their supplier and to those who cannot obtain natural gas from an alternate supplier.
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The structure of the unbundled services and the rates for each service are set forth in PGW’s restructured
tariff, which went into effect on September 1, 2003 (the "Restructuring Filing"). These unbundled rates are
designed to realize the same level of margin revenues experienced by PGW prior to restructuring.

The Gas Choice Act contains provisions which are designed to (i) preserve the tax-exempt status of bonds
or other obligations issued by the City for PGW, including the Bonds, (ii) preserve the ability of the City to comply
with its covenants, including the City’s covenants with respect to the imposition and collection of rates and charges,
to the Holders of such bonds and other obligations, including the Bonds, and (iii) require rates be set for PGW
utilizing the ratemaking methodology and requirements that were applicable to PGW's natural gas distribution
operation prior to the assumption of jurisdiction by the PUC. The Gas Choice Act provides, among other things:

. As of July 1, 2000, PGW is regulated by the PUC and, except as otherwise provided in the Gas
Choice Act, the provisions of the Public Utility Code apply to PGW and the PUC sets rates for PGW’s customers.

. Notwithstanding customer choice in gas supplies, PGW gas distribution business will be regulated
as a monopoly.

. In setting rates and notwithstanding any other provision of the Public Utility Code, the PUC must
permit PGW to impose, charge and collect rates or charges as necessary to permit the City to comply with its
covenants to the Holders of any Approved Bonds, as defined in the Gas Choice Act. All bonds issued by the City on
behalf of PGW under the Act, including the Bonds, are Approved Bonds.

. The PUC is obligated to use the same rate-making methodology and requirements used by PGW
until all Approved Bonds are repaid or defeased. The methodology employed by PGW is a "cash flow" method, not
a "rate of return" method.

. The PUC is barred from requiring the City or PGW to take any action (or to omit taking any
action) under the Public Utility Code if such action or omission would have the effect of causing the interest on any
tax exempt bonds issued by the City, including the Bonds, to be includable in the gross income of the Holders of
such bonds for federal income tax purposes.

. The Gas Choice Act permits, but does not require, the PUC to approve a senior citizen discount.
On September 30, 2004, the PUC denied PGW's request to continue the senior discount program for
post-September 1, 2003, applicants. Since September 1, 2003, the program is not available to new participants.

. Effective June 30, 2000, Gas Commission powers and duties were abrogated to the extent
inconsistent with the Gas Choice Act.

. The City cannot be required to take any action under the Public Utility Code if the effect of the
action is to cause a variance in the City's financial plan approved by the Pennsylvania Intergovernmental
Cooperation Authority.

. The City's executive or legislative powers to "legislate or otherwise determine the powers,
functions, budgets, activities and mission of PGW" are not abrogated or limited.

Senior Citizen Discount Program

The Senior Citizen Discount Program is a closed program. PGW currently has approximately 37,000
participants in its Senior Citizen Discount Program. All participants currently in the program were "grandfathered”
in when the PUC discontinued it in September 2003. In 2004 there were approximately 70,000 "grandfathered”
participants in the program. The senior citizen discount amounts to a 20% reduction on the participant’s total gas
bill each month.
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Act 201 — "Responsible Utility Customer Protection Act"

In November 2004, the Pennsylvania Legislature passed and the Governor signed Act 201, entitled the
"Responsible Utility Customer Protection Act.” Under specified conditions, PGW may shut off service to
delinquent customers during the winter and on Fridays. To shut off service to non-low-income customers during
winter months, PGW is no longer required to first obtain PUC permission. PGW may now require customers whose
service has been shut off to pay past due bills, arrange for a payment agreement, pay a reconnect fee, and/or pay a
deposit before it restores service. Act 201 also permits PGW to hold any adult living in a home where service has
been shut off accountable for all or part of an overdue balance before the adult can obtain service in his or her name.

Act 201 provides a number of other tools to help PGW collect payment. Under Act 201:
1. The time allowed to terminate service following shut-off notification was extended to 60 -days.

2. Shut-off with notice is permitted if the customer does not pay a required deposit, does not follow
through with payment arrangements or refuses to allow PGW access to its equipment.

3. Shut-off without notice is permitted for theft of service, obtaining service through fraud,
tampering with a gas meter or unsafe service conditions.

4, Winter (December 1- March 31) termination is now permitted under specified conditions without
PUC prior approval if the customer's household income exceeds 150 percent of the federal poverty
level.

CITY GOVERNMENTAL OVERSIGHT
Gas Commission

The Management Agreement provides for a five member Gas Commission consisting of the City
Controller, two members appointed by City Council and two members appointed by the Mayor, and vests in the Gas
Commission the responsibility for overseeing the operation by PFMC of PGW. The City Controller holds office
during his incumbency. The members appointed by the City Council and the Mayor each serve for terms of four
years and hold office unti! their successors are appointed and qualified. The current members of the Gas
Commission are listed below:

Marian B. Tasco. Chairwoman. Ms. Tasco represents the Ninth District in City Council where she also
serves as Majority Leader. Councilwoman Tasco was appointed to the Gas Commission by City Council on
August 2, 1992 and has served as Chairwoman since that time. She was reappointed to the Gas Commission by City
Council on January 24, 2008 for a term ending January 7, 2012.

Alan L. Butkovitz. Mr. Butkovitz is the City Controller of the City. Mr. Butkovitz has served as
Controller and a member of the Gas Commission since January 2, 2006. Mr. Butkovitz’s current term expires on
January 3, 2010. He has duly appointed Harvey M. Rice, First Deputy City Controller, and Robert Jaffe, Director of
Legal Policy for the City Controller’s Office, to serve as an Alternate Commissioner in his absence.

Carmen E. Adames. Ms. Adames is the President of Adames Professional Services, an accounting and
business consulting firm primarily serving Hispanic-owned businesses. She is the past Treasurer and past President
of the Philadelphia Hispanic Chamber of Commerce. She was appointed to the Gas Commission by Mayor
Michael A. Nutter on March 26, 2008.

Royal E. Brown. Mr. Brown is the Vice President, Treasury Services for Independence Blue Cross. Mr.
Brown was appointed to the Gas Commission by then Mayor Edward G. Rendell on August 8, 1996 and has served
continuously since that time. He was reappointed to the Gas Commission by Mayor Michael A. Nutter on
March 26, 2008.



Curtis Jones, Jr. Mr. Jones represents the Fourth District in City Council where he also serves as Chairman
of the Committee on Transportation & Public Utilities. He was appointed to the Gas Commission by City Council
on January 24, 2008 for a term ending January 7, 2012,

The Management Agreement grants the Gas Commission certain specified powers and duties and other
powers not specifically granted to PFMC. The powers and duties granted to the Gas Commission include the fixing
of PGW rates and charges (now the jurisdiction of the PUC), approval of personnel provided by PFMC, review of
gas supply contracts for approval by City Council, approval of changes in tests and standards of gas quality and
pressure, approval of PGW’s operating budget, review of PGW’s capital budgets and recommendations thereon to
City Council, approval of certain loans (but not issuance of bonds), access to and review of all books, records and
accounts of PGW, prescription of insurance requirements, promulgation of standards for procurement and disposal
of material, supplies and services and approval of all real property acquisitions, sales and leases for further approval
of City Council.

PGW BUDGET, RATES AND FINANCES

The revenues which PGW ‘uses to pay debt service on its indebtedness and to fund its operations are
derived primarily from the sale of gas distribution and related services to its customers. Rate and tariff charges for
the sale of gas services are proposed by PGW based on, among other factors, anticipated revenues and expenses,
required working capital, required debt service coverage and need for funds for capital expenditures.

Budget Approval

The Management Agreement requires PGW to prepare an annual operating budget and an operating
forecast for the three years following the budget year. The operating budget and forecast are subject to the approval
of the Gas Commission. PGW also prepares annually a proposed capital budget and a forecast for the five years
following the budget year. The Gas Commission and the Director of Finance of the City review the capital budget
and forecast and forward it, together with their recommendations, to City Council for its approval.

The Gas Commission holds public hearings on the budgets at which PGW and other interested parties are
permitted to present evidence to support their positions. Community Legal Services, Inc. was appointed by the Gas
Commission in 1988 to serve as Public Advocate and continues to represent residential customers in budget
proceedings. The Gas Commission considers a number of factors before determining whether to accept, modify or
reject the budgets proposed by PGW. Based on its findings, the Gas Commission issues an order regarding the
operating budget. The capital budget and forecast are reviewed by the Director of Finance of the City and by the
Gas Commission, and are forwarded to City Council for approval. The Gas Commission order regarding the
operating budget and the City Council ordinance regarding the capital budget may direct PGW to reduce expenses in
certain areas or increase spending on certain items or to undertake specific projects. This process remains
unchanged after passage of the Gas Choice Act which provides that the City continues to determine PGW’s budget
function.

Rates and Charges

The rates charged by PGW for providing gas service are subject to various statutory provisions. The 1975
General Ordinance, the 1998 General Ordinance, the Note Ordinance and the Management Agreement, the complete
text of which was authorized by ordinance, each contain a rate covenant. See APPENDIX D for further descriptions
of the 1975 General Ordinance and the 1998 General Ordinance. PGW’s rates are also subject to regulation under
the Public Utility Code by virtue of the Gas Choice Act.

Section 2212(b) of the Public Utility Code transferred rate setting authority for PGW from the Gas
Commission to PUC, effective July 1, 2000. Section 2212(e) of the Public Utility Code requires the PUC,
notwithstanding any other Public Utility Code provision, to follow the "same ratemaking methodology and
requirements” that were applied by the Gas Commission, when determining PGW’s revenue requirements and
overall rates and charges. The Gas Choice Act requires the PUC to follow that ratemaking methodology until all
"approved bonds have been retired, redeemed, advance refunded or otherwise defeased." Approved Bonds are those
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obligations issued in accordance with the Act or the Inventory and Receivables Financing Act and which were
outstanding as of July 1, 2000, or which are issued on or after July 1, 2000, unless City Council declares such bonds
not to be "approved.” All 1975 Ordinance Bonds and 1998 Ordinance Bonds are Approved Bonds. As discussed
below, the PUC, in its October 4, 2001 Order confirmed PGW’s ratemaking methodology by stating: "That, in
accordance with Section 2212(e) of the Gas Choice Act, we herein set rates for Philadelphia Gas Works in
accordance with its previous ratemaking methodology and requirements. In this instance, Philadelphia Gas Works’
previous ratemaking methodology, as contained in its Management Agreement and affirmed by the Pennsylvania
courts, is the cash flow method.”

As acknowledged by the PUC in its October 4, 2001 Order, the specific elements of PGW’s "prior
ratemaking methodology and requirements” are set forth in the Management Agreement. The Management
Agreement directs the Gas Commission to fix rates and charges which, together with Project Revenues, will in each
Fiscal Year produce revenues sufficient, at a minimum:

(a) to pay all the operation and maintenance costs and expenses of PGW, including but not
limited to, depreciation, employee retirement costs and a management fee to PFMC equal to the actual
costs of PFMC in managing PGW, to pay expenses of the Gas Commission, to pay debt service (including
sinking fund deposits) becoming due in such Fiscal Year on debt incurred for PGW and to meet applicable
rate covenants and sinking fund reserve requirements;

(b) to make annual payments to the City in the aggregate principal amount of $18 million;

(c) to provide appropriations for prepayment of debt reduction and capital additions not
otherwise provided which are determined by the Gas Commission to be reasonable and which are approved
by City Council; and

(d) to provide cash or equivalent for working capital in such reasonable amounts as may be
determined by PFMC and approved by the PUC.

The Management Agreement provides that, for purposes of complying with such rate requirements, the
amount of operating expenses which do not represent an actual outflow of funds (e.g., depreciation) may be included
in determining whether revenues are sufficient to meet other costs, expenses and requirements. Further, Section VII,
1(c) of the Management Agreement obligates rates to be set to comply with the covenants of PGW’s bonds and
commercial paper program.

Section 2212(e) of the Public Utility Code also states that, notwithstanding any other provision of the
Public Utility Code, the PUC is required to set PGW’s rates to permit the City to comply with its covenants to the
Holders of any Approved Bonds. There are three bond covenants that are relevant with respect to establishing
PGW’s revenue requirement: a) a covenant that requires PGW to produce net revenues at least equal to 150% of the
annual debt service obligation; b) a covenant that requires PGW and its owner, the City of Philadelphia, to charge
rates that permit PGW to have sufficient cash to pay all of its third party obligations, including its debt service
obligations, during each Fiscal Year in full when they are due; and c) a covenant that requires PGW and the City to
continuously maintain and operate PGW’s gas works system.

In regulating PGW, the PUC is further required by Section 2212(f) of the Public Utility Code to permit
PGW to impose, charge and collect rates and charges as necessary to make its annual payment to the City as PGW's
owner. Additionally, the PUC has stated in its September 21, 2001 Order, "Thus, we conclude that PGW’s payment
of $18,000,000 to the City of Philadelphia should be included in its rates requested in this proceeding.”

PGW recovers its costs through various mechanisms (discussed below) reflected in its tariff. Changes in
the cost of raw materials, primarily natural gas costs, are reflected in rates embodied in a Gas Cost Rate ("GCR").
Discounts provided to low income customers and senior citizens are recovered in a separate Universal Service
Charge. The remainder of PGW’s costs, including debt service payments, operating expenses (other than costs
covered in the GCR) and the annual payment to its owner, the City of Philadelphia, are recovered in PGW’s base
rates, either through monthly customer charges or volumetric charges.
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PGW’s base rates are set, in accordance with the Cash Flow method, to enable PGW to recover a normal
level of expenses and annual obligations, together with an allowance for cash working capital or liquidity. In
PGW’s most recent rate proceedings, the PUC authorized rates that produced debt service coverages that complied
with PGW’s 1998 General Ordinance and 1975 General Ordinance requirements and produced revenues sufficient
to provide coverage of all obligations including the Base Payment. Any resulting rate increase is then recovered by
increases in the customer or volumetric charges of the various classes of customers taking service from PGW.

Gas Cost Rate

PGW’s largest expense item is the cost of the natural gas delivered into its distribution system. Prior to
industry restructuring mandated under FERC Order No. 636, the cost of bundled pipeline sales service was reviewed
and approved by FERC.

Currently, changes in these costs are recovered on a dollar-for-dollar basis through the operation of the
GCR as authorized by the PUC. PGW’s tariff permits PGW to charge annual projected changes in natural gas costs
in its GCR factor, after review and approval by the PUC. The GCR is designed to permit PGW, on an annual or
quarterly basis, to adjust its gas cost charge to firm sales customers to approximate its actual cost of natural gas.
PGW calculates its anticipated annual cost for natural gas and allocates that cost to its customers on a level basis for
payment during the Fiscal Year. GCR collections are then matched against actual costs for the year to date, and the
GCR is adjusted annually or quarterly if necessary, to credit or charge customers in the upcoming period for
overpayment or underpayment of natural gas costs to date.

Base Rate Filings

Permanent Base Rates. Base rates for PGW are established, using the Cash Flow method, to produce a
targeted amount of revenue for PGW based on various assumptions, such as normal weather conditions and a
projected and normalized level of revenues, expenses, capital expenditures and required working capital and
liquidity. Base rates in effect at any time cannot be modified by PGW except pursuant to a proposed rate filing by
PGW for new base rates, and only to the extent such proposed modification is approved by the PUC for
implementation on a going forward basis.

Prior to passage of the Gas Choice Act transferring rate setting authority for PGW from the Gas
Commission to the PUC, PGW’s last base rate increase was approved by the Gas Commission in December 1991 to
generate an additional $15,000,000 of annual revenue.

On January 5, 2001, PGW filed a proposal with the PUC to permanently increase its base rates by
$65,000,000 annually. By a PUC order entered on December 6, 2001, PGW was awarded total permanent rate relief
of $33,558,000, including $11,000,000 of rate relief that the PUC had granted on an interim basis in November
2000.

On February 25, 2002, PGW filed a proposal with the PUC to permanently increase its base rates by an
additional $60,000,000 annually. Additional permanent base rate relief of $36 million was approved by the PUC on
August 8, 2002. This $36,000,000 of base rate relief had initially been approved by the PUC on an interim basis by
order entered April 12, 2002, as part of PGW’s request for extraordinary rate relief. As a result, the $36,000,000
was effective on April 16, 2002.

On December 22, 2006, PGW filed for a $100,000,000 increase in base rates. PGW sought the rate
increase primarily to cover the increase in non-gas operating expenses and interest expense since its 2002 rate case,
provide sufficient funds available for debt service to meet its rate covenants under the 1975 General Ordinance and
the 1998 General Ordinance, to provide for sufficient cash working capital and ensure, that in the long term, PGW
has adequate liquidity when needed through internally generated funds without having to continually resort to
borrowing funds externally for capital improvements. On September 13, 2007, the PUC granted PGW a
$25,000,000 increase in base rates, effective September 20, 2007. PGW appealed the PUC's order to the
Commonwealth Court where it was affirmed by an opinion and order issued February 4, 2009. On May 4, 2009,
PGW filed a petition for allowance of appeal of the Commonwealth Court decision with the Pennsylvania Supreme
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Court. PGW alleged that, while the PUC professed to have utilized the specific cash flow ratemaking method
mandated by Section 2212 of the Gas Choice Act, its actual application failed to adequately consider PGW’s cash
working capital and internal generation needs.

On November 14, 2008, PGW filed for extraordinary base rate relief of $60,000,000, effective January 1,
2009. The request was granted December 19, 2008. PGW filed the request primarily with the intention of
improving financial ratios to cover increased financing costs in the future and providing for the continuation of more
reliable service. In granting the extraordinary relief, the PUC required PGW to file a permanent base rate case no
later than December 31, 2009. The Office of Small Business Advocate filed a petition for reconsideration of the
PUC's extraordinary rate order, challenging the allocation of the rate increase. The PUC dismissed the petition on
March 26, 2009. The PUC imposed several conditions on PGW's receipt of extraordinary rate relief, all of which
PGW has accepted: PGW was required to: (1) file its Business Transformation Initiative -Full Plan with the PUC
for review, followed up by annual reports on its implementation and savings; (2) provide monthly reports of
financial and operational performance, and the results of cost containment efforts; (3) submit a performance-based
incentive compensation plan for all management employees for comment by the PUC; (4) submit, ninety (90) days
in advance of negotiating its next employee collective bargaining agreement, a plan for improving performance and
implementing efficiencies for hourly employees; (5) convene a collaborative process to explore options for
transitioning default service supply customers to alternative suppliers; (6) take appropriate steps to seek repeal of the
City of Philadelphia ordinance mandating the annual $18 million payment to the City.

Weather Normalization. The Weather Normalization Adjustment Clause ("WNA") was approved by the
PUC Order dated August 8, 2002. The purpose of the WNA is to neutralize the impact of weather on PGW’s
revenues. This allows PGW to achieve the recovery of appropriate costs as authorized by the PUC. The WNA
results in neither a rate increase nor a rate decrease, but acts as a billing adjustment. The main benefits of the WNA
are the stabilization of cash flow and the reduction of the need for short-term borrowing from year to year. The
WNA is applied to customer invoices rendered during the period of October 1 through May 31 of each year for each
billing cycle. The WNA will continue in place unless the PUC issues an order directing that it be discontinued.

Restructuring’s Effect on PGW Rates

Consistent with the requirements of the Gas Choice Act, as of September 1, 2003, PGW has provided
service pursuant to unbundled tariff terms and conditions of service. The principal changes that occurred were:
1) the rates of all PGW customers are separated into a distribution component and a natural gas commodity
component; 2) as of September 1, 2003, all customers have the right to purchase natural gas from an alternative
natural gas supplier, but are required to utilize PGW’s distribution system to deliver the commodity to the
customer’s meter; 3) PGW will provide certain services to suppliers, for a tariffed charge, to facilitate the supplier’s
sale of natural gas to customers and the delivery of gas supply to PGW’s city gate; and 4) PGW is the Supplier of
Last Resort for all residential, small commercial and industrial and human needs customers who do not take service
from an alternative natural gas supplier.

The rate unbundling and choice options available as of September 1, 2003 were designed by PGW to be
revenue neutral such that PGW’s earnings levels will not change as a result of restructuring.

PGW was also required as part of its restructuring filing, and has so filed with the PUC, a plan to come into
compliance with all applicable PUC rules and regulations (i.e., PGW’s Compliance Filing on September 1, 2003).
The Gas Choice Act also establishes that any incremental costs that PGW incurs in complying with new regulatory
requirements may be recovered in a non-bypassable surcharge to be embedded in PGW’s base rates. As of
September 1, 2003, PGW charged incremental restructuring costs in a Restructuring Surcharge which were charged
to all firm customers on a non-bypassable basis and was reconcilable so as to result in dollar-for-dollar recovery. In
2007, the Restructuring Surcharge was removed from the tariff by PGW because the related costs were recovered or
are being recovered elsewhere. Additionally, on September 30, 2004, the PUC denied PGW’s request to continue
the senior discount program for post-September 1, 2003 applicants and its appeal to the Commonwealth Court of
Pennsylvania was denied. There are currently approximately 37,000 "grandfathered senior citizen discount
participants." All current participants are "grandfathered” into the existing program and will continue to receive the
20% discount unless the program is modified or ended by the enactment of an ordinance by the City.
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Capital Improvement Program

Net proceeds of revenue bond sales (other than sales of refunding bonds) are placed into restricted
segregated accounts for the Capital Improvement Program and are requisitioned for expenditures as required for the
Capital Improvement Program or to reimburse PGW for expenditures made in advance of issuance of bonds. For
use of the proceeds of the Bonds, see "PLAN OF FINANCE AND ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF
FUNDS." PGW determines its capital improvement requirements from projected customer additions, pipeline gas
availability, peak day gas requirements, enforced relocation due to highway and bridge construction and the need to
maintain its plant and equipment in a safe, adequate and reliable manner. For-further discussion of the Capital
Improvement Program, see "FISCAL YEAR 2007 AND 2008 CAPITAL BUDGET AND FORECASTS" below and
APPENDIX B — "Independent Consultant’s Engineering Report."

The following table represents information regarding actual net capital expenditures for each of the five
Fiscal Years 2004-2008 as well as unaudited information for the periods September 1, 2007 through March 31, 2008
and September 1, 2008 through March 31, 2009:

PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS CAPITAL EXPENDITURES'
(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

PERIOD
SEPTEMBER 1
THROUGH
(FISCAL YEAR ENDED AUGUST 31) MARCH 31
(UNAUDITED)
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2009
Gas Processing $ 9,843 $ 5,008 $ 3,615 $ 3,332 $ 2,515 $ 1,429 $ 1,024
Distribution 40,096 43,572 44,583 48,549 47,748 26,545 26,573
Field Services 3,266 5,288 5,221 6,621 5,813 2,976 3,028
Information 1,304 1,928 1,819 1,228 1,139 543 257
Technology
Other 5,407 11,114 6,075 10,288 4,527 3,421 4,279
Departments'"
Total © 59.916 66.910 61,313 70.018 61,742 34914 _35.161
Capital Fund (35,601) (68.000) (60.295) (65.000) (70.000) NA NA
Drawdowns
Other Funding 4,315 (1.090) 1.018 5.018 (8.258) NA NA
Sources (Uses) for
Capital
Expenditures

*  This information was obtained from PGW’s historical records.

' Includes Approved and Budgeted Programs for Field Operations, Building Services, Customer Affairs and
Systems Technology

@ Net of reimbursements, contributions and salvage.

Other Funding Sources

PGW provides for a portion of capital costs to be funded through the use of, internally generated funds.
Internally generated funds consist of net revenues after payment of City Charges. See "PGW BUDGET, RATES
AND FINANCES — Debt Service Coverage Ratio." A decline in net revenues reduces internally generated funds
and requires that the shortfall be funded from the issuance of bonds or other indebtedness or the incurrence of capital
leases. In Fiscal Years 2004-2008, PGW provided $1,000,000 of other funding sources of actual capital
expenditures.
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Fiscal Year 2008 and 2009 Operating Budgets

On May 29, 2008, PGW filed its fiscal 2009 Operating Budget. The PGC conducted informal discovery
concerning the budget in July and August 2008 and public hearings in September 2008. The PGC authorized
interim spending authority of $88,140,000 for the period September 1, 2008 through December 31, 2008, pursuant
to a Motion dated September 23, 2008. A final Order approving interim spending was approved by the PGC at its
September 23, 2008 meeting. Briefs were filed on October 15, 2008, a Recommended Decision was received on
October 27, 2008 and a final budget approval was granted by the PGC on December 2, 2008.

On July 13, 2007, PGW filed its fiscal year 2008 Operating Budget. The PGC conducted hearings
concerning this budget in August 2007 and approved PGW's proposed operating revenues and expenses with net
adjustments of $4,197,000.

Fiscal Year 2008 and 2009 Capital Budgets and Forecasts

On January 2, 2009, PGW filed a proposed FY 2010 Capital Budget in the amount of $74,407,000. On
April 13, 2009, the PGC, after review and evaluation, approved a recommendation to City Council for a budget of
$72,215,000. An Ordinance approving this budget was approved by City Council on May 21, 2009; the Ordinance
was signed by the Mayor on June 4, 2009,

During Fiscal Year 2009, PGW projects net capital expenditures of approximately $50,459,000, with an
additional $381,339,000 forecasted for the five year forecast period. Approximately 83% of Fiscal Year 2009
capital expenditures are for Distribution, Field Services and Gas Processing Department projects.

On January 2, 2008, PGW filed a proposed fiscal year 2009 Capital Budget in the amount of $73,436,000.
After review and evaluation, the PGC on April 30, 2008 approved a recommendation to City Council for a budget of
$71,956,000. The PGC's recommendation was approved by City Council on June 19, 2008 and the ordinance signed
by the Mayor on July 2, 2008.

On January 2, 2007, PGW filed with the Philadelphia Gas Commission ("PGC") its fiscal year 2008 Capital
Budget requesting spending authority in the amount of $118,243,000. This budget request was amended by PGW to
reflect the deferral of two projects, construction of Phase Il LNG Replacement and Implementation of Billing
Collection Customer Service (BCCS) for a reduction of $47,300,000. The PGC conducted hearings concerning this
budget in February 2007. Briefs were filed on March 13, 2007. The Hearing Examiner issued a Recommended
Decision on March 27, 2007 for consideration by the Commissioners further reducing the budget by $295,000. The
PGC's Resolution and Order recommending approval of the fiscal year 2008 Capital Budget to City Council was
passed on April 25, 2007. This recommendation of $70,648,000 was approved by City Council on June 15, 2007.
The Mayor signed the Ordinance approving the fiscal year 2008 Capital Budget on September 20, 2007.

On September 27, 2007, PGW filed with the PGC a proposal to amend the approved fiscal year 2008
Capital Budget for two new line items totaling $1,433,000. These line items were Supplemental Funding -
Consolidate Fire Protection System - Richmond Plant for $1,171,000 and Disaster Recovery for Richmond and
Passyunk Plans for $262,000. On October 23, 2007, PGW filed a proposal to further amend the budget by adding
another new line item Partial Reauthorization - Customer Service Data Warehouse for $169,000. Concurrently,
PGW proposed a reduction of $1,523,000 in fiscal year 2008 budget authorization to compensate for the additional
funding requested. The PGC, after review and evaluation, recommended that City Council approve an amended
budget for fiscal year 2008 in the amount of $70,727,000. Subsequently, City Council approved the PGC's
recommendation on March 6, 2008, with the Mayor signing the budget ordinance on March 12, 2008.

On April 21, 2008, the Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation (PFMC) Board approved PGW's
Request to file an amendment to the fiscal year 2008 budget in the amount of $2,300,000 for funding to support the
Risk-Based Collections and Field Operations projects. These projects are critical efforts in support of PGW's
Business Transformation effort. The PGC, after review and evaluation, approved a recommendation to City Council
supporting PGW's amendment on July 2, 2008. City Council approved the PGC's recommendation on October 23,
2008 and the Mayor signed the ordinance on November 5, 2008.
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Over the six year forecast period, approximately 84% of PGW s capital expenditures are in Gas Processing,
Distribution and Field Services. These expenditures will support new and replacement main and services and meter
and regulator facilities, as well as projects to maintain PGW’s gas processing facilities in proper condition.

{Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



Selected Operating Data

The following data is based upon PGW's historical records.

Summary of Customers at End of
Period

Residential

Industrial and Commercial:

Firm

Interruptible

Municipal and PHA

Total Customers

Gas Sales By Classification
(Mmcf)

Residential:

Heating

Non-Heating

Industrial and Commercial
Firm

Interruptible

Other

Total Gas Sales & Transport

Supply & Disposition of Gas
(Mmcl)

Natural Gas Purchased
Liquefied Natural Gas

Total Gas Supply

Deduct:

Additions to (Withdrawals) from
Gas Storage

PGW's Use and Other

Total Gas Sales

Average Monthly Usage of
Residential Customers (Mcf):
Heating

Non-Heating

Average Monthly Bill Of
Residential Customers:
Heating

Non-Heating

Degree Days
Nomnal Degree Days
Percentage of Normal Degree Days

SELECTED OPERATING DATA PERIOD
FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31 SEPTEMBER 1
THROUGH
MARCH 31
(UNAUDITED)
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2009
471941 470,758 459,842 479553 478716 | 489888 491,184
26243 25990 25,718 25970 25919 | 26341 26353
470 397 312 105 68 198 167
2 2 2 2 2 2 2
498,656 497,147 485874 505630 504705 | 516429 517706
40,826 39,033 32,980 35245 34357 | 26843 29359
1951 1,955 1,521 1,040 802 703 514
11,543 11,156 10,104 10,491 10202 7,518 8078
4,103 4510 2426 2,704 1,791 1,587 1,009
1.796 1573 1755 1,580 1833 3856 3388
60219 58227 48,786 51060 48,985 40,507 42.848
64,244 65,695 53,886 55905 53380 | 36379 36,190
2,609 2.199 1.084 1.948 1280 947 1236
66853 678% 54970 51853 4660 | 3136 31426
290 2457 (166) (61) 1088 | 7205  8738)
6344 7210 6350 7054 4587 4025 3316
60219 58207 48,786 31060 48985 40,506 42,848
80 76 66 70 66 NA NA
26 27 27 19 17 NA NA
$104.57 $11068 $139.66 $13670  $13101 NA NA
$45.00 $49.09 $61.55 4422 $4148 NA NA
4287 4327 3819 3773 3,746 3431 3832
4555 4555 4555 4525 4510 4095 4031
94% 95% 84% 83% 83% 84% 95%
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Maximum 24-Hour Sendout
(Mcf) 620413 591,133
Peak-day Average Temperature 13 15
(Degrees)

Summary of Statements of Income and Expenses

490,923

21

589,588

14

533,349

23

533,349

23

574,126
15

Information for each of the Fiscal Years ended August 31 should be read in conjunction with and was
derived from the audited financial statements and notes thereto.

(Dollar Amounts in Thousands)

PERIOD SEPTEMBER 1
THROUGH
FISCAL YEARS ENDED AUGUST 31 MARCH 31
(UNAUDITED)
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2008 2009

Operating Revenues
Residential:
Heating $534,406 $565,533 $593,797 $587,648 $588,536 | $431,468 $502,301
Non-Heating 33,159 35,537 34,182 24,439 20,040
Industrial and Commercial: 12,717 12,978
Firm 159,977 171,838 200,313 187,076 173,080 126,805 142,077
Interruptible 32,404 44,678 33,509 31,439 26,679 22917 14,674
Gas Transportation 2,945 4,679 6,459 8,850 8,575 6,055 6,109
Other Gas Revenues
(Municipal, Philadelphia
Housing Authority ("PHA"),
Unbilled Revenues and GCR
Adjustment) 20,465 8,285 61,701 653 14,518 68,240 66,747
Appliance & Other 10,065 10.895 10,482 9.398 8.607 4.784 4926
Total Gas Revenues 793,421 841,445 940,443 849,503 840,035 672,986 749,812
Other Operating Revenues 18.889 21.912 13.525 9.848 9.592 5.433 5.546
Total Operating Revenues 812,310 863,357 953,968 859,351 849,627 678,439 755,358
Operating Expenses
Natural Gas & Raw Material 450,868 509,704 625,093 539,300 511,976 423,488 493,170
Gas Processing 17,284 18,584 15,234 16,240 14,436 7,971 9,367
Field Services 29,557 28,455 35,667 36,100 37,126 23,469 23,381
Distribution 15,778 15,115 15,179 17,119 17,319 9,907 11,306
Customer Activities 105,417 104,194 70,971 69,422 67,380 44,543 51,247
Administrative & General 64,670 60,995 59,484 83,240@ 86,550% | 46,3977 53,8579
Pensions 14,973 14,702 17,563 15,217 14,258 8,199 8,268
Taxes, other than income 6,638 6,218 6,124 6,730 5,677 2,860 3,925
Depreciation 33.966 35.045 34.725 36.380 39.524 22.871 22,076
Total Operating Expenses 739,151 793,012 880,040 819,748 794,246 589,705 676,597
Operating Income 73,159 70,345 73,928 39,603 55,381 88,734 78,761
Interest and Other Income 3,580 4,778 8518 13,073 15,732 10,242 7,186
Income before Interest Expense 76,739 75.123 82,446 52,676 71,113 98.976 85,947
Interest Expense 59.580 63.851 65,687 68.780 __68.006 40263 40970
Net Income (Loss) $17,159 $11272 $16,759 ($16,104) $3.107 | $58713 $44.977

D Net Income (Loss) is before payment of the $18,000,000 Base Payment portion of City Charges.

@ Inctudes Post Employment Benefits

Debt Service Coverage Ratio

The annual operating budget approved by the Gas Commission estimates the level of revenues required to
reach at least the minimum debt service coverage ratic mandated by the 1975 General Ordinance and the 1998
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General Ordinance. The following table presents historical revenue and debt service coverage calculated under the
1975 General Ordinance and the 1998 General Ordinance.

HISTORICAL REVENUES AND DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE
(DOLLAR AMOUNTS IN THOUSANDS)

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Operating Revenues $812,310 $863,357 $953,968 $859.351 $849.627
Interest and Other Income 2,635 22,126 25.866 30,448 33,107
AFUDC (Interest) 907 907 981 408 338
Total Funds 815,852 886,390 980,815 890,207 883.072
Adjustments 234 (3.109 3451 (6.630) (11.851)
Project Revenues 816,086 883,281 984.266 883,557 871,221
Operating Expenses 739.151 793,012 880,040 819,748 794,246
Less:
Depreciation 38,868 39,547 37,955 39,708 42,86§
Other Adjustments 478 443 894 271632 26.655@
Net Operating Expenses 699,805 753,022 841,191 752,877 724,723
Funds Available To Cover 116,281 130,259 143,075 130,680 146,498
Debt Service
Debt Service
Requirements:
Revenue Bonds 1975 48,630 38,806 41,949 35,359 34,225
PMA/Capital Leasing 3,997 1,998 - - -
Revenue Bonds 1998 39,655 45,999 32,8380 47,611 59,695
Subordinate Revenue 1,988 1,987 1,986 1,987 1,986
Bonds 1998
Commercial Paper Notes 2,085 2.864 5.968 8.098 4,099
Total Debt Service 96,355 91,654 82,741 93,055 100,005
Net Funds Available for 19,926 38,605 60,334 37,625 46,493
Other Purposes:
Debt Service Coverage:
Senior Revenue Bonds 2.39 3.36 341 3.70 428
1975
Senior Revenue Bonds 1.61 1.94 3.08 2.00 1.88
1998
Subordinate Revenue 12.07 21.87 34.38 24.01 26.47
Bonds 1998
Coverage of Debt Service 1.01 1.18 1.41 1.17 1.23
& City Payment

M Capitalized Interest of $2,283,000 and $6,000,000 excluded from the 1998 Ordinance Coverage Calculation in Fiscal Year
2005 and 2006, respectively.

@ QOther adjustments include non-cash Postemployment Benefits for Fiscal Year 2007 and 2008 totaling $26,421,000 and
$25,834,000, respectively.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCIAL
CONDITION FOR THE SEVEN MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2009 AND 2008 (UNAUDITED)

The narrative overview and analysis of the financial statements of Philadelphia Gas Works for the seven
months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 have been prepared by PGW’s management. The information presented
here is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with additional information contained in PGW’s audited
financial statements as of and for the years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 attached hereto in APPENDIX A.
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Financial Highlights

. The seven-month period ended March 31, 2009 reflected a 4.9% warmer than normal winter. The
seven-month period ending March 31, 2009 was 11.7% cooler than the prior comparative period and firm gas sales
increased by 2.6 Billion cubic feet (Bcf). In addition, the Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA), which was in
effect from October 2008 through March 2009, resulted in heating customers receiving credits totaling $1.7 million
as a result of the temperatures experienced during the period. The period ended March 31, 2008 reflected a 15.7%
warmer than normal winter. The seven-month period ended March 31, 2008 was 1.5% cooler than the same period
the prior year and firm gas sales decreased by 1.4 Bef. In addition, the Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA),
which was in effect from October 2007 through May 2008, resulted in heating customers receiving charges totaling
$10.8 million as a result of the temperatures experienced during the period.

) PGW achieved a collection rate of 93.3% during the rolling twelve months ended March 31, 2009,
as compared to 97.6% for the comparable period ended March 31, 2008. The collection rate of 93.3% is calculated
by dividing the total gas receipts collected in a rolling 12 month period by the total gas billings that were applied to
PGW customers’ accounts during the same period. The same methodology was utilized for the comparative period
ended March 31, 2008.

Condensed Statements of Revenues and Expenses

(Thousands of Dollars)
Seven Months Ended March 31
2009 2008
Total gas revenues $749,812 $672,986
Other revenues 5,546 5.453
Total operating revenues 755,358 678,439
Total operating expenses 676.597 589,705
Operating income 78,761 88,734
Interest and other income 7,186 10,242
Total interest expense (40.970) (40.263)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenses $44,977 $58.713

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues for the period ended March 31, 2009 were $755.4 million, an increase of $76.9 million
or 11.3% from same period ended March 31, 2008. The increase for the period ended March 31, 2009 was due to a
colder heating season. Operating revenues for the period ended March 31, 2008 were $678.4 million, an increase of
$7.2 million or 1.1% from the same period ended March 31, 2007.

Total sales volumes, including gas transportation deliveries, for the period ended March 31, 2009 increased
by 4.7 Bef to 58.3 Bef or 8.8% from the same period ended March 31, 2008. For the period ended March 31, 2008
total sales volumes, including gas transportation deliveries, increased by 2.0 Befto 53.6 Bef or 3.8% from the same
period ended March 31, 2007.

The number of customers served by PGW as of March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008 were approximately
518,000 and 516,000, respectively. Commercial accounts were approximately 26,000, reflecting no change from
March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008. Industrial accounts decreased by 4.6% from the prior period’s level to 833.
Residential customers increased to 491,000 customers, an increase of 1,200 from the prior year.

Operating Expenses
Total operating and maintenance expenses, including fuel costs, for the seven-period ended March 31, 2009
were $654.5 million (net of depreciation), an increase of $87.7 million or 15.5% from the same period ended March

31, 2008. The increase for the March 31, 2009 period is a result of increased utilization of natural gas as compared
to the same period ended March 31, 2008. Total expenses decreased by $23.8 million or 4.0% for the period ended
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March 31, 2008 compared to the same period ended March 31, 2007. The decrease for the March 31, 2008 period
reflects a small decrease in the commodity price of gas as well as decreased demand for Natural Gas.

Cost of Fuel — The cost of natural gas utilized increased by $69.7 million or 16.5% to $493.2 million for the
seven-month period ended March 31, 2009 compared with $423.5 million in the same period ended March 31, 2008.
The average commodity price per Thousand cubic feet (Mcf) increased by $1.22 or $56.4 million, while the volume
of gas utilized increased by 1.7 Bef, 3.8% or $13.7 million. Demand charges decreased by $0.4 million, as compared
to the comparative period ended March 31, 2008.

The cost of natural gas utilized decreased by $16.5 million or 3.7% to $423.5 million for the period ended
March 31, 2008 compared with $440.0 million for the same period ended March 31, 2007. The average commodity
price per Mcf decreased by $0.32 or $14.1 million, while the volume of gas utilized decreased by 1.8 Bcf, or
$14.8 million. In addition, pipeline supplier refunds for the period decreased by $0.3 million while demand charges
increased by $12.1 million, compared to the same period ended March 31, 2007. Variations in the cost of purchased
gas are passed through to customers under the GCR provision of PGW’s rate schedules. Over-recoveries or
under-recoveries of purchased gas costs are subtracted from or added to gas revenues and are included in current
assets or current liabilities, thereby eliminating the effect that recovery of gas costs would otherwise have on net
income.

The average natural gas commodity prices for utilized gas for the seven-month periods ended March 31,
2009 and 2008 were $9.34 and $8.12 per Mcf, respectively.

Other Operating Expenses — Expenditures for street operations, infrastructure improvements, and plant
operations for the seven-month period ended March 31, 2009 totaled $44.1 million compared to $41.3 million for
the comparative period ended March 31, 2008. This is a result of higher labor costs. In addition, the cost for
customer services, collections, account management, marketing and the administrative area increased by
$5.0 million or 9.3% in the seven-month period ended March 31, 2009 primarily due to costs related to health care
premiums, risk management claims, litigation and cost related to business transformation.

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts — The provision for uncollectible accounts for the seven-month period
ended March 31, 2009 totaled $33.7 million, an increase of $6.2 million or 22.4% over the comparative period
ended March 31, 2008, which totaled $27.5 million, based on the most recent accounts receivable collectibility
evaluation. The accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts at March 31, 2009 reflects a balance of
$146.1 million, compared to the $151.5 million balance as of March 31, 2008. PGW is committed to continuing its
collection efforts in an attempt to reduce outstanding delinquent account balances and to provide assistance to those
customers who qualify for low-income grants and payment programs to help those customers maintain their gas
service.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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Condensed Balance Sheets

(Thousands of Dollars)
March 31
Assets 2009 2008
Utility plant, net $1,074,135 $1,051,989
Restricted investment funds 223,486 308,118

Current assets:
Accounts receivable (net of accumulated provision for 249,471 ‘ 241,270
uncollectible accounts of $146,057 and $151,539 for
2009 and 2008, respectively)
Other current assets and deferred debits, cash and cash

equivalents, gas inventories, materials and supplies 208.925 143.492
Total current assets 458,396 384,762
Other assets and deferred debits 101.086 98.548
Total assets $1,857.103 43,41
Fund Equity and Liabilities
Fund equity $ 260,885 $ 271514
Total long-term debt 1,123,805 1,223,857
Current liabilities:
Note payable 148,000 89,300
Current portion of long-term debt 75,984 43,967
Other current liabilities and deferred credits 149.924 151.181
Total current liabilities 373,908 284,448
Other liabilities and deferred credits 98.505 63.598
Total fund equity and liabilities $1.857,103 $1.843,417
Assets

Utility Plant - Utility plant, net of depreciation, totaled $1,074.1 million as of March 31, 2009, an increase
of $22.1 million or 2.1% compared with the March 31, 2008 balance of $1,052.0 million. Capital expenditures for
construction of distribution facilities, purchase of equipment, information technology enhancements, and other
general improvements were $5.1 million for the seven-period ended March 31, 2009 compared to $4.8 million for
the period ended March 31, 2008. PGW funded capital expenditures through drawdowns from the Capital
Improvement Fund in the amounts of $0.0 million, and $31.6 million at March 31, 2009 and March 31, 2008,
respectively. The major capital expenditures are associated with PGW’s gas supply infrastructure, namely, gas
mains and customer service lines.

Restricted Invesiment Funds — Restricted investment funds decreased by $84.6 million as of March 31,
2009 from March 31, 2008 primarily due to drawdown from the Capital Improvement Fund offset by interest
income. Interest income on these funds, to the extent not drawn, is reflected as an increase and approximated
$3.5 million for the period ended March 31, 2009 and $4.1 million for the period ended March 31, 2008.

Accounts Receivable — At March 31, 2009 accounts receivable (net) totaled $249.5 million, an increase of
$8.2 miltion, or 3.4% from March 31, 2008. Accounts receivable (net) of $241.3 million increased by $21.4 million,
or 9.7% from March 31, 2007. The accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts, totaling $146.1 million
decreased by $5.4 million for March 31, 2009 as compared to March 31, 2008. The accumulated provision for
uncollectible accounts totaled $151.5 million on March 31, 2008 and $174.1 million on March 31, 2007.
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Other Current Assets and Deferred Debits, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Gas Inventories, Materials, and
Supplies — As of March 31, 2009 cash and cash equivalents were $100.0 million, an increase of $58.4 million from
March 31, 2008. Gas storage increased by $2.6 million or 3.2%. The increase in gas inventory reflects an increase
in the gas cost per Mcf Materials and supplies of $93.2 million, which principally include gas inventory,
maintenance spare parts, and material, increased by $1.7 million and were $91.4 million at March 31, 2008 and
$83.9 million at March 31, 2007. Other current assets and deferred debits totaled $15.8 million at March 31, 2009
up $5.4 million from March 31, 2008. At March 31, 2008 other current assets and deferred debits totaled
$10.4 million, up $2.0 million from March 31, 2007. '

Other Assets and Deferred Debits — At March, 31 2009 other assets and deferred debits including
unamortized bond issuance costs, unamortized loss on reacquired debt, and a deferred regulatory asset for
environmental expenses totaled $101.0 million. This represents an increase of $2.5 million from March 31, 2008,
mainly due to an increase in a deferred regulatory asset for environmental expenses related to the implementation of
GASB 49 on September 1, 2007, offset partially by unamortized loss of reacquired debt.

Liabilities

Long-Term Debt — Long-term debt, including the current portion, and unamortized discount and premium
in the amount of $24.2 million, totaled $1,199.8 million for the period ended March 31, 2009, $68.0 million less
than the previous period ended March 31, 2008, as a result of PGW paying off its $45 million loan from the City
and normal debt principal payments. This represents 82.1% of total capitalization in FY 2009.

Short-Term Debt — Due to the highly seasonal nature of PGW’s business, short-term debt is utilized to meet
working capital requirements. PGW, pursuant to the provisions of the City of Philadelphia Note Ordinance, may
sell short-term notes in a principal amount, which together with interest, may not exceed $200.0 million outstanding
at any one time. The letter of credit supporting PGW’s commercial paper program fixed the maximum level of
outstanding notes plus interest at $150.0 million in both FY 2009 and FY 2008. These notes are intended to provide
additional working capital and are supported by an irrevocable letter of credit and a security interest in PGW’s
revenues. The notes outstanding at March 31, 2009 had a weighted average interest rate of 0.57% and a remaining
weighted average time to maturity of 41 days. The principal amounts outstanding at March 31, 2009 and 2008 were
$148.0 million and $89.3 million, respectively.

In addition, the City provided PGW with a $45.0 mitlion, 0.0% interest loan in FY 2001, In FY 2007,
PGW paid $2.0 million of the loan leaving an outstanding balance of $43.0 million. In FY 2008, PGW paid
$20.5 million and $22.5 million in December 2007 and August 2008, respectively to completely repay the remaining
balance of the loan.

Accounts Payable — In the period ended March 31, 2009 accounts payable increased $1.8 million or 2.7%
compared with the period ended March 31, 2008. In the period ended March 31, 2008 accounts payable decreased
$5.4 million or 8.5% compared with the same period ended March 31, 2007 primarily due to a decrease in natural
gas payables.

Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits — At March 31, 2009 other liabilities and deferred credits totaling
$98.5 million increased $34.9 million compared to March 31, 2008. The increase in the period ended March 31,
2009 is the effect of recording the change in the liability for OPEB in the amount of $25.7 million as of August 31,
2008, and an increase in the environmental remediation liability resulting from the implementation of GASB 49
during fiscal year 2008.

Other Financial Factors
Liquidity/Cash Flow — PGW had no commercial paper outstanding at June 30, 2009, resulting in the full
availability of all $150.0 million of the Commercial Paper Program. Additionally, PGW had $102.6 million

available in its Capital Improvement Fund to be utilized for construction expenditures. These funding sources may
be utilized to provide liquidity. The Operating Fund cash balance at June 30, 2009 was $16.9 million. Additionally,
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the City has granted back PGW’s annual $18.0 million payment, in each of the last four fiscal years, thereby
improving PGW's overall liquidity position.

PGW’s total OPEB actuarial accrued liability as of March 31, 2009 was $599.1 million if PGW continued
to provide for its OPEB obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. PGW’s actuarial accrued liability would be reduced
to $405.6 million if PGW adopted a policy of funding its ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid
on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or
funding excess) over a period of 30 years. The actuarial valuation utilized a discount rate of 8.25% for purposes of
developing the liabilities and ARC to demonstrate the effect of funding the Plan. This rate is based on the
investment return expected on investments segregated in a funded trust. The annual OPEB cost was $27.4 million
for the period ended March 31, 2009 and is projected to increase to $43.5 million per year over the ensuing 20-year
period on a pay-as-you-go basis. The annual OPEB cost was $26.5 million for the period ended March 31, 2008.

In November 2008, PGW filed for an extraordinary or emergency base rate increase of approximately
$60.0 million or 5.2% and simultaneously requested an $85.0 million or 7.4% decrease in the GCR for a net 2.2%
overall rate decrease of approximately $25.0 million. The proposed base rate increase will serve several purposes.
First, the increase will cover the additional financing costs that PGW anticipates it will incur in the next few months.
Second, the increase will improve PGW’s financial position so as to enhance its ability to access the financial
markets and maintain its bond rating. Third, the increase will provide additionat liquidity and financial flexibility in
this tight credit market. On December 18, 2008, the PUC issued its decision approving a base rate increase of $60.0
million or 5.2% and a decrease in the GCR of $107.0 million for a net decrease in rates of $47.0 million or 4.2%.
These rates are effective as of January 1, 2009.

PGW did not receive an extension or replacement of the current Liquidity Facility consisting of the
Standby Bond Purchase Agreement; the Sixth Series Bonds were required to be purchased by the Fiscal Agent on
the mandatory tender date of January 2, 2009. As of June 30, 2009, $311.6 million of the Sixth Series Bonds are
held by the providers of the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement as bank bonds. Per the terms of the Standby Bond
Purchase Agreement, if the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement is not renewed, and no substitute liquidity facility is
provided, any bank bonds held at that time will be amortized in ten payments payable in December and July for the
next five years. Pursuant to the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement, the first amortization payment was due on
August 3, 2009. The City received an extension on such payment until August 21, 2009. PGW recorded as current
debt at June 30, 2009 one tenth of the outstanding Sixth Series Bonds as of June 30, 2009 ($61.2 million.).

The fair value of the interest rate swap related to the Sixth Series Bonds as of June 30, 2009, including
accrued interest, was negative $33,430,598. This means that PGW would have to pay this amount to terminate the
swap. Per the swap agreement, the refunding or defeasance of the Sixth Series Bonds, in whole or in part, without
the prior written consent of both the counterparty and the insurer, may constitute an event of termination unless
certain conditions are met. There is a termination risk related to the interest rate swap agreement if the credit ratings
of the Swap Provider, on the one-hand, or PGW and Financial Security Assurance Inc. (the "Swap Insurer”), on the
other hand, fall below certain designated ratings levels. If the Swap Provider’s ratings fall below A3 or A-
(Moody’s/S&P), PGW may terminate the Swap unless the Swap Provider transfers the Swap to a new swap provider
acceptable to PGW or provides credit enhancement or collateral in form and substance acceptable to PGW. The
Swap Provider may terminate the swap if both PGW’s bond rating falls below Baa2 or BBB (Moody’s/S&P) and the
Swap Insurer’s credit rating falls below A2 and A (Moody’s/S&P), and PGW fails to provide a Credit Support
Provider acceptable to the Swap Provider or post collateral in form and substance acceptable to the Swap Provider.
While PGW’s current credit rating is below the designated levels, the Swap Insurer’s rating is currently AAA and
Aa3.

UNDERWRITING
The underwriters for the Bonds have agreed to purchase such Bonds from the City, subject to the terms of
the Purchase Agreement between the City and underwriters for the Bonds, at a purchase price of $58,297,602.66

(which is equal to the par amount of $58,285,000, plus net original issue premium of $422,616.90, less the
underwriter's discount of $410,014.24).
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The underwriters may offer and sell the Bonds to certain dealers and others (including sales for deposit into
investment trusts, certain of which may be sponsored or managed by one or more of the underwriters) at prices
lower than the public offering prices stated on the inside cover page hereof. Wells Fargo Securities is the trade
name for certain capital markets and investment banking services of Wells Fargo & Company and its subsidiaries,
including Wachovia Bank, National Association.

RATINGS

Moody's Investors Service ("Moody's"), Standard & Poor's Rating Services, a Division of the McGraw-Hill
Companies, Inc. ("Standard & Poor's") and Fitch Ratings, Inc. ("Fitch") have assigned the Bonds the ratings of
"Baa2" with a negative outlook, "BBB-" with a stable outlook and "BBB-" with a stable outlook, respectively.

A rating, including any related outlook with respect to potential changes in such ratings, reflects only the
view of the agency giving such rating and is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold the Bonds. An explanation
of the significance of such ratings may be obtained only from the rating agency furnishing the same. Such ratings
may be changed at any time, and no assurance can be given that they will not be revised downward or withdrawn
entirely by any of such rating agencies if, in the judgment of any of them, circumstances so warrant. Any such
downward revision or withdrawal of any of such ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the
Bonds.

The City is not required to maintain any particular rating on the Bonds and shall have no liability if a rating
is lowered, withdrawn or suspended.

TAX MATTERS
Federal

Exclusion of Interest From Gross Income

In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, under existing statutes, regulations, rulings, and court decisions, assuming
that the City complies with covenants relating to certain requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended
(the "Code"), interest on the Bonds will not be includible in gross income of the holders thereof for federal income tax
purposes, is exempt from individual and corporate federal alternative minimum tax ("AMT"), and is not includible in
adjusted current earnings for purposes of corporate AMT.

In rendering its opinion, Co-Bond Counsel has assumed compliance by the City with its covenants contained in
the 1998 General Ordinance and the Bond Authorizations, and the representations in the Tax Compliance Certificate
relating to actions to be taken by the City after issuance of the Bonds necessary to effect or maintain the exclusion from
federal gross income of the interest on the Bonds. These covenants relate to, inter alia, the use of and investment of
proceeds of the Bonds, and rebate to the United States Treasury of specified arbitrage earnings, if any. Failure to comply
with such covenants could result in interest on the Bonds becoming includible in gross income for federal income tax
purposes from the date of issuance of the Bonds.

Other Federal Tax Matters

Ownership or disposition of the Bonds may result in other federal tax consequences to certain taxpayers,
including, without limitation, certain S corporations, foreign corporations with branches in the United States,
property and casualty insurance companies, taxpayers who have an initial basis in the Bonds greater or less than the
principal amount thereof, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad Retirement benefits, and taxpayers,
including banks, thrift institutions and other financial institutions subject to Code Section 265, who may be deemed
to have incurred or continued indebtedness to purchase or to carry the Bonds.

Co-Bond Counsel is not rendering any opinion regarding any federal tax matters other than those described
under the caption Exclusion of Interest from Gross Income and expressly stated in the form of Co-Bond Counsel
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opinion included as APPENDIX F. Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their independent tax advisors with regard to
all federal tax matters.

Pennsylvania

In the opinion of Co-Bond Counsel, under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as enacted and
construed on the date hereof, interest on the Bonds is exempt from Pennsylvania personal income tax and Pennsylvania
corporate net income tax, and the Bonds are exempt from personal property taxes in Pennsylvania; however, any profits,
gains, or income derived from the sale, exchange, or other disposition of the Bonds will be subject to Pennsylvania taxes
and local taxes within the Commonwealth.

The Bonds and the interest thereon may be subject to state and local taxes in jurisdictions other than the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania under applicable state and local tax laws. Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their
independent tax advisors with regard to all state and local tax matters.

CERTAIN LEGAL MATTERS

All legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds are subject to approval of the
legality of the issuance of the Bonds by Blank Rome LLP and Andre C. Dasent, P.C., both of Philadelphia,
Pennsylvania, Co-Bond Counsel. The proposed forms of such opinions are included herein as APPENDIX F.
Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriters by Saul Ewing LLP and Kelly, Monaco and Naples,
LLP Co-Counsel to the Underwriters, both of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. Certain legal matters will be passed upon
for the City by the City of Philadelphia Law Department. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for PGW by the
Office of General Counsel of Philadelphia Gas Works and by Eckert Seamans Cherin and Mellott, LLC of
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania.

FINANCIAL ADVISOR

Public Financial Management, Inc., of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, has served as financial advisor (the
"Financial Advisor") to the City in respect of the sale of the Bonds. The Financial Advisor assisted in the
preparation of this Official Statement, and in other matters relating to the planning, structuring and issuance of the
Bonds, and has provided other advice. Public Financial Management, Inc. is a financial advisory and consulting
organization and is not engaged in the business of underwriting or marketing of municipal securities or any other
negotiable instruments. :

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The basic financial statements and supplementary information of the Philadelphia Gas Works as of and for
the years ended August 31, 2008 and August 31, 2007 included in APPENDIX A to this Official Statement have
been audited by KPMG LLP, as stated in their report appearing therein.

Any financial information other than in APPENDIX A to this Official Statement has not been audited by
any firm of independent auditors and no opinion on such information is expressed in this Official Statement.

INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT’S REPORT

The report prepared by Black & Veatch Corporation, and contained herein as APPENDIX B, has been
included in reliance upon the expertise of that company as an independent consulting firm having broad experience
in the design and analysis of the operation of gas works or gas distribution systems of the magnitude and scope of
PGW and having skill in assessing assumptions used in the preparation of forecast financial statements of gas works
systems.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS

Public Financial Management, Inc., financial advisor to the City, acts as a consultant to PGW on certain
management and labor relations issues and has provided testimony before the PUC on several of PGW’s rate cases.
Blank Rome LLP and Andre C. Dasent, P.C. provide certain legal services to the City and to PGW. Saul Ewing
LLP provides certain legal services to the City. Kelly, Monaco and Naples, LLP provides certain legal services to
the City. Black & Veatch Corporation provides certain professional services (unrelated to the Independent
Consultant's Report) to PGW.

NO LITIGATION

To the knowledge of the City of Philadelphia Law Department and, solely with respect to the opinion
described in (E) below, based upon certain representations from PGW’s General Counsel, after customary inquiry,
no litigation is pending against the City before any court, public board or agency, or threatened in writing against the
City (A) to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of the Bonds, (B) which contests the validity
or enforceability of the Bonds or any proceedings of the City taken with respect to the issuance, sale, execution or
delivery thereof, (C) which contests the pledge or application of any monies or security provided for the payment of
the Bonds, (D) challenges the existence or powers of the City or (E) in which a final adverse determination, singly
or in the aggregate, would have a material and adverse effect on PGW’s operations or financial condition.

Upon delivery of the Bonds, the City Solicitor shall furnish a written confirmation, to the effect, among
other things, that except for litigation which is disclosed in this Official Statement, to the knowledge of the Law
Department after customary inquiry, no litigation is pending against the City before any court, public board or
agency, or threatened in writing against the City (A) to restrain or enjoin the issuance, sale, execution or delivery of
the Bonds, (B) which contests the validity or enforceability of the Bonds or any proceedings of the City taken with
respect to the issuance, sale, execution or delivery thereof, (C) which contests the pledge or application of any
monies or security provided for the payment of the Bonds, (D) challenges the existence or powers of the City or (E)
in which a final adverse determination, singly or in the aggregate, would have a material and adverse effect on
PGW?s operations or financial condition.

NEGOTIABLE INSTRUMENTS

The Act provides that bonds issued thereunder shall have ali the qualities and incidents of securities under
the Uniform Commercial Code of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and shall be negotiable instruments.

CERTAIN REFERENCES

All summaries of the provisions of the Bonds and the security therefor, the Act, the General Ordinances
and the Supplemental Ordinances set forth herein and in APPENDIX D hereof, and all summaries and references to
other materials not purported to be quoted in full are only brief outlines of certain provisions thereof and do not
constitute complete statements of such documents or provisions. Reference is made hereby to the complete
documents relating to such matters for the complete terms and provisions thereof. So far as statements are made in
this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so stated, they are made merely as
such and not as representations of fact.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The City will enter into a Continuing Disclosure Agreement with Digital Assurance Certification, L.L.C.
with respect to the Bonds, which shall constitute a written undertaking for the benefit of the owners and beneficial
owners of the Bonds. The proposed form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement is attached to this Official Statement
as APPENDIX E.



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Upon written request to the office of the Director of Finance and payment of the costs of duplication and
mailing, the Annual Report of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, and the audited combined financial
statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, will be made available, as well as other pertinent
information. Such a request should be addressed to: Office of the Director of Finance, Accounting Bureau, 1330
Municipal Services Building, 1401 John F. Kennedy Boulevard, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19102. The City will
provide copies of the foregoing documents to one or more nationally recognized municipal securities information
depositories. The City will provide financial and other information regarding PGW from time to time to Standard &
Poor’s Ratings Service, a Division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc., Moody’s Investors Service and Fitch
Ratings in connection with securities ratings assigned by those rating agencies to obligations payable from Project
Revenues or Gas Works Revenues. The City intends to continue these practices in future years on an annual basis
on behalf of PGW as well as all obligations issued for PGW.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]
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This Official Statement has been duly executed and delivered by the following officers on behalf of the
City of Philadelphia.

CITY OF PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA

By: /s/ Michael A. Nutter
Honorable Michael A. Nutter, Mayor

By: /s/ Alan L. Butkovitz
Honorable Alan L. Butkovitz, City Controller

By: /s/ Shelley R. Smith
Shelley R. Smith, City Solicitor

Approved:

By: /s/ Rob Dubow
Rob Dubow, Director of Finance
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PGW FOR FISCAL YEARS ENDED
AUGUST 31, 2008 AND 2007
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M KPMG LLP

1601 Market Street
Philadeiphia, PA 19103-2499

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Controller of the City of Philadelphia and
Chairman and Members of the
Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Philadeiphia Gas Works (the Company), a
component unit of the City of Philadelphia, as of August 31, 2008 and 2007, and the related statements of
revenues and expenses, cash flows, and changes in fund equity, as of and for the years then ended. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Philadelphia Gas Works as of August 31, 2008 and 2007, and the changes in its
financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

The required supplementary information of management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 to 12 and the
schedules of pension funding progress, other postemployment benefits funding progress, and other
postemployment benefit employer contributions on pages 52 to 54 is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but is supplementary information required by U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles. This supplementary information is the responsibility of the Company’s management. We have
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit such information and express no opinion on it.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplementary information included on pages 55 to 58 is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

PG LLP 2015 limitedd liabiity partnsrehip, is the US.
mreimbir firm of KPMG , 8 Swiss $
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As discussed in note 1(n), the Company adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement (GASB) No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as of September 1,

2006.

KPMe P

December 29, 2008



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

The narrative overview and analysis of the financial statements of Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company or
PGW) for the years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 have been prepared by PGW’s management. The
information presented here is unaudited and should be read in conjunction with additional information contained
in PGW’s financial statements.

Financial Highlights

The fiscal year (FY) 2008 reflected a 16.9% warmer than normal winter. The FY 2008 period was 0.7%
warmer than the prior year and firm gas sales decreased by 2.4 Billion cubic feet (Bcf). In addition, the
Weather Normalization Adjustment (WNA), which was in effect from October 2007 through May 2008,
resulted in heating customers receiving charges totaling $12.2 million as a result of the temperatures
experienced during the period. FY 2007 reflected a 16.6% warmer than normal winter. The FY 2007
period was 1.2% warmer than the prior year; however, firm gas sales increased by 2.0 Bef. In addition, the
WNA, which was in effect from October 2006 through May 2007, resulted in heating customers receiving
charges totaling $6.5 million as a result of the temperatures experienced during the period.

PGW achieved a collection rate of 95.5% in the current period, 95.8% in FY 2007 and 96.6% in FY 2006.
The collection rate of 95.5% is calculated by dividing the total gas receipts collected in FY 2008 by the
total gas billings that were applied to PGW customers’ accounts from September 1 through August 31. The
same methodology was utilized in FY 2007 and FY 2006, respectively.

The Company adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement
No. 45 (GASB 45), Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, as of September 1, 2006 and had a zero net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
obligation at transition. PGW adopted the provisions of GASB 45 a year carlier than required by
GASB because the Company is a component unit of the City of Philadelphia (the City) for financial
reporting purposes and the Company’s FY 2007 financial statements will be consolidated into the City’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The difference between the FY 2008 Annual
Required Contribution (ARC) of $44.1 million and the expenses paid by the Company of $18.3 million
resulted in a liability of $25.8 million which has been recorded in other liabilities and deferred credits and
expensed in FY 2008. The difference between the FY 2007 ARC of $45.2 million and the expenses paid by
the Company of $18.8 million resulted in a liability of $26.4 million which was recorded in other liabilities
and deferred credits and expensed in FY 2007.

GASB Statement No. 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations
(GASB 49), is effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning September 1, 2008; however, the
Company has chosen to implement the provisions of GASB49 a year earlier than required by
GASB because the Company is a component unit of the City for financial reporting purposes and the
Company’s FY 2008 financial statements will be consolidated into the City’s financial statements for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This statement establishes a framework for the recognition and
measurement of pollution remediation liabilities. A pollution remediation obligation addresses the current
or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by participation in pollution remediation activities.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Prior to the implementation of GASB 49, the Company recognized liabilities related to its voluntary
participation in remediation activities under Pennsylvania Act2, Land Recycling and Environmental
Remediation Standards Act of 1995, which established the land recycling program, and its mandatory
participation in activities under Pennsylvania Act 32, Storage Tank and Spill Prevention Act of 1989,
which established a comprehensive program to prevent leaks and spills from underground and above
ground tanks in accordance with existing U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP)
related to the accrual of liabilities.

The Company revised its methodology for estimating its pollution remediation obligations to conform with
GASB 49 in the current year, which resulted in an additional $8.3 million liability which is reflected in
other liabilities and deferred credits at August 31, 2008. GASB 49 requires pollution remediation liabilities
to be measured at the beginning of the first period presented in the financial statements. The Company has
not restated prior periods and instead recognized the effect of GASB 49 implementation in the current year,
because the increase in the liability related to the implementation of GASB 49 is not material.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP for regulated entities, the Company has also recognized the long-term
portion of its environmental remediation liability as a regulatory asset because based on available evidence
it is probable that the previously incurred costs will be recovered through rates.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction and overview of PGW’s basic financial
statements. PGW’s financial statements are comprised of:

Financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about PGW’s overall financial
condition, results of operations, and cash flows.

The notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data presented in PGW’s financial statements. The notes can be found immediately following the basic financial
statements.

The financial statements report information about PGW as a whole using accounting methods similar to those
used by private sector business. The four statements presented are:

The statement of revenues and expenses presents revenue and expenses and their effects on the change in equity
during the fiscal year. These changes in equity are recorded as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The balance sheet includes all of PGW’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as
equity. Over time, increases or decreases in fund equity are indicators of whether PGW’s financial position is
tmproving or deteriorating.

The statement of cash flows provides relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of an
enterprise during a period and the impact on PGW’s financial position.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

The statement of changes in fund equity provides a rollforward of the fund equity balance of PGW based upon
the results from the statement of revenues and expenses.

Condensed Statements of Revenues and Expenses

(Thousands of dollars)
Years ended August 31
2008 2007 2006
Total gas revenues $ 831,428 840,105 929,961
Other revenues 18,199 19,246 24,007
Total operating revenues 849,627 859,351 953,968
Total operating expenses 794,246 819,748 880,040
Operating income 55,381 39,603 73,928
Interest and other income 15,732 13,073 8,518
Total interest expense (68,006) (68,780) (65,687)
Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over (under)
expenses $ 3,107 (16,104) 16,759

Operating Revenues

Operating revenues in FY 2008 were $849.6 million, a decrease of $9.8 million or 1.1% from the FY 2007 level.
The decrease in FY 2008 was due to a milder winter. Operating revenues in FY 2007 were $859.4 million, a
decrease of $94.6 million or 9.9% from the FY 2006 level. The decrease in FY 2007 was principally due to lower
fuel costs which are a component of operating revenues through the gas cost rate (GCR). Please see the
discussion of the cost of fuel in the Operating Expenses section below.

Total sales volumes, including gas transportation deliveries, in FY 2008 increased by 2.5 Bef to 66.3 Bef or 3.9%
from FY 2007 sales volumes of 63.8 Bcf. In FY 2007 total sales volumes increased by 4.4 Bef to 63.8 Bef or
7.4% from FY 2006 sales volumes of 59.4 Bcf. Firm gas sales of 45.5 Bef were 2.4 Bef or 5.0% lower than
FY 2007 firm gas sales of 47.9 Bcf were 1.7 Bef or 3.7% higher than FY 2007. Interruptible customer sales
decreased by 0.9 Bef compared to FY 2007 and increased by 0.3 Bef compared to FY 2006. Gas transportation
sales in FY 2008 increased by 5.9 Bef to 19.0 Bef from the 13.1 Bef level experienced in FY 2007. In FY 2007,
the volume increased by 2.4 Bef to 13.1 Bef from the 10.7 Bef level experienced in FY 2006.

The number of customers served by PGW at the end of FY 2008 decreased by 0.2% from the previous year to
approximately 505,000 customers. The number of customers served by PGW at the end of FY 2007 and FY 2006
were approximately 506,000 and 486,000, respectively. Commercial accounts were approximately 25,000,
reflecting no change from the previous two fiscal years. Industrial accounts decreased by 11.1% from the prior
year’s level to 800. Industrial accounts were 900 and 1,000 customers in FY 2007 and FY 2006, respectively.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Residential customers decreased to 479,000 customers, a decrease of 1,000 from the prior year. The number of
residential customers in FY 2007 increased to approximately 480,000 customers, an increase of 20,000 over the
FY 2006 level.

Operating Expenses

Total operating and maintenance expenses, including fuel costs, in FY 2008 were $794.2 million, a decrease of
$25.5 million or 3.1% from FY 2007. Total expenses decreased by $60.3 million or 6.9% from FY 2007
compared to FY 2006. The decrease for FY 2008 reflects substantially lower natural gas utilization and an
increase in refunds received from pipeline suppliers. The decrease for FY 2007 reflects substantially higher
natural gas prices from FY 2006.

Cost of Fuel — The cost of natural gas utilized decreased by $27.3 million or 5.1% to $512.0 million in FY 2008
compared with $539.3 million in FY 2007. The average commodity price per Thousand cubic feet (Mcf)
increased by $0.25 or $13.5 million, while the volume of gas utilized decreased by 4.6 Bcf, 7.9% or
$37.6 million. In addition, pipeline supplier refunds in FY 2008 increased by $10.0 million while demand
charges increased by $6.8 million, compared to FY 2007.

The cost of natural gas utilized decreased by $85.8 million or 13.7% to $539.3 million in FY 2007 compared
with $625.1 million in FY 2006. The average commodity price per Mcf decreased by nearly $2.02 or
$117.2 million, while the volume of gas utilized increased by 3.0 Bcf, 5.4% or $30.6 million, in FY 2007 despite
a 1.2% decrease in degree days from FY 2006. In addition, pipeline supplier refunds in FY 2007 decreased by
$0.2 million while demand charges increased by $0.7 million, compared to FY 2006.

Variations in the cost of purchased gas are passed through to customers under the GCR provision of PGW’s rate
schedules. Over-recoveries or under-recoveries of purchased gas costs are subtracted from or added to gas
revenues and are included in current assets or current liabilities, thereby eliminating the effect that recovery of
gas costs would otherwise have on net income.

The average natural gas commodity prices for utilized gas for FY 2008, FY 2007, and FY 2006 were $8.48,
$8.23, and $10.25 per Mcf, respectively.

Other Operating Expenses — Expenditures for street operations, infrastructure improvements, and plant
operations in FY 2008 were $68.9 million, down from the FY 2007 total of $69.5 million as a result of lower
labor costs and up from the FY 2006 total of $66.1 million as a result of an increase in the value of gas used from
the time customers request shutoff to the occupancy of the premise by a subsequent customer. This cost was
partially reduced by lower operating expenses due to warmer weather conditions. In addition, the cost for
customer services, collection and account management, marketing, and the administrative area increased by
$4.9 million or 5.7% in FY 2008 primarily due to costs related to the business transformation initiative and a
decrease in the gas used by the utility. This category decreased by $4.1 million or 4.5% in FY 2007, which was
offset somewhat by higher premiums for active and retired employee health insurance coverage. Pension costs
decreased by $1.0 million and $2.3 million in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively, based on the most recent
actuarial valuation of the pension plan.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts — The provision for uncollectible accounts in FY 2008 totaled
$37.0 million, a decrease of $3.0 million or 7.5% lower than FY 2007, which totaled $40.0 million, a decrease of
$0.1 million or 0.3% compared to FY 2006 based on the most recent accounts receivable collectibility
evaluation. The accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts at August 31, 2008 reflects a balance of
$140.4 million, compared to the $150.2 million balance in FY 2007 and $168.9 million in FY 2006. PGW is
committed to continuing its collection efforts in an attempt to reduce outstanding delinquent account balances
and to provide assistance to those customers who qualify for low-income grants and payment programs to help
those customers maintain their gas service.

Depreciation Expense — Depreciation expense increased by $3.1 million in FY 2008 compared with FY 2007.
Depreciation expense increased by $1.7 million in FY 2007 compared with FY 2006. The effective composite
depreciation rates for FY 2008, FY 2007 and FY 2006 were 2.4%, 2.3% and 2.3%, respectively. Cost of removal
is charged to expense as incurred.

Interest and Other Income — Interest and other income was $2.7 million greater than FY 2007 as the result of
increased earnings on higher restricted fund balances. Interest and other income in FY 2007 was $4.6 million
greater than FY 2006 as the result of increased earnings rates on higher restricted fund balances.

Interest Expense — Total interest expense decreased by $0.8 million or 1.1% in FY 2008 compared with FY 2007
and increased by $3.1 million or 4.7% in FY 2007 compared with FY 2006. Interest on long-term debt was
$3.9 million higher than the FY 2007 level as a result of the full year effect of the FY 2007 issuance of revenue
bonds in May 2007. Other interest costs decreased by $4.8 million or 28.0% in FY 2008 principally due to the
reduction in the borrowing cost of the commercial paper program. Other interest costs increased by $2.2 million
or 14.6% in FY 2007 and increased by $4.0 million or 36.4% in FY 2006 reflecting additional costs associated
with PGW’s commercial paper program and the amortization of the loss on reacquired debt.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenses — In FY 2008, the Company’s excess of revenues over
expenses was $28.9 million prior to recording the expense of $25.8 million related to OPEB. As a result, the
Company ended with an excess of revenues over expenses of $3.1 million. The Company had an excess of
revenues over expenses of $10.3 million in FY 2007 prior to recording the expense of $26.4 million related to

OPEB and $16.8 million in FY 2006.

Condensed Balance Sheets

(Thousands of dollars)
August 31
Assets 2008 2007 2006
Utility plant, net $ 1,062,095 1,040,373 1,007,648
Restricted investment funds 219,788 277,139 135,625
Current assets:
Accounts receivable (net of
accumulated provision for
uncollectible accounts of $140,435,
$150,231, and $168,889 for 2008,
2007, and 2006, respectively) 99,304 88,618 74,360
Other current assets and deferred
debits, cash and cash equivalents, gas
inventories, materials, and supplies 242,503 205,083 181,394
Total current assets 341,807 293,701 255,754
Other assets and deferred debits 105,975 103,727 106,983
Total assets $ 1,729,665 1,714,940 1,506,010
Fund Equity and Liabilities
Fund equity $ 226,408 223,301 239,405
Total long-term debt 1,127,163 1,201,792 1,076,131
Current liabilities:
Note payable 90,000 51,600 55,000
Current portion of long-term debt 76,030 86,995 39,591
Other current liabilities and deferred
credits 126,235 103,276 73,854
Total current liabilities 292,265 241,871 168,445
Other liabilities and deferred credits 83,829 47,976 22,029
Total fund equity and
liabilities $ 1,729,665 1,714,940 1,506,010
g (Continued)



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Assets

Utility Plant — Utility plant, net of depreciation, totaled $1,062.1 million in FY 2008, an increase of $21.7 million
or 2.1% compared with the FY 2007 balance of $1,040.4 million. The FY 2007 balance of $1,040.4 million,
increased by $32.8 million or 3.3% compared with the FY 2006 balance of $1,007.6 million. Capital
expenditures for construction of distribution facilities, purchase of equipment, information technology
enhancements, and other general improvements were $61.2 million in FY 2008 compared to $69.1 million in
FY 2007 and $60.7 million in FY 2006. PGW funded capital expenditures through drawdowns from the Capital
Improvement Fund in the amounts of $60.9 million, $60.7 million and $63.1 million in FY 2008, FY 2007 and
FY 2006, respectively. The major capital expenditures are associated with PGW’s gas supply infrastructure,
namely, gas mains and customer service lines.

Restricted Investment Funds — Restricted investment funds decreased by $57.4 million in FY 2008 primarily due
to the drawdown from its Capital Improvement Fund offset by interest income. Interest income on these funds, to
the extent not drawn, is reflected as an increase and approximated $2.7 million in FY 2008 and $6.8 million in
FY 2007. A drawdown from the Sinking Fund’s capitalized interest account in the amount of $0.1 million was
utilized to offset the debt service payment in FY 2007. In FY 2006, this amount was $6.0 million.

Accounts Receivable — In FY 2008 accounts receivable (net) of $99.3 million increased by $10.7 million, or
12.1% from FY 2007 due to firm transportation suppliers’ billings and an increase in participation in the
Customer Responsibility Program (CRP). Accounts receivable (net) increased by $14.3 million, or 19.2% in
FY 2007 compared to FY 2006. The accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts, totaling $140.4 million
decreased by $9.8 million in FY 2008 and totaled $150.2 million in FY 2007 and $168.9 million in FY 2006.

Other Current Assets and Deferred Debits, Cash and Cash Equivalents, Gas Inventories, Materials, and
Supplies — In FY 2008 cash and cash equivalents were $49.3 million, a decrease of $2.4 million from FY 2007,
and totaled $51.7 million in FY 2006. Gas storage increased by $41.4 million or 29.9%. The increase in gas
inventory reflects an increase in the gas cost per Mcf plus an increase in the amount of storage at year-end.
Materials and supplies of $187.5 million, which principally include gas inventory, maintenance spare parts, and
material, increased by $39.7 million and were $147.8 million in FY 2007 and $149.4 million in FY 2006. Other
current assets and deferred debits totaled $5.6 million in FY 2008, up $0.1 million from FY 2007. In FY 2007
other current assets and deferred debits totaled $5.6 million, down $19.6 million from FY 2006, primarily due to
the recovery of under-recovered GCR amounts from the prior year.

Other Assets and Deferred Debits — In FY 2008 other assets and deferred debits including unamortized bond
issuance costs, unamortized loss on reacquired debt, and a deferred regulatory asset for environmental expenses
totaled $106.0 million, an increase of $2.3 million from FY 2007, mainly due to an increase in the workers’
compensation injuries and damages reserve. In FY 2007 the total was $103.7 million and reflected an increase of
$3.3 million from FY 2006. The major portion of this change was related to the bond issuance costs on the
$313.4 million of debt issued in FY 2006, offset partially by deferred environmental costs.
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Liabilities

Long-Term Debt — Long-term debt, including the current portion and unamortized discount and premium, totaled
$1,203.2 million in FY 2008, $85.6 million less than the previous year as a result of the Company paying off the
City Loan and normal debt principal payments. This represents 84.2% of total capitalization in FY 2008.
Long-term debt, including the current portion and unamortized discount, premium, and note payable — City Loan
totaled $1,288.8 million in FY 2007, $173.1 million greater than the previous year as a result of principal
payments on outstanding debt and the issuance of the Seventh Series and Nineteenth Series revenue bonds during
FY 2007. This represents 85.2% of total capitalization in FY 2007 The total long-term debt for FY 2006 totaled
$1,115.7 million, which represented 82.3% of total capitalization.

Debt Service Coverage Ratio and Ratings — PGW has a mandatory debt service coverage ratio of 1.50 times debt
service on the 1975 Ordinance Bonds and the 1998 Ordinance Bonds, respectively. In FY 2008, the debt service
coverage was at 4.28 times debt service on the outstanding 1975 Ordinance Bonds and 1.88 times debt service on
the Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds compared to debt service coverage ratios of 3.70 and 2.00 times, respectively,
in FY 2007 and 3.36 and 1.94 times, respectively, in FY 2006. PGW’s current bond ratings are “Baa2” from
Moody’s Investors Service (Moody’s), “BBB-" from Standard and Poor’s Ratings Service (S&P), and “BBB-”
from Fitch Ratings.

Short-Term Debt — Due to the highly seasonal nature of PGW’s business, short-term debt is utilized to meet
working capital requirements. PGW, pursuant to the provisions of the City of Philadelphia Note Ordinance, may
sell short-term notes in a principal amount, which together with interest, may not exceed $200.0 million
outstanding at any one time as compared to $150.0 million in FY 2006. The letter of credit supporting PGW’s
commercial paper program fixed the maximum level of outstanding notes plus interest at $150.0 million in
FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively. These notes are intended to provide additional working capital and are
supported by an irrevocable letter of credit and a security interest in PGW’s revenues. The notes outstanding at
August 31, 2008 had a weighted average interest rate of 1.63% and a remaining weighted average time to
maturity of 61 days. The principal amounts outstanding at August 31, 2008 and 2007 were $90.0 million and
$51.6 million, respectively. In addition, the City provided PGW with a $45.0 million, 0.0% interest loan in FY
2001. In FY 2007, PGW paid $2.0 million of the loan leaving an outstanding balance of $43.0 million. In
FY 2008, PGW paid $20.5 million and $22.5 million in December 2007 and August 2008, respectively to
completely repay the remaining balance of the loan.

Liquidity/Cash Flow — At December 18, 2008, $2.0 million was available from the Commercial Paper Program.
Additionally, PGW had $111.7 million available in its Capital Improvement Fund to be utilized for construction
expenditures. These funding sources may be utilized during the fall and early winter period to provide liquidity
until billings from the winter heating season are collected. The cash balance at December 18, 2008 was
$65.5 million.

Accounts Payable — In FY 2008 accounts payable increased $6.9 million or 11.4% compared with FY 2007
primarily due to an increase in natural gas payables. In FY 2007 accounts payable increased $3.1 million or 7.8%
compared with FY 2006 reflecting a $3.3 million increase in accounts payables associated with natural gas
partially offset by a $0.2 million decrease in trade payables.
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Other Liabilities and Deferred Credits — In FY 2008 other liabilities and deferred credits totaling $83.8 million
increased $35.8 million compared to FY 2007. In FY 2007 other liabilities and deferred credits totaling
$48.0 million increased $26.0 million compared to FY 2006. The increase in FY 2008 is the effect of recording
the change in the liability for OPEB in the amount of $25.8 million, an increase in the injuries and damages
reserve and an increase in the environmental remediation liability. The increase in FY 2007 is the effect of
recording the liability for OPEB in the amount of $26.4 million.

Other Financial Factors

The City has made a major commitment to PGW by granting back its annual $18.0 million payment, in each of
the last three fiscal years, thereby improving PGW’s overall liquidity position. PGW must continue to focus its
efforts on becoming a competitive utility in the deregulated marketplace. PGW remains committed to achieving
its tradition of providing high-quality service to customers, while continuing as a valuable enterprise of the City.

The Company’s total OPEB actuarial accrued liability as of August 31, 2008 was $591.6 million if the Company
continued to provide for its OPEB obligations on a pay-as-you-go basis. The Company’s actuarial accrued
liability would be reduced to $382.7 million if the Company adopted a policy of funding its ARC. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and
amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period of 30 years. The actuarial valuation
utilized a discount rate of 8.25% for purposes of developing the liabilities and ARC to demonstrate the effect of
funding the Plan. This rate is based on the investment return expected on investments segregated in a funded
trust.

The annual OPEB cost was $52.3 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008 and is projected to increase
to $70.2 million per year over the ensuing 20-year period on a pay-as-you-go basis. The annual OPEB cost was
$45.2 million for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2007.

On December 22, 2006, PGW filed for a $100.0 million base rate increase with the Public Utility Commission
(PUC). On September 28, 2007, the PUC approved a rate increase of $25.0 million. PGW appealed this decision
to Commonwealth Court on or about October 18, 2007 and this matter is still pending in the courts. The
$25.0 million rate increase was implemented in November 2007.

In November 2008, the Company filed for an extraordinary or emergency base rate increase of approximately
$60.0 million or 5.2% and simultaneously requested an $85.0 million or 7.4% decrease in the GCR for a net
2.2% overall rate decrease of approximately $25.0 million. The proposed base rate increase will serve several
purposes. First, the increase will cover the additional financing costs that the Company anticipates it will incur in
the next few months. Second, the increase will improve the Company’s financial position so as to enhance its
ability to access the financial markets and maintain its bond rating. Third, the increase will provide additional
liquidity and financial flexibility in this tight credit market. On December 18, 2008, the PUC issued its decision
approving a base rate increase of $60.0 million or 5.2% and a decrease in the GCR of $107.0 million for a net
decrease in rates of $47.0 million or 4.2%. These rates are effective as of January 1, 2009.
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The Company had $90.0 million of commercial paper that was outstanding at August 31, 2008. Subsequent to
year-end, all outstanding commercial paper matured, and additional commercial paper was issued. As of
December 18, 2008, $148.0 million of commercial paper was outstanding which matures on February 12,
February 13 and March 12, 2009.

As of December 18, 2008, $271.4 million of the Sixth Series Bonds are held by the providers of the Standby
Bond Purchase Agreement as bank bonds. The providers of the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement continue, on
a weekly basis, to remarket the bonds in accordance with the bond authorization. The Standby Bond Purchase
Agreement expires on January 26, 2009. If the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement is not renewed, and no
substitute liquidity facility is provided, any bank bonds held at that time will be amortized in ten payments
payable the first business day of July and the first business day of December for the next five years. The
Company has therefore recorded as current debt at August31, 2008 one tenth of the outstanding Sixth
Series Bonds as of August 31, including $1.9 million due to mature in 2009 under the original amortization
schedule and an additional $29.3 million for a total of $31.2 million.

The fair value of the interest rate swap as of December 18, 2008 was negative $72.6 million. This means that the
Company would have to pay this amount to terminate the swap. Per the swap agreement, the refunding or
defeasance of the Sixth Series Bonds, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of both the
counterparty and the insurer, may constitute an event of termination unless certain conditions are met. There is a
termination risk related to the interest rate swap agreement if PGW’s bond rating falls below Baa2 or BBB
(Moody’s/S&P). Because the City’s swap payments are insured by Financial Security Assurance Inc. (FSA) as
long as FSA is rated at or above A2 or A (Moody’s/S&P) the termination event based on the City’s rating is
stayed. Neither the Company’s credit rating nor FSA’s credit rating has declined below the levels required in the
agreement as of December 18, 2008.

Contacting the Company’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide the citizens of Philadelphia, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of PGW’s finances and to demonstrate PGW’s accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions pertaining to this report or need additional financial information, please contact Philadelphia Gas
Works, 800 W. Montgomery Avenue, Philadelphia, PA, 19122 or on the Web at www.pgworks.com.



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Phjladelphia)

Balance Sheets
August 31, 2008 and 2007

(Thousands of dollars)
Assets 2008 2007
Utility plant, at original cost:
In service $ 1,685,593 1,633,300
Under construction 46,969 48,013
Total 1,732,562 1,681,313
Less accumulated depreciation 670,467 640,940
Utility plant, net 1,062,095 1,040,373
Restricted investment funds:
Sinking fund, revenue bonds 106,198 102,438
Capital improvement fund 111,207 172,134
City of Philadelphia , — 643
Workers’ compensation escrow fund 2,383 1,924
Total restricted investment funds 219,788 277,139
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 49,338 51,698
Accounts receivable (net of provision for uncollectible accounts
of $140,435 and $150,231 for 2008 and 2007, respectively) 99,304 88,618
Gas inventories, materials, and supplies 187,539 147,770
Other current assets and deferred debits 5,626 5,615
Total current assets 341,807 293,701
Unamortized bond issuance costs 38,738 42,086
Unamortized losses on reacquired debt 47,902 53,359
Other assets and deferred debits 19,335 8,282
Total assets $ 1,729,665 1,714,940

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Balance Sheets
August 31, 2008 and 2007

(Thousands of dollars)
Fund Equity and Liabilities 2008 2007
Fund equity:
Deficiency of capital assets, net of related debt $ (4,466) (5,690)
Restricted 108,581 105,005
Unrestricted 122,293 123,986
Total fund equity 226,408 223,301
Long-term debt:
Revenue bonds 1,127,163 1,201,792
Total long-term debt 1,127,163 1,201,792
Current liabilities:
Note payable 90,000 51,600
Current portion of revenue bonds 76,030 43,995
Note payable — City Loan : — 43,000
Accounts payable 67,508 60,615
Customer deposits 7,325 9,049
Other current liabilities and deferred credits 32,581 15,524
Accrued accounts:
Interest, taxes, and wages 15,821 15,088
Distribution to the City 3,000 3,000
Total current liabilities 292,265 241,871
Other liabilities and deferred credits 83,829 47,976
Total fund equity and liabilities $ 1,729,665 1,714,940

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Statements of Revenues and Expenses
Years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007

{Thousands of dollars)
2008 2007
Operating revenues:
Gas revenues:
Nonheating $ 78,687 90,798
Gas transport service 19,215 12,949
Heating 733,526 736,358
Total gas revenues 831,428 840,105
Appliance and other revenues 8,607 9,398
Other operating revenues 9,592 9,848
Total operating revenues 849,627 859,351
Operating expenses:
Natural gas 511,976 539,300
Gas processing 14,436 16,240
Field services 37,126 36,100
Distribution ' 17,319 17,119
Collection and account management 15,447 15,221
Provision for uncollectible accounts 37,000 40,000
Customer services 12,305 11,783
Marketing 2,628 2,418
Administrative and general 60,716 56,819
Pensions 14,258 15,217
Other postemployment benefits 25,834 26,421
Taxes 5,677 6,730
Total operating expenses before depreciation 754,722 783,368
Depreciation 42,868 39,708
Less depreciation expense included in operating expenses above 3,344 3,328
Total depreciation 39,524 36,380
Total operating expenses 794,246 819,748
Operating income 55,381 39,603
Interest and other income 15,732 13,073
Income before interest expense 71,113 52,676
Interest expense:
Long-term debt 56,075 52,146
Other 12,269 17,042
Allowance for funds used during construction (338) (408)
Total interest expense 68.006 68,780
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenses $ 3,107 (16,104)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Statements of Cash Flows
Years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007

(Thousands of dollars)
2008 2007
Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers $ 834,000 863,658
Payments to suppliers (659,969) (631,475)
Payments to employees (105,596) (106,018)
Claims paid (2,691) (2,958)
Other receipts 24,500 28,800
Net cash provided by operating activities 90,244 152,007
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Interest 3,548 4,766
Interest payments on notes payable (4,099) (8,098)
Net repayments of notes payable 38,400 (3,400)
Loan from City of Philadelphia (43,000) (2,000)
Restricted, City Loan deposit 643 (643)
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia (18,000) (18,000)
Grant back of distribution from the City of Philadelphia 18,000 18,000
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities (4,508) (9,375)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt issued — 245,350
Redemption of long-term debt — (45,450)
Long-term debt issuance costs — (5,652)
Long-term debt premium, discount, and issuance losses — (4,133)
Purchases of capital assets (61,244) (69,105)
Principal paid on long-term debt (41,830) (38,045)
Interest paid on long-term debt (54,076) (46,913)
Capital improvement fund deposits — (193,170)
Drawdowns on capital improvement fund 60,926 60,672
Interest income on capital improvement fund 8,089 4,497
Interest income on sinking fund 3,460 1,996
Sinking fund (deposits) (3,759) (8,086)
Other investment income 338 408
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (88,096) (97,631)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,360) 45,001
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 51,698 6,697
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 49,338 51,698

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 55,381 39,603
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense 39,812 36,732

Change in assets and labilities:
Receivables, net (11,215) 3,387
Inventories (39,769) 1,668
Accounts payable 6,892 3,133
Other liabilities and deferred credits 50,879 31,366
Other assets and deferred debits (11,736) 36,118
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 90,244 ' 152,007

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

16



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS

(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Statements of Changes in Fund Equity
Years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007
(Thousands of dollars)

2008 2007
Fund equity balance, beginning of the year $ 223,301 239,405
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenses 3,107 (16,104)
Distribution to the City of Philadelphia (18,000) (18,000)
Grant back of distribution from the City of Philadelphia 18,000 18,000
Fund equity balance, end of the year $ 226,408 223,301

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting methods employed by the Philadelphia Gas Works (the Company) are in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP) and are in accordance with City of
Philadelphia (the City) reporting requirements.

As described in note 2, the Company, is a component unit of the City, and consequently follows
accounting principles promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as they
apply to proprietary fund-type activities. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting, the Company does not apply accounting standards promulgated by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) issued after November 30, 1989. FASB Statement No. 71, Accounting for the
Effects of Certain Types of Regulation, is applicable to the Company. Under FASB Statement No. 71,
certain assets or liabilities may be created by actions of regulatory bodies.

The principal accounting policies within this framework are described as follows:
(@) Regulation

Prior to July 1, 2000, the Company was under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Philadelphia Gas
Commission (PGC). The PGC had the authority to set the Company’s rates and tariffs. The PGC also
approved the Company’s annual Operating Budget and reviewed the Company’s Capital Budget
prior to approval by the City Council of the City (City Council).

Effective July 1, 2000, and pursuant to the passage of the Pennsylvania Natural Gas Choice and
Competition Act (the Act), the Company came under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Pennsylvania
Public Utility Commission (PUC). Under the PUC’s jurisdiction, the Company filed a restructuring
plan on July 1, 2002, which among other things, provided for an unbundled tariff permitting
customer choice of the commodity supplier by September 1, 2003. Under the Act, the PUC is
required to follow the “same ratemaking methodology and requirements” that were previously
applicable to the PGC when determining the Company’s revenue requirements and approving overall
rates and charges. The PGC continues to approve the Company’s Operating Budget and review its
Capital Budget. The Company’s Capital Budget must be approved by City Council.

The Company, as of September 1, 2003, is operating under its Restructuring Compliance Tariff. The
Restructuring Compliance Tariff Rates are designed to maintain revenue neutrality and the Tariff
Rules and Regulations are designed to comport with the Pennsylvania Public Utility Code.

(b)  Operating Budget

On May 29, 2008, the Company filed its fiscal year (FY) 2009 Operating Budget. The PGC
conducted informal discovery concerning this budget in July and August 2008 and public hearings in
September 2008. The PGC authorized interim spending authority of $88,140,000 for the period
September 1, 2008 through December 31, 2008, pursuant to a Motion, dated September 23, 2008. A
final Order approving interim spending was approved by the Commission at its September 23, 2008
meeting. Briefs were filed on October 15, 2008, a Recommended Decision was received on
October 27, 2008 and a final budget approval was granted by the Commission on December 2, 2008.
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On July 13, 2007, the Company filed its FY 2008 Operating Budget. The PGC conducted hearings
concerning this budget in August 2007 and approved the Company’s proposed operating revenues
and expenses with net adjustments of $4,197,000.

Capital Budget

On April 21, 2008, the Philadelphia Facilities Management Corporation (PFMC) Board approved the
Company’s Request to file an amendment to the FY 2008 budget in the amount of $2,300,000 for
funding to support the Risk-Based Collections and Field operations projects. These projects are
critical efforts in support of the Company’s Business Transformation effort. The Commission, after
review and evaluation, approved a recommendation to City Council supporting the Company’s
amendment on July 2, 2008. City Council approved the Commission’s recommendation on
October 23, 2008 and the Mayor signed the ordinance on November 5, 2008.

On January 2, 2008 the Company filed a proposed FY 2009 Capital Budget in the amount of
$73,436,000. After review and evaluation, the PGC on April 30, 2008 approved a recommendation
to City Council for a budget of $71,956,000. The Gas Commission’s recommendation was approved
by City Council on June 19, 2008 and the ordinance signed by the Mayor on July 2, 2008.

On September 27, 2007 the Company filed with the PGC a proposal to amend the approved FY 2008
Capital Budget for two new lines items totaling $1,433,000. These line items were Supplemental
Funding — Consolidate Fire Protection System — Richmond Plant for $1,171,000 and Disaster
Recovery for Richmond and Passyunk Plants for $262,000. On October 23, 2007 the Company filed
a proposal to further amend the budget by adding another new line item. Partial Reauthorization —
Customer Service Data Warehouse for $169,000. Concurrently, the Company proposed a reduction
of $1,523,000 in FY 2008 budget authorization to compensate for the additional funding requested.
The Commission, after review and evaluation, recommended that City Council approve an amended
budget for FY 2008 in the amount of $70,727,000. Subsequently, City Council approved the PGC’s
recommendation on March 6, 2008, with the Mayor signing the budget ordinance on March 12,
2008.

On January 2, 2007, the Company filed with the PGC its FY 2008 Capital Budget requesting
spending authority in the amount of $118,243,000. This budget request was amended by the
Company to reflect the deferral of two projects, Construction of Phase II Liquefied Natural Gas
(LNG) Replacement and Implementation of Billing Collection Customer Service (BCCS) for a
reduction of $47,300,000. The PGC conducted hearings concerning this budget in February 2007.
Briefs were filed on March 13, 2007. The Hearing Examiner issued a Recommended Decision on
March 27, 2007 for consideration by the Commissioners further reducing the budget by $295,000.
The PGC’s Resolution and Order recommending approval of the FY 2008 Capital Budget to City
Council was passed on April 25, 2007. This recommendation of $70,648,000 was approved by City
Council on June 15, 2007. The Mayor of the City signed the Ordinance approving the FY 2008
Capital Budget on September 20, 2007.
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Base Rates

In November 2008, the Company filed for an extraordinary or emergency base rate increase of
approximately $60,000,000 or 5.2% and simultaneously requested an $85,000,000 or 7.4% decrease
in the GCR for a net 2.2% overall rate decrease of approximately $25,000,000. The base rate
increase will serve several purposes. First, the increase will cover the additional financing costs that
the Company anticipates it will incur in the next few months. Second, the increase will improve the
Company’s financial position so as to enhance its ability to access the financial markets and maintain
its bond rating. Third, the increase will provide additional liquidity and financial flexibility in this
tight credit market. On December 18, 2008, the PUC issued its decision approving a base rate
increase of $60,000,000 or 5.2% and a decrease in the GCR of $107,000,000 for a net decrease in
rates of $47,000,000, or 4.2%. These rates are effective as of January 1, 2009.

On December 22, 2006, the Company filed for a $100,000,000 base rate increase with the PUC. The
funds provided by this increase in base rates were to be used to pay increased operating and
maintenance costs, establish an adequate level of working capital, repay the $45,000,000 City loan,
reduce the outstanding level of short-term commercial paper, provide a source of internal funds for
capital expenditures, meet bond covenant requirements in each fiscal year, and provide funds for
long-term debt reduction. On September 28, 2007, the PUC approved a rate increase of $25,000,000
which was effective in November 2007. The Company appealed this decision to Commonwealth
Court on or about October 18, 2007 and this matter is pending in the courts.

The previous increase in base rates of $36,000,000 was approved by the PUC on April 12, 2002.

Weather Normalization Adjustment Clause

The Weather Normalization Adjustment Clause (WNA) was approved by PUC Order dated
August 8, 2002. The purpose of the WNA is to neutralize the impact of weather on the Company’s
revenues. This allows the Company to achieve the recovery of appropriate costs as authorized by the
PUC. The WNA results in neither a rate increase nor a rate decrease, but acts as a billing adjustment.
The main benefits of the WNA are the stabilization of cash flow and the reduction of the need for
short-term borrowing from year to year. The WNA is applied to customer invoices rendered during
the period of October 1 through May 31 of each year for each billing cycle. The WNA will continue
in place unless the PUC issues an order directing that it be discontinued. The Company cannot
predict when the PUC will complete its review of the WNA, and the review was not completed as of
August 31, 2008. The adjustments for the years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 were an increase in
billings of $12,238,000 and $6,498,000, respectively.

Gas Cost Rate

The Company’s single greatest operating expense is the cost of natural gas. The rate charged to the
Company’s customers to recover these costs is called the gas cost rate (GCR) factor. The GCR
reflects the increases or decreases in natural gas costs and the cost of other raw materials. This GCR
mechanism provides the flexibility to rapidly reflect current conditions without the time delay
inherent in full base rate alteration. The intent is to achieve an annual balance between the costs
incurred for fuel and their pass through to customers.
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At the end of the fiscal year, costs recovered through the GCR are compared to the actual cost of fuel
and other specific costs. Customers are then credited or charged for over-recovery or under-recovery
of costs. The GCR may be adjusted quarterly or in the subsequent fiscal year to reflect the
under-recovery or over-recovery. Changes in the GCR impact the reported amounts of gas revenues
and operating expenses, but do not affect operating income or net income. The Company at
August 31, 2008 deferred approximately $15,494,000 for GCR under-recovery.

GCR effective dates and rates

GCR rate
Effective date per Mcf* Change
September 1, 2008 $ 12.6527 (0.3709)
June 1, 2008 13.0236 2.3010
March 1, 2008 10.7226 0.1447
December 1, 2007 10.5779 0.4671
September 1, 2007 10.1108 (0.6143)
June 1, 2007 10.7251 0.2913
March 1, 2007 10.4338 (0.4781)
December 1, 2006 10.9119 (0.3439)
September 1, 2006 11.2558 (1.3074)
Prior 12.5632 —

* Mcf - Thousand cubic feet

Utility Plant

Utility plant is stated at original cost. The cost of additions, replacements, and betterments of units of
property are capitalized and included in the utility plant accounts. The cost of property sold or retired
is removed from the utility plant accounts and charged to accumulated depreciation. Normal repairs,
maintenance, the cost of minor property items, and expenses associated with retirements are charged
to operating expenses as incurred.

In a previous rate order, the PGC disallowed the accrual of the net negative salvage component in
depreciation. Cost of removal in the amounts of $2,847,000 and $2,542,000 was charged to expense
as incurred in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively, and is included in depreciation expense in the
statements of revenues and expenses. Depreciation is calculated on an asset-by-asset basis on the
estimated useful lives of plant and equipment on a straight-line method. The composite rate for FY
2008 and FY 2007 was 2.4% and 2.3%, respectively. The composite rates are supported by a
depreciation study of utility plant as of August 31, 2004. The effective composite depreciation rates,
as a percentage of cost, for FY 2008 were as follows:

Production plant 0.14% — 4.39%
Transmission, distribution, and storage  0.18% —4.07%
General plant 1.62% - 9.97%

The next depreciation study is scheduled to be completed in FY 2010.
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Allowance for funds used during construction (AFUDC) is an estimate of the cost of funds used for
construction purposes. The AFUDC, as calculated on borrowed funds, reduces interest expense. The

AFUDC rate applied to construction work in progress was 4.96% in FY 2008 and FY 2007,
respectively.

The following is a summary of utility plant activity for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008 and
2007, respectively (thousands of dollars):

August 31, 2008
Beginning Additions Retirements Ending
balance and transfers  and transfers balance
Land $ 5,267 328 — 5,595
Distribution and collection
systems 1,221,067 52,803 (2,474) 1,271,396
Buildings and equipment 406,966 9,792 (8,156) 408,602
Total utility plant,
at historical cost 1,633,300 62,923 (10,630) 1,685,593
Under construction 48,013 61,879 (62,923) 46,969
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Distribution and
collection systems (556,620) (28,609)* 2,768 (582,461)
Buildings and equipment (84,320) (11,412)* 7,726 (88,006)
Utility plant, net $ 1,040,373 84,781 (63,059) 1,062,095

Cost of removal in the amounts of $2,847 and $2,542 was charged to expense as incurred in FY 2008
and FY 2007, respectively, and is not included in accumulated depreciation.
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August 31, 2007
Beginning Additions Retirements Ending
balance and transfers  and transfers balance
Land $ 5,267 — — 5,267
Distribution and coliection
systems 1,161,705 61,537 (2,175) 1,221,067
Buildings and equipment 388,697 25,500 (7,231) 406,966
Total utility plant,
at historical cost 1,555,669 87,037 (9,406) 1,633,300
Under construction 65,122 70,055 (87,164) 48,013
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Distribution and
collection systems (532,763) (26,26 1)* 2,404 (556,620)
Buildings and equipment (80,380) (10,905)* 6,965 (84,320)
Utility plant, net $ 1,007,648 119,926 (87,201) 1,040,373
* Cost of removal in the amounts of $2,847 and $2,542 was charged to expense as incurred in FY 2008

and FY 2007, respectively, and is not included in accumulated depreciation.

Revenue Recognition

The Company is primarily a natural gas distribution company. Operating revenues include revenues
from the sale of natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial heating and nonheating
customers. The Company also provides natural gas transportation service. Appliance and other
revenues primarily consist of revenue from the Company’s parts and labor repair program. Revenue
from this program is recognized on a monthly basis for the life of the individual parts and labor
plans. Additional revenue is generated from collection fees and reconnection charges. Other
operating revenues primarily consist of finance charges assessed on delinquent accounts.

Operating expenses include the cost of natural gas and the related costs incurred through the
processing, distribution, and delivery of natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial heating
and nonheating customers.

Revenue includes amounts related to gas that has been used by customers but has not yet been billed.
Revenues are recognized as gas is distributed. Estimated revenues from gas distributed and unbilled,
less estimated uncollectible amounts, are accrued and included in operating revenues.

Customers (Unaudited)

The Company’s service territory encompasses the City. Of the Company’s approximately 505,000
customers at August 31, 2008, nearly 95.0% were residential. Of the Company’s approximately
506,000 customers at August 31, 2007, nearly 94.3% were residential.
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The Company offers a discounted payment plan for current receivables with a possible forgiveness
of arrearages in three years. The total number of customers with discounted payment plans as of
August 31, 2008 and 2007 was approximately 77,000 and 78,000, respectively.

The Senior Citizen Discount also provides customers with a discounted payment plan. The total
number of customers receiving the discount as of August 31, 2008 and 2007 was approximately
40,000 and 44,000, respectively.

Provision for Uncollectible Accounts

The Company estimates its accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts based on a financial
analysis and a collectibility study performed at the fiscal year-end. The methodology used in
performing the collectibility study has been reviewed with the PGC. For FY 2008 and FY 2007,
management has provided an accumulated provision for uncollectible accounts in excess of the
collectibility study results based on its analysis of historical aging data. The actual results of the
Company’s collection efforts could differ significantly from the Company’s estimate.

Due to the seasonal nature of the business, the Company carries credit balances in accounts
receivable primarily as a result of prepayment by budget customers. Credit balances of $19,014,000
and $17,166,000 for FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively, have been reclassified to accounts payable
at year end.

Gas Inventories, Materials, and Supplies

Gas inventories, materials, and supplies, consisting primarily of fuel stock, gases stored to meet peak
demand requirements, and spare parts, are stated at average cost at August 31, 2008 and 2007, as
follows (thousands of dollars):

2008 2007
Gas inventory $ 179,751 138,388
Material and supplies 7,788 9,382
Total $ 187,539 147,770

Bond Issuance Costs, Debt Discount, and Premium

Discounts or premiums and bond issuance costs arising from the sale of revenue bonds are amortized
using the interest method over the term of the related bond issue.

Losses on Reacquired Debt

Losses on reacquired debt are deferred and amortized, using the interest method, to interest expense
over the shorter of the life of the refunding bond issue or the remaining original amortization period.
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Pensions and Postemployment Benefits

The Company sponsors a public employee retirement system (PERS), a single-employer
defined-benefit plan, to provide pension benefits for all of its employees. The pension plan
(the Pension Plan) is noncontributory, covering all employees and providing for retirement payments
for vested employees at age 65 or earlier under various options, which includes a disability pension
provision, a preretirement spouse or domestic partner’s death benefit, a reduced pension for early
retirement, various reduced pension payments for the election of a survivor option, and a provision
for retirement after 30 years of service without penalty for reduced age. In accordance with
Resolutions of the PGC, Ordinances of City Council, and as prescribed by the City’s Director of
Finance, the Pension Plan is being funded with contributions by the Company to the Sinking Fund
Commission of the City. Management believes that the Pension Plan is in compliance with all
applicable laws.

The Company sponsors a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan and provides
postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefits to approximately 1,920 and 1,935
participating retirees and their beneficiaries and dependents for FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively,
in accordance with their retiree medical program. The Company also provides such benefits to
approximately 1,699 and 1,720 active employees and their dependents for FY 2008 and FY 2007,
respectively, by charging the annual insurance premiums to expense.

GASB Statement No. 45 (GASB 45), Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, becomes effective for the Company’s fiscal year
beginning September 1, 2007. This Statement requires the Company to account for and report the
value of its future other postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligations currently rather than on a
pay-as-you-go basis. The Company adopted the provisions of GASB 45 as of September 1, 2006.
The Company had a zero net OPEB obligation at transition. As discussed in note 11, the difference
between the FY 2008 annual OPEB expense of $44,114,000 and the expenses paid by the Company
of $18,280,000 resulted in an increase in the liability of $25,834,000 which has been recorded in
other liabilities and deferred credits and expensed in FY 2008.

Additionally, the Company adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures,
which more closely aligns the financial reporting requirements for pensions with those of OPEB, as
of September 1, 2006.

Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of reporting cash equivalents, all nonrestricted highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less are considered cash equivalents.

Reserve for Injuries and Damages

The Company is principally insured through insurance carriers; however, the Company is required to
cover settlement of claims, which are excluded under the provisions of such insurance policies. An
estimated liability has been established, in accordance with PGC regulations, for settlements to be
paid by the Company in the next fiscal year.
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Estimated losses from claims for occurrences not covered by insurance, which will not be paid in the
next fiscal year, have been accrued and deferred. Such liabilities have been established based upon
Company history and consultation with counsel. Such expenses are expected to be recovered through
future rates. Charges against the reserve are made as claims are settled.

Segment Information

All of the Company’s assets and operations are employed in only one segment, local transportation
and distribution of natural gas in the City.

Estimates

In preparing the financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP, management uses estimates.
The Company has disclosed in the financial statements all estimates where it is reasonably possible
that the estimate will change in the near term and the effect of the change could be material to the
financial statements.

Pollution Remediation

GASB Statement No.49 (GASB 49), Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution
Remediation Obligations, is effective for the Company’s fiscal year beginning September 1, 2008,
however, the Company has chosen to implement the provisions of GASB 49 a year earlier than
required by GASB because the Company is a component unit of the City for financial reporting
requirements and the FY 2008 financial statements will be consolidated into the City’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. This statement establishes a framework for the
recognition and measurement of pollution remediation liabilities. A pollution remediation obligation
addresses the current or potential detrimental effects of existing pollution by participation in
pollution remediation activities.

Prior to the implementation of GASB 49, the Company recognized liabilities related to its voluntary
participation in remediation activities under Pennsylvania Act 2, Land Recycling and Environmental
Remediation Standards Act of 1995 (Act 2), which established the “land recycling program, and
related to its mandatory participation in activities under Pennsylvania Act 32, Storage Tank and Spill
Prevention Act of 1989 (Act 32), which established a comprehensive program to prevent leaks and
spills from underground and above ground tanks in accordance with existing U.S. GAAP related to
the accrual of liabilities.

Under Act 2, the Notice of Intent to Remediate (NIR) process was conducted by the Company in
October of 2004 and a total of four Public Involvement Plan meetings were conducted at multiple
City Recreation Centers throughout Philadelphia during February and March of 2005. In March of
2005 (after the public meetings were conducted), the Company submitted a series of five Remedial
Investigation Reports (RIRs) to the Act 2 for review. In July 2005, the Act 2 program approved all
five RIRs submitted in March 2005.

In accordance with GASB 49, the Company revised its methodology for estimating its pollution
remediation obligations to the effective cash flow method, in which measurement is based on the
outlays expected to be incurred as a sum of probability-weighted amounts in a range of possible
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estimated amounts. The Company’s liability is based on a combination of internal and external cost
estimates for the specific remediation activities agreed to as part of Act2 and Act 32 remediation
efforts, adjusted as additional information becomes available.

Estimated site liabilities are determined based upon existing remediation laws and technologies,
specific site consultants’ engineering studies, or by extrapolating experience with environmental
issues at comparable sites. Estimates may change substantially as additional information becomes
available regarding the level of contamination at specific sites, available remediation methods, price
changes, changes in technology, or changes in applicable regulations.

The implementation of GASB 49 resulted in an additional $8,300,000 liability which is reflected in
other liabilities and deferred credits at August 31, 2008. Although GASB 49 requires pollution
remediation liabilities to be measured at the beginning of the first period presented in the financial
statements, because the increase in the liability related to the implementation of GASB 49 is not
material, the Company has not restated prior periods and instead recognized the effect of GASB 49
implementation in the current year.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP for regulated entities, the Company has also recognized the
long-term portion of its environmental remediation liability as a regulatory asset because based on
available evidence it is probable that the previously incurred costs will be recovered through rates.

(t)  Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to current year presentation.

Ownership and Management and Related-Party Transactions and Balances

The Company is a component unit of the City. As of January 1, 1973, under the terms of a two-year
agreement automatically extended for successive two-year periods unless canceled upon 90 days’ notice by
the City, the Company is being managed by the PFMC. The agreement, as amended, provides for
reimbursement to PFMC of actual costs incurred in managing the Company, not to exceed a total of the
prior fiscal year’s maximum amount adjusted to reflect the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index
for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U) All Items Index, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, United States Department
of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics, as most recently published and available to the Director of Finance of
the City on March 1 of each such fiscal year. In FY 2008, the applicable maximum amount was calculated
to be $1,011,000. In FY 2007, the applicable maximum amount was calculated to be $976,000. The
agreement requires the Company to make annual payments of $18,000,000 to the City. In FY 2008 and FY
2007, the Company made the annual payment of $18,000,000 to the City. The City then granted the
$18,000,000 back to the Company in both years.

The Company engages in various other transactions with the City. The Company provides gas service to
the City. Operating revenues include $13,914,000 and $17,245,000 in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively,
relating to sales to the City. Water and sewer services and licenses are purchased from the City. Such
purchases totaled $616,000 and $615,000 in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively. Net amounts receivable
from the City were $375,000 and $240,000 at August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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Certain activities of the PGC are paid for by the Company. Such payments totaled $788,000 and $684,000
in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

(a)

(b

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of bank deposits, money market accounts, and
repurchase agreements. Bank balances of such deposits and accounts at August 31, 2008 and 2007
were $52,504,000 and $54,892,000, respectively. Book balances of such deposits and accounts at
August 31, 2008 and 2007 were $49,338,000 and $51,698,000, respectively. Federal depository
insurance on these balances at August 31, 2008 and 2007 was $158,000 and $222,000, respectively.
The remaining balances are not insured.

For the Company’s cash equivalents, the Company’s cash balances fluctuate significantly during the
year. Excess cash balances are usually invested in money market accounts and repurchase
agreements.

The highest balance of money market accounts during the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008 and
2007 were $135,200,000 and $157,200,000, respectively. Money market accounts with a carrying
amount (at fair value) of $51,200,000 and $53,702,000 at August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively,
are included in the balances presented above.

The highest balance of repurchase agreements during the fiscal year ended August 31, 2008 was
$62,600,000. There were no repurchase agreements outstanding at August 31, 2008 and 2007.

Restricted Investment Funds

The investments in the Company’s Sinking Fund, Capital Improvement Fund, Workers’
Compensation Escrow Fund, and City Loan Escrow Account consist primarily of a Guaranteed
Investment Contract (GIC), U.S. Treasury and government agency obligations, corporate obligations,
and money market accounts. These investments are maintained by the City or in the Company’s
name by its agent. The balance of the Capital Improvement Fund at August 31, 2008 and 2007 was
$111,207,000 and $172,134,000, respectively. The unexpended Capital Improvement Fund proceeds
are restricted to the purchase of utility plant. In FY 2008 and FY 2007, the Company utilized the
Capital Improvement Fund to provide liquidity for the additions to utility plant.

Investments are recorded at fair value except for certain money market funds recorded at amortized
cost. The adjustment to market value for the Capital Improvement Fund resulted in a loss of $71,500
at August 31, 2008. The adjustment to market value for the Capital Improvement Fund resulted in a
gain of $8,000 at August 31, 2007. The adjustment to market value for the Sinking Fund resulted in
gains of $242,000 and $214,000 at August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Pursuant to the Pennsylvania Department of Labor and Industry Bureau of Workers’ Compensation
Self-Insurance policy, the Company has to establish and maintain a restricted trust account. As of
August 31, 2008 and 2007, the trust account balances were $2,383,000 and $1,924,000, respectively.
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Capital Improvement
Fund (thousands of dollars):

August 31, 2008
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
U.S. government agencies
and instrumentalities:
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation
medium term notes 32,244 0.4608 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage gold
partner certificate 491 1.6694 . NA
Federal National
Mortgage Association
global benchmark notes 7,129 0.2794 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal National
Mortgage Association
medium term notes 1,248 1.8506 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Banks 9.405 0.8250 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 50,517
Corporate obligations:
Goldman Sachs Group senior
unsubordinate 968 0.7083 Aa-/AA3 Moody’s/S&P
Prioca Global 997 0.2917 Aa/AA3 Moody’s/S&P
Societe Generale National
Association commercial paper 4,950 1.6694 N/A/A-1+ S&P
HSBC Finance Corporation
commercial paper 985 0.2403 Pl/A-1+ Moody’s/S&P
American Express commercial
paper 985 0.2403 Pl/A-1+ Moody’s/S&P
Banco Santander PR San Juan
certificate of deposit 98 0.0280 FDIC Insured
Bank of Florida certificate of
deposit 99 0.1043 FDIC Insured

29 (Continued)



PHILADELPHIA GAS WORKS
(A Component Unit of the City of Philadelphia)

Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2008 and 2007

August 31, 2008
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (vears) rating agency
Bridgewater Savings Bank
certificate of deposit $ 9 0.0208 FDIC Insured
Countrywide Bank certificate
of deposit 99 0.0180 FDIC Insured
Eurobank Hato Rey
certificate of deposit 99 0.0205 FDIC Insured
First Suburban National Bank
certificate of deposit 98 0.1876 FDIC Insured
Ironstone Bank certificate of
deposit 98 0.1298 FDIC Insured
Mutual Bank certificate of deposit 99 0.0745 FDIC Insured
Ravenswood Bank certificate
of deposit 97 0.1835 FDIC Insured
Total corporate
obligations 9,770
Total fair value of
investments 60,287
Cash and cash equivalents:
Citigroup Funding Inc.
commercial paper ; 4,966 0.1474 N/A/A-1+ S&P
UBS Finance Delaware LLC
commercial paper 2,988 0.0595 N/A/A-1+ S&P
Total cash and cash
equivalents 7,954
Money market:
Morgan Stanley Prime Portfolio
Institutional Class Funds 21,772 N/A N/A
First American Government
Obligations Fund Class Z 13,884 N/A N/A
First American Prime Obligations
Class Z 6,847 N/A N/A
Total money market 42,503
Accrued interest 463
Total fair value of
investments,
including
cash deposits $ 111,207
Portfolio weighted modified duration 0.5898
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August 31, 2007
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
U.S. government agencies and
instrumentalities:
Federal Home .oan Banks
discount note $ 2,369 0.1917 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal National Mortgage
Association note 3,293 04194 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S.
government
agencies and
instrumentalities 5,662
Corporate obligations:
American Express commercial
paper 492 0.2861 Pl/Al Moody’s/S&P
General Electric commercial
paper 1,004 0.2889 P1/Al Moody’s/S&P
HSBC Finance commercial
paper 1,003 0.2972 P1/Al Moody’s/S&P
JP Morgan Chase & Co
Global Sr Holding Co note 992 0.4194 Aa2/AA- Moody’s/S&P
Goldman Sachs Group global
note 994 0.3750 Aa3/AA- Moody’s/S&P
Total corporate
obligations 4,485
Total fair value of
investments 10,147
Money market:
First American Prime
Obligations Fund Class Z 161,965 N/A N/A
Total money market 161,965
Accrued interest 22
Total fair value of
investments,
including
cash deposits $ 172,134
Portfolio weighted modified
duration 0.3304
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Sinking Fund (thousands
of dollars):

August 31,2008
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
Guaranteed investment contracts $___ 48129 12.5000 * *
U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes 16,806 2.5158 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S. government
obligations 16,806
U.S. government agencies and
instrumentalities:
Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation medium term notes 10,176 2.0177 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal National Mortgage
Association medium term notes 5,152 2.1446 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan Banks 16,514 1.9511 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S. government agencies
and instrumentalities 31,842
Corporate obligations:
Wells Fargo note 2,688 0.5861 Aal/AA+ Moody’s/S&P
Associates Corp National Association 2,610 0.1694 Aal3/AA- Moody’s/S&P
Procter & Gamble Company 1,293 0.2917 Aa3/AA- Moody’s/S&P
Total corporate obligations 6,591
Total fair value of investments 103,368
Cash and cash equivalents: :
U.S. Treasury bills 1.860 0.0111 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total cash and cash equivalents 1,860
Money market: N/A N/A
Fidelity Institutional
Government Portfolio Class 1l 970
Total money market 970
Total fair value of investments,
including cash deposits $ 106,198
Portfolio weighted modified duration 1.9002

* The credit rating of this investment is unrated.
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August 31, 2007
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment tvpe value (years) rating agemncy
Guaranteed investment contracts §__ 49504 13.5000 * *
U.S. government obligations:
U.S. Treasury notes 7,294 1.6153 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S. government
obligations 7294
U.S. government agencies
and instrumentalities:
Federal National Mortgage
Corporation debentures 6,973 2.0417 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Farm Credit Bank bonds 4,680 1.3717 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation bonds 10,396 1.9650 Aaa/lAAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation
debentures 8,810 1.8329 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal National Mortgage
Association notes 5,861 2.3328 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Federal Home Loan
Mortgage Corporation notes 6,358 1.3568 Aaa/AAA Moody’s/S&P
Total U.S. government
agencies and
instrumentalities 43,078
Corporate obligations:
Procter & Gamble note 1,265 1.2917 Aa3/AA- Moody’s/S&P
U.S. Bank National Association 1,105 0.8750 Aa2/AA Moody’s/S&P
Total corporate
obligations 2,370
Total fair value
of investments 102,246
Money market:
Fidelity Institutional
Government Portfolio Class II 192 N/A N/A
Total money market 192
Total fair value of
investments, including
cash deposits $ 102,438
Portfolio weighted modified duration 1.7806

* The credit rating of this investment is unrated.
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The following is a schedule that details the Company’s investments in the Workers” Compensation
Fund (thousands of dollars):

August 31, 2008
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
Money market:
First American Treasury
Obligations Fund $ 2,383 N/A N/A N/A
Total money market 2,383
Total fair value of

investments,

including cash

deposits $ 2,383

August 31, 2007
Weighted
average
Fair maturity Credit Rating
Investment type value (years) rating agency
Money market:
First American Treasury
Obligations Fund $ 1,924 N/A N/A N/A

Total money market 1,924

Total fair value of
investments,
including cash

deposits

Interest Rate Risk

3 1,924

It is the policy of the City to diversify its investment portfolios. Portfolio diversification is employed
as a way to control interest rate risk. Investments shall be diversified as to maturities, and as to kind
of investment to eliminate the risk of loss, which might result from over concentration of assets in a
specific maturity, in a specific kind of a security, or from a specific issuer.
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Credit Risk

The City has adopted an investment policy relating to the investments of the Company. Per the
investment policy, the Company’s allowable investments are: (1)bonds or notes of the
U.S. government; (2) U.S. Treasury obligations, including STRIPs; receipts indicating an undivided
interest in such U.S. Treasury obligations; and stripped coupons held under book-entry with the New
York Federal Reserve Bank; (3) U.S. agency obligations rated Aaa/AAA by Moody’s Investor
Services or Standard & Poor’s; (4) collateralized certificates of deposit; (5) bankers acceptances,
Eurodollars deposits, and Euro certificates of deposit that are collateralized; (6 ) commercial paper
rated M1G1 or Al+ by Moody’s Investor Services and Standard & Poor’s, respectively; (7) general
obligation bonds of corporations rated AA or better by Moody’s Investor Services or Standard &
Poor’s, with a maturity of two years or less (except the Sinking Fund); (8) collateralized mortgage
obligations and pass-through securities rated AA or better by Moody’s Investor Services or Standard
& Poor’s or collateralized with securities that meet the Company’s own investment criteria, with a
maturity of two years or less (except the Sinking Fund); (9) money market mutual funds, as defined
by the Securities and Exchange Commission; (10) repurchase agreements collateralized either
through actual delivery of eligible collateral or through segregation of collateral by a depository that
is holding the counterparty’s securities, provided such collateral meets the Company’s own
investment criteria; and (11) obligations of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
(the Commonwealth) or any municipality or other political subdivision of the Commonwealth,
registered or otherwise as to principal and interest, with a maturity of two years or less (except the
Sinking Fund).

Authorized investments for Sinking Fund Portfolios are dictated by the First Class City Revenue
Bond Act. This also includes any investment vehicle permitted for any Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania state agency.

Custodial Credit Risk

The Company has selected custodian banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System to hold
its investments. Delivery of the applicable investment documents (e.g., contracts, securities, and
safekeeping receipts) to the Company’s custodian is required for all investments. For secured
transactions, such as repurchase agreements, either the title to or a perfected security interest in the
securities, along with any necessary transfer documents, must be transferred to the custodian. Such
transactions will always use delivery versus payment procedures.

Concentration of Credit Risk

More than 5.0% of the Company’s investments are in the First American Government Obligations
Fund Class Z, U.S. Treasury notes, Morgan Stanley Prime Portfolio Institutional Class Fund, Federal
Home Loan Banks, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation medium term notes and the GIC with
Financial Security Assurance Inc. (FSA) Capital Markets Services, LLC. These investments
represent 6.32% and 7.65%, 9.91%, 11.79%, 19.30% and 21.90%, respectively, of the Company’s
total investments.
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Notes to Financial Statements
August 31, 2008 and 2007

Deferred Costs

In compliance with orders issued by the PGC, the cost of projects that produce benefits over an extended
period is deferred. Such costs are being amortized to expense over a period matching their useful lives,
which range from two to ten years. There is no return on the asset being charged to the customers. During
FY 2008, there were costs of $157,000 incurred for rate case expenses and $437,000 incurred for the
PUC’s management audit that will be amortized over a four-year period and a seven-year period,
respectively. The unamortized costs included in other assets and deferred debits were $607,000 and
$324,000 as of August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The unamortized costs included in other current
assets and deferred debits were $210,000 and $397,000 as of August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP for regulated entities, the Company has recognized the long-term portion
of its environmental remediation liability as a regulatory asset because based on available evidence it is
probable that the previously incurred costs will be recovered through rates. As a result of settlements
during FY 2008 by the Company’s insurance carriers associated with environmental remediation costs, the
Company received $1,100,000. Environmental remediation costs of approximately $652,000 in FY 2008
were offset by these insurance settlements, and the remainder was deferred. The Company estimates
additional expenditures to be approximately $21,600,000 as discussed in note 12.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the Plan) created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all Company employees with six months of
service, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The Company provides an annual
10.0% matching contribution up to $500 that immediately vests to the employee. The Company
contributed $361,000 and $365,000 for the years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Notes Payable

Pursuant to the provisions of certain ordinances and resolutions of the City, the Company may sell
short-term notes in a principal amount that, together with interest, may not exceed $200,000,000
outstanding at any one time. These notes are intended to provide additional working capital. They are
supported by an irrevocable letter of credit and a subordinated security interest in the Company’s revenues.

A new Series E of the tax-exempt commercial paper program was instituted on January 18, 2006,
concurrently with the expiration of Series D. Under the new credit agreement, the commitment amount was
increased from $100,000,000 to $150,000,000. The credit agreement was further amended and restated as
of May 22, 2007 to reflect a new term and rate structure. The expiration of the credit agreement was
extended to May 29, 2010.

The notes outstanding at August 31, 2008 had a weighted average interest rate of 1.63% and remaining
weighted average time to maturity of 61 days. The principal amount outstanding at August 31, 2008 and
2007 was $90,000,000 and $51,600,000, respectively.
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Commercial paper activity for the years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 was as follows (thousands of
dollars):

Year ended August 31, 2008

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Deletions balance
Commercial paper $ 51,600 87,900 49,500 90,000
Year ended August 31, 2007
Beginning Ending
balance Additions Deletions balance
Commercial paper $ 55,000 94,900 98,300 51,600

See note 8(¢) for detail of the Note Payable — City Loan.

GCR Tariff Reconciliation

During the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008, 2007, and 2006, the Company’s actual gas costs were
below its billed gas costs by approximately $30,503,000, $24,904,000, and $8,466,000, respectively.

Natural Gas Pipeline Supplier Refund

The Company received refunds including interest in FY 2008 in the amount of $10,660,000 related to
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)/Pipeline Rate Cases. This amount was utilized as a
reduction in the cost of gas for reconciliation purposes in the calculation of the GCR for FY 2008.

The Company received refunds including interest in FY 2007 in the amount of $648,000 related to
FERC/Pipeline Rate Cases. This amount was utilized as a reduction in the cost of gas for reconciliation
purposes in the calculation of the GCR for FY 2007.

Long-Term Debt and Other Liabilities

The following summary of long-term debt consists primarily of bonds issued by the City under agreements
whereby the Company must reimburse the City for the principal and interest payments required by the
bond ordinances for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 (thousands of dollars):

August 31, 2008 August 31, 2007
Current Current
portion Long-term Total portion Long-term Total
Revenue bonds $ 73,941 1,103,828 1,177,769 41,830 1,176,368 1,218,198
Unamortized discount (482) (4,469) (4,951) (511) (4,951) (5.462)
Unamortized premium 2,571 27,804 30,375 2,676 30,375 33,051
Total revenue bonds 76,030 1,127,163 1,203,193 43,995 1,201,792 1,245,787
Note Payable — City Loan — —_ — 43,000 — 43,000
Total $ 76,030 1,127,163 1,203,193 86,995 1,201,792 1,288,787
————————— - ;-
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The following is a summary of activity related to revenue bonds and other liabilities and deferred credits
and the respective balances for the fiscal years ended August 31, 2008 and 2007 (thousands of dollars):

Year ended August 31, 2008

Beginning Ending
balance Additions Reductions balance
Revenue bonds $ 1,218,198 — (40,429) 1,177,769
- Other liabilities and deferred
credits:
Forward rate agreement $ 8,431 — (624) 7,807
Claims and judgments 3,111 2,966 — 6,077
Environmental clean-up 10,013 7,677 — 17,690
Other postemployment
benefits 26,421 25,834 — 52,255
Total other
liabilities and
deferred credits $ 47,976 36,477 (624) 83,829
Year ended August 31, 2007
Beginning Ending
balance Additions Reductions balance
Revenue bonds $ 1,055,038 246,655 (83,495) 1,218,198
Other liabilities and deferred
credits:
Forward rate agreement $ 9,056 — (625) 8,431
Claims and judgments 3,899 — (788) 3,111
Environmental clean-up 9,074 939 _— 10,013
Other postemployment
benefits — 26,421 — 26,421
Total other
liabilities and
deferred credits $ 22,029 27,360 (1,413) 47,976

Liability amounts due within one year are reflected in the other current liabilities and deferred credits line
of the balance sheet.
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Principal maturities and scheduled interest payments for revenue bonds are as follows (thousands of

dollars):
Revenue bonds
Net swap
Principal Interest amount Total
Fiscal year ending August 31:
2009* $ - 44,625 53,233 (5,717) 92,141
2010 46,365 50,965 (5,682) 91,648
2011 46,977 48,677 (5,648) 90,006
2012%* 41,787 46,915 (5,611) 83,091
2013 45,055 45,269 (5,573) 84,751
2014 -2018 229,865 192,562 (25,374) 397,053
2019-2023 242,520 137,093 (19,042) 360,571
2024 - 2028 244915 81,657 (9,787) 316,785
2029 -2033 140,565 35,093 (976) 174,682
2034 - 2038 95,095 8,175 — 103,270
Total $ 1,177,769 699,639 (83,410) 1,793,998

* %k

(@)

This does not include $29,317,000 of Sixth Series Bonds that is included in current liabilities due to
the scheduled expiration of the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement as described in note 15. This
amount is included in the years in which principal matures according to the original maturity
schedule.

Future debt service is calculated using rates in effect at August 31, 2008 for variable rate bonds. The
net swap payment amounts were calculated by subtracting the future variable rate interest payments
subject to swap agreements from the synthetic fixed-rate amount intended to be achieved by the
swap amount.

Tax Exempt Capital Accumulator (TECA) accretions for the 11 “C” Series in the amount of
$4,643,000 are not included in the principal amount in FY 2012.

Bond Issuances
2007 Ordinances

On March 21, 2007, the Mayor signed two bills into law authorizing the City to issue revenue bonds.
The first bill signed by the Mayor constituted the Nineteenth Supplemental Ordinance to the General
Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1975 (the 1975 General Ordinance). This ordinance
authorizes the City to issue revenue bonds for the following purposes: (a) the current refunding of a
portion of the outstanding City of Philadelphia, Pennsylvania Gas Works Revenue Bonds, Fifteenth
Series (1975 Refunded Bonds); (b) paying the costs of issuing the Nineteenth Series Bonds; and
(c) paying any other Project Costs (as defined in the Act).
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The second bill signed by the Mayor constituted the Eight Supplemental Ordinance to the General
Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1998 (the 1998 General Ordinance). This ordinance
authorizes the City to issue revenue bonds for the following purposes: (a) providing funding for the
capital projects included in the capital program of the Company as from time to time included in the
capital budgets of the Company, as approved by City Council; (b) advance refunding of the 1998
Refunded Bonds, which were issued under the 1998 General Ordinance; (c) paying the costs of
issuing the Seventh Series Bonds and the required deposits to the 1998 Ordinance Sinking Fund
Reserve; and (d) paying any other Project Costs (as defined in the Act).

1998 Ordinance Seventh Series Bonds

On May 15, 2007, the Company issued $230,900,000 of Seventh Series Bonds for the purpose of
providing funds for the financing of the capital projects included in the capital program of the
Company, and for the purpose of redeeming and refunding, on a current basis, a portion of the
outstanding Second Series B, Third Series and Fourth Series Bonds. The refunded par amounts of the
Second Series B, Third Series and Fourth Series Bonds were: $7,500,000, $3,145,000, and
$20,005,000, respectively. The Seventh Series Bonds contained new money debt issued in the
amount of $200,000,000. This new debt was issued under the 1998 Ordinance. The interest rate on
the $137,720,000 of Serial Bonds ranged from 4.0% to 5.0%. The interest rate on the $93,180,000 of
Term Bonds was 5.0%. The bonds, consisting of Serial Bonds and Term Bonds, have maturity dates
through 2037.

1975 Ordinance Nineteenth Series Bonds

On May 15, 2007, the Company issued $14,450,000 of Nineteenth Series Bonds for the purpose of
redeeming and refunding, on a current basis, the outstanding Fifteenth Series Bonds previously
issued under the 1975 Ordinance. This new debt was issued under the 1975 Ordinance. The interest
rate on the Serial Bonds was 5.0%. The bonds, consisting of Serial Bonds, have maturity dates
through 2023,

2006 Ordinances

On December 22, 2005, the Mayor signed an ordinance into law authorizing the City to issue
revenue bonds for the purpose of (a) refunding all or a portion of the following Series of Gas Works
Revenue Bonds (the 1998 General Ordinance): First Series B, Second Series A, Third Series, Fourth
Series, and Fifth Series; (b) paying the costs of issuing the bonds and making any required deposits
to the Sinking Fund Reserve; and (c) paying any other Project Costs, which may include, without
limitation, the repayment to any fund of the City or to accounts of the Company of amounts
advanced for Project Costs.

1998 Ordinance Sixth Series Bonds

On January 26, 2006, the Company issued $313,390,000 of Sixth Series Bonds, maturing at various
dates through 2031, for the purpose of redeeming and refunding, on a current basis, all of the First
Series B and a portion of the outstanding Second Series A, Third Series, and Fourth Series City of
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, Gas Works Revenue Bonds previously issued under the 1998 Ordinance.
The refunded par amounts of the First Series B, Second Series A, Third Series, and Fourth
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Series Bonds were: $103,550,000, $79,355,000, $99,915,000, and $2,295,000, respectively. As of
August 31, 2007, there were no Fifth Series Bonds refunded. The $313,390,000 of Serial Bonds have
a variable rate set through a weekly reset mode and are paid monthly and are secured with a Standby
Bond Purchase Agreement, which expires January 26, 2009. As discussed in note 15, substantially
all of the Sixth Series Bonds are held by banks under the Standby Bond Purchase Agreement at
December 18, 2008.

The Bonds were issued on a parity with other Senior 1998 Ordinance Bonds issued under the 1998
General Ordinance, but are subordinated in right of payment and security to all bonds issued and
outstanding under the General Gas Works Revenue Bond Ordinance of 1975, approved on May 30,
1975, Bill No. 1871, as amended and supplemented from time to time (the 1975 General Ordinance
and together with the 1998 General Ordinance). The Bonds were also issued on parity with the
Obligations of the City to make periodic payments due under a Qualified Swap being entered into
between the City and the counterparty in connection with the issuance of the bonds.

Debt Coverage and Sinking Fund Requirements

Under the terms of both general ordinances, the City is required to maintain rates to allow the
Company to satisfy 1975 and 1998 revenue bond debt coverage ratio requirements. The Company
has satisfied the debt coverage requirements in FY 2008 and FY 2007.

Also provided by both general ordinances is the establishment of a sinking fund into which deposits
are made sufficient to meet all principal and interest requirements of the bonds as they become due.
Both general ordinances also provide that sinking fund reserves be maintained as part of the Sinking
Fund, which have previously been funded from the proceeds of each series of bonds in an amount
equal to the maximum annual debt service requirement on the bonds of each respective General
Ordinance in any fiscal year.

Monies in the Sinking Fund reserves are to be applied to the payment of debt service if, for any
reason, other monies in the Sinking Fund should be insufficient.

The revenue bonds are, and will be, equally and ratably collateralized by a security interest in all of
the Company’s project revenues, as defined in the general ordinances, and monies in the Sinking
Fund.

Portions of certain revenue bonds were issued as zero-coupon securities. Interest on these securities
is accrued and compounded on the payment dates of the current interest bonds within the issue. The
accrued interest is reported as long-term debt.

Interest Rate Swap Agreement

Objective - In January 2006, the City entered into a swap to synthetically refund all or a portion of
several series of outstanding bonds. The swap structure was used as a means to increase the City’s
savings, when compared with fixed-rate bonds at the time of issuance. The intention of the swap was
to create a synthetic fixed rate structure.
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Terms — The swap, executed with the counterparty, commenced on January 26, 2006 and will mature
on August 1, 2031. Under the swap, the City pays a fixed rate of 3.6745% and receives a variable
rate computed as the lesser of (i) the actual bond rate and (ii) the SIFMA Municipal Swap Index until
September 1, 2011 on which date the variable interest rate received will switch to 70% of one month
LIBOR until maturity. The rates are based on an amortizing notional schedule (with an initial
notional amount of $313,390,000). As of August 31, 2008, rates were as follows:

Terms Rates
Interest Rate Swap
Fixed payment to counterparty under Swap Fixed 3.6745%
Variable payment from counterparty under Swap SIFMA (1.8400)
Net interest rate swap payments 1.8345
Variable rate bond coupon payments Weekly resets 2.0400
Synthetic interest rate on bonds 3.8745

As of August 31, 2008, the swap had a notional amount of $311,615,000 and the associated variable
rate bond had a $311,615,000 principal amount. The bonds and the related swap agreement mature
on August 1, 2031.

Fair value — As of August 31, 2008, the swap had a negative fair value of $14,285,000. This means
that the Company would have to pay this amount to terminate the swap. Subsequently, the negative
fair value has increased as discussed in note 15.

Risks - As of August 31, 2008, the City is not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a negative
fair value. Should interest rates change and the fair value of the swap become positive, the City
would be exposed to credit risk in the amount of the swap’s fair value. The swap includes an
additional termination event based on credit ratings. The swap may be terminated if the ratings of the
counterparty falls below A3 or A- (Moody’s/S&P), unless the counterparty has: (i) assigned or
transferred the swap to a party acceptable to the City; (ii) provided a credit support provider
acceptable to the City whose obligations are pursuant to a credit support document acceptable to the
City; or (iii) executed a credit support annex, in form and substance acceptable to the City, providing
for the collateralization by the counterparty of its obligations under the swap.

A termination event may also occur if the rating on the Company’s Bonds falls below Baa2 or BBB
(Moody’s/S&P). However, because the City’s swap payments are insured by FSA, as long as FSA is
rated at or above A2 or A (Moody’s/S&P), the termination event based on the City’s ratings is
stayed. As of December 18, 2008, neither the Company’s nor FSA’s credit ratings have fallen below
these levels.

The City is subject to traditional basis risk should the relationship between SIFMA and the bonds
change; if SIFMA resets at a rate below the variable rate bond coupon payments, the synthetic
interest rate on the bonds will increase. In addition, after September 1, 2011, the City would be
exposed to (i) basis risk, as reflected by the relationship between the rate payable on the bonds and
70% of one month LIBOR received on the swap, and (ii) tax risk, a form of basis risk, where the City
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is exposed to a potential additional interest cost in the event that changes in the federal tax system or
in marginal tax rates cause the rate paid on the outstanding bonds to be greater than the 70% of one
month LIBOR received on the swap.

Forward Rate Agreement and Guaranteed Investment Contracts

On August 23, 2002, the City entered into GICs in connection with a portion of its 1975 and 1998
Ordinance Sinking Fund Reserves for the Company. At settlement, approximately 65.0% of the
Sinking Fund Reserves, from the two ordinances, totaling $61,396,000 were invested in the GICs. In
exchange for this investment, the Company received an up-front payment of $21,800,000 in lieu of
receiving interest payments over the life of the GICs. The life of the Forward Rate Agreement is 182
years, with 12% years remaining at August 31, 2008.

The GICs are recorded at fair value in the Sinking Fund and had fair values of $48,129,000 and
$49,504,000 at August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The Company also paid $1,650,000 to terminate an existing Forward Rate Agreement as part of this
transaction. Of the remaining net proceeds of $20,150,000, $8,596,000 was allocated to the 1975
Sinking Fund Reserve and $11,554,000 was allocated to the 1998 Sinking Fund Reserve. For debt
service coverage purposes, the $20,150,000 was considered “project revenues” in FY 2002. For
financial statement purposes, the $8,596,000 was recorded as revenue in FY 2002 in the category of
interest and other income. This amount is nonrefundable and was granted to the Company by the
City.

Under the 1998 Ordinance, the Company is entitled to the earnings on the portion of the Sinking
Fund allocated to bonds issued under the 1998 Ordinance. Therefore, the $11,554,000 received under
the 1998 ordinance was deferred and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over the life of the
agreement. The unamortized balance of the proceeds was $7,807,000 and $8,431,000 at August 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

Note Payable — City Loan

On November 15, 2000, the Mayor signed an ordinance authorizing the City to advance in whole or
in part, up to $45,000,000 to the Company, to provide liquidity in the winter of 2000-2001. The loan
from the City carried no interest. The loan repayment period was extended to August 2008.

The loan from the City was subordinate to the Company’s other repayment obligations on its revenue
bonds and commercial paper program. The outstanding balance of the City loan was $43,000,000 at
August 31, 2007. The remaining balance of the City loan was remitted to the City in payments of
$20,500,000 and $22,500,000 in December 2007 and August 2008, respectively.
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Defeased Debt

Defeased debt of the Company (bonds issued by the Company payable from the proceeds of irrevocably
pledged assets) at August 31, 2008 was as follows:

Latest date Bonds

maturing to Interest rate outstanding_
7th Series 3/15/13 6.00% $ 10,675,000
12th Series B 5/15/20 7.00 47,910,000
2nd Series 7/1/29 5.00 84,640,000
3rd Series 8/1/31 5.50 99,445,000
4th Series 8/1/32 5.25 20,005,000

The Company issued $230,900,000 of Seventh Series Bonds during FY 2007. The proceeds of
$30,900,000 from the sale were utilized to refund a portion of the Second Series B, Third Series, and
Fourth Series Bonds, in the amounts of $7,500,000, $3,145,000, and $20,005,000, respectively. The
refunding of this existing debt resulted in an accounting loss of $2,218,000. This loss is being deferred and
amortized as interest expense over the life of the new bonds. The refunding generated a present value
savings of $2,146,000.

The investments held by the trustee and the defeased bonds are not recognized on the Company’s balance
sheets in accordance with the terms of the Indentures of Defeasance. The investments pledged for the
redemption of the defeased debt have maturities and interest payments scheduled to coincide with the
trustee cash requirements for debt service.

The assets pledged, primarily noncallable U.S. government securities, had a market value of $278,271,000
at August 31, 2008, bearing interest on face value from 4.30% to 5.89%.

Pension Costs
(a) Plan Description

The Company sponsors a public employee retirement system (PERS), a single-employer
defined-benefit plan, to provide pension benefits for all of its employees, whose annual covered
payroll (which was substantially equal to total payroll) was $105,596,000 and $106,018,000 at
August 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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At September 1, 2007, the beginning of the plan year of the last actuarial valuation, the Pension Plan
membership consisted of:

Retirees and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits and terminated
employees entitled to benefits, but

not yet receiving them $ 2,151
Current employees:

Vested 1,395

Nonvested 270

Total current employees 1,665

Total membership $ 3,816

The Pension Plan provides retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. Retirement
benefits vest after five years of credited service. Employees who retire at or after age 65 are entitled
to receive an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly, in an amount equal to the greater of:

o 1.25% of the first $6,600 of Final Average Earnings plus 1.75% of the excess of Final Average
Earnings over $6,600, times years of credited service, with a maximum of 60% of the highest
annual earnings during the last 10 years of credited service, or

. 2% of total earnings received during the period of credited service plus 22.5% of the first
$1,200 annual amount, applicable only to participants who were employees on or prior to
March 24, 1967.

Final Average Earnings are the employee’s average pay, over the highest five years of the last
ten years of credited service. Employees with 15 years of credited service may retire at or after
age 55 and receive a reduced retirement benefit. Employees with 30 years of service may retire
without penalty for reduced age.

Covered employees are not required to contribute to the Pension Plan. The Company is required by
statute to contribute the amounts necessary to fund the Pension Plan. Benefit and contribution
provisions are established by City ordinance and may be amended only as allowed by City
ordinance.

The City issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Pension Plan. The report may be obtained by writing to the
Director of Finance of the City.
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Annual Pension Cost, Contributions Required, and Contributions Made

Amortization
of the
Normal underfunded
cost balance Contributions
Fiscal year:

2008 $ 8,085,000 6,173,000 14,258,000
2007 7,693,000 7,524,000 15,217,000
2006 7,617,000 9,946,000 17,563,000

Withdrawals from pension assets of $18,564,000 and $16,776,000 in FY 2008 and FY 2007,
respectively, were utilized to meet beneficiary payment obligations.

The Company’s annual pension cost is equal to its annual required contribution (ARC). The ARCs
were determined based on an actuarial study, or updates thereto, using the projected unit credit
method. Significant actuarial assumptions used for the above valuation include a rate of return on the
investment of present and future assets of 8.25% per year compounded annually; projected salary
increases of 3.0% of the salary at the beginning of the next three years, then 4.25% of the salary at
the beginning of the fourth and subsequent year; and retirements that are assumed to occur prior to
age 62, at a rate of 10.0% at ages 55 to 61 and 100% at age 62. The assumptions did not include
postretirement benefit increases. These actuarial assumptions are consistent with the prior fiscal year.

The actuarial asset value is equal to the value of the fund assets as reported by the City with no
adjustments. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over 10 years.

The Pension Plan funding policy provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual covered payroll, are sufficient to
accumulate assets to pay benefits when due. Level percentages of payroll employer contribution
rates are determined using the Projected Unit Credit actuarial funding method. The Pension Plan had
an actuarial value of assets of $416,183,000 and an actuarial accrued liability of $482,380,000
resulting in a funded ratio of 86.28% based on a biennial actuarial valuation of the pension fund as of
September 1, 2007. The resulting unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $66,197,000 was 62.69% of
covered payroll of $105,596,000.

Historical Trend Information (Unaudited)

Historical trend information reflecting funding progress and contributions made by the Company is
presented in the supplemental schedule of pension funding progress (unaudited).
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(11) Other Postemployment Benefits

(a)

®

Plan Description

The Company sponsors a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan and provides
postemployment healthcare and life insurance benefits to approximately 1,920 and 1,935
participating retirees and their beneficiaries and dependents for FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively,
in accordance with their retiree medical program. The Company also provides such benefits to
approximately 1,699 and 1,720 active employees and their dependents for FY 2008 and FY 2007,
respectively, by charging the annual insurance premiums to expense. The annual covered payroll
(which was substantially equal to total payroll) was $105,596,000 and $106,018,000 at August 31,
2008 and 2007, respectively.

-The Company pays 100.0% of premiums for basic medical, hospitalization, and prescription drugs

incurred by retirees and their dependents. The Company also pays a portion of the premium for life
insurance for each eligible retiree. Currently, the Company provides for the cost of healthcare and
life insurance benefits for retirees and their beneficiaries on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Total expense incurred for healthcare amounted to $34,226,000 and $36,111,000 in FY 2008 and
FY 2007, respectively, of which approximately 48.1% and 52.0%, respectively, represents payments
on behalf of retired employees and their dependents. Employees and retirees contributed $1,477,000
and $1,470,000 in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively, towards their healthcare. These contributions
represent the additional cost of healthcare plans chosen by employees and retirees above the basic
plan offered by the Company. Total premiums for group life insurance were $2,103,000 and
$2,080,000 in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively. The amount attributed to retirees was
approximately 71.0% and 76.3% in FY 2008 and FY 2007, respectively. The contribution
requirements of nonunion plan members are established by management and may be amended. The
contribution requirements for union plan members are subject to collective bargaining.

The Plan does not issue a stand-alone report and therefore the Company has included the schedule of
employer contributions as a supplemental schedule (unaudited).

Actuarial Valuation and Assumptions

The Company engaged an actuarial consulting firm to provide an actuarial valuation of the
Company’s OPEB obligations as of August 31, 2007. The actuarial valuations involve estimates of
the value of reported amounts and the assumptions about the probability of events far into the future.
Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision, as actual results are compared to
past expectations, and new estimates are made about the future. The calculations were based on the
types of benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan at the time of the valuation.

The projected unit cost method was utilized in the valuation to develop the actuarial accrued liability
and normal cost. Under the projected unit cost method, the present value of benefits is allocated
uniformly over the employee’s expected working lifetime. The actuarial accrued liability is that
portion of the present value of projected benefits, which has been accrued during the employee’s
working lifetime from hire to valuation date. The normal cost represents the amount charged for
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services earned during the current reporting period. The normal cost is calculated by dividing the
present value of projected benefits for an employee by the total service.

The valuation was prepared utilizing certain assumptions, including the following:

. Economic assumptions — the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rates

The report utilized a 5.0% discount rate for purposes of developing the liabilities and ARC on
the basis that the Plan would not be funded. This rate is based on the investment return
expected on the Company’s general investments, because the Company has not funded the

Plan for FY 2008.
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates
Medical Prescription Dental
Year:
1 10.0% 10.0% 4.5%
2 9.0 9.0 4.5
3 8.0 8.0 4.5
4 7.0 7.0 4.5
5 6.0 6.0 4.5
6 5.0 5.0 4.5
7 45 45 45
8 and beyond 45 4.5 4.5

. Benefit assumptions — the initial per capita cost rates for medical coverage, and the face
amount of Company-paid life insurance

. Demographic assumptions — including the probabilities of retiring, dying, terminating (without
a benefit), becoming disabled, recovery from disability, election (participation rates), and
coverage levels

Annual Postemployment Benefit Cost, Contributions Required, and Contributions Made

The ARC for FY 2008 is estimated to be $44,114,000 which is also the annual OPEB cost. The
amount paid by the Company for retiree benefits in FY 2008 was $18,280,000, consisting of
$16,788,000 of healthcare expenses and $1,492,000 of life insurance expenses. The difference
between the ARC and the expenses paid resulted in an increase in the OPEB liability of $25,834,000.
This amount has been recorded in other liabilities and deferred credits and has been expensed in
FY 2008.

As of August 31, 2008, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $591,599,000, all of which
was unfunded and the ratio of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was
560.3%. Historical trend information reflecting funding progress and contributions made by the
Company is presented in the Schedule of Other Postemployment Benefits Funding Progress
(unaudited).
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(d)  Other Cov